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November 16, 2001

@ B\ 4

State of Ohio - Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street - Columbus, Ohio 43266-0411

To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly, and the Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to issue the Ohio Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial
condition of the State of Ohio for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001. The report is prepared in con-
formity with Generally Accepted Accounting Princi-
ples (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Ac-
counting Standards Board (GASB).

The Ohio Office of Budget and Management pursu-
ant to Section 126.21, Ohio Revised Code, which
requires that an official financial report of the State
be issued annually, prepared this report. The report
includes General-Purpose Financial Statements,
which provide an overview of the State’s financial
position and the results of financial operations by
fund type.

The Office of Budget and Management is responsi-
ble for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairness of its presentation, in-
cluding all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all ma-
terial respects and are reported in a manner de-
signed to present fairly the financial position and re-
sults of operations of the various funds and account
groups of the State of Ohio. All disclosures neces-
sary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of
the State’s financial activities have been included.

The State’s General-Purpose Financial Statements
include all funds and account groups that comprise
the State’s legal entity or primary government. The
State’s reporting entity is also comprised of its com-
ponent units for which the elected officials of the
State’s primary government are financially account-
able. We followed the criteria of GASB Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, to determine
the organizations for which the State is financially
accountable. NOTE 1A to the financial statements
explains more fully which financial activities are in-
cluded in the State’s reporting entity.

The CAFR includes the following: introductory sec-
tion; financial section that presents the General-
Purpose Financial Statements, combining financial
statements, supporting schedules, and fund descrip-
tions; and a statistical section that presents financial,
economic, and demographic data for Ohio.

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

The data in the financial statements are presented in
accordance with a fund classification system pre-
scribed by the GASB. The purpose of this system is
to improve the comparability of the financial reports
of different governmental units. Funds reported for
the State’s primary government and its component
units are classified into four categories: governmen-
tal, proprietary, fiduciary, and college and university.
Each category reported for the primary government
is divided into the following “fund types.”

Governmental fund types are those through which
State functions are financed. Governmental fund
types include the General, special revenue, debt ser-
vice, and capital projects funds.

Proprietary fund types account for activities that are
commercial in nature — similar to those often found
in the private sector. Proprietary fund types include
the enterprise and internal service funds.

Fiduciary fund types include trust funds, which ac-
count for assets held by the primary government in a
trustee capacity, and agency funds, which account
for assets held by the primary government as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments, and/or other funds.

The reporting format for our CAFR is significantly
different from the way the State more typically pre-
sents its finances on a non-GAAP budgetary basis.
The most obvious difference is that the “General
Fund” in the CAFR includes more than just the
State’s General Revenue Fund. The General Fund
also includes other funds such as the reimburse-
ment-supported funds used for activities adminis-
tered by state agencies and departments for which
special revenue or proprietary fund classifications
were considered to be inappropriate. Furthermore,
the maijority of budgetary expenditures reported in
the General Revenue Fund for the support of higher
education have been reclassified on a GAAP basis
to “operating transfers to component units,” as re-
quired by the reporting requirements of GASB
Statement No. 14.



INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS

The General-Purpose Financial Statements have
been audited by the Office of the Auditor of State,
Jim Petro. The outcome of the audit conducted by
the Auditor of State, in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, was an unqualified
auditors’ report. This opinion indicates there was no
limitation on the scope of the auditors’ examination
and the financial statements were presented fairly, in
all material respects, in conformity with GAAP.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY
CONTROL

The State’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal control
designed to ensure that the State’s assets are
protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost
of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to
be derived, and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management.

In fiscal year 1992, an executive order initiated the
Internal Accounting Control Program (IACP). The
IACP establishes written guidelines for state agen-
cies to follow during periodic management reviews of
their accounting operations. Under the program,
agencies are required to formally establish, maintain,
and annually evaluate and report on internal ac-
counting control.

The State’s Central Accounting System (CAS)
achieves budgetary control over the various ac-
counts of the State’s funds. Ohio’s bicameral
legislature, the General Assembly, authorizes
expenditures by appropriating funds in biennial and
supplemental appropriation acts. The Office of
Budget and Management uses CAS to control
departmental obligation and expenditure activity to
ensure authorized appropriations are not exceeded.

The State’s non-GAAP budgetary financial state-
ments are prepared on a modified cash basis of ac-
counting. This means that revenues are recognized
when cash is received and expenditures are recog-
nized when cash is paid. Encumbrances, reserva-
tions of appropriation authority as of June 30, the
end of the State fiscal year, are reflected as expendi-
tures on the budgetary basis of accounting.

The State’s GAAP financial statements for the gov-
ernmental, expendable trust, and agency funds have
been prepared on a modified accrual basis of ac-
counting. This means that revenues are recognized
when measurable and available; expenditures are
recognized when goods or services are received or
liabilities are incurred. The proprietary, pension
trust, and investment trust funds are accounted for
6

on the accrual basis of accounting. This means that
revenues are recognized when earned and ex-
penses are recognized when incurred. Additional
discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of ac-
counting is provided in NOTE 1 to the financial
statements.

The CAS maintains all non-GAAP budgetary basis
transactions and most GAAP basis adjustments. In
addition to the information obtained from the CAS for
financial reporting, selected financial information
provided by the State’s agencies and departments is
compiled to complete the GAAP basis financial
statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting
(GAAP vs. non-GAAP budgetary) include: 1) entity
differences — the GAAP reporting entity may include
organizations such as financing authorities and other
component units that are not included in the State’s
budget; 2) basis differences — the GAAP basis re-
sults in the reporting of accruals while the non-GAAP
budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash
transactions; and 3) timing differences — for exam-
ple, GAAP recognizes expenditures for payables for
goods and services received, whereas the non-
GAAP budgetary basis considers unliquidated en-
cumbrances as expenditures. A reconciliation be-
tween the GAAP basis and non-GAAP budgetary
basis fund balances is presented in NOTE 3 to the
financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

In Ohio, with the exception of certain organizations
within the State’s reporting entity that have inde-
pendent powers to manage and invest their funds,
the Treasurer of State is responsible for investing the
State’s cash and investments pool. During fiscal
year 2001, cash management and investment trans-
actions made by the Treasurer of State’s Office, in
accordance with the Uniform Depository Act, were
limited to checking accounts and certificates of de-
posit with qualified public depositories, U.S. govern-
ment and agency obligations, commercial paper,
repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances,
bonds of foreign nations diplomatically recognized by
the United States, and security lending agreements.
Legal requirements for the investment of funds main-
tained in the State’s cash and investments pool are
discussed in NOTE 4 to the financial statements.

Quarterly, the Office of Budget and Management
allocates the investment income earned on the cash
and investments pool to the various funds desig-
nated by law to receive the earnings. The allocation
is calculated in accordance with a formula based on



Increase/ Percentage
FY 2001 Percent (Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)

Revenues Amount of Total from FY 2000 from FY 2000
INCOME TAXES ..o $ 8,302,892 26.2% $ 204,737 2.5%
8aleS TaXES .....covveeeiieeeeiese e 6,248,705 19.7 15,616 0.3
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes................. 1,726,263 5.5 28,293 1.7
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes.............cccccccaveene.. 1,457,454 4.6 (1,920) (0.1)
Other TaXesS .......c.ceccuercueereeeeeeereesee e 930,338 2.9 17,252 1.9
Licenses, Permits and Fees.............ccccc........ 1,219,605 3.8 63,226 55
Sales, Services and Charges...............ccc....... 83,891 0.3 (3,090) (3.6)
Federal Government ..............ccccoeeeeeeeeveaaennn. 10,433,668 32.9 1,112,434 11.9
Tobacco Settlement............ccccccovvviivienannnen. 315,812 1.0 (96,458) (23.4)
Investment Income...............cccccoeeeeeeeerraeaannn. 486,817 1.5 43,251 9.8
ORI ... 514,544 1.6 32,688 6.8

Total ... $31,719,989 100.0% $1,416,029 4.7

average daily cash balances invested over the quar-
ter. The Ohio Lottery Commission’s investment port-
folio, which is dedicated to the payment of deferred
lottery prizes and is accounted for as part of the cash
and investments pool, however, is not part of the
investment earnings allocation just described. In-
stead, the Treasurer of State credits the investment
earnings from the dedicated portfolio directly to the
credit of the fund that accounts for this activity.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

The table above presents a summary of revenues,
recorded on the modified accrual basis, for the
governmental fund types (General, special revenue,
debt service, and capital projects funds) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001, and the amount and per-
centage increases and decreases in relation to prior-
year’s revenues after restatement for a fund reclassi-
fication (dollars in thousands).

Significant increases and decreases reported for the
State’s major revenue sources are explained as fol-
lows:

e Licenses, permits and fees increased by
$63.2 million or 5.5 percent primarily be-
cause of fees collected for the Universal
Service Program, which began in fiscal year
2001 to provide assistance to low-income
electric utility customers.

e An increase of $1.11 billion or 11.9 percent
in federal government revenue is primarily
due to increases in federal reimbursements
for the Medicaid and Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families programs.

e Tobacco settlement revenue decreased
$96.5 million or 23.4 percent. This revenue
is received under terms of the Master Set-
tlement Agreement, as explained further in
NOTE 22E.

e Investment income increased $43.3 million
or 9.8 percent. Most of the increase is re-

ported in the Highway Operating and the To-
bacco Settlement special revenue funds.

¢ A significant share of the $32.7 million or 6.8
percent increase in other revenue is attribut-
able to increased collections from local gov-
ernment units for their share of highway pro-
ject costs and from miscellaneous collec-
tions at the Department of Natural Re-
sources, the Environmental Protection
Agency, and the Department of Job and
Family Services.

Expenditures for governmental fund types, presented
on the modified accrual basis, for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001, and the amount and percent-
age increases and decreases in relation to prior-
year’s expenditures after restatement for a fund re-
classification and certain expenditure reclassifica-
tions are shown in the table on the following page for
the functions of general government (dollars in thou-
sands).



Increase/ Percentage
FY 2001 Percent (Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
Expenditures Amount of Total from FY 2000 from FY 2000
Current:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education .. $ 7,194,883 22.9% $ 560,702 8.5%
Higher Education Support*......................... 506,511 1.6 67,374 15.3
Public Assistance and Medicaid................. 10,894,942 34.7 1,406,563 14.8
Health and Human Services 2,555,221 8.1 (58,632) (2.2)
Justice and Public Protection ..................... 2,232,421 71 65,019 3.0
Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources..............cc........... 340,574 1.2 (13,606) (3.8)
Transportation............ccccceeeeeeeecccieeeneenns 1,756,201 5.6 75,465 4.5
General Government.............cccccocccveevune.. 468,791 1.5 (106,785) (18.6)
Community and Economic Development.... 541,166 1.7 88,650 19.6
Intergovernmental 3,361,184 10.7 103,552 3.2
Capital Outlay ......... 411,817 1.3 (217,936) (34.6)
Debt Service...........ccccceeeeeecciiiiiiaeeeairenn 1,137,537 3.6 83,542 7.9
o] = $31,401,248 100.0% $2,053,908 7.0
*During fiscal year 2001, the State also provided $1.99 billion in support of higher education institutions through operating
transfers to the component units. This represents about a 4.1 percent increase in funding from fiscal year 2000 (as restated)
when the State transferred $1.91 billion for this purpose.

Significant increases and decreases for the State’s
major expenditure categories are explained as fol-
lows:

e The $560.7 million or 8.5 percent increase in
primary, secondary and other education ex-
penditures primarily occurred at the Depart-
ment of Education.

e Higher education support expenditures in-
creased $67.4 million or 15.3 percent due to
increased spending for local community col-
leges and technical colleges.

e Spending at the Department of Job and Family
Services greatly contributed to the $1.41 billion
or 14.8 percent increase in public assistance
and Medicaid expenditures.

e The $106.8 million or 18.6 percent decline in
general government expenditures resulted
from a decrease in the payment of borrower
rebates arising from the State’s cash and in-
vestment pool’s participation in securities lend-
ing activities during fiscal year 2001.

e Community and economic development ex-
penditures grew by $88.7 million or 19.6 per-
cent. The majority of the rise is due to in-
creased spending in the special revenue fund
at the Department of Development for both the
Universal Service Program, which was newly
established during fiscal year 2001, and the

Home Energy Assistance Program and other
community and economic development pro-
grams at the department accounted for in the
General Fund.

e The majority of the $217.9 million or 34.6
percent decrease in capital outlay expendi-
tures resulted from reductions in construc-
tion of adult correctional facilities, highway
capital improvements, parks and natural re-
sources projects, and state facilities.

e Debt service expenditures rose $83.5 million
or 7.9 percent to meet increased principal
repayment and interest requirements for
general obligation bonds issued for local in-
frastructure improvements, highway capital
improvements, and capital construction for
higher education institutions and local school
districts.

An additional analysis of revenues and expenditures
for all governmental funds reported for fiscal year
2001 is shown in the graphic presentation that fol-
lows this letter.

GENERAL FUND

For fiscal year 2001, the General Fund reported the
following balances and the amount and percentage
increases and decreases in relation to prior-year’s
balances after restatement for a fund reclassification
(dollars in thousands).

Balance, as of and Increase/ Percentage
for the year ended (Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
General Fund June 30, 2001 from FY 2000 from FY 2000
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance ....... $ 167,919 $ (156,393) (48.2)%
Total Fund Balance................cccoceevvcvvencnncnnn. 1,880,898 (841,387) (30.9)
Total REVENUES ........c..eveeeeeeaee e 20,929,044 686,934 3.4
Total EXpenditures .............cccoovueeeeeescccnvennnn.. 18,850,108 1,521,420 8.8




The 30.9 percent decrease in the General Fund’'s
total fund balance primarily resulted from growth in
expenditures and transfers-out that exceeded growth
in revenues and transfers-in by $640.2 million and
from the $201.2 million prior period adjustment to
beginning fund balance, as further discussed in
NOTE 2A.

As of June 30, 2001, the State’s primary government
designated $13.1 million for budget stabilization pur-
poses, as detailed in NOTE 19, and reserved $1.7
billion in fund balance for a total designated and re-
served fund balance of approximately $1.71 billion
for the General Fund. This is compared to a total
designated and reserved fund balance of approxi-
mately $2.40 billion, as of June 30, 2000. Total fund
balance reserves for the General Fund decreased by
$38.5 million or 2.2 percent since June 30, 2000.
Unreserved/designated fund balance for the General
Fund decreased $646.5 million or 98 percent since
the end of the last fiscal year primarily because no
amount was designated for the Income Tax Reduc-
tion Program, as of June 30, 2001. The unre-
served/undesignated fund balance decreased by
$156.4 million, which is 48.2 percent less than the
unreserved/undesignated balance reported, as of
June 30, 2000.

PROPRIETARY AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The State’s enterprise funds reported retained earn-
ings of $4.75 billion, as of June 30, 2001, as com-
pared to $6.71 billion in retained earnings, as of June
30, 2000. These results were caused primarily by
the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, which
reported a retained earnings balance of $4.52 billion,
as of June 30, 2001, as compared to a $6.45 billion
retained earnings balance, as of June 30, 2000, a 30
percent decrease. Operating revenues for the en-
terprise funds decreased to $5.22 billion in fiscal
year 2001 from $7.15 billion in fiscal year 2000; op-
erating expenses increased to $6.45 billion in fiscal
year 2001 from $5.25 billion in fiscal year 2000. The
decrease in operating revenues primarily resulted
from decreases in premium and assess-ments reve-
nue and investment income for the Workers’ Com-
pensation Enterprise Fund. The increase in operat-
ing expenses is mostly attributable to an increase in
payments for premium dividend credits and rebates
and benefits and claims from the Workers’ Compen-
sation Enterprise Fund.

The State’s internal service funds reported retained
earnings of approximately $75.7 million, as of June
30, 2001, as compared to $77.3 million, as of June
30, 2000, a 2.1 percent decrease. Fiscal year 2001
operating revenues totaling $303.3 million had in-
creased by $17.0 million, or 6.0 percent, since fiscal
year 2000. Fiscal year operating expenses totaling

$307.5 million, however, had decreased by $7.1 mil-
lion, or 2.3 percent, since fiscal year 2000.

The fund balance of the expendable trust funds grew
approximately 8.3 percent to $3.06 billion, as of June
30, 2001, from $2.82 billion, as of June 30, 2000.
This increase in fund balance was due largely to the
introduction of the Variable College Savings Plan,
which was first introduced during fiscal year 2001.
Revenues for the expendable trust funds rose to
$1.38 billion in fiscal year 2001 from $950.3 million in
fiscal year 2000; expenditures increased to $1.11
billion in fiscal year 2001 from $768.8 million in fiscal
year 2000.

Net assets of the pension trust fund were approxi-
mately $608.3 million, as of June 30, 2001, as com-
pared to $634.8 million, as of June 30, 2000, a 4.2
percent decrease. Total additions to plan net assets
for the pension trust fund decreased to $7.2 million
in fiscal year 2001 from $64 million in fiscal year
2000, an 88.7 percent decrease, while total deduc-
tions to plan net assets increased to $33.7 million in
fiscal year 2001 from $31.1 million in fiscal year
2000, an 8.4 percent increase. The sharp decrease
in fiscal year 2001 additions is due to an overall de-
cline in investment income; the increase in deduc-
tions is due to pension benefit and healthcare claims
paid and transfers to other retirement systems.

The State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STARO-
hio) Investment Trust Fund reported net investment
income of $371.9 million in fiscal year 2001, as com-
pared to $305.8 million in fiscal year 2000, and net
assets held in trust for pool participants was $8.40
billion, as of June 30, 2001, as compared to $5.25
billion, as June 30, 2000, a 59.9 percent increase.
STAROhio is a State-sponsored external investment
pool, which the Treasurer of State administers for
local government participants.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Onhio’s credit ratings for general obligation debt are
Aal by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s)
and AA+ by Fitch Inc. (Fitch). Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services (S&P) rates the State’s general
obligation debt AA+, except for Highway Capital Im-
provement Obligations, which are rated AAA.

State obligations (issued by the Ohio Building Au-
thority and the Treasurer of State) secured by Gen-
eral Revenue Fund appropriations are rated Aa2 by
Moody’'s and AA by S&P and Fitch. As of June 30,
2001, the State’s primary government reported a
total of $8.99 billion in outstanding liabilities in its
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group as
detailed in the table on the following page (dollars in
thousands):



Outstanding Percentage
Balance, Increase/(Decrease)
Type of Obligation As of June 30, 2001 Since June 30, 2000
General Obligation Bonds..............cccocveveeeeeecinneenn.. $3,034,037 23.3%
Revenue Bonds and Notes...............cccccveveneeenninn. 218,900 (6.0)
Special Obligation Bonds.................ccccevvuveveeeeeennennns 4,744,055 (4.6)
Certificates of Participation ................cccoceeeeeeenecann. 12,305 (15.7)
Other General Long-Term Obligations..................... 981,781 0.4
TOLA..cccoieeeee e $8,991,078 3.8

For the proprietary funds, Ohio’s primary government
also reported $203.1 million (net of unamortized dis-
counts of approximately $2.1 million) in revenue
bonds, as of June 30, 2001.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Employees of the primary government or its compo-
nent units may be eligible to participate in the Public
Employees Retirement System, the State Teachers
Retirement System, the State Highway Patrol Re-
tirement System, or the Alternative Retirement Plan.
Further information on the State’s participation in the
different retirement systems can be found in NOTE 9
to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As discussed in NOTE 1N to the financial state-
ments, the State’s primary government is self-
insured for claims under its traditional healthcare
plan (OhioMed Health Plan) and for vehicle liability
while it has placed public official fidelity bonding with
a private insurer. The State self-funds tort liability
and most property losses on a pay-as-you-go basis;
however, selected state agencies have acquired pri-
vate insurance for their property losses. Also, the
State’s primary government participates in a public
entity risk pool, which is accounted for in the Bureau
of Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, for the
financing of its workers’ compensation liability.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The U.S. economy has been significantly derailed by
the September 11 terrorist attacks on New York and
Washington D.C. The economy, which was arguably
just skirting recession prior to the attacks, is now
engulfed in a full-blown downturn. The only question
now is how severe the recession will be.

Growth in the U.S. economy shrank in the third quar-
ter of 2001 to its lowest performance in more than 10
years. Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP), the
total value of goods and services produced in the
U.S. and adjusted for inflation, fell at 0.4 percent an-
nual rate in the third quarter of this year, following a
0.3 percent growth rate in the second quarter. Many
economists expect the worst performance of the
U.S. economy to come in the fourth quarter of this
year.

The American consumer remains the key. Consum-
ers have been widely and justly credited with keeping
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the U.S. economy out of recession through the sec-
ond quarter of 2001. However, consumers respond
to headline numbers. Massive corporate layoffs and
the recent jump in the unemployment rate have defi-
nitely unsettled consumer confidence. Following the
September 11 attacks, consumers have taken flight,
too shocked and too scared to spend. In fact, holi-
day celebrations this year are expected to be sub-
dued, and consumer spending which makes up two-
thirds of the U.S. economy, may actually decline in
the fourth quarter for the first time since 1991.

In an effort to stimulate the U.S. economy, the Fed-
eral Reserve Board (Fed) has lowered short-term
interest rates ten times since the start of this year.
At its November meeting the Fed cut the federal
funds rate, a benchmark for short-term interest rates,
by another fifty basis points. The federal funds rate
now stands at two percent, the lowest level in 40
years.

The Fed remains extremely concerned about the
fragile state of consumer confidence and the shat-
tered state of the U.S. economy in general. In its
comments, the Fed indicated that it stands ready to
further adjust interest rates until it sees concrete evi-
dence of a turn in economic activity.

The outlook for the Ohio economy has also deterio-
rated since the beginning of the current budget cycle
in July 2001. Ohio’s economy is now in a recession
that has been characterized by widespread layoffs
and falling corporate profits that will likely last into
next year. The state’s fiscal conditions have
changed rapidly in recent months. In addition to in-
creasing demands for more government spending
on human service programs in response to the
weakening economy, the state’s revenue picture has
taken a turn for the worse. As a result, the state’s
personal income, corporate income and sales tax
revenues were under severe pressure, and unable to
reach projected levels of collections.



MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS

The State Operating Budget

In June 2001, Governor Bob Taft signed into law
Amended Substitute House Bill 94, which when
combined with other legislation authorizing expendi-
tures, provides over $45.1 billion in General Revenue
Fund (GRF) dollars and over $90.9 billion in all funds
for the fiscal year 2002-2003 operating budget of the
State of Ohio including funding for primary and sec-
ondary education. The GRF is a non-GAAP budget-
ary basis operating fund reported in the General
Fund. The budget as enacted is balanced and does
not include any new taxes. The budget provides sig-
nificant increases for primary and secondary educa-
tion while holding the line on spending for overhead
and department operations of other state agencies,
boards and commissions. Within this context, the
budget reflects the Taft Administration’s four broad
goals of 1.) enabling every child to succeed, 2.) pro-
moting prosperity, 3.) caring for those in need, and
4.) promoting public health and public safety.

Primary and Secondary Education

The highest priority of the state is giving children the
opportunity to succeed. This is reflected in the fiscal
year 2002-2003 budget, which provides 62.7 percent
of all new GRF dollars to support education at all
levels and implements a new school funding formula
that guarantees that every school child in Ohio will
have access to the resources necessary for a quality
education. Total state support for primary and sec-
ondary education totals $7.4 billion in fiscal year
2002 (an eight-percent increase over fiscal year
2001) and $7.8 billion in fiscal year 2003 (a five-
percent increase over fiscal year 2002). Pursuant to
the new school funding formula, per pupil spending
will increase to $4,814 in 2002 (an increase of 12.1
percent over fiscal year 2001) and $4,949 in 2003
(an increase of 2.8 percent over fiscal year 2002).
Per pupil spending should rise to $5,527 by fiscal
year 2007. The funding model is based on success-
ful 1999 local school districts and removes those
districts that fall within the top and bottom five per-
cent of districts with regard to income and property
wealth.

The budget also provides additional funding for new
academic standards, student assessment, school
improvement initiatives, student intervention ser-
vices, students with special needs, the creation of
parity aid which will provide increased aid for low-
wealth school districts, all-day kindergarten for 50
additional districts and 12,000 more children, and
more training for teachers and principals. House Bill
94 also provides $300 million to fund the next in-
stallment of the school facilities plan, and makes a
permanent commitment to providing advanced tech-
nology in classrooms for all grades by dedicating all
of the money in the Tobacco Settlement Education
Technology Trust Fund to the Ohio SchoolNet
Commission. This will provide funding for the acqui-
sition of hardware, as well as to support the infra-

structure that has been developed, and to provide
professional development opportunities for teachers
to learn to incorporate this technology into the cur-
riculum.

Also in June, the Governor signed into law Senate
Bill 1, which implements the recommendations of the
Governor's Commission for Student Success. The
purpose of the Commission was to recommend solu-
tions to improve Ohio’s schools significantly. The
Commission recommended a systematic approach
that meets the needs of the students and is based
on good standards and common sense. The rec-
ommendations, as translated into law are to:

e Set clear, rigorous and reasonable aca-
demic standards;

e Create a system of assessments to meas-
ure student performance against the stan-
dards;

e Develop intervention strategies to produce
real and lasting improvements in student
learning; and

e Reward success and correct failure by de-
veloping an accountability system that is fair
and focused on the performance of each
school.

The budget provides the resources to accelerate
work in areas where reform is already taking place,
and to begin work in new areas.

Rebuilding Ohio’s Schools

One of the cornerstones of Ohio’s new school fund-
ing systems is Governor Taft's Rebuild Ohio Plan — a
12-year plan to provide funding to repair or replace
every school building in Ohio that needs it. The plan
will allow every Ohio school child to be able to learn
in safe, modern facilities and give school districts the
capability to create customized classrooms and in-
struction tailored to meet students’ needs. The Ohio
School Facilities Commission (OSFC), charged with
providing funding to public school districts and over-
seeing the construction and renovation of school
facilities, has disbursed over $2 billion, and is cur-
rently spending approximately $1.75 million a day.
Funding helps pay for renovations, repairs, and new
construction of Ohio’'s primary and secondary
schools, in accordance with the 12-year, $10 billion
school facilities plan. Twenty new school buildings
were opened during calendar year 2000, and 31
more are scheduled to open by the end of calendar
year 2001. OSFC has more than 300 school build-
ings in 37 local school districts in various phases of
design or construction, representing a combined
state and local commitment of $1.72 billion. No
other state in the nation has adopted such an ambi-
tious building program.
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Primary and Secondary Education —

Ohio Supreme Court Case Update

On September 6, 2001 the Ohio Supreme Court is-
sued its third ruling in the long-running school fund-
ing case. The court found constitutional the basic
principles of the new school funding formula. The
funding formula adequately addresses such issues
as the over-reliance on local property taxes, funding
for special education, vocational education and stu-
dent transportation costs. However, the Court has
ordered additional action on the remaining areas of
concern; faster implementation of parity aid and
changes to the base funding formula. Estimates to
address the Court’s concerns are as much as $1.24
billion for fiscal year 2002.

The Ohio Supreme Court has reconsidered the De-
Rolph 1l decision in light of the Attorney General’s
motion for reconsideration, and has referred the is-
sues raised in the motion to a mediator for settle-
ment. The Attorney General asked the Court to re-
consider those portions of its decision that 1.) require
the elimination of the five-percent wealth screens
and 2.) make the Court's adjustments to the base-
cost formula retroactive to July 1, 2001. The motion
to reconsider was filed as a result of the Court’s re-
viewing incorrect data; therefore, the Court was un-
derstandably misled in concluding that the purpose
of applying the five-percent wealth screens was to
reduce the base cost. Furthermore, the reconsidera-
tion was requested to accommodate the fact that
current budgets are in place and that time is needed
to make the necessary adjustments requested by the
Court.

Workers Compensation Rate Reductions

The Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation (BWC)
approved on June 28, 2000, a 75-percent premium
credit for private employers for the policy periods
July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000 and Janu-
ary 1, 2001 through June 30, 2001, which resulted in
the return of approximately $1.3 billion to these em-
ployers. On December 14, 2000, BWC awarded a
$180 million refund of excess premiums and a one-
time 75 percent premium reduction for the January
2001 policy period to public employer taxing districts,
which resulted in a savings of approximately $200
million.

On April 24, 2001, BWC awarded to private employ-
ers another one-time 75-percent premium reduction
for the policy periods July 1, 2001 through December
31, 2001 and January 1, 2002 through June 30,
2002. It is estimated that this reduction will result in
a return of approximately $1.3 billion to these em-
ployers.

BWC attributes these savings to improved workplace
safety and claims handling, as well as a better-than-
expected return on investments. BWC'’s experience
is markedly better than that of most other states, as
during the past two years workers’ compensation
rates have continued to rise at the national level.
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E-Commerce/lnternet

In April 2001, the state unveiled the redesign of its
Internet site. The redesign was one of the electronic
government initiatives that Governor Taft announced
in his 2000 State of the State address and led by the
Governor's Council on Electronic Commerce. The
state web portal, www.Ohio.gov, will improve access
to vital state services through the Internet. The por-
tal is designed to be a single point of contact for Ohio
constituents via the Internet. The new portal is a
customer-centric site that features an intentions-
based design, allowing site visitors to go directly to
the service or information they seek without having
to know the appropriate state agency provider. Sev-
eral transactional services are featured as links from
the front page. In addition to the online transactional
services, Ohio.gov also features information divided
into categories according to the type of customer
seeking information. Those categories are “resi-
dent,” “business,” “visitor,” and “state employee.”
There also is a fifth category entitled “government,”
containing information about the various branches of
government. The next release of Ohio's portal will
feature portal personalization. A user will be able to
request a user id and password, which will be the
key to customizing a MyOhio.gov page that will fea-
ture the subject and geographical information of the
individual user’s interest.

Support for Ohio’s Steel Industry

In order to protect and retain existing jobs in Ohio, in
March 2001, Governor Taft signed Senate Bill 11,
toughening the law prohibiting the use of foreign
steel in public improvement projects supported by
state capital funds. In addition to signing Senate Bill
11, the Governor has also created a $110 million
Ohio Steel Development Initiative to provide grants
and loans for strategic capital investments, tax ex-
empt financing for pollution control equipment,
grants for infrastructure improvements, and training
dollars to upgrade the skills of workers. This initia-
tive will help position Ohio’s steel industry for future
growth by becoming more competitive and efficient.
The Governor also sent letters to President Bush
and Commerce Secretary Dan Evans to discuss how
the Federal Emergency Steel Loan Guarantee pro-
gram can be updated to make it more accessible
and beneficial to Ohio’s steel companies.



Tax Amnesty Opportunity

For the first time in Ohio’s history, taxpayers have
the opportunity to settle delinquent taxes in full with
no penalty and only half the amount of interest nor-
mally charged. Tax amnesty will be available
through January 15, 2002 for taxes that were due on
or before May 1, 2001, and for taxpayers whose li-
abilities are unknown to the Ohio Department of
Taxation, meaning their taxes have not been billed or
assessed, nor are they currently undergoing an au-
dit. Taxes covered by the program include: per-
sonal and school district income taxes; sales and
use taxes; employer and school district withholding
taxes; pass-through entity taxes; corporate franchise
taxes; public utility excise taxes; and personal prop-
erty taxes. The Department of Taxation estimates
that the program will generate about $17 million at
the program’s onset, and approximately $5 million
annually in succeeding years from newly enrolled
taxpayers.

Ohio Access

In June 2000, Governor Taft convened a work group
charged with conducting a comprehensive review of
Ohio’s services and support systems for people with
disabilities and making recommendations for improv-
ing these services over the next six years consistent
with the following three guiding principles:

e Increase community capacity
e Prioritize resources
e Assure quality and accountability

The work group developed long-term recommenda-
tions in a written report submitted to Governor Taft
on February 28, 2001. Within the long-term recom-
mendations, short-term priorities were identified and
included in the fiscal year 2002-2003 biennial
budget. The budget included approximately $145
million over the span of the biennium for new initia-
tives and expansion of existing programs for Ohio-
ans with disabilities. Examples include additional
slots for home and community-based waivers, new
opportunities for independent living, and a redesign
of the Mental Retardation/Developmentally Disabled
Medicaid delivery system.

Clean Ohio Fund (Issue 1)

In November 2000, Ohio voters approved Issue 1 to
support community efforts for the protection of land
and water resources. This $400 million bond fund
will assist local communities to clean up and rede-
velop brownfield sites, protect green space, preserve
farmland, improve water quality and expand Ohio's
network of recreational trails and greenways. Im-
plementation language of Issue 1 was approved by
the General Assembly in the form of House Bill 3.
This legislation was considered concurrent with the
biennial budget bill and subsequently passed by the
General Assembly.

House Bill 3 provides the first $100 million in capital
funds for local projects. State funding, which will
provide 75 percent of a project’s total costs, will be
matched by 25 percent funding from local political
subdivisions, non-profit organizations, and charitable
organizations. State funds will leverage an additional
$33 million for a total of $133 million available funds
for local projects from the program’s initial appropria-
tion. Monies are appropriated to four separate funds
as follows:

e Clean Ohio Conservation Fund — The Pub-
lic Works Commission will administer this
fund, which has been appropriated $37.5
million in capital funds for the acquisition of
open spaces and development of the open
spaces for recreation purposes.

e Clean Ohio Trail Fund — The Department of
Natural Resources will administer this fund,
which has been appropriated $6.25 million
in capital funds for the purchase of land or
interests in land for recreational trails and
for the construction of recreational trails.

e Clean Ohio Agricultural Easement Fund —
The Department of Agriculture will adminis-
ter this fund, which has been appropriated
$6.25 million in capital funds for the pur-
chase of agricultural easements.

e Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund — This fund,
which the Department of Development will
administer, is divided into two components
that will receive $50 million in total appro-
priations. The first component provides
$40 million to make grants for brownfield
revitalization projects. The second compo-
nent is the Clean Ohio Assistance Program,
which will use $10 million for grants to dis-
tressed areas that will pay for assessments,
cleanup, or remediation of brownfields.
The grants will also be made for public
health projects related to a release or
threatened release of hazardous sub-
stances or petroleum at a property where
little or no economic redevelopment poten-
tial exists.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Cer-
tificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of Ohio for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2000. This was the 11th consecu-
tive year that the State has achieved this prestigious
award.

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a gov-
ernment must publish an easily readable and effi-
ciently organized CAFR. The CAFR must satisfy
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both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of
one year only. We believe that our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certifi-
cate.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Ohio Office of Budget and Management pro-
vides access to the fiscal year 2001 Ohio Compre-
hensive Annual Financial Report, fiscal year 2001
Ohio Budgetary Financial Report, and other State-
related financial data and information on the Internet
at http://www.state.oh.us/obm/.
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GAAP Basis Revenues for All General Governmental Fund Types

Fiscal Year 2001
(dollars in millions)
Investment Income Other

$487 / 1.5% \ }515/1.6%
Tobacco Settlement

$316/1.0%

Income Taxes
$8,303/26.2%

Federal Government
$10,434 / 32.9%

Sales, Services and Charges
$84/0.3% Sales Taxes
Licenses, Permits and Fees $6,249/19.7%
$1,220/ 3.8%
Other Taxes
$930/2.9% ———

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes Corporate and Public Utility Taxes
$1,457 /1 4.6% $1,726 / 5.5%

GAAP Basis Expenditures for All General Governmental Fund Types
Fiscal Year 2001

(dollars in millions)

Capital Outlay Debt Service
$412/1.3% $1,138/3.6%

A

* In the governmental funds, budgetary expenditures for Higher Education Support totaling $1.99 billion are reported on a GAAP basis as
"Operating Transfers to Component Units," as shown on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances, pages 24 and 25.

Intergovernmental
$3,361/10.7%

Community and Economic
Development
$541/1.7% N

General Government —
$469 /1.5%

Transportation
$1,756 / 5.6%

Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources
$341/1.2%

Justice and Public Protection
$2,232/7.1%

Primary, Secondary
and Other Education
$7,195/22.9%

Higher Education Support*
$507 / 1.6%

Health and Human Services

$2,555/8.1% Public Assistance and Medicaid

$10,895/ 34.7%
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

State of
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2000

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

ent

Mz

Executive Director
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35 North Fourth Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215

STATE OF OHIO
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

Telephone 614-466-3402
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-443-9275
Facsimile 614-728-7199

Independent Accountants’ Report

The Honorable Bob Taft, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2001, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-purpose
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the following organizations
which are a part of the primary government:

Capitol Square Review and Advisory Board Office of the Auditor of State

Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and  State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
Industrial Commission of Ohio

Treasurer of State Lease Revenue Bonds Variable College Savings Plan

Also, we did not audit the following component units:

Blended
Ohio Building Authority State Highway Patrol Retirement System

Discretely Presented

Bowling Green State University Miami University University of Toledo
Columbus State Community College  Ohio State University Wright State University
Cleveland State University Ohio University Youngstown State University
Kent State University University of Akron

Medical College of Ohio at Toledo University of Cincinnati

In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the Public Employees Retirement System, Police and Fire
Pension Fund, State Teachers Retirement System, and School Employees Retirement System, whose assets are
held by the Treasurer of State and are included as part of the State’s trust and agency fund type. These financial
statements reflect the following percentages of total assets or liabilities and revenues or additions of the indicated
fund types, account groups, and discretely presented component units:

Percent of Total Percent of Total
Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues/Additions

Debt Service Fund Type 36% 5%
Capital Projects Fund Type 1% 1%
Enterprise Fund Type 91% 50%
Internal Service Fund Type 28% 10%
Trust and Agency Fund Type 97% 46%
General Fixed Assets Account Group 7% —

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (57%) —

Discretely Presented Component Units 77% 87%



The Honorable Bob Taft, Governor

The financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the assets of these retirement systems
were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the amounts of the retirement systems audited
by other auditors included in the fund types and account groups comprising the general-purpose financial statements
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
general-purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general-purpose financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements referred
to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of Ohio at June 30,
2001, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and discretely presented
component unit for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

As discussed in Note 2, the State of Ohio adopted the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
33 and reclassified the School Facilities Commission as a discretely presented component unit during the year
ended June 30, 2001.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a
whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general-purpose financial
statements and the other auditors’ audits of the various financial statements listed above and, in our opinion, based
on our procedures and the procedures of other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the statistical section of this report and therefore, express no opinion thereon.

JIM PETRO
Auditor of State

November 16, 2001
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash Equity with Treasurer. . . ............ououueeaie e $ 2280,736 $ 2,904,804 $ 59,696 $ 605,064
Cash and Cash Equivalents . .. ........... . ... .. i 10,752 37,373 1,605 -
INVESIMENIS. . . . . o —_— 434,934 56,706 10,286
Collateral on Lent Securities . . . ... i 1,003,251 1,342,627 26,995 265,663
Deposit with Federal Government. . .. .............. ... ..... —_— —_— —_— —_—
Receivables:
TAXES . o ot e 1,018,309 288,777 — —
Intergovernmental . . ....... ... ... ... 503,498 683,682 - -
Premiums and ASSESSMENIS . . .. .. .ot — — — —
Investment Trade. . .. ... .. — — — —
Loans, Net . . ... ... 27,580 728,172 2,571 —
OLREr . . e 10,953 75,102 696 1,974
Due from Other FUNdS . .. ......... ... e 16,052 17,752 130 1,366
INVENLOTIES. . . . . o o 770 30,368 - -
Advancesto Other FUNAS . . . .......... .. - 20,000 - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . .. ...............ciueiniuinennn. — — — —
Cash and Cash Equivalents. .. ................................ — — — —
Investments . . . ... .. — — — —
Dedicated Investments. . . ............ .. ... .. ... .. ... ... — — — —
Collateral on Lent Securities . .. ........... ..o uuuiuienenean. — —_— — —
Other Receivables . .. ......... ... .. i — — — —
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) . . ... ................. — — — —
Oher ASSELS . . . o ot e 243 4,473 — —
Amount Available for Debt Service . . .. ........ ... .. ... — — — —
Amount to be Provided for General Long-Term Obligations. . ........... — — — —
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHERDEBITS . ................... $ 4,872,144 $ 6,568,064 $ 148,399 $ 884,353
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . ......... ... .. ... . $ 138,374 $ 307,252 $ —  $ 63,309
Medicaid Claims Payable . . ............. ... . . ... ... 716,019 — — —
Accrued Liabilities . . . . .. ... 81,464 46,006 2,576 —_—
Obligations Under Securities Lending. . .. .......... .. ... .. ... ...... 1,003,251 1,342,627 26,995 265,663
Intergovernmental Payable . . .. ... ... .. ... . ... ... .. ... .. ...... 382,066 594,593 - -
Investment Trade Payable . .................. ... ... ... ....... — — — —
Dueto Other FUNGS. . . . ....... ...t e 36,899 3,579 — 200
Deferred REVENUE. . . . . . ... . e 133,549 397,303 - -
Benefits Payable . . . ............. .. . ... . . ... — — — —
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . .............. . .. iiiieannnnin. 499,624 78,595 805 —
Liability for Escheat Property .. ....... ... ... .. .. . .. ... i, — — — —
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets .. ........................ — — — —
Advances from Other Funds . . .............. . ..., — 190,858 — 20,000
General Obligation Bonds. . . ... — — — —
Revenue Bonds and NOtesS . . . ..., — — — —
Special Obligation Bonds ... ........... .. ... — — — —
Certificates of Participation . ... ............... ... iiiiiieiaa.. — — — —
Other General Long-Term Obligations .. ........................... — — — —
Total Liabilities . . . . ...... ... ... 2,991,246 2,960,813 30,376 349,172
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Investment in General Fixed ASSetS . .. ..., — — — —
Contributed Capital . . . .......... .. — — — —
Reserved Retained Earnings .. ........... ... ... ... — — — —
Unreserved Retained Earnings. . .. ........... oo . — — — —
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt SErviCe. . . . ... 1,620 — 115,088 —
EncumbrancCes. . . ... .. ... 560,560 3,364,727 - 629,457
Budget Stabilization . . ........... . ... 1,002,491 —_— —_— —_—
Variable College Savings Plan Participants. ... ................... — — — —
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable . .. ...................... 25,517 668,669 2,571 —
Employees’ Pension and Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits . . — — — —
Unemployment Benefits. . ............ . — — — —
External Investment Pool Participants . . . ........................ - - - —_—
Restricted Fund Balances . .. ............... i — — — —
Other . 109,687 370,695 837 521
Unreserved/Designated . . . .. ... 13,104 — — —
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits) ............................. 167,919 (796,840) (473) (94,797)
Total Fund Equity and Other Crediits . . . .. .......... .. ... .. ...... 1,880,898 3,607,251 118,023 535,181
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS $ 4,872,144 $ 6,568,064 $ 148,399 $ 884,353

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY

FUND TYPES FUND TYPES ACCOUNT GROUPS
TOTAL TOTAL
GENERAL GENERAL PRIMARY REPORTING
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM GOVERNMENT COMPONENT ENTITY

ENTERPRISE SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS (memorandum only) UNITS (memorandum only)
$ 69,176 $ 55205 $ 168,674 § — $ — $ 6,143,355 $ 723279 $ 6,866,634
1,697,933 235 250,584 — — 1,998,482 291,640 2,290,122
17,240,178 1,626 136,503,192 — — 154,246,922 4,512,683 158,759,605
1,995,855 24,335 1,778,447 — — 6,437,173 315,784 6,752,957
— — 2,214,245 — — 2,214,245 — 2,214,245
— — 136,476 — — 1,443,562 — 1,443,562
— 2,207 24 — — 1,189,411 46,463 1,235,874
1,138,723 — — — — 1,138,723 — 1,138,723
506,890 — — — — 506,890 — 506,890
— — — — — 758,323 2,371,808 3,130,131
321,512 27,210 44,896 — — 482,343 615,635 1,097,978
1,688 36,903 3,826 — — 77,717 722,553 800,270
26,829 18,803 — — — 76,770 43,392 120,162
— — 190,858 — — 210,858 — 210,858
19,565 — — — — 19,565 — 19,565
— — — — — — 6,193 6,193
— 38,667 — — — 38,667 156,117 194,784
1,614,467 — — — — 1,614,467 — 1,614,467
508,251 — — — — 508,251 — 508,251
5,625 — — — — 5,625 — 5,625
193,390 26,010 171 4,205,159 — 4,424,730 9,918,387 14,343,117
19,885 437 447,592 — — 472,630 785,610 1,258,240
— — — — 116,708 116,708 — 116,708
— — — — 8,874,370 8,874,370 — 8,874,370
$ 25,359,967 $ 231,638 $§ 141,738,985 $ 4,205,159 $ 8,991,078 $§ 192,999,787 $ 20,509,544 $ 213,509,331
$ 44,374 $ 27877 $ 1,509 $ — $ — $ 582,695 $ 259,463 $ 842,158
— — — — — 716,019 — 716,019
34,510 10,606 1,315 — — 176,477 746,674 923,151
1,995,854 24,335 1,778,447 — — 6,437,172 315,784 6,752,956
— — 90,281 — — 1,066,940 1,006,715 2,073,655
1,538,047 — 137,951 — — 1,675,998 — 1,675,998
2,473 4,025 29,317 — — 76,493 722,553 799,046
428,788 243 — — — 959,883 229,626 1,189,509
12,504,943 — 44,937 — — 12,549,880 — 12,549,880
1,818,386 — 127,490,129 — — 129,887,539 159,429 130,046,968
— — 102,218 — — 102,218 — 102,218
2,062,996 — — — — 2,062,996 — 2,062,996
— — — — — 210,858 — 210,858
— — — — 3,034,037 3,034,037 — 3,034,037
177,472 25,646 — — 218,900 422,018 3,053,107 3,475,125
— — — — 4,744,055 4,744,055 — 4,744,055
— — — — 12,305 12,305 11,105 23,410
— — — — 981,781 981,781 — 981,781
20,607,843 92,732 129,676,104 — 8,991,078 165,699,364 6,504,456 172,203,820
— — — 4,205,159 — 4,205,159 8,645,415 12,850,574
411 63,232 — — — 63,643 — 63,643
197,254 — — — — 197,254 — 197,254
4,554,459 75,674 — — — 4,630,133 1,661,293 6,291,426
— — — — — 116,708 — 116,708
— — — — — 4,554,744 157 4,554,901
— — — — — 1,002,491 — 1,002,491
— — 427,732 — — 427,732 — 427,732
— — — — — 696,757 — 696,757
— — 608,318 — — 608,318 — 608,318
— — 2,285,549 — — 2,285,549 — 2,285,549
— — 8,397,663 — — 8,397,663 — 8,397,663
— — — — — — 2,991,243 2,991,243
— — 190,858 — — 672,598 — 672,598
— — — — — 13,104 541,332 554,436
— — 152,761 — — (571,430) 165,648 (405,782)
4,752,124 138,906 12,062,881 4,205,159 — 27,300,423 14,005,088 41,305,511

$ 25,359,967 $ 231,638 $ 141,738,985 $ 4,205,159 $ 8,991,078 $ 192,999,787 $ 20,509,544 $§ 213,509,331




STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

(dollars in thousands)

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES.....cccccoeeeeeeeeee et $ 7,446,990 $ 855,902 $ —
SAIES TAXCS. ...ttt 5,922,333 326,372 —
Corporate and Public Utility TaXes..........cccceeeeeeiseciieaiaiieeeeeee 1,604,402 121,861 —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES............c.ueeeeeueeieieeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeea — 1,428,441 29,013
Unemployment TaXES..........uueeeeeeeeieiiiiiaiaaaeeeeeeesesecenssinsnnenens — — —
OUNEIE TAXES.....cccoeeeeeeeee ettt tiee e e e aeaaes 872,706 57,632 —
Licenses, Permits and FEES..............oouuuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeaeeeeenn, 101,352 1,103,122 15,131
Sales, Services and Charges............cccceeeveeeeceeesieeeeie e 40,895 42,996 —
Federal GOVEINMENL..............ouuuueeeeeeiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeaae e 4,508,747 5,924,921 —
Tobacco Settement...............ueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et — 315,812 —
Contributions from Plan Participants...............cccccceeoeeeiiecioieneeeeis — — —
INVESIMENE INCOMB..........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 234,590 197,336 16,696
(@1 =T N 197,029 309,452 1,088
TOTAL REVENUES .........ccooeiieiieeee et 20,929,044 10,683,847 61,928
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education...................ccccovvvveeennns 5,559,113 1,635,770 —
Higher Education SUPPOI...............eeeeeeeeiieieeeeie e 437,525 15,714 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid...............cccc.ueeeeeeeeiieiiiiiiiieeaaae. 8,180,367 2,714,575 —
Health and HUMan SEerViCes...............uueeeeeeeeeeeeiceeeeeeeeeeeennn 1,089,168 1,466,053 —
Justice and Public ProteCtion.................ccouuuueeeeeeeeieiiiiiiiiieeeeeeaee. 1,738,164 494,257 —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources.......................... 125,878 214,696 —
TranSPOIALON. .............oueeeeeeiieee ettt e e e e e eaeaa e e e 47,078 1,709,123 —
General GOVEIMMENL..............ueeeeeeeeieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeea e 336,374 132,417 —
Community and Economic Development................cccccueveeeivuvenaennn. 144,320 396,846 —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ... 1,189,845 2,171,339 —
CAPITAL OUTLAY ... — 14,636 —_
DEBT SERVICE ..., 2,276 — 1,134,191
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..............ccoioeoeeeee oo 18,850,108 10,965,426 1,134,191
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ...............cccovviieeeiiiiiieeeeeeiiaaae 2,078,936 (281,579) (1,072,263)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA PrOCEEAS. ...ttt — 122,968 5,230
Refunding Bond ProCeeds..............cccoueeeeeiicciiieaseiciiiae e — — 504,786
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents............cccoccceeeeeeencnns — — (499,750)
Operating TranSfers=iN..............cccuuvoueeeeoeeseee e e 207,488 1,658,581 1,062,978
Operating TranSferS-OUL................ccecveveeeeeeeiiieeieeeeesiiiieeeeescireaaaen (1,061,119) (1,039,383) (12,977)
Operating Transfers from Primary Government.............................. — — —
Operating Transfers to Component UNits............c.cccccoevevcevcencnncnn. (1,864,717) (138,063) —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ...........cceveveaenn (2,718,348) 604,103 1,060,267
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ..............ccoooieeeeeeeeee (639,412) 322,524 (11,996)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (asrestated) .....................cc.ccvvvueeeeeereen, 2,521,051 3,264,004 153,962
Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories........................... (741) (3,220) —
Residual Equity TranSfers=in................ccccveeuieeiseiieeeeseesiiieaaeeesanns — 23,943 —
Residual Equity TransSfers-ouUt.............cccccoeevevcueeeeeeiiiieeeeeesiivennann, — — (23,943)
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 .................coiiiiiaann, $ 1,880,898 $ 3,607,251 $ 118,023

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




FIDUCIARY COMPONENT

FUND TYPE TOTAL UNIT TOTAL
PRIMARY - REPORTING
GOVERNMENT SCHOOL ENTITY
CAPITAL EXPENDABLE (memorandum FACILITIES (memorandum
PROJECTS TRUST only) COMMISSION only)

$ — $ — $ 8302892 $ — $ 8,302,892
— — 6,248,705 — 6,248,705

— — 1,726,263 — 1,726,263

— — 1,457,454 — 1,457,454

— 666,125 666,125 — 666,125

— — 930,338 — 930,338

— — 1,219,605 — 1,219,605

— — 83,891 15 83,906

— 16,333 10,450,001 — 10,450,001

— — 315,812 — 315,812

— 433,544 433,544 — 433,544
38,195 155,600 642,417 84,484 726,901
6,975 107,707 622,251 3,039 625,290
45,170 1,379,309 33,099,298 87,538 33,186,836
— — 7,194,883 4,247 7,199,130
53,272 — 506,511 — 506,511
— 1,056,026 11,950,968 — 11,950,968

— — 2,555,221 — 2,555,221

— — 2,232,421 — 2,232,421

— — 340,574 — 340,574

— — 1,756,201 — 1,756,201

— 54,456 523,247 — 523,247

— — 541,166 — 541,166

— — 3,361,184 574,919 3,936,103
397,181 — 411,817 — 411,817
1,070 — 1,137,537 — 1,137,637
451,523 1,110,482 32,511,730 579,166 33,090,896
(406,353) 268,827 587,568 (491,628) 95,940
775,630 — 903,828 203,393 1,107,221
— — 504,786 — 504,786
— — (499,750) — (499,750)
192,238 — 3,121,285 — 3,121,285
(247,600) (33,692) (2,394,771) — (2,394,771)
— — — 258,063 258,063
(248,134) — (2,250,914) — (2,250,914)
472,134 (33,692) (615,536) 461,456 (154,080)
65,781 235,135 (27,968) (30,172) (58,140)
471,568 2,821,765 9,232,350 (250,453) 8,981,897
— — (3,961) — (3,961)

— — 23,943 — 23,943
(2,168) — (26,111) — (26,111)

$ 535,181 $ 3,056,900 $ 9,198,253 $  (280,625) $ 8,917,628




STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE, DEBT SERVICE AND CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

GENERAL FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES ..o $7,380,600 $7,263428 $ (117,172) $ 855882 § 855882 $ —
SAIES TAXES ..c.vveveeeseeeeeseeeeeee st 6,175,000 5,935,582 (239,418) 315,131 315,131 —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes ...........cccccc...... 1,550,000 1,578,613 28,613 106,695 106,695 —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . — — — 1,353,574 1,353,574 —
Other Taxes .......cccceeweueen... . 873,343 872,717 (626) 57,509 57,509 —
Licenses, Permits and FEes .............c.cccccvvueveuen... 110,328 108,240 (2,088) 1,281,931 1,281,931 —
Sales, Services and Charges .........ccc.ccoceveeceeennie. 40,229 41,050 821 36,432 36,432 —
Federal Government ............... . 4,671,187 4,652,844 (18,343) 6,138,490 6,138,490 —
Tobacco Settlement... — — — 315,812 315,812 —
Investment INCOME .............c.ccccueeeeeeeeeeieeeeieeaen 117,946 156,297 38,351 144,101 144,101 —
(@1 1= 445,769 461,644 15,875 552,451 552,451 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...........ccccccoovvvvveevveninenne. 21,364,402 21,070,415 (293,987) 11,158,008 11,158,008 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ............. 5,728,200 5,675,865 52,335 1,930,165 1,502,499 427,666
Higher Education Support .............cccccevevvevveeennnn, 2,226,362 2,219,461 6,901 14,687 7,660 7,027
Public Assistance and Medicaid ............................ 8,241,454 8,190,868 50,586 3,247,819 2,969,469 278,350
Health and Human Services ...... 1,148,533 1,131,616 16,917 1,905,219 1,765,063 140,156
Justice and Public Protection 1,767,608 1,747,221 20,387 603,490 519,755 83,735
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . 150,109 144,932 5177 287,470 236,894 50,576
TranSPOMAtion ..............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneans 52,981 52,890 91 2,581,279 1,901,545 679,734
General Government .............ccc..cceueeun. 510,118 461,989 48,129 154,512 143,021 11,491
Community and Economic Development .... 174,833 170,003 4,830 592,099 522,575 69,524
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ...........ccooovveevaan. 1,248,634 1,185,398 63,236 2,969,494 2,433,423 536,071
CAPITAL OUTLAY .....ccccenn.. — — — 61,433 26,455 34,978
DEBT SERVICE .........coooveiiiie it 953,074 894,539 58,5635 63,114 36,341 26,773
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ 22,201,906 21,874,782 327,124 14,410,781 12,064,700 2,346,081
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . (837,504) (804,367) 33,137 (3,252,773) (906,692) 2,346,081
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCeeds ...........cccoueeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeean, — — — 177,399 177,399 —
Operating Transfers-in .............ccccocevcesveeveeeereenn. 109,685 809,095 699,410 1,652,116 1,652,116 —
Operating Transfers-out ... (148,208) (892,598) (744,390) (1,216,078) (1,216,078) —
Encumbrance Reversions — 206,894 206,894 290,680 290,680 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (38,523) 123,391 161,914 904,117 904,117 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ........................ (876,027) (680,976) 195,051 (2,348,656) (2,575) 2,346,081
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) ...................... 2,186,679 2,186,679 — (933,140) (933,140) —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ........................  $1,310,652 $1,505,703 §$ 195,051 $ (3,281,796) $ (935,715) $ 2,346,081

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
29,013 29,013 — — — —
15,131 15,131 — — — —
8,110 8,110 — 25,435 25,435 —
210,700 210,700 — 5,478 5,478 —
262,954 262,954 — 30,913 30,913 —
— — — 2,262,121 781,064 1,481,057
392,000 383,263 8,737 1,070 1,070 —
392,000 383,263 8,737 2,263,191 782,134 1,481,057
(129,046)  (120,309) 8,737 (2,232,278)  (751,221) 1,481,057
7,342 7,342 — 722,701 722,701 —
111,528 111,528 — 35,537 35,537 —
— — — (15,537) (15,537) —
— — — 27,639 27,639 —
118,870 118,870 — 770,340 770,340 —
(10,176) (1,439) 8,737 (1,461,938) 19,119 1,481,057
60,103 60,103 — (107,478)  (107,478) —
$ 49927 § 58664 $ 8737 § (1,569,416) $ (88,359) $ 1,481,057



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
TOTAL
PRIMARY
GOVERNMENT
INTERNAL (memorandum
ENTERPRISE SERVICE only)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . .......................... $ 2,486,090 $ 299,141 $ 2785231
Premium and Assessment Income. . ........................ 2,021,058 — 2,021,058
Investment Income. . .. ......... . . . . . .. 695,189 — 695,189
Other. . . o 19,627 4,208 23,835
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . . ... ... 5,221,964 303,349 5,525,313
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . ... ...... ..., .. 338,763 126,188 464,951
Administration. . . ... ..... .. . .. 218,653 163,575 382,228
Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates. . .................... 1,624,921 — 1,624,921
Bonuses and Commissions . . ... ............eeuiiiiiniin.. 120,210 — 120,210
Prizes . . . .. 1,112,824 — 1,112,824
Benefitsand Claims . . .. .......... .. . .. 2,622,519 — 2,622,519
Depreciation . . .. ....... ... . .. 28,318 9,521 37,839
Other. . . o 380,673 8,265 388,938
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . ... .........ccouuiuen... 6,446,881 307,549 6,754,430
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . .. ...t (1,224,917) (4,200) (1,229,117)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . ........... . . . . . . ... 173 2,656 2,829
Interest EXpense. . . . ... (151) (1,720) (1,871)
Federal Grants . . . ... — — —
Other. . . o (2,665) (1,034) (3,699)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ............. (2,643) (98) (2,741)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS. . . ............. (1,227,560) (4,298) (1,231,858)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in . . ............ .. 36,715 39,415 76,130
Operating Transfers-out . ... ... .. (765,865) (36,779) (802,644)
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS . . .. .. ... (729,150) 2,636 (726,514)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM . ............ (1,956,710) (1,662) (1,958,372)
EXTRAORDINARY GAIN ON
DEFERRED LOTTERY PRIZE PAYOUTOPTION . ............... 3,350 — 3,350
NETINCOME (LOSS) . . . . oot e et e e et e e e e e e (1,953,360) (1,662) (1,955,022)
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1. . . .. . . et 6,705,073 77,336 6,782,409
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30. . ...................... $ 4,751,713  § 75,674 $ 4,827,387

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




COMPONENT

UNIT
TOTAL
OHIO REPORTING
WATER ENTITY
DEVELOPMENT (memorandum
AUTHORITY only)
$ 111,415 $ 2896646
— 2,021,058
56,275 751,464
1,855 25,690
169,545 5,694,858
78,610 543,561
8,004 390,232
— 1,624,921
— 120,210
— 1,112,824
— 2,622,519
259 38,098
3,745 392,683
90,618 6,845,048
78,927 (1,150,190)
— 2,829
— (1,871)
116,298 116,298
279 (3,420)
116,577 113,836
195,504 (1,036,354)
— 76,130
— (802,644)
— (726,514)
195,504 (1,762,868)
— 3,350
195,504 (1,759,518)
1,465,789 8,248,198
$ 1,661,293 § 6,488,680




STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

TOTAL
PRIMARY
INTERNAL GOVERNMENT
ENTERPRISE SERVICE (memorandum only)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMEYS.............ccoceeveiieeiesesiaiesieeiesieeiesissseeens $ 2,471,986 $ 42,667 $ 2,514,653
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSeSSments.............ccccc.......... 1,453,410 — 1,453,410
Cash Received from Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds......... 9,187 261,152 270,339
Other Operating Cash RECEIPLS...........c.cueeeeeeaeeesiee e 38,407 21,084 59,491
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services..............c..ccoceeuee... (491,492) (205,868) (697,360)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (351,887) (69,452) (421,339)
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims...............ccccccuvoeeioeisviesinaieesene (1,839,866) — (1,839,866)
Cash Payments for LOHEIY PriZES............ccoueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaiee e (1,301,844) — (1,301,844)
Cash Payments for Bonuses and Commissions. (120,268) — (120,268)
Cash Payments for Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates...................... (268,957) — (268,957)
Cash Payments for Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds........... (4,477) (25,130) (29,607)
Other Operating Cash Payments.............ccccoueemoiiceeeciirieeciiese e (403) (18,943) (19,346)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES . (406,204) 5,510 (400,694)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating TranSTEIrS=iN ............ooovui it 35,852 39,415 75,267
Operating TranSfers-0UL ............c.cccuiiiiieiiiesiesie et (765,865) (36,779) (802,644)
Interfund Loan Repayment................couuaiueeeeiieeiiee e — — —
BONA PrOCEEUS ...t — — —
FEACIral Grants ............oooiueeeiieeeeee e — — —
Grants to Local SUDAIVISIONS..............cooveiiieiiiiiiieiiieee et — — —
Retirement of Revenue Bond Principal ... — — —
Interest Paid ............ccccoeeeecveenciiieieens — — —
Return of Deposits in Excess of Bond Escrow Requirements..................... — — —
Bond and Note ISSUANCE COSES .........cccueeveiieieeiieiieie e — — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... (730,013) 2,636 (727,377)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds and Capital Leases..............c.ccccccevvvveeea. (10,900) (3,205) (14,105)
Interest Paid .............ccceeieieoeniieesieeeseeeeeren (9,060) (1,728) (10,788)
Principal Receipts on Capital Leases .............c.ccccoceeceeniiecieseeeesea — 3,194 3,194
Acquisition and Construction of Capital ASSetS ............cccoeveveiesceeiiaiaane (10,439) (4,938) (15,377)
Proceeds from Sales of FiXed ASSELS .........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 1,264 10 1,274
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ........................ (29,135) (6,667) (35,802)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESHMENES..............cccoueeiiieiesieee e (39,547,406) (114,922) (39,662,328)
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ............................ 39,679,095 118,150 39,797,245
Investment INCoOme RECEIVEA .............cccoveoueeeieiiiieiieesieee e 1,119,095 3,367 1,122,462
Borrower Rebates and Agent FEES...........ccoeaieieeioeeesiieeeeeeeeeie e (173,332) — (173,332)
Lo@n DiSDUISEMENES..........ccovueieeieee ettt — — —
Loan Principal Repayments Received . — — —
Loan Interest RECEIVEQ..............ccccueeercieeeeeeeieee e — — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ... 1,077,452 6,595 1,084,047
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (87,900) 8,074 (79,826)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiieee 1,874,574 47,366 1,921,940
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 .................ccvniiiaeeen $ 1,786,674 $ 55,440 $ 1,842,114

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



COMPONENT

UNIT
OHIO TOTAL
WATER REPORTING
DEVELOPMENT ENTITY
AUTHORITY (memorandum only)
$ 1,751 $ 2,516,404
— 1,453,410
— 270,339
— 59,491
(6,990) (704,350)
(973) (422,312)
— (1,839,866)
— (1,301,844)
— (120,268)
— (268,957)
— (29,607)
(1,493) (20,839)
(7,705) (408,399)
— 75,267
— (802,644)
(1,184) (1,184)
86,696 86,696
116,298 116,298
(441) (441)
(96,520) (96,520)
(74,975) (74,975)
279 279
(764) (764)
29,389 (697,988)
— (14,105)
— (10,788)
— 3,194
(198) (15,575)
— 1,274
(198) (36,000)
(11,569,697) (51,232,025)
11,551,071 51,348,316
52,640 1,175,102
— (173,332)
(278,174) (278,174)
128,312 128,312
104,978 104,978
(10,870) 1,073,177
10,616 (69,210)
4,111 1,926,051
14,727 $ 1,856,841

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS).....c.c..uuue et
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

INVESEMENT INCOME ...
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees... .
DEPIECIALION ...ttt a e et e e e e e
Provision for Uncollectible ACCOUNES ............cceeveceeeieiieeiieeeieeeee
Amortization of Premiums and Discounts ..
Amortization of Bond 1SSUANCE COSIS...........cceeeieeeieieieeiiieeieeeeieee
Interest on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases ............cccceevcuveesvvvnenennn..
Interest Received 0N LOANS..............cooucueeeiiiiieieeeiie e
Operating Expense Classified as Noncapital Financing Activities
(Grants to Local GOVEINMENLtS)............couueeeeieeeeeiieeeeeeeiee e
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivable................ccccooeiivoeiiiiiieiii e
Premiums and Assessments Receivable ..............cccccoocveecvveecennan.
Other Receivables .............cccceuucoeeiecenannns
Due from Other Funds .
INVENTOLIES ...t
OFREI ASSELS ...ttt
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYabIe .............cooveeeeiiieeieeeeee e
Accrued LiabilIties ..............ccueoieieeiieeee e
Intergovernmental Payable ................c.ccoccoeeviiiiiniiieiniiieee e
DU 10 ONEI FUNGS ...
Deferred REVENUE...............c.cocueieeeeesii et
Benefits PayabIe ..........cccueeiiieeiiieeeee et
Refund and Other Libilities ...............ccccoeavieieeiiiisiieiiese e
Liabilities Payable from Restricted ASSELS .......c.cccoueviveivcceeaiinee.
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES .

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Fair Value of InVeStMents..............cccceevoiieiieeieiieesie e
Fixed Assets Acquired under Capital Leases............c...cccccuveevvveercvnaanns
Extraordinary Gain on Deferred Lottery Prize Payout Option..................
Increase in Contributed Capital...............ccooueeeviveesiineesirenernnen

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Component Units Column on the Combined Balance Sheet include:

Proprietary-Ohio Water Development Authority:

TOLAI PrOPIILAIY.........ceeeeeeeeeeee et
Governmental-School Facilites Commission:
Cash EQUItY With TrEASUIEN ..............cc.uuieceeeiiieaeiee e
Colleges and Universities:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENIS..............cccoooieeiiiiieeieeeee e
Restricted Assets-Cash and Cash Equivalents....
Total Colleges and Universities.....................

TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS........ccoooiiiiiiiiiciicccccee

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

TOTAL
PRIMARY
INTERNAL GOVERNMENT
ENTERPRISE SERVICE (memorandum only)

$ (1,224,917) (4,200) $ (1,229,117)
(695,189) — (695,189)
173,332 —_ 173,332

28,318 9,521 37,839

65,418 —_ 65,418

81,491 — 81,491

8,915 — 8,915

— 406 406

1,408,385 — 1,408,385
(62,400) 851 (61,549)

(2) 2,971 2,969
(1,061) 109 (952)

1,368 (61) 1,307

4,134 (2,681) 1,453

164 (91) 73
(2) (1,180) (1,182)
(9,423) (135) (9,558)

460,032 —_ 460,032
(556,626) — (556,626)
(88,141) — (88,141)
$ (406,204) 5,510 $ (400,694)
$ (467,152) 46 $ (467,106)
— 39 39

3,350 — 3,350

— 2,212 2,212

$ 68
14,659
14,727

723,211
276,981

6,193
283,174

s o212



COMPONENT

UNIT
OHIO TOTAL
WATER REPORTING
DEVELOPMENT ENTITY
AUTHORITY (memorandum only)

$ 78,927 $ (1,150,190)
(56,275) (751,464)

—_ 173,332

259 38,098

357 65,775

203 81,694

1,187 1,187

77,220 86,135
(111,415) (111,415)

441 441

(138) 268

— 1,408,385
(3) (61,552)

5,664 8,633
—_ (952)

— 1,307

44 1,497

—_ 73

1,488 1,488

(5,664) (6,846)

— (9,558)

—_ 460,032

— (556,626)

—_ (88,141)
$ (7,705) $ (408,399)
$ 1,450 $ (465,656)
— 39

—_ 3,350

— 2,212



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
PENSION TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:

Employer

Employees

Other Contributions

Total Contributions
Investment Income:

Net Depreciation in Fair Value of Investments

Interest

Dividends
Other Investment Income

Less: Investment Expense
Net Investment Income
TOTAL ADDITIONS
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits and Claims
Refunds of Employee Contributions

Administrative Expenses
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

FUND BALANCE RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES' PENSION
AND POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

DECEMBER 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

(for the year ended December 31, 2000)

POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT TOTAL

13,210 $ 3,347 $ 16,557
6,954 — 6,954
944 4 948
21,108 3,351 24,459
(23,713) (4,782) (28,495)
7,897 1,372 9,269
2,502 435 2,937
401 70 471
(12,913) (2,905) (15,818)
1,207 210 1,417
(14,120) (3,115) (17,235)
6,988 236 7,224
27,043 4,720 31,763
363 — 363

549 96 645

905 — 905
28,860 4,816 33,676
(21,872) (4,580) (26,452)
540,800 93,970 634,770
518,928 $ 89,390 $ 608,318




STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

STAROHIO
OPERATIONS:
JNVESEMENT INCOMIG........oooeeeeeeeeeee e $ 375,766
Expenses:
AAMUNISIAION FEES........ccccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetee ettt e e e eeteea e e aaaaes 1,358
Custodian and Transfer Agent Fees and Related Expenses......................... 1,192
Security LENAING FEES.........co e 571
ManagemMENt FEES........ccouueeeeeieeeeeee ettt 453
(O 14 1= R 272
TOLAl EXPENSES. ...t a e e 3,846
Net INVESIMENTE INCOME ...ttt 371,920
Dividends to Shareholders from Net Investment Income...............c..cccocccuneee... (371,920)
INCREASE (DECREASE) FROM OPERATIONS ........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiaieee —
CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS
(dollar amounts and number of shares are the same):
SRNAIES SOIU........coooeeeeeeeee et 22,982,889
Shares Issued on Reinvestment of Distributions...............cccccuueeeeeiueeeeeenneene. 371,920
Less: ShareS REACEMEA..............cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 20,207,835
INCREASE (DECREASE) FROM CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS .............. 3,146,974

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR POOL PARTICIPANTS

JUNE 30.........oooe e $ 8,397,663

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS -
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COMPONENT
UNITS
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS:
Unrestricted Current Fund REVENUES ...........ceeeeeeeeeeeenaaiaaaaeaeeeaeann, $ 3,465,065
Local Appropriations-Restricted ...............ccooiiioeiiiiiiieiiciieeeeees 17,912
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccccovvvveeeeeeeeecacnn. 582,031
State Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccccccoovveeeeeeeveecaan.n. 132,552
Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeereennnnnn.. 9,483
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............ccccccouuu...... 570,905
Endowment Income-Restricted ..............ccooueeueeeeeeneeeiiiieeeeiiieeeaen, 53,114
Investment Income-Restricted .............ccooeeeeeeccieeeeesiciriiieeeeeieenn (294,282)
Interest on Loans Receivable ...............eeeeeeeeeeeeieeieiieieieieiieceeeeeenn, 5,343
Investment in Plant-Additions ................cooueeeeueceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiieeeeeens 772,834
(O]1 1= N 140,151
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS ............ccccovvvvvneeennn. .. 5,455,108
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS:
Educational and General Expenditures ................ccooceeeniccinnneenns 4,537,956
Auxiliary Enterprises EXpenditures ..............ccccoovvviviooeeeieiciieneee, 631,251
Hospital EXPENAItUIES ...........ccceveeeeeeeeeeeee e 786,294
Indirect COStS RECOVEIrEd .........ccccooeeeecceeeeeeeeeeaeaeeeeeeeeeaeae 99,094
Grant Refunds and AQjUSEMENTS ..........ccccceeevcireeiniieieiie e 817
Loan Cancellations and Write-offs .............ueeeeeeeeiieiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee. 2,192
Administrative and Collection COSES ...........ccceeeeeeeeeeieeieiieeeeeeeeeeaee, 2,129
Expended for Plant FacCilities ................cccccovviiniieeniiieiee e 539,111
Retirement of Indebtedness ...............ueeeeeeeeeeeeeeicieeeeeeeeeeeen 101,181
Interest on INAebtedNESS ...........c.ueeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeee e 70,101
Investment in Plant-Deductions ...............ccccceeeeeeeeeieeeeeieeeeeeeeaeaaee, 213,163
(01 1= SRRt 43,882
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS ..................... 7,027,171
TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ..............cccccc.cc..... 1,992,851
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ..... 420,788
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle...................... (45,770)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FORTHE YEAR..........cccuovveeeeeae e 375,018
FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated) ............. 12,249,402

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

$ 12,624,420



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COMPONENT
UNITS
REVENUES:
Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges ..............cccoocveeeeecenenn... $ 1,647,773
Local APPropriations ................ooiecueeeie e 14,670
Federal Grants and CONtracts ............ouuueeeeeeieeiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeee. 574,342
State Grants and CONracts ...........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeees 134,695
Local Grants and CONtracts .............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeinnn 9,834
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts ..............cccccceevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrnnnn. 371,832
Endowment INCOME ..........ccoouueeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 65,612
Sales aNd SEIVICES .......cccoouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 1,465,456
INVESEMENT INCOME ...t 93,333
ORI SOUICES ..ottt e e e e eeeeateeeaeaaaeaeeanas ﬂ
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt e e aaes 4,499,683
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL:
Instruction and Departmental Research .............ccccccevveevoeneenn. 1,837,458
Separately Budgeted ReSearch ............ccccevceveecceesceeesieeee. 485,705
PUDBIIC SEIVICE ...t 256,600
ACAAEMIC SUPPOIT ...t 446,912
SHUAENTE SEIVICES ...ttt 266,061
Institutional SUPPOIT ..........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeceieeeeeeeee e 479,108
Operation and Maintenance of Plant .............ccccccceeevvveeeeeescunenn.. 321,750
Scholarships and FellowshipsS ...........ccocoeeeiciiiriiiiiiees e 449,978
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL .............couneeeeeeeeeeaeaana e, 4,543 572
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES ...........oooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeiee e 632,168
HOSPITALS ...ttt et e e ae e e e 786,294
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ...........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e 5,962,034
MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Principal and INterest ...........ouueeeeeeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeaaaeas 116,198
Renewals and Replacements .............ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeicnininns 2,821
(©]1 11T N 850
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET ........cccovveeeeveeeeneanan, ﬂ
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS ............ 6,081,903
OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS):
OPERATING TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT .............. 1,725,879
NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Capital ImProvements ............ccccuoveeeeeeiieeeee e (88,292)
(@1 =T 24,677
ADDITIONS/(DEDUCTIONS):
Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue ......... 183,763
Indirect COSts RECOVEIed ............cccoeveeeiiniiieiiiieeciie e (93,479)
(@1 1T (3,581)
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) ..... 1,748,967

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES ....... $ 166,747

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State
of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of opera-
tions of the various fund types, and the cash flows of
the proprietary funds. The financial statements, as
of June 30, 2001, and for the year then ended, con-
form with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governments. The Govern-
mental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The
GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards documents these
principles. The State’s significant accounting poli-
cies are as follows.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Ohio’s primary government includes all
funds, account groups, elected officials, departments
and agencies, bureaus, boards, commissions, and
authorities that make up the State’s legal entity.
Component units, legally separate organizations for
which the State’s elected officials are financially ac-
countable, also comprise, in part, the State’s report-
ing entity. Additionally, other organizations for which
the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that exclusion
would cause the reporting entity’s financial state-
ments to be misleading or incomplete should be in-
cluded in a government’s financial reporting entity.

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity, defines financial accountability. The criteria
for determining financial accountability include the
following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majority of an organiza-
tion’s governing authority and the ability of the
primary government to either impose its will on
that organization or the potential for the organi-
zation to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on, the pri-
mary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the pri-
mary government.

Information for obtaining complete financial state-
ments for the State’s component units, which are
discussed below, is available from the Ohio Office of
Budget and Management.

1. Blended Component Units

The Ohio Building Authority and the State Highway
Patrol Retirement System are legally separate or-
ganizations that provide services entirely, or almost
entirely, to the State or otherwise exclusively, or al-
most exclusively, benefit the State. Therefore, the
State reports these organizations’ balances and

38

transactions as though they were part of the primary
government using the blending method.

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units’ columns in the combined fi-
nancial statements include the financial data of the
following organizations. The separate discrete col-
umn labeled, “Component Units,” emphasizes these
organizations’ separateness from the State’s primary
government.

Officials of the primary government appoint a voting
majority of each organization’s governing board.

The primary government has the ability to impose its
will on the following organization by modifying or
approving its budget.

Governmental
School Facilities Commission

The following organizations impose or potentially
impose financial burdens on the primary govern-
ment.

Proprietary
Ohio Water Development Authority

Colleges and Universities
State Universities:
Bowling Green State University
Central State University
Cleveland State University
Kent State University
Miami University
Ohio State University
Ohio University
Shawnee State University
University of Akron
University of Cincinnati
University of Toledo
Wright State University
Youngstown State University

State Community Colleges
Cincinnati State Community College
Clark State Community College
Columbus State Community College
Edison State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College
Southern State Community College
Terra State Community College
Washington State Community College

Medical College
Medical College of Ohio at Toledo

3. Joint Ventures and Related Organizations
As discussed in more detail in NOTE 21, the State
participates in several joint ventures and has related



STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

organizations. The State does not include the finan-
cial activities of these organizations in its financial
statements, in conformity with GASB 14.

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting
The State uses funds and account groups to report
its financial position and results of operations. A
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund account-
ing segregates funds according to their intended
purpose and aids management in demonstrating
compliance with finance-related legal and contrac-
tual provisions. An account group is an accounting
device that accounts for certain assets and liabilities
of the governmental funds not recorded directly in
those funds.

Primary government and component unit funds fall
into four categories: governmental, proprietary, fidu-
ciary, and college and university.

1. Primary Government
In the primary government’s financial statements,
each fund category is divided into separate “fund
types,” which are described along with the two ac-
count groups, as follows.

a. Governmental Fund Types

General — The General Fund, the State’s primary
operating fund, accounts for resources traditionally
associated with government, which are not required
legally or by sound financial management to be ac-
counted for in another fund.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds ac-
count for revenue sources that are legally restricted
to expenditure for specific purposes.

Debt Service — The debt service funds account for
the accumulation of resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds ac-
count for the acquisition of fixed assets and con-
struction of major capital facilities and for major re-
pairs and replacements other than those financed by
proprietary or trust funds.

b. Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise — The enterprise funds account for op-
erations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises — where the
State’s intent is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis
be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the State has decided that peri-
odic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability and other purposes.

Internal Service — The internal service funds ac-
count for the financing of goods or services that a
state department or agency provides to other state
departments and agencies or to other government
units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

c. Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust funds account for assets that the State holds in
a trustee capacity. The State’s general-purpose fi-
nancial statements present expendable, pension,
and investment trust funds. The Pension Trust Fund
reports the State Highway Patrol Retirement System
for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

Agency funds account for assets the State holds as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other
governments, or other funds. The Agency Fund in-
cludes the assets of the Public Employees Retire-
ment System and the Police and Fire Pension Fund,
for their fiscal years ended December 31, 2000.

d. Account Groups

General Fixed Assets — The General Fixed Assets
Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for the State’s general governmental
purposes. This group accounts for fixed assets not
accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

General Long-Term Obligations — The General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for
the State’s unmatured general obligation bonds and
other long-term obligations not required to be ac-
counted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

2. Component Units

The School Facilities Commission Fund is a dis-
cretely presented governmental component unit that
uses special revenue fund reporting. The financial
presentation of the underlying fund types of the
other individual component units reported in the dis-
crete column is available from each respective com-
ponent unit’s separately issued financial statements.
The component unit funds include the Ohio Water
Development Authority for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2000.

The State presents a Statement of Current Funds
Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes in the
General-Purpose Financial Statements, in accor-
dance with Section 2600.111 of the GASB’s Codifi-
cation of Governmental Accounting and Financial
Reporting. The Current Funds, a college and uni-
versity fund type, accounts for economic resources
that are expendable for any purpose in performing
the primary objectives of the higher education insti-
tutions.
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C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
A fund’s measurement focus determines the ac-
counting and financial reporting treatment applied to
the fund. Governmental and expendable trust funds
are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. Under this meas-
urement focus, operating statements present in-
creases (i.e., revenue and other financing sources)
and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financ-
ing uses) in net current assets, and unreserved fund
balance is a measure of available expendable re-
sources.

Proprietary, pension trust, and investment trust
funds are accounted for using a flow of economic
resources measurement focus, which emphasizes
the determination of net income. Under this meas-
urement focus, operating statements present in-
creases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., ex-
penses) in net assets. Fund equity (i.e., net assets)
is segregated on the balance sheet into two compo-
nents, contributed capital and retained earnings/fund
balance.

Agency funds are custodial in nature, and therefore,
do not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus.

All governmental, expendable trust, and agency
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, the
State recognizes revenues when susceptible to ac-
crual (i.e., when they are “measurable and avail-
able”). “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction is determinable, and “available” means
the amount is collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the cur-
rent period. The State considers revenues as avail-
able when collected within 60 days after year-end.

Under the modified accrual basis, the State records
expenditures when it incurs related fund liabilities,
except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt, which the State recognizes as expendi-
tures when due. For government-mandated and
voluntary nonexchanges, the State recognizes liabili-
ties and expenditures when recipients have met ap-
plicable eligibility requirements, including timing re-
quirements.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual
under the modified accrual basis of accounting in-
clude:

Personal income taxes
Sales and use taxes
Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Unemployment taxes
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e Charges for goods and services
o Federal government grants
e Investment income

The State recognizes assets from derived tax reve-
nues (e.g., personal income, sales, motor vehicle
fuel taxes) in the fiscal year when the exchange
transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs or
when the resources are received, whichever occurs
first. The State recognizes derived tax revenues,
net of estimated refunds and estimated uncollectible
amounts, in the same period that the assets are rec-
ognized, provided that the underlying exchange
transaction has occurred. Resources received in
advance are reported as deferred revenue until the
period of the exchange.

The State recognizes federal government revenue in
the period when all applicable eligibility requirements
have been met and resources are available. Re-
sources transmitted in advance of the State meeting
eligibility requirements are reported as deferred
revenue. Also, the State defers revenue recognition
for reimbursement-type grant programs if the reim-
bursement is not received during the availability pe-
riod (within 60-days of year-end).

For revenue arising from exchange transactions (i.e.,
charges for goods and services), the State defers
revenue recognition when resources are received in
advance of the exchange.

Investment income includes the net increase (de-
crease) in the fair value of investments.

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscella-
neous revenues are not susceptible to accrual be-
cause generally they are not measurable until re-
ceived in cash. The “Other’ revenue account is
comprised of refunds, reimbursements, recoveries,
and other miscellaneous income.

The proprietary, pension trust, and investment trust
funds use the accrual basis of accounting. Under
this method, the State records revenues when
earned and expenses when incurred.

As permitted by GAAP, the State’s proprietary funds
have elected not to apply Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statements and Interpretations
issued after November 30, 1989.

College and university funds apply the principles of
accounting and reporting set forth in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants College
Guide model. The college and university funds use
the accrual basis of accounting, with the following
exceptions: 1) depreciation expense is not calcu-
lated or reported, and 2) revenues and expenditures
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of an academic term encompassing more than one
fiscal year are recognized in the period when the
program is predominantly conducted.

D. Budgetary Process

As the Ohio Revised Code requires, the Governor
submits biennial operating and capital budgets to the
General Assembly. All proposed expenditures for
the State and estimated revenues and borrowings
for a biennium comprise the budget, which includes
those funds of the State subject to appropriation
pursuant to state law.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through
passage of specific departmental line-item appro-
priations, the legal level of budgetary control. Line-
item appropriations are established within funds by
program or major object of expenditure. The Gover-
nor may veto any item in an appropriation bill. Such
vetoes are subject to legislative override.

Biennially, the General Assembly approves operat-
ing and capital appropriations. The legislature
specifies operating appropriations in  annual
amounts and capital appropriations in two-year
amounts.

The State’s Controlling Board, comprised of six
members of the General Assembly and the director
of the Office of Budget and Management (OBM) or
an employee of OBM designated by the director, can
transfer or increase a line-item appropriation within
the limitations set under Sections 127.14 and
131.35, Ohio Revised Code. As provided by Section
127.14, Ohio Revised Code, the Board has dele-
gated to the director of OBM authority to approve
transfers within a state agency among items of ap-
propriations for the same fiscal year not to exceed a
cumulative fiscal year transfer of $50,000 (or
$75,000 for certain institutional departments) from
each item of appropriation. The OBM director can-
not make transfers for the purpose of effecting new
or changed levels of program service not authorized
by the General Assembly.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the fol-
lowing activities within the fund types:

Special Revenue Fund
Certain activities within the Community and Eco-
nomic Development Special Revenue Fund, as
discussed in NOTE 3

Debt Service Fund
Economic Development Revenue Bonds
Transportation Certificates of Participation

Vietnam Conflict Compensation

General Obligations
Higher Education Facilities Special Obligations
Mental Health Facilities Special Obligations
Parks and Recreation Facilities Special Obligations
School Building Program Special Obligations
Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds
Ohio Building Authority Special Obligations
Enterprise Revenue Bonds

Capital Projects Fund
Ohio Building Authority

For budgeted funds, the State’s Central Accounting
System controls expenditures by appropriation line-
item, so at no time can expenditures exceed appro-
priations and financial-related legal compliance is
assured. The State uses the modified cash basis of
accounting for budgetary purposes.

As an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the accounting system, the State employs encum-
brance accounting, under which purchase orders,
contracts, and other commitments for expenditures
are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appro-
priations. At fiscal year end, the State reports out-
standing encumbrances in the General, special
revenue, and capital projects funds as reservations
of fund balance for expenditure in subsequent years.
Operating encumbrances are generally canceled
five months after the fiscal year-end while capital
encumbrances are generally canceled two years
after the biennial period for which they were appro-
priated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the
end of the biennium budget period.

The Detailed Appropriation Summary by Fund Re-
port, which is available for public inspection at the
Onhio Office of Budget and Management, provides a
more comprehensive accounting of activity on the
budgetary basis at the legal level of budgetary con-
trol.

In the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendi-
tures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis), budgeted
revenues for the General Fund represent periodi-
cally updated revenue budgets.

For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted
revenues, as submitted by the Governor, do not rep-
resent actual forecasts of revenues and are not
amended to coincide with any legislative changes to
the original expenditure budget. Accordingly, for
budgeted funds other than the General Fund, the
State reports budgeted revenues and other financing
sources and uses at actual amounts, since the State
does not have updated, budgeted revenue and other
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financing sources and uses amounts for use in the
accompanying budgetary basis financial statements.

Additionally, on the Combined Statement of Reve-
nues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
— Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis),
“actual” budgetary expenditures include cash dis-
bursements against the current fiscal year’s appro-
priations and outstanding encumbrances, as of June
30, 2001, that were committed during the current
fiscal year. Encumbrance reversions represent
lapses of prior years’ appropriations. For certain
activities in the General and Special Revenue funds
and for the Capital Projects Fund, amounts reported
under the “Budget” column include total unexpended
appropriations for both the first and second years of
the current 2001-2002 biennial budget.

The Unemployment Compensation and Variable
College Savings Plan expendable trust funds, State
Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust
Fund, and the STAROhio Investment Trust Fund are
not legally required to adopt budgets. For budgeted
proprietary and trust funds, the State is not legally
required to report budgetary data and comparisons
for these funds. Additionally, the State does not
present budgetary data for its discretely presented
component units.

Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis
of accounting, which differs from GAAP, NOTE 3
presents a reconciliation of the differences between
the GAAP basis and non-GAAP budgetary basis of
reporting.

E. Cash Equity with Treasurer
and Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equity with Treasurer consists of pooled de-
mand deposits and investments carried at fair value.
The State’s cash pool under the Treasurer of State’s
administration has the general characteristics of a
demand deposit account whereby additional cash
can be deposited at any time and can also be effec-
tively withdrawn at any time, within certain budgetary
limitations, without prior notice or penalty.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on de-
posit with financial institutions and cash on hand.
The cash and cash equivalents account also in-
cludes investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition for the
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and Ohio Lottery
Commission enterprise funds and the University of
Cincinnati component unit fund.

Cash equity with Treasurer and cash and cash
equivalents, including the portions reported under
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“Restricted Assets,” are considered to be cash
equivalents, as defined in GASB Statement No. 9,
for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

F. Investments

Investments include long-term investments that may
be restricted by law or other legal instruments. With
the exception of certain money market investments,
which have remaining maturities at the time of pur-
chase of one year or less and are carried at amor-
tized cost, and holdings in the State Treasury Asset
Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio) investment pool, the
State reports investments at fair value based on
quoted market prices. STAROhio operates in a
manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940; investments in the 2a7-like
pool are reported at amortized cost (which approxi-
mates fair value). The colleges and universities re-
port investments received as gifts at their fair value
on the donation date.

The primary government does not manage or pro-
vide investment services for investments reported in
the Agency Fund that are owned by other, legally
separate entities that are not part of the State of
Ohio’s reporting entity.

G. Intergovernmental Receivables
Intergovernmental receivables are primarily com-
prised of amounts due from the federal government
for reimbursement-type grant programs. Advances
of resources to recipient local governments before
eligibility requirements have been met under gov-
ernment-mandated and voluntary nonexchange pro-
grams and amounts due for exchanges of State
goods and services with other governments are also
reported as intergovernmental receivables.

H. Inventories

For governmental funds, the State recognizes the
costs of material inventories as expenditures when
purchased. At year-end, physical counts are taken
of significant inventories for the governmental fund
types and are generally reported on the balance
sheet at moving-average cost. Inventories reported
in the governmental funds do not reflect current ap-
propriable resources, and therefore, the State re-
serves an equivalent portion of fund balance.

Proprietary and college and university funds value
inventories at cost, which approximates market;
principal inventory cost methods applied include
first-in, first-out, average cost, moving-average, and
retail.

I. Restricted Assets
The primary government reports assets restricted for
payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) and
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tuition benefits in the enterprise funds for the Ohio
Lottery Commission and the Ohio Tuition Trust Au-
thority, respectively.

Covenants for the Ohio Building Authority’s bonds
require pledged receipts be held and invested in a
reserve account placed with a trustee financial insti-
tution. The State reports these restricted assets in
the internal service funds.

Generally, the colleges and universities hold assets
in trust. Bond covenants or other financing ar-
rangements legally restrict the use of these assets.

J. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets — The State reports fixed
assets purchased with governmental fund resources
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at his-
torical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no
historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are
valued at their estimated fair value on the donation
date.

The State does not capitalize the costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the as-
set’s value or materially extend an asset’s useful life.
Costs of major improvements are capitalized, while
interest costs associated with the acquisition of gen-
eral fixed assets are not capitalized.

The State does not capitalize public domain (infra-
structure) general fixed assets such as roads,
bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks,
historical monuments, drainage systems, and light-
ing systems, since these assets are immovable and
of value only to the government.

The State does not depreciate assets reported in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Fixed Assets —
Fixed assets are stated at cost or, for donated as-
sets, at estimated fair value at the donation date.
The State depreciates proprietary and fiduciary fund
fixed assets, excluding land, using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 5-40 years
Land Improvements 5-25 years
Machinery and Equipment 2-20 years
State Vehicles 3-6 years

The State capitalizes material interest on proprietary
fund fixed assets acquired through debt issuance.

College and University Fund Fixed Assets — The
colleges and universities value all purchased fixed
assets at cost and donated fixed assets at estimated
fair value on the donation date. The colleges and

universities do not capitalize public domain (infra-
structure) assets or depreciate their fixed assets.

K. Long-Term Obligations

Governmental funds recognize long-term obligations
as liabilities when due. The State reports only the
portion expected to be financed from expendable
available financial resources as a liability of a gov-
ernmental fund. The remaining portion of such obli-
gations is reported in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Group. Included among these li-
abilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities re-
sulting from debt issuances, certificate of participa-
tion financing arrangements, compensated ab-
sences, judgments, settlements, claims, litigation,
contingencies, leases, and workers’ compensation
benefits. The proprietary funds and college and uni-
versity funds account for long-term liabilities ex-
pected to be financed from operations.

As discussed in NOTES 11 and 12, bonds that the
Ohio Building Authority (OBA) issues to finance the
construction of facilities leased to local governments
are reported as revenue bonds in the internal ser-
vice funds, while OBA bonds issued to finance the
construction of state-related projects are reported as
special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

L. Compensated Absences

Employees of the State’s primary government earn
vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at
various rates within limits specified under collective
bargaining agreements or under law. Generally,
employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1
hours every two weeks for the first five years of em-
ployment, up to a maximum rate of 9.2 hours every
two weeks after 25 years of employment. Employ-
ees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation
leave credit. At termination or retirement, the State
pays employees, at their full rate, 100 percent of
unused vacation leave, personal leave, and, in cer-
tain cases, compensatory time and 50 percent of
unused sick leave.

Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain re-
strictions, either annually in December, or at the time
of termination from employment.

For the governmental funds, the State reports the
current portion of the compensated absences liability
as a fund liability that is included under the “Accrued
Liabilities” account while the noncurrent portion is
reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group. For the primary government’s proprie-
tary funds and its discretely presented component
unit funds, the State reports the compensated ab-
sences liability as a fund liability under the “Accrued
Liabilities” account.
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The State’s primary government accrues vacation,
compensatory time, and personal leaves as liabilities
when an employee’s right to receive compensation
is attributable to services already rendered and it is
probable that the employee will be compensated
through paid time off or some other means, such as
at termination or retirement. Leave time that has
been earned, but is unavailable for use as paid time
off or as some other form of compensation because
an employee has not met a minimum service time
requirement, is accrued to the extent that it is con-
sidered to be probable that the conditions for com-
pensation will be met in the future.

The State’s primary government accrues sick leave
using the vesting method. Under this method, the
liability is recorded on the basis of leave accumu-
lated by employees who are eligible to receive ter-
mination payments, as of the balance sheet date,
and on leave balances accumulated by other em-
ployees who are expected to become eligible in the
future to receive such payments.

Included in the compensated absences liability is an
amount accrued for salary-related payments directly
and incrementally associated with the payment of
compensated absences upon termination. Such
payments include the primary government’s share of
Medicare taxes.

For the colleges and universities, vacation and sick
leave policies vary by institution.

M. Fund Equity

Reservations
Reservations of equity represent amounts that are
not appropriable or are legally restricted for a spe-
cific purpose.

Designations
Designations of equity represent tentative manage-
ment plans that are subject to change.

Contributed Capital
Contributed capital represents equity acquired
through capital contributions from other funds.

N. Risk Management

The State’s primary government is self-insured for
claims under its traditional healthcare plan and for
vehicle liability while it has placed public official fidel-
ity bonding with a private insurer. The State self-
funds tort liability and most property losses on a pay-
as-you-go basis; however, selected state agencies
have acquired private insurance for their property
losses. While not the predominant participant, the
State’s primary government participates in a public
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entity risk pool, which is accounted for in the Bureau
of Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, for the
financing of its workers’ compensation liability (See
NOTE 23A).

Estimates for significant incurred but not reported
claims or contingent liabilities are included in ac-
crued liabilities and in the General Long-Term Obli-
gations Account Group.

O. Interfund/Intra-Entity Transactions

The State of Ohio records the following types of in-
terfund/intra-entity transactions within its reporting
entity:

Operating Transfers — Legally required transfers
are reported when incurred as “Operating Transfers-
in” by the receiving fund and as “Operating Trans-
fers-out” by the disbursing fund. Legally required
transfers between the primary government and its
component units are reported as “Operating Trans-
fers from/to Primary Government” and “Operating
Transfers from/to Component Units.”

Transfers of Expenditures/Expenses (Reimburse-
ment) — The State reports reimbursements made by
one fund for another as expenditures/expenses in
the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expendi-
tures/expenses in the reimbursed fund.

Residual Equity Transfers — The State reports non-
routine or nonrecurring transfers between funds as
additions to or deductions from fund equity.

Quasi-external Transactions — The State reports
charges or collections for services rendered by one
fund to another as revenues of the receiving fund
and expenditures/expenses of the disbursing fund.

Transactions between funds that represent non-
current lending or borrowing arrangements out-
standing, as of the end of the fiscal year, are re-
ported as advances to/from other funds. The State
reports all other outstanding balances between
funds as due to/from other funds. NOTE 7 presents
a summary of interfund balances and interfund and
intra-entity transfers.

P. Memorandum Only — Total Columns

Total columns on the general-purpose financial
statements are captioned “Memorandum Only” be-
cause they do not represent consolidated financial
information and are presented only to facilitate fi-
nancial analysis. Data in these columns do not pre-
sent financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows in conformity with generally accepted account-
ing principles. Neither are such data comparable to
a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not
been made in the aggregation of this data.
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A. Restatements — Primary Government’s Funds
Restatements of fund balances, as of June 30, 2000, are summarized for the primary government below.

Special Revenue Fund

Community  Job, Family Mental
& Economic & Other Health
General Develop- Human and
Fund ment Services Health Retardation = Education

Fund Balance, as previously reported,
June 30, 2000.......ccccecirinieenrieeeeee $2,722,285 $697,394 $264,992 $32,496 $73,549 $955,902

GASB 33 Implementation:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:

Intergovernmental Receivables ....... — — 16,299 — — —
Other Receivables ...........ccccovveenns 3,293 — — — — (607)
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities:
Intergovernmental Payable.............. (119,674) — (16,817) — — —
Deferred Revenue..........cccccuvenneee. (132,733) (3,394) (63,747) (380) (21,124) (26,022)
(249,114) (3,394) (64,265) (380) (21,124) (26,629)
Corrections:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............ — (59) — — — —
Intergovernmental Receivable.......... — — — — 1,157 —
Taxes Receivable (Sales Taxes) ..... 48,526 — — — — —
Loans Receivable............cccccceveenn. — 2,532 — — — —
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities:
Accounts Payable.............ccccvvvnnnee. — — — — — —
Deferred Revenue...........cccccveennnee. — (6,987) — — — —
48,526 (4,514) — — 1,157 —
Fund Reclassification of Net Assets...... (646) — — — — (818,021)
Increase/(Decrease) for Restatement ... (201,234) (7,908) (64,265) (380) (19,967) (844,650)
Fund Balance, as restated, July 1, 2000 $2,521,051 $689,486 $200,727 $32,116 $53,582 $111,252

Special Revenue Fund (Continued)

Local Infra- Arts Sports All Other

Wildlife and  structure & Facilities Facilities Special

Highway Waterways Transportation Improve- Improve- Revenue
Operating Safety Improvements ments ments Funds

Fund Balance, as previously reported,
June 30, 2000........cceeeeiiiieeeeiiee e $ 954,138 $ 51,922 $ 82,931 $ — 35 — $789,059

GASB 33 Implementation:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivables ........ — (1,200) — — — —
Other Receivables............ccccceevnneenn. — — — — — —
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities: —
Intergovernmental Payable............... — —
Deferred Revenue ............c...ccoeuunne. — (1,983) — — — —

— (3,183) — _ — —

Corrections:

Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............. — — — — — —
Intergovernmental Receivable.......... — — —_ — — —
Taxes Receivable (Sales Taxes)...... — — — — — —
Loans Receivable...........cccccevvenennn 908 — — — — —

(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities: — - _
Accounts Payable..........cccccceeeiiinnnnn. — — —_ — — —
Deferred Revenue ..............ccovvveeeeene — — — — — —

908 — — — — —
Fund Reclassification of Net Assets....... — — 274,991 21,163 4,912 —
Increase/(Decrease) for Restatement ... 908 (3,183) 274,991 21,163 4,912 —
Fund Balance, as restated, July 1, 2000 $ 955,046 $ 48,739 $357,922 $21,163 $4,912 $789,059

(Continued)
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(Continued)
Capital Projects Fund
Total Local Arts Sports All Other Total
Special Infrastructure Facilities Facilities Capital Capital
Revenue Improve- Improve- Improve- Projects Projects
Primary Government (Cont’d) Funds ments ments ments Funds Funds
Fund Balance, as previously reported,
June 30, 2000........cceeeeiiiiieeiieeeeiiees $3,902,383 $274,991 $21,163 $4,912  $471,568 $772,634
GASB 33 Implementation:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivables........ 15,099 — — — — —
Other Receivables............cccceeevinens (607) — — — — —
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities:
Intergovernmental Payable............... (16,817) — — — — —
Deferred Revenue ...........cccceeevieee, (116,650) — — — — —
(118,975) — — — — —
Corrections:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............. (59) — — — — —
Intergovernmental Receivable.......... 1,157 — — —
Taxes Receivable (Sales Taxes)...... — — — — — —
Loans Receivable...........ccccccouueeeennnn. 3,440 — — — — —
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities: — — —
Accounts Payable..............ccccccoeee, — —
Deferred Revenue ..........cccccceeeenne, (6,987) — — — — —
(2,449) — — — — —
Fund Reclassification of Net Assets....... (516,955) (274,991) (21,163) (4,912) — (301,066)
Increase/(Decrease) for Restatement....  (638,379) (274,991) (21,163) (4,912) — (301,066)
Fund Balance, as restated, July 1, 2000 $3,264,004 $ — $ — $ —  $471,568 $471,568
For the year ended June 30, 2001, the State imple- e The intergovernmental receivable balance

mented the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.
GASB 33 principally addresses the timing of recog-
nition of nonexchange transactions involving finan-
cial or capital resources (e.g., most taxes, grants,
fines and penalties, and private donations) in a gov-
ernment’s financial statements. Restatements for
the primary government resulting from the imple-
mentation of the new standard are detailed in the
foregoing table under the “GASB 33 Implementation”
caption. GASB 33 restatements for the college and
university component unit funds are detailed in the
table on the following page.

For the General Fund, the sales taxes receivable
balance reported, as of June 30, 2000, was in-
creased by $48.5 million to properly reflect earned
sales tax revenue collected in August 2000.

Beginning balance adjustments have been included
to correct the following balances reported in the
Special Revenue Fund, as of June 30, 2000.

e The cash and cash equivalents balance re-
ported by the Department of Development’'s
Office of Business Development was cor-
rected for a $59 thousand overstatement.
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was increased by $1.2 million because state-
earned cash had mistakenly been included in
the year-end calculation of the federal receiv-
able balance for the Medicaid Program at the
Department of Mental Health; thereby, caus-
ing an offset that resulted in an understate-
ment of the balance owed by the federal gov-
ernment to the State.

e The increase in the loans receivable balance
in the amount of $3.4 million represents cor-
rections for loan programs at the Department
of Development ($2.5 million) and the De-
partment of Transportation ($908 thousand).

e The deferred revenue balance was under-
stated by $7 million because unearned federal
revenue on deposit at the Office of Criminal
Justice Services had not been recognized.

Net assets reported for the Local Infrastructure, Arts
Facilities Improvements, and Sports Facilities Im-
provements capital projects funds, as of June 30,
2000, have been reclassified to the Special Revenue
Fund because a significant amount of expenditures
reported in these funds are comprised of capital
grants to local governments, which do not qualify as
capital outlay expenditures for the primary govern-
ment.
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NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND STANDARDS
(Continued)

Net assets in the amount of $646 thousand and of GASB 33, and a $1.2 million increase in the loans
$818 million reported for the General and Education receivable balance for loans not reported, as of June
Special Revenue funds, respectively, as of June 30, 30, 2000.
2000, have been reclassified and presented under
the School Facilities Commission discretely pre- Additionally, the July 1, 2000 beginning balance of
sented component unit column. Net assets reclassi- general fixed assets reported in the General Fixed
fied for this discretely presented component unit in Assets Account Group was decreased by approxi-
NOTE 2B in the amount of $(250.5) million has been mately $13.1 million (See NOTE 8). The net de-
restated for a $1.07 billion increase in intergovern- crease resulted from fixed asset additions and dele-
mental payables, as required for the implementation tions not reported in prior years.

B. Restatements — Component Unit Funds
Restatements of fund balances, as of June 30, 2000, are summarized for the component unit funds below.

Colleges and Universities

School Ohio University Bowling
Facilities State Ohio Miami of Green State
Commission University  University University Akron University

Fund Balance, as previously reported,
June 30, 2000.....cccceeiiiiiiiiiiieeee e $ — $4,267,033 $648,365 $741,077 $571,092 $434,526
GASB 33 Implementation:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivables ........ 15,398 — — —
Other Receivables..........cccceceeveennnn. — — 1,377 613 —
Fixed ASSets ......ccocoovvveiiiiiiiiiiieiiin, — 2,073 — 580 589
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities:
Deferred Revenue ...........ccc.cccoeunnee — — — — — (10,234)
— 15,398 2,073 1,377 1,193 (9,645)

Corrections:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Investments ........cccceeeeeiiiiiiiiieieee, — — — — — _
Other Receivables............cccccvvvvvennnee. — — — — — _
Fixed AsSets .......cccoeeeeeeveiiiiiieeeeenenn, — — — — — _

Fund Reclassification of Net Assets....... (250,453) — — — — —

Change in Reporting Entity .................... — — 845 — —
Increase/(Decrease) for Restatement....  (250,453) 15,398 2,918 1,377 1,193 (9,645)
Fund Balance, as restated, July 1, 2000 $(250,453) $4,282,431 $651,283 $742,454 $572,285 $424,881

Colleges and Universities (Continued)

Washington  Northwest All Total
University  Clark State State State Other Colleges
of Community Community Community Colleges and and
Toledo College College College Universities  Universities

Fund Balance, as previously reported,
June 30, 2000 ........cceriririnieenreeeee $428,956 $47,396 $25,681 $25,977  $5,048,832 $12,238,935

GASB 33 Implementation:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:

Intergovernmental Receivables......... 1,370 — — — — 16,768
Other Receivables...........cccccceeeeeenee — — — — — 1,990
Fixed ASSets......cccoevvivviiiiiiiiiiiieeee, — — — — — 3,242
(Increase)/Decrease to Liabilities:
Deferred Revenue.............cccccuvvvnee... (2,805) — — — — (13,039)
(1,435) — — — — 8,961
Corrections:
Increase/(Decrease) to Assets:
Investments.........cccccvveveeeieeieecii, — — 114 — — 114
Other Receivables..........ccccccovcvveennns — (12) — — — (12)
Fixed Assets.......ccccoeeiiiiiins — 353 — 206 — 559
— 341 114 206 — 661
Fund Reclassification of Net Assets ....... — — — — — —
Change in Reporting Entity ...............c.... — — — — — 845
Increase/(Decrease) for Restatement..... (1,435) 341 114 206 — 10,467
Fund Balance, as restated, July 1, 2000.  $427,521 $47,737 $25,795 $26,183  $5,048,832 $12,249,402
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NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND STANDARDS

(Continued)

For the discretely presented College and University
Funds, the prior year’s fund balance has been in-
creased approximately:

e $9 million as the result of the implementation
of GASB 33,

e $661 thousand for the correction of errors in
previously reported investments, other re-
ceivables, and fixed assets balances, and

e $845 thousand for a change in reporting en-
tity at Ohio University when it included the
Ohio University Osteopathic Medical Center
for the first time in its fiscal year 2001 finan-
cial statements.

C. Changes in Accounting Principle

For fiscal year 2001, Youngstown State University, a
component unit fund, changed its capitalization pol-
icy for fixed assets. The university increased its
thresholds for capitalizing equipment and building
and other improvements. The cumulative effect of
the change is recognized as a $45.8 million de-
crease in the University’s net assets.

D. Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Gov-
ernments. The State is required to apply this state-
ment for periods beginning after June 15, 2001.
GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new financial
reporting requirements that fundamentally affect the
presentation of a general purpose government’s ba-
sic financial statements and related required sup-
plementary information.

In November 1999, the GASB established account-
ing and financial reporting standards for public col-
leges and universities within the financial reporting
guidelines of GASB Statement No. 34 when the
Board issued GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Finan-
cial Statements—and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis—for Public Colleges and Universities.

Management has not yet determined the impact that
GASB Statements No. 34 and 35 will have on the
State’s financial statements.

NOTE 3 GAAP versus NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS

“Actual” revenues, operating transfers-in, expendi-
tures, encumbrances, and operating transfers-out on
the non-GAAP budgetary basis do not equal those
reported on the GAAP basis in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances — All Governmental Fund Types
and Expendable Trust Funds. This inequality results
primarily from basis differences in the recognition of
accruals, deferred revenue, interfund transactions,
and loan transactions, and from timing differences in
the budgetary basis of accounting for encum-
brances. On the non-GAAP budgetary basis, the
State recognizes encumbrances as expenditures in
the year encumbered, while on the modified accrual
basis, the State recognizes expenditures when
goods or services are received regardless of the
year encumbered.

Budgeted expenditures in the accompanying Com-
bined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual
(Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) represent original ap-
propriations modified by supplemental and amended
appropriations made throughout the year, including
$1.11 billion, $1.43 billion, $49.5 million, and $2.11
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billion increases in the budgets of the General, Spe-
cial Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Projects
funds, respectively.

A reconciliation of the fund balances recorded under
the two bases for the General, Special Revenue,
Debt Service, and Capital Projects funds is pre-
sented on the following page.
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NOTE 3 GAAP versus NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS (Continued)

Primary Government
Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to
Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis Fund Balances
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
Total Fund Balances - GAAP BaSiS.........ccouueeeeveeeeeeeireeeeens $1,880,898 $ 3,607,251 $118,023 $535,181
Less: Unbudgeted Fund Balances.............ccccvveeveeeiieennns — 151,254 * 59,051 10,085
Total Budgeted Fund Balances - GAAP Basis.......c.............. 1,880,898 3,455,997 58,972 525,096
Less: Reserved Fund Balances...........c.cccooevvvveeeiivniceinnnnnns 1,699,875 4,156,697 59,445 629,978
Less: Designated Fund Balances ............ccccceeveeeeeiiinnnns 13,104 — — —
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances - GAAP Basis .... 167,919 (700,700) (473) (104,882)
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Cash Equity with Treasurer...........ccccccoeeeivieeiees e, (19,088) (16,946) (1,033) (3,298)
Taxes Receivable ..........ccccceeeeiiiiiiiiiiee e, (1,018,309) (288,777) — —
Intergovernmental Receivable ............ccc.cccooeiiiieniennen. (503,498) (683,682) — —
Loans Receivable ............ccccvvviieiiiiiieceeee e (27,580) (490,311) — —
Other Receivables .........cccccoiiiiiieiiiee e (10,953) (62,757) (185) (1,932)
Due from Other FuNdS .........ccooiiiiiiiie e (16,052) (17,752) (130) (1,366)
INVENTOTIES ... (770) (30,368) — —
Advances to Other Funds ..........ccccooiiiiiniiciiecc e — (20,000) — —
Other ASSEtS ...ooviiiiiiieee e (243) (3,241) — —
Deferred REVENUE...........ccoooviiveieeiieeeeeeeeee e 133,549 396,071 — —
Total Revenue Accruals/Adjustments.................c....... (1,462,944) (1,217,763) (1,348) (6,596)
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable ...........cccoeeiiiiiiiee e 138,374 273,707 — 63,066
Medicaid Claims Payable...........cc..cccooeiiiiiiieiiiiiiinee. 716,019 — — —
Accrued Liabilities .........coouvviiiiiiicie e 81,464 46,006 1,459 —
Intergovernmental Payable .............cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieienn, 382,066 594,593 — —
Due to Other FUNAS ........coooiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 36,899 3,063 — 200
Refund and Other Liabilities.............cocooeviiiiieiieee 499,624 78,595 780 —
Advances from Other Funds ...........ccoeveeiviiiiieeeeeeeeeeenn, — — — 20,000
Total Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments ................... 1,854,446 995,964 2,239 83,266
Other Adjustments:
Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Unreserved (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
to Reserved for:
Debt Service........ooviiiiiiiee e 1,620 — 58,865 —
Budget Stabilization..............cccoiiiiiii 1,002,491 — — —
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable................... 25,517 437,485 — —
Other ..o 109,687 354,485 580 521
From Undesignated (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
to Designated.........c.ueeeeeiiiiiieee s 13,104 — — —
Cash and Investments Held Outside of State Treasury .. (10,752) (346,340) (1,200) —
OthEr .. (2) 2 1 1
Total Other Adjustments.........c.cccoeeeeiciieiiicee e, 1,141,665 445,632 58,246 522
Total Basis Differences .........cccccveeeeeeiicciiiieee e 1,633,167 223,833 59,137 77,192
TIMING DIFFERENCES
ENCUMDbBIanCeS.......c.ccoiiiiiiiiiee e (195,383) (458,848) — (60,669)
Budgetary Fund Balances (Deficits) — Non-GAAP Basis.. $1,505,703 $(935,715) $ 58,664 $ (88,359)

*This amount in the Special Revenue Fund includes certain unbudgeted activities within the Community and Economic Devel-
opment Special Revenue Fund.
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer
of State and the State Board of Deposit are gov-
erned by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135,
Ohio Revised Code, which requires state moneys to
be maintained in one of the following three classifi-
cations:

Active Deposits — Moneys required to be kept in a
cash or near-cash status to meet current demands.
Such moneys must be maintained either as cash in
the State’s treasury or in one of the following: a
commercial account that is payable or withdrawable,
in whole or in part, on demand, a negotiable order of
withdrawal account, a money market deposit ac-
count, or a designated warrant clearance account.

Inactive Deposits — Those moneys not required for
use within the current two-year period of designation
of depositories. Inactive moneys may be deposited
or invested only in certificates of deposit maturing
not later than the end of the current period of desig-
nation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those moneys not required for
immediate use, but needed before the end of the
current period of designation of depositories. Interim
deposits may be deposited or invested in the follow-
ing instruments:

. Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or
guaranteed by the United States, or those
for which the faith of the United States is
pledged for the payment of principal and in-
terest;

. Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obliga-
tions or securities issued by any federal
government agency, or the Export-Import
Bank of Washington;

e Repurchase agreements in the securities
enumerated above;

. Interim deposits in the eligible institutions
applying for interim moneys;

. Bonds and other obligations of the State of
Ohio;

e  The Treasurer of State’s investment pool;

. Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at
financial institutions that provide reduced-
rate loans to small businesses, as author-
ized under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised
Code;

50

e  Agricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate
deposits at financial institutions that provide
reduced-rate loans to agricultural busi-
nesses, as authorized under Section
135.74, Ohio Revised Code;

. Reverse repurchase agreements with any
eligible financial institution that is a member
of the Federal Reserve System or federal
home loan bank, or any recognized U.S.
government securities dealer;

e  Securities lending agreements with any
eligible financial institution that is a member
of the federal reserve system or federal
home loan bank, or any recognized U.S.
government securities dealer;

. Commercial paper, rated in one of the two
highest rating categories by two nationally
recognized rating agencies and not
exceeding five percent of the investment
portfolio;

. Bankers’ acceptances maturing in 270 days
or less and not exceeding 10 percent of the
investment portfolio;

e  Debt of domestic corporations and foreign
nations diplomatically recognized by the
United States, rated investment grade by
nationally recognized rating agencies and,
in the aggregate, not exceeding five per-
cent of the investment portfolio; and

. No-load money market funds consisting of
U.S. government and agency obligations
and repurchase agreements secured by
such obligations.

The primary government’s deposits must be held in
insured depositories approved by the State Board of
Deposit and must be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of
certain individual funds and component units are
established by Ohio Revised Code provisions other
than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust
agreements. In accordance with applicable statutory
authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement Sys-
tem Pension Trust Fund, the Tuition Trust Authority
Enterprise Fund, the Workers’ Compensation Enter-
prise Fund, the Retirement Systems Agency Fund,
and the higher education institutions may also invest
in common and preferred stocks, domestic and for-
eign corporate/government bonds and notes, mort-
gage loans, limited partnerships, venture capital,
real estate, and/or other investments.
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B. State-Sponsored Investment Pool

The Treasurer of State is the investment advisor and
administrator of the State Treasury Asset Reserve of
Ohio (STAROhiIo), a statewide external investment
pool authorized under Section 135.45, Ohio Revised
Code. STAROhio issues a stand-alone financial
report, copies of which may be obtained by making a
written request to: Director of Investments, Treas-
urer of State, 30 East Broad Street, 9" Floor, Co-
lumbus, Ohio 43266-0421, or by calling (614) 466-
2160.

C. Deposits

1. Primary Government

As of June 30, 2001, the carrying amount of depos-
its was (dollars in thousands) $1,015,152, and the
bank balance was $1,033,446. Of the bank balance,
$105,452 was fully insured or collateralized with se-
curities held by the primary government or its agent
in the primary government’s name (Category 1),
$897,191 was collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
its agent in the primary government’'s name (Cate-
gory 2), and $30,803, although meeting legal collat-
eralization requirements, was categorized as unin-
sured and uncollateralized (Category 3).

2. Component Units

As of June 30, 2001, the carrying amount of depos-
its was (dollars in thousands) $259,133, and the
bank balance was $384,940. Of the bank balance,
$55,118 was fully insured or collateralized with secu-
rities held by the respective component units or their
agents in the component unit's name (Category 1),
$287,332 was collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
its agent in the respective component unit's name
(Category 2), and $42,490, although meeting legal
collateralization requirements, was categorized as
uninsured and uncollateralized (Category 3).

D. Investments

The State categorizes investments to give an indica-
tion of the levels of credit risk associated with the
State’s custodial arrangements at year-end. Cate-
gory 1 includes investments that are insured, regis-
tered, or held by the State or its agent in the State’s
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregis-
tered investments held by the counterparty’s trust
department or its agent in the State’s name. Cate-
gory 3 includes uninsured and unregistered invest-
ments held by the counterparty, its trust department,
or its agent, but not in the State’s name.

Certain investments have not been categorized be-
cause the securities are not used as evidence of the

investment. These uncategorized investments in-
clude ownership in mutual funds, real estate, ven-
ture capital and limited partnerships, direct mortgage
loans, investment contracts, and the deposit with the
federal government. In conformity with Governmen-
tal Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 28,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Securities
Lending Transactions, securities lent at year-end for
cash collateral have not been categorized by custo-
dial credit risk, while securities lent for securities col-
lateral have been categorized.

The levels of credit risk assumed by the primary
government and its component units and the carry-
ing amount and fair value of investments, as of June
30, 2001, are detailed in the tables on the following

page.
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Primary Government
(dollars in thousands)
Total
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Fair Value
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations:
Not on Securities LOan .......cccooveveeeeeeeeeeeeenn. $ 31,312,927 $ — $ 7,088,689 $ 38,401,616
On Securities Loan...........c.ccuveeeeiiiiiiiieeeeeen, — — 254,543 254,543
Common and Preferred Stock....................... 48,590,158 — 4,707,447 53,297,605
Corporate Bonds and Notes:
Not on Securities Loan.............ccceeeeuuvveenen... 14,664,984 — 1,914,884 16,579,868
On Securities Loan...........c.couveeeeeiiiiiiieeeeeen, — — 167,035 167,035
Foreign Stocks and Bonds ............cccveeeeeeen.. 22,069,162 — 1,713,685 23,782,847
Commercial Paper.........ccceeeeieiiiiieeeeiieeene 2,346,919 613 1,678,411 4,025,943
Repurchase Agreements..............cccooeeeneen. 132,840 50,796 259 183,895
Securities Lending Collateral:
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations ...... 497,500 — 952,778 1,450,278
Repurchase Agreements..............cccoceeenenn. 2,802,648 — — 2,802,648
Common and Preferred Stock....................... — — 442 057 442 057
Corporate Bonds and Notes..............ccceeeeee. 499,993 — 575,587 1,075,580
Commercial Paper..........cccoecvieiiiieeiiiiieeeee 586,000 — — 586,000
$123,503,131 $51,409 $19,495,375 143,049,915
Investments Held by Broker-dealers under Securities Loans with Cash Collateral:
U.S. Government and Agency ObligatioNS...........coccuiiiiiiei i 6,130,611
CommoN and Preferr@d STOCK .........oooveeee e et e e e e e e e e e e e eaes 436,448
Corporate Bonds and NOTES .......cooiiieii e e a e e e e e e e ereeeeas 561,722
LAY LU (0 = I 0T Lo [N 5,790,823
Y= Ll =] =1 (T TOTRRR 13,367,281
V=T (U ST 07T o] - | U PSURRRTN 1,187,691
Limited PartnerShiPS........ . v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 247,483
DireCt MOrtgage LOBNS .......oeiiiiiiieeii ettt ettt e e s et s s e s 12,715
NV T (g 1= o1 O] o i r=Ted £ RS 4,348
Securities Lending Collateral — Mutual FUNAS ............cuviiiiiiiii et 904,647
Deposit with Federal GOVErNMMENT ... ... et e e e e e e e e eas 2,214,245
Component Units’ Equity in State Treasurer’'s Cash and Investment Pool
(including associated Collateral on Lent SECUNLIES)..........uueiiieeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeecceee e (1,038,995)
Component Units’ Equity in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROMIO) ........cccceeeneee. (315,315)
Total Investments — Primary GOVEINMENT ............eiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e $172,553,619
Component Units
(dollars in thousands)
Total
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Fair Value
U.S. Government & Agency Obligations ...... $339,791 $ 592,816 $368,543 $1,301,150
Common and Preferred Stock.............c.......... 303,735 939,295 28,178 1,271,208
Corporate Bonds and Notes..............cc.......... 196,570 142,723 36,584 375,877
Foreign Stocks and Bonds ............cccccceeeee. 21,430 — — 21,430
Repurchase Agreements............ccccvvvveeeennnn. — 170,645 261,258 431,903
Municipal Obligations .............cccceecciviiienneenn. 12 — 29 41
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit.................. 1,238 — 19,300 20,538
$862,776 $1,845,479 $713,892 3,422,147
LAY LU (0 = I U T Lo [N 678,593
Investment in State Treasurer’'s Cash and Investment Pool
(including associated Collateral on Lent SECUTties)........ccoicuiiiiiiiiiii i 1,038,995
Investment in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROIO) .........ccccvcvviiiiiiieeieeieiiineee. 315,315
[T Ll =] £ (TP 42,167
[ (Y L Fs 0 = T g [T TSR 12,579
Limited PartnerShiPS........ e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 9,046
NV E (1= o1 O] o i r=Tod €PN 227,183
Y (o] (o F=To [= TP PSP PRSP PP PRSP 470
Total Investments — CompPonent UNIS........oooiiiiiiiii e e e $5,746,495
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The total carrying amount of deposits and invest-

ments, as of June 30, 2001, reported for the primary

government and its component units is (dollars in
thousands) $179,226,823. The total carrying
amount of deposits and investments categorized
and disclosed in this note is $179,574,399. A rec-
onciliation of the difference follows.

Reconciliation of Deposits and Investments
Disclosure with Combined Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Deposits Investments Total

Cash Equity
with Treasurer
(unrestricted

and restricted).... $ 454,414 $ 6,431,785 $ 6,886,199

Cash and Cash
Equivalents
(unrestricted

and restricted).... 564,744 1,731,571

Collateral on

Lent Securities

(unrestricted

and restricted).... —
Deposit with

Federal

Government....... —

Restricted
Assets:

7,261,208

2,214,245

Investments..... — 194,784 194,784

Dedicated

Investments..... — 1,614,467

2,296,315
Investments ....... 9,168 158,750,437 158,759,605

7,261,208

2,214,245

1,614,467

Carrying Amount
per Combined

Balance Sheet... 1,028,326 178,198,497 179,226,823

Outstanding
Warrants and
Other Reconcil-

ing ltems ............ 245,959 101,617 347,576

Total Reporting

Entity................. $1,274,285 $178,300,114 $179,574,399

E. Securities Lending Transactions

The Treasurer of State and the Bureau of Workers’
Compensation (BWC) participate in securities lend-
ing programs for securities included in the “Cash
Equity with Treasurer,” “Investments,” and “Dedi-
cated Investments” accounts and the STAROhio

program. Each lending program is administered by

a custodial agent bank, whereby certain securities

are transferred to an independent broker-dealer

(borrower) in exchange for collateral. The State re-
quires its custodial agents to ensure that the State’s
lent securities are collateralized at no less than 102
percent of market value. Consequently, as of June

30, 2001, the State had no credit exposure since the
amount the State owed to borrowers exceeded the
amount borrowers owed the State.

For loan contracts the Treasurer executes, not more
than 10 percent of the State’s cash and investment
portfolio, which is reported as “Cash Equity with
Treasurer,” can be lent to a single broker-dealer.
For the STAROhio program, not more than 25 per-
cent of the STAROhio investment pool may be lent
at any one time, and not more than 10 percent of the
investment pool may be subject to term loans in ex-
cess of one business day.

The State cannot sell securities received as collat-
eral unless the borrower defaults. Consequently,
these amounts are not reflected in the financial
statements. The State invests cash collateral in
short-term obligations, which have a weighted aver-
age maturity of 45 days or less and generally match
the maturities of securities loans. Loan contracts do
not provide any loss indemnification by securities
lending agents in cases of borrower default; how-
ever, during fiscal year 2001, the State had not ex-
perienced any losses due to credit or market risk on
securities lending activities.

During the fiscal year, the Treasurer and the
STAROhio program lent U.S. government and
agency obligations in exchange for collateral
consisting of cash and/or other U.S. government
obligations. The BWC lent fixed maturities and
equity securities in exchange for cash, broker-
provided, and letters of credit collateral.

F. Derivatives

Derivatives are generally defined as a contract
whose value depends on, or derives, from the val-
ues of an underlying asset, reference rate, or index.

During fiscal year 2001, the Bureau of Workers’
Compensation Enterprise Fund held certain mort-
gage and asset-backed securities (included under
the “U.S. Government and Agency Obligations” in-
vestment type in the amount of approximately $6.0
billion at fair value, as of June 30, 2001), which the
fund classified as derivatives. The overall return or
yield on mortgage-backed securities depends on the
interest amount collected over the life of the security
and the change in the fair value. Although the Bu-
reau will receive the full principal amount, if prepaid,
the interest income that would have been collected
during the remaining period to maturity is lost. Ac-
cordingly, the yields and maturities of mortgage-
backed securities generally depend on when the
underlying mortgage loan principal and interest are
repaid. If the market rates fall below a mortgage
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NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

loan’s contractual rate, it is generally to the bor-
rower's advantage to repay the existing loan and
obtain new lower financing.

Through the use of international money managers,
the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation also entered
into various forward currency contracts to manage
exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on its foreign portfolio holdings. The interna-
tional money managers may also enter into foreign
currency exchange contracts to provide a quantity of
foreign currency needed at a future time at the cur-
rent exchange rates, if rates are expected to change
dramatically. A forward exchange contract is a
commitment to purchase or sell a foreign currency at
a future date at a negotiated rate. Risk associated
with such contracts includes movement in the value

NOTE 5 TAXES RECEIVABLE

of foreign currency relative to the U.S. dollar and the
ability of the counterparty to perform. The fair value
of the forward currency contracts payable by the
Bureau was $39 thousand, as of June 30, 2001.

Additionally, during the reporting period, the Public
Employees Retirement System, Police and Fire
Pension Fund, School Employees Retirement Sys-
tem, and the State Teachers Retirement System, the
investments of which are held in the Treasurer of
State’s custody and are reported in the Retirement
Systems Agency Fund, had investments in deriva-
tives and similar debt and investment transactions.
Specific information on the nature of the transactions
and the reasons for entering into them can be found
in each respective system’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report.

The following table provides a summary of taxes receivable for the primary government.

Primary Government
Taxes Receivable
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

INCOME TAXES ..cvviieiieeeee e
SAlES TAXES ..uuni ettt eaaa
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ..........cuueeeeieiieiiiieeeeeeeeeieeee e
Public Utility TaXeS ....ccuveiiiiieiii e
Unemployment TaXES.......cccvvveiiiiiieieiiiie e
(O] [T ol = D (T N

Total Taxes Receivable..............ceeeeieiiiiiieeieeeeiiieeeeee,

As of June 30, 2001, approximately $108.1 million of
the income taxes receivable balance is also reported
as deferred revenue on the balance sheet. Refund
liabilities for income and corporation franchise taxes,
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Special Trust and

General Revenue Agency Total
$ 385,008 $ 36,737 $ — $ 421,745
559,292 29,926 — 589,218
— 204,602 — 204,602
74,009 15,165 — 89,174
— — 136,476 136,476
— 2,347 — 2,347
$1,018,309 $288,777 $136,476 $1,443,562

totaling approximately $567.4 million, are reported
as “Refunds and Other Liabilities,” of which $497
million is reported in the General Fund and $70.4
million is reported in the Special Revenue Fund.
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NOTE 6 INTERGOVERNMENTAL, LOANS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A. Intergovernmental Receivables

Intergovernmental receivables for the primary government, as of June 30, 2001, consist of the following.

Primary Government

Intergovernmental Receivables

As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Special Internal Trust and
Type of Intergovernmental Receivable General Revenue Service Agency Total
Federal Receivable — Nonexchange Programs ... $430,079 $ 453,343 $ — $24 $ 883,446
Advances to Local Governments
— Nonexchange Programs........ccccccccvvvvvvennnnee, 71,584 228,695 — — 300,279
Local Government Receivable
— Exchange Transactions for the
Sale of State Goods and Services ................ 1,835 1,644 2,207 — 5,686
Total Intergovernmental Receivables .............. $503,498 $683,682 $2,207 $24  $1,189,411

B. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable (net of uncollectible amounts) for the primary government and its component units, as of June

30, 2001, consist of the following.

Primary Government
Loans Receivable
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Special Debt
Loan Program General Revenue Service Total

Primary, Secondary and Other Education:

School District Solvency Assistance..........cccccceveiiicieeiiiiennn. $ 8,175 $ — $ — $ 8,175

Vocational EQUCatioN ...........ccuveeeiiiiiiiceeee e 418 118 — 536

Wayne Trace Local School District.........ccccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 5,172 — — 5,172

Vocational School AssisStance ..........c.ccuueeeeeeiiiiieieeieeeieeeeee, — 9,518 — 9,518

Physician Loan Repayment..............coovviiiiiiiiieiiieinieieieiinnnns — 523 — 523

Nurses Education Assistance...........ccccceevvevevevveeeveveeeeeeererennnn, — 251 — 251
Total Primary, Secondary and Other Education........................ 13,765 10,410 — 24175
Community and Economic Development:

Office of Minority Financial Incentives ..............ccccccoeiiiiee. 2,250 — — 2,250

Rail Development .............uvuuiiiiiiiiii — 5,572 — 5,572

Local Government Y2K ASSIStance ...........ccceeeeveveiieiceeeeeeeene, 1,427 — — 1,427

Office of Business Development.............ccooecvvivieeeeeeccciiineen. — 275,939 — 275,939

Ohio Housing Finance AgenCy ..........ccveeeveeicciiieeee e — 191,065 — 191,065

Small Government Fire Departments .........ccccoccviiiiieeeniineenn, 365 — — 365
Total Community and Economic Development.............cc........... 4,042 472,576 — 476,618
Higher Education Research

INVEStMENt LOANS ......oveeiiiiieee e — — 2,571 2,571
Highway, Transit, and Aviation

Infrastructure Bank ...........oocuueeiiiiiiiiiee e — 46,899 — 46,899
Natural RESOUICES.......ooiiiiiiiie e — 287 — 287
Local Infrastructure Improvements............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiins — 198,000 — 198,000
Columbiana County Economic Stabilization..............c.....ceceeee 2,392 — — 2,392
State Workforce Development ............cccoevviiiiiiiiiiiecc e, 7,381 — — 7,381

Total Loans ReCeIVaDIE ..., $27,580 $728,172 $2,571 $758,323

55



STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001

NOTE 6 INTERGOVERNMENTAL, LOANS, AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Component Units
Loans Receivable
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Ohio
Water
Develop- Other Total
ment Ohio University Kent Com- Com-
Authority State of State ponent ponent
Loan Type (12/31/00)  University  Cincinnati  University Units Units
$2,171,815  § — $ — 3 — $ — $2,171,815
— 63,595 29,584 19,690 84,800 197,669
— — 641 — 1,683 2,324
$2,171,815 _ $63,595 $30,225 $19,690 $86,483 $2,371,808

C. Other Receivables

Other receivables for the primary government and its component units, as of June 30, 2001, are as follows.

Primary Government
Other Receivables
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Special Debt Capital Internal Trust and

Unrestricted: General Revenue Service Projects  Enterprise  Service Agency Total
Accounts Receivable....................... $ 2,584 $13,465 $ — $ — $164,825 $ 308 §$ —  $183,959
Interest and Dividends Receivable .. 8,184 8,205 696 1,974 119,363 175 18,327 156,924
Women, Infants and Children

Program Rebate Receivable ........ — 17,639 — — — — — 17,639
Health Facility

Bed Assessments Receivable...... — 13,052 — — — — — 13,052
Leases Receivable................ccuee. — — — — — 23,086 — 23,086
Receivables from

Lottery Sales Agents................... — — — — 37,237 — — 37,237
Claims & Settlements Receivable ... — — — — — — 20,242 20,242
Employer Interest and Penalties

on Unemployment Taxes ............. — 22,220 — — — — — 22,220
Refunds from Academic Grants

and Scholarships Programs ......... 185 — — — — — — 185
Variable College Savings Plan

Units SOId ..oovveeeieiiee e — — — — — — 3,360 3,360
Miscellaneous Receivables ............. — 521 — — 87 864 2,967 4,439

Total Unrestricted.................... 10,953 75,102 696 1,974 321,512 27,210 44,896 482,343

Restricted:

Interest Receivable ......................... — — — — 5,625 — — 5,625
Total Unrestricted and Restricted....  $10,953 $75,102 $696 $1,974  $327,137 $27,210 $44,896  $487,968
Component Units
Other Receivables
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Other Total
Ohio University Com- Com-
State of Ohio Miami ponent ponent
University Cincinnati  University  University Units Units

Accounts Receivable............cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiie s $305,527 $ 46,704 $23,059 $23,106  $123,521  $521,917
Interest Receivable............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 12,889 6,533 1,024 720 9,555 30,721
Pledges Receivable...........cccoouiiiiiiiiiiiiciiece e — 49,151 — 1,007 5,915 56,073
Miscellaneous Receivable ............cccoooeiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee. — 230 — — 6,694 6,924
Total Other ReCeiVabIES ............ccveveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $318,416  $102,618 $24,083 $24,833 $145,685 $615,635
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Under long-term direct financing leases with local
governments for office space, the Ohio Building Au-
thority, a blended component unit, charges a pro-
rata share of the buildings’ debt service and operat-
ing costs based on square-footage occupied.

Future lease payments included under “Other Re-
ceivables” in the Ohio Building Authority Internal
Service Fund, net of executory costs, are as follows

(dollars in thousands):

Leases

Year Ending June 30, Receivable

2002 ., $ 5,008

2003 ., 5,012

2004 ..., 5,037

2005 .., 4,187

2006 ..., 8,876

Thereafter........ooovvveeeeeiiiiiieeeeeeenn 7,793

Total minimum lease payments.................. 35,913

Amount representing interest...................... (12,827)
Present value of

net minimum lease payments................ $23,086

NOTE 7 INTERFUND AND INTRA-ENTITY BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund balances, as of June 30, 2001, and operating transfers, for the year ended June 30, 2001, are as follows

(dollars in thousands):

Due from Due to Advances Advances Operating Operating
Other Other to Other  from Other Transfers-  Transfers-
Fund Type/Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds In Out
General.............cccccooveeiiiiiiiie e $ 16,052 $ 36,899 $ — $ — $ 207,488 $1,061,119
Special Revenue:
Community and Economic Development.......... 2,696 721 — 190,858 41,284 12,377
Job, Family and Other Human Services ........... 92 474 — — 47,866 5,319
Health ..o 49 90 — — 10,322 429
Mental Health and Retardation ........................ 27 537 — — 2,700 —
Education........coooviiiiii e 119 154 — — 646,740 63,379
Highway Safety.........ccccovviiiiiieeeeee e 1,790 1,178 — — 175,101 10,075
Highway Operating ........cccoocoeeeiiiieeeiieeen, 2,579 282 20,000 — 552,392 217,055
Natural Resources ...........coooevveeeieiiiiiieeeeeeeeeene 349 81 — — 170 2,497
Wildlife and Waterways Safety............cccceeeneee. 137 2 — — 966 11
Revenue Distribution...........cccoooeiiiiiiiiiinns 8,468 53 — — 64,095 728,241
Local Infrastructure and
Transportation Improvements ........................ 459 7 — — 62,516 —
Tobacco Settlement ... 823 — — — — —
Arts Facilities Improvements...........ccccceeeieieennn.. 104 — — — 30,342 —
Sports Facilities Improvements...............c..c...... 60 — — — 24,087 —
Total Special Revenue Fund...................... 17,752 3,579 20,000 190,858 1,658,581 1,039,383
Debt Service:
Economic Development Revenue Bonds....... — — — — 15,818 —
Coal Research/Development
General Obligations...........cccoceiieeiiiiiiineen. — — — — 7,226 20
Improvements General Obligations................ 1 — — — — —
Development General Obligations ................. — — — — — 9
Highway General Obligations...............c........ 119 — — — — 35
Public Improvements General Obligations..... — — — — — 9
Local Infrastructure Improvements
General Obligations............ccccociiieiiiniiineen. — — — — 132,095 67
Higher Education Facilities
Special Obligations............cccccvevvieeeeeiicnnen. — — — — 325,135 —
Mental Health Facilities
Special Obligations............cccccvvveiriieeeeinneen. — — — — 55,131 —
Parks and Recreation Facilities
Special Obligations............ccccovveiriieeeeiinenn. — — — — 11,844 —
State Projects General Obligations................ — — — — 15,517 51
School Building Program Special Obligations — — — — 41,707 —
Highway Capital Improvements
General Obligations...........ccccceiieiiiinineen. 10 — — — 111,528 39
Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds.............. — — — — 11,277 —
Higher Education Capital Facilities
General Obligations...........ccccceeiieiiiiiiieee. — — — — 27,968 113
(Continued)
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Due from Due to Advances Advances Operating Operating
Other Other to Other  from Other Transfers- Transfers-
Fund Type/Fund Funds Funds Funds Funds In Out
Debt Service (continued):
Common Schools Capital Facilities
General Obligations...........cccoceiiieiiiiiiineen. — — — — 27,893 85
Ohio Building Authority Special Obligations... — — — — 279,839 4,209
Enterprise Revenue Bonds ..........cccccevvvvvnnnnns — — — — — 8,340
Total Debt Service Fund............ccccvvenneee. 130 — — — 1,062,978 12,977
Capital Projects:
Infrastructure Bank Obligations...................... 24 — — 20,000 — —
Higher Education Improvements................... 223 — — — — 587
Mental Health/Mental Retardation
Facilities Improvements............cccccccccceennnn. 14 — — — — —
Parks and Recreation Improvements............. 46 — — — — —
Ohio Building Authority...........cccccccviiieeieeenn, — — — — 7,126 239,887
Administrative Services
Building Improvements .............c.occciiieeee.n. 266 — — — 124,067 7,126
Youth Services Building Improvements.......... 83 22 — — 41,041 —
Transportation Building Improvements........... 1 — — — — —
Adult Correctional Building Improvements ..... 172 14 — — — —
Highway Safety Building Improvements......... 53 — — — 20,004 —
Ohio Parks and Natural Resources................ 24 — — — — —
Highway Capital Improvement ....................... 460 164 — — — —
Total Capital Projects Fund........................ 1,366 200 — 20,000 192,238 247,600
Enterprise:
Liquor Control..........ocueiiieiiiiiee e 7 2,473 — — — 121,261
Ohio Lottery Commission............ccccveeveeeeennne. — — — — — 637,036
Workers’ Compensation.............ccccceeevvreennee. — — — — — 6,795
Underground Parking Garage...............ccceeene — — — — — 773
Office of Auditor of State............ccccceeeeeeiennnee. 1,681 — — — 36,715 —
Total Enterprise Fund ...........cccccceiiiiiiis 1,688 2,473 — — 36,715 765,865
Internal Service:
Ohio Building Authority...........cccccccvviienieeiin, — — — — 29,857 31,779
Information Technology...........ccocceeiiiiiiniiies 14,163 2,828 — — — 5,000
Ohio Penal Industries..........ccccoovvvveeeeiiiiennnnnn. 17,670 1,159 — — 9,558 —
SUppPOrt SEIrVICES ... 5,070 38 — — — —
Total Internal Service Fund........................ 36,903 4,025 — — 39,415 36,779
Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation....................... — — — — — 33,692
Unclaimed Funds ...........ccooovveeeiiieiiiiceeeeeeeee, 516 — 190,858 — — —
Pension Trust:
State Highway Patrol............cccoceiiiiiiiiinnn. 3,078 — — — — —
Agency:
Holding and Distribution...............cocovviiviiiiinnis — 22,357 — — — —
Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits ........ 109 6,960 — — — —
Other..oveiiieii e 123 — — — — —
Total Trust and Agency Funds................... 3,826 29,317 190,858 — — 33,692
Total per Financial Statements —
Primary Government..........ccccccoveevicieeeneneenn. 77,717 76,493 210,858 210,858 3,197,415 3,197,415
Reconciliation for :
Timing Differences for Funds with
December 31, 2000 Year-Ends..................... (1,225) — — — — —
Rounding Differences..........ccccccceeveeiiivnnneen... 1 — — — — —
Reconciled Total for the Primary Government 76,493 76,493  $210,858 $210,858 $3,197,415 $3,197,415
Component Units:
Ohio State University ........cccccceeevevicivinieeeenn. 344,801 344,801
University of Cincinnati.............cccccceveeiiiinnns 271,725 271,725
Other Component Units ..o 106,027 106,027
Total per Financial Statements —
Component Units..........cccceeeiiiiiiiiiiieeeee 722,553 722,553
Total Reporting Entity ..................... $799,046 $799,046
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For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, the Debt
Service Fund reports residual equity transfers-out in
the amount of $23.9 million to the Special Revenue
Fund. The transfer of remaining assets resulted
when debt service activities for the Enterprise Bond
Program ceased upon the final retirement of this
program’s associated debt.

Additionally, the Capital Projects Fund reports $2.2
million in residual equity transfers-out. The transfer
represents capital contributions to the Internal Ser-
vice funds, as more detailed in NOTE 18.

Operating transfers from the General Fund and the
Special Revenue Fund to the School Facilities
Commission provided funding for capital construc-
tion at local school districts.

Operating transfers between the primary govern-
ment’s funds and the colleges and universities rep-
resent transfers of moneys from

e the General Fund for instructional and
non-instructional financial support, and

e the Capital Projects Fund for the funding
of capital facilities on a cost-reim-
bursement basis

Details of amounts transferred during the year
ended June 30, 2001 are presented below.

Intra-Entity Transfers
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Operating Operating
Operating Transfers Transfers
Transfers From the from the Total Transfers
from the Special Capital From the
General Revenue Projects Primary
Component Unit Fund Fund Fund Government
Governmental:
School Facilities Commission..............ceevvvvvvvvevnnnnn. $120,000 $138,063 $ — $258,063
College and University:
Ohio State University.........cccccceveeiieiiicciiiiee e 467,906 — 47,330 515,236
University of Cincinnati.............cccoovvievieiiieiiieeee. 199,780 — 46,128 245,908
Ohio UNIVETSItY ...cvveiiieeiiiiiiieieeee e 149,319 — 27,757 177,076
Miami University .........cccovvieeeiiiiieee e 87,857 — 23,090 110,947
University of AKroN............oooiiiiiiiiiee e 105,441 — 16,011 121,452
Bowling Green State University ............cocccoieeeenn. 89,263 — 13,418 102,681
Kent State University .........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiee. 124,671 — 16,394 141,065
University of Toledo........cccceveiiciiiiieciee e 88,590 — 4,980 93,570
Cleveland State University............ccccovvevieeeeeiiccnnnns 77,287 — 25,764 103,051
Youngstown State University............ccccocveeieeeeennnnns 48,429 — 3,927 52,356
Wright State University..........ccccccoeeiiiiiiiiieeecces 97,185 — 10,586 107,771
Shawnee State University...........c.cooccevivieeiieeeccnnns 16,294 — 483 16,777
Central State University .........cccccoiiiiiiiiiiiis 19,051 — 2,457 21,508
Medical College of Ohio.........cceeeeeiciiieiiiee e 38,836 — 3,774 42,610
Terra State Community College ..........c.cccccceeeeenns 7,098 — 511 7,609
Columbus State Community College....................... 41,372 — 2,620 43,992
Clark State Community College.........ccccccceeveeunnnenn. 7,525 — 342 7,867
Edison State Community College..........cccccvvveeeene.. 6,210 — — 6,210
Southern State Community College ........................ 4,485 — 502 4,987
Washington State Community College.................... 5,198 — 175 5,373
Cincinnati State Community College........................ 21,596 — 182 21,778
Northwest State Community College....................... 5,673 — 484 6,157
Owens State Community College............ccccceevnneeen. 35,651 — 1,219 36,870
Total College and University .................ccooocineee. 1,744,717 — 248,134 1,992,851
B ) - | $1,864,717 $138,063 $248,134 $2,250,914
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The following tables show fixed assets for the pri-
mary government and its component units by asset
category, as of June 30, 2001, and the changes in
the primary government’'s general fixed assets for

the year ended June 30, 2001. No projects were
under construction during fiscal year 2001 that re-
sulted in capitalized interest for the proprietary and
fiduciary fund types.

Primary Government
Fixed Assets
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

60

General Total
Internal Pension Fixed Primary
Enterprise Service Trust Assets Government
Land......cccoeeeeiiiee e $ 12,631 $ — $ — $ 234,180 $ 246,811
Buildings ......cccveveiiiieeeiiieeee 242,766 5,733 — 2,971,739 3,220,238
Land Improvements................... 66 771 — 185,542 186,379
Machinery and Equipment......... 113,153 81,594 305 256,155 451,207
State Vehicles..........cccceeeviieennn. 6,367 1,047 — 265,750 273,164
Construction-in-Progress........... 1,123 — — 291,793 292,916
Total Fixed Assets (at cost)....... 376,106 89,145 305 4,205,159 4,670,715
Accumulated Depreciation......... (182,716) (63,135) (134) — (245,985)
Total Fixed Assets (net)....... $ 193,390 $ 26,010 $171 $4,205,159 $4,424,730
Primary Government
Changes in General Fixed Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Beginning Deletions/
Balance Balance Net Balance
July 1, 2000 Adjustments Additions Transfers June 30, 2001
Land......ccooeeeiiiiee e $ 223,556 $ 25 $ 10,782 $ (183) $ 234,180
Buildings ......cccoveveiiiiieiiiiieeee 2,694,149 44,264 241,174 (7,848) 2,971,739
Land Improvements................... 165,090 6,720 15,296 (1,564) 185,542
Machinery and Equipment......... 258,690 (18,923) 27,799 (11,411) 256,155
State Vehicles.........cccceevvienns 256,300 (6,667) 34,422 (18,305) 265,750
Construction-in-Progress........... 560,445 (38,485) 145,127 (375,294) 291,793
Total General Fixed Assets... $4,158,230 $(13,066) $474,600 $(414,605) $4,205,159
Component Units
Fixed Assets
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Ohio State University Ohio Miami University
University of Cincinnati University University of Akron
Land.....coooeeiiiieeeee e $ 37,891 $ 17,912 $ 13,948 $ 2,294 $ 17,542
Buildings .......ccovvveiiiiiiiiiieeeee 1,906,065 974,861 371,504 353,681 38,102
Land Improvements................... 170,020 21,998 60,892 65,964 337,608
Machinery, Equipment,
and Vehicles........cccccoeveieeenns 681,674 222,532 102,666 106,957 102,710
Library Books and Publications 151,281 101,984 60,234 48,515 57,356
Construction-in-Progress........... 153,915 76,064 66,724 48,196 36,324
Total Fixed Assets (at cost)....... 3,100,846 1,415,351 675,968 625,607 589,642
Accumulated Depreciation......... — — — — —
Total Fixed Assets (net)....... $3,100,846 $1,415,351 $675,968 $625,607 $589,642
(Continued)
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Cleveland Other Total
Kent State University State Component Component
University of Toledo University Units Units
Land.....coooeeiiiiee e $ 7,697 $ 17,798 $ 52,026 $ 54,191 $ 221,299
Buildings .......ccoveveiiiiiiiiieeee 328,931 325,498 329,270 1,386,542 6,014,454
Land Improvements................... 45,649 37,430 14,934 97,972 852,467
Machinery, Equipment,
and Vehicles........ccccceveienenns 84,651 34,846 42,695 339,005 1,717,736
Library Books and Publications 51,407 21,172 51,799 80,130 623,878
Construction-in-Progress........... 19,392 11,186 — 77,232 489,033
Total Fixed Assets (at cost)....... 537,727 447,930 490,724 2,035,072 9,918,867
Accumulated Depreciation......... — — — (480) (480)
Total Fixed Assets (net)....... $537,727 $447,930 $490,724 $2,034,592 $9,918,387

NOTE 9 PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected
officials of the State, including its component units,
are eligible to be covered by one of the following
retirement plans:

Public Employees Retirement System
State Teachers Retirement System
State Highway Patrol Retirement System
Alternative Retirement Plan

A. Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

Pension Benefits
PERS is a cost-sharing, defined benefit multiple-
employer public employee retirement system.

PERS benefits are established under Chapter 145,
Ohio Revised Code. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiar-
ies.

Regular employees may retire after 30 years of cred-
ited service regardless of age, at age 55 or after with
25 years of credited service, or at age 60 or after
with five years of credited service. Regular employ-
ees retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of
service credit receive a percentage reduction in
benefit amounts. Law enforcement employees may
retire at age 52 with 25 or more years of credited
service, or, under qualifying circumstances, as early
as age 48.

Effective January 1, 2001, legislation established a
new class of law enforcement employees under the
plan to include sheriffs, deputy sheriffs, and town-
ship police officers. This class of employees may
retire with at least 25 years of service credit with full
benefits at age 48. PERS is developing contribution
rates and benefit structures that are separate and

distinct from those of other law enforcement em-
ployees.

The retirement allowance is based on years of cred-
ited service and the final average salary, which is
the average of the member’s three highest salary
years. The annual allowance for regular employees
is determined by multiplying the final average salary
by 2.2 percent for each year of Ohio contributing
service up to 30 years and by 2.5 percent for all
other years in excess of 30 years of credited service.
The annual allowance for law enforcement employ-
ees is determined by multiplying the final average
salary by 2.5 percent for the first 25 years of Ohio
contributing service, and by 2.1 percent for each
year of service over 25 years.

Employer and employee required contributions to
PERS are established under the Ohio Revised Code
and are based on percentages of covered employ-
ees’ gross salaries, which are calculated annually by
the retirement system’s actuaries. Contribution rates
for calendar year 2000 are as follows:

Contribution Rates
Employee  Employer

Share Share

January 1 through

June 30, 2000:
Regular Employees................. 8.50% 13.31%
Law Enforcement Employees.. 9.00 16.70
July 1 through

December 31, 2000:
Regular Employees................. 8.50% 7.99%
Law Enforcement Employees.. 9.00 14.70
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Employer contributions required and made for the
last three years follow (dollars in thousands).

Primary Government

Employer’'s
Employer’'s Contribution
Contribution for Law
For the Year Ended for Regular Enforcement
December 31, Employees Employees
2000 $159,528 $2,994
1999 221,791 3,094
1998 212,114 2,970
Component Units
Employer’s
Contribution
For the Year Ended for Regular
June 30, Employees
2001 $ 72,686
2000 101,154
1999 100,392

Recent legislation also grants PERS the authority to
establish a defined contribution plan as an alterna-
tive to the current defined benefit plan. PERS is cur-
rently developing such a plan, which is expected to
become operational sometime in calendar year
2002. Law enforcement employees will not be eligi-
ble to participate in the alternative plan, which will
cover classes of employees not currently eligible to
participate in the existing PERS alternative retire-
ment plan, as discussed further in Note 9D.

PERS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies
of which may be obtained by making a written re-
quest to: Public Employees Retirement System of
Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-2085 or 1-800-
222-PERS.

Other Postemployment Benefits

All age and service retirees with 10 or more years of
service credit qualify for healthcare coverage under
PERS. Healthcare coverage for disability recipients
and primary survivor recipients is also available.
Chapter 145, Ohio Revised Code, provides the
statutory authority for employer contributions. For
calendar year 2000, the portion of the employer rate
that is used to fund healthcare is 4.3 percent of cov-
ered payroll for law enforcement and regular em-
ployees. Employees do not fund any portion of
healthcare costs.

Benefits are advance-funded using the entry-age,
normal cost method. Significant actuarial assump-
tions, based on the latest actuarial review performed
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as of December 31, 1999, include a rate of return on
investments of 7.75 percent, an annual increase in
total payroll for active employees of 4.75 percent
compounded annually (assuming no change in the
number of active employees), and an additional in-
crease in total payroll of between .54 percent and
5.1 percent based on additional annual pay in-
creases. Healthcare premiums were assumed to
increase 4.75 percent annually.

Net assets available for payment of benefits at De-
cember 31, 1999 (the latest information available)
were $10.8 billion. The actuarially accrued liability
and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability were
$12.5 million and $1.7 billion, respectively. All in-
vestments are carried at market value. For the ac-
tuarial valuation of net assets available for future
healthcare benefits, PERS applies the smoothed
market approach. Under this approach, assets are
adjusted annually to reflect 25 percent of unrealized
market appreciation or depreciation on investments.

The State’s actuarially required and actual contribu-
tions for the PERS healthcare plan are as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Primary Government:
(for the year ended December 31, 2000)

Regular Employees ...........cccccenn...., $108,945
Law Enforcement Employees............ 1,133
Total c.evveeeece e $110,078
Component Units:
(for the year ended June 30, 2001)........ $ 49,022

The number of active contributing participants for the
primary government was 61,281, as of December
31, 2000.

B. State Teachers Retirement System (STRS)

Pension Benefits
STRS is a cost-sharing, defined benefit multiple-
employer public employee retirement system.

Participants in STRS, may retire after 30 years of
credited service regardless of age, or at or after age
55 with 25 years of credited service, or at or after
age 60 with five years of credited service. Members
retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years of ser-
vice credit receive a percentage reduction in benefit
amounts. Retirees are entitled to a maximum an-
nual retirement benefit, payable in monthly install-
ments for life, equal to the greater of the “formula
benefit” or the “money-purchase benefit” calculation.
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Under the “formula benefit” calculation, the retire-
ment allowance is based on years of credited ser-
vice and the final average salary, which is the aver-
age of the member’s three highest salary years.
The annual allowance is determined by multiplying
the final average salary by 2.5 percent for each year
of Ohio contributing service in excess of 30 years
and by 2.2 percent for all other years of credited
service up to a maximum annual allowance of 100
percent of final average salary. Each year over 30
years is increased incrementally by .1 percent start-
ing at 2.5 percent for the 31 year of Ohio service.
For teachers with 35 or more years of earned ser-
vice, the annual allowance is determined by multiply-
ing the final average salary by 2.5 percent for the
first 30 years of service.

Under the “money-purchase benefit” calculation, a
member’s lifetime contributions, plus interest at
specified rates, are matched by an equal amount
from contributed employer funds. This total is then
divided by an actuarially determined annuity factor to
determine the maximum annual retirement allow-
ance. Annually, after retirement, STRS benefits are
increased by the greater of the amount of the
change in the Consumer Price Index or the cumula-
tive increase in prior years, less previous cost-of-
living increases, up to a maximum of three percent.

A retiree of STRS or any other Ohio public retire-
ment system is eligible for re-employment as a
teacher after two months from the date of retirement.
Members and the employer make contributions dur-
ing the period of re-employment. Upon termination
or the retiree reaches the age of 65, whichever
comes later, the retiree is eligible for a money-
purchase benefit or a lump-sum payment in addition
to the original retirement allowance.

STRS also provides death, survivors’, disability,
healthcare, and supplemental benefits. STRS bene-
fits are established under Chapter 3307, Ohio Re-
vised Code.

Employer and employee required contributions to
STRS are established by the Board and limited un-
der the Ohio Revised Code to employer and em-
ployee rates of 14 percent and 10 percent, respec-
tively, and are based on percentages of covered
employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated an-
nually by the retirement system'’s actuary.

Contribution rates for fiscal year 2001 were 14 per-
cent for employers and 9.3 percent for employees.
For STRS, 9.5 percent of the employer rate is used
to fund pension obligations. The difference between
the total employer rate and the share used to fund

pension obligations is the percentage used to fund
the STRS healthcare program.

Employer contributions required and made for the
last three years are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended Primary Component
June 30, Government Units
2001 $5,177 $93,410
2000 3,028 59,841
1999 2,876 59,593

Recent legislation grants STRS the authority to es-
tablish a defined contribution plan as an alternative
to both the current defined benefit plan and the Al-
ternative Retirement Plan (See NOTE 9D). STRS is
currently developing such a plan, which is expected
to be operational by July 1, 2001.

STRS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies
of which may be obtained by making a written re-
quest to: State Teachers Retirement System of
Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-3771, or by calling (614) 227-4090.

Other Postemployment Benefits

The STRS plan provides comprehensive healthcare
benefits to retirees and their dependents. Retirees
are required to make healthcare premium payments
at amounts that vary according to each retiree’s
years of credited service and choice of healthcare
provider. Retirees must pay additional premiums for
covered spouses and dependents. Chapter 3307,
Ohio Revised Code, gives the STRS board discre-
tionary authority over how much, if any, of associ-
ated healthcare costs are absorbed by the plan.
Currently, employer contributions equal to 4.5 per-
cent of covered payroll are allocated to pay for
healthcare benefits.

The employer contribution is financed on a pay-as-
you-go basis. As of June 30, 2000 (the most recent
information available), net assets available for future
healthcare benefits were $3.4 billion. Net healthcare
costs paid by the primary government and its com-
ponent units, for the year ended June 30, 2001, to-
taled approximately $2.5 million and $42.5 million,
respectively. The number of eligible benefit recipi-
ents for STRS as a whole was 112,092, as of June
30, 2000; a breakout of the number of eligible recipi-
ents for the primary government and its component
units, as of June 30, 2001, is unavailable.

C. State Highway Patrol Retirement System
(SHPRS)

SHPRS, a component unit of the State, was estab-

lished in 1944 by the General Assembly as a single-
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employer, defined benefit pension plan and is ad-
ministered by the State.

The plan issues a stand-alone financial report that
includes financial statements and required supple-
mentary information, and the State reports the plan
as a pension trust fund. Copies of the financial re-
port may be obtained by writing to the Ohio State
Highway Patrol Retirement System, 6161 Busch
Boulevard, Suite 119, Columbus, Ohio 43229-2553,
or by calling (614) 466-2268.

SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Re-
vised Code, to provide retirement and disability
benefits to retired members and survivor benefits to
qualified dependents of deceased members of the
Ohio State Highway Patrol. Chapter 5505, Ohio Re-
vised Code, also requires contributions by active
members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol. The
employee contribution rate is established by the
General Assembly, and any change in the rate re-
quires legislative action. The SHPRS Retirement
Board establishes and certifies the employer contri-
bution rate to the State of Ohio every two years. By
law, the employer rate may not exceed three times
the employee contribution rate nor be less than the
employee’s contribution rate.

Contribution rates for calendar year 2000 are as fol-
lows:

Contribution Rates
Employee = Employer

Share Share
January 1 through
June 30, 2000.........cceeueee 10.00% 23.50%
July 1 through
December 31, 2000........... 9.50% 23.50%

During calendar year 2000, all of the employees’
contributions funded pension benefits while 18.75
percent of the employer’s contributions funded pen-
sion benefits. The difference in the total employer
rates charged and the employer rates applicable to
the funding of pension benefits is applied to the
funding of postemployment healthcare benefits.

SHPRS’s financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting, under which ex-
penses are recorded when the liability is incurred
and revenues are recorded when they are earned.

All investments are reported at fair value. Fair value
is, “the amount that the plan can reasonably expect
to receive for an investment in a current sale, be-
tween a willing buyer and a willing seller — that is,
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other than in a forced or liquidation sale.” Short-
term investments are reported at cost, which ap-
proximates fair value. Corporate bonds are valued
at the median price by the brokerage firms.

Securities traded on a national exchange are valued
at the last reported sales price at the current ex-
change rate. The fair value of real estate invest-
ments are based on the estimated current value and
on independent appraisals. For actuarial purposes,
assets are valued with a method that amortizes each
year’s investment gain or loss over a closed, four-
year period.

The employer's annual pension costs for the last
three calendar years are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):
Percentage of
Employer’s

Year Ended Primary Annual Pension

December 31, Government Cost Contributed
2000 $11,686 100%
1999 13,351 100
1998 13,060 100

SHPRS used the entry-age, normal actuarial cost
method for the Schedule of Funding Progress for the
actuarial valuation, dated December 31, 2000. As-
sumptions used in preparing the Schedule of Fund-
ing Progress and in determining the annual required
contribution include: an eight percent rate of return
on investments; projected salary increase of 4.5
percent attributable to inflation and additional pro-
jected salary increases ranging from .3 percent to
3.7 percent a year attributable to seniority and merit;
and postretirement increases each year equal to the
increase in the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed
three percent).

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being am-
ortized using the level-percentage of projected pay-
roll method over a closed period of eight years.

The Schedule of Funding Progress for the last three
years is presented in the table on the following page.
Amounts reported do not include assets or liabilities
for postemployment healthcare benefits.
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SHPRS Schedule of Funding Progress
Last Three Calendar Years

(dollars in thousands)

(A) (B) (&) (D) (E) (F) (G)
Unfunded UAAL as
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Ratio of Active Active Member
Valuation Accrued Valuation Liability (UAAL)  Assets to AAL Member Payroll
Year Liability (AAL) Assets (B)—(C) (C)/(B) Payroll (D)/(F)
2000 (a) $594,223 $570,040 $24,183 95.9% $69,028 35.0%
2000 607,411 570,040 37,371 93.8 69,028 54.1
1999 (b) 577,010 546,511 30,499 94.7 66,017 46.2
1999 564,673 546,511 18,162 96.8 66,017 27.5
1998 532,957 509,860 23,097 95.7 65,154 354

(a) Change in assumption or method.
(b) The plan was amended in 1999.

Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, SHPRS
pays health insurance claims on behalf of all per-
sons receiving a monthly pension or survivor benefit
and Medicare Part B basic premiums for those eligi-
ble benefit recipients upon proof of coverage. The
number of active contributing plan participants, as of
December 31, 2000, was 1,489. The cost of retiree
healthcare benefits is recognized as claims are in-
curred and premiums are paid. The calendar year
2000 expense was $4.6 million.

Healthcare benefits are established in Chapter 5505,
Ohio Revised Code, and are advance funded by the
employer on the same actuarially determined basis
(using the same assumptions) as are the SHPRS
pension benefits, as previously discussed. In addi-
tion, the assumption that projected healthcare pre-
miums would increase at a rate of 4.5 percent, com-
pounded annually, due to inflation was also used in
the valuation. Net assets available for benefits allo-
cated to healthcare costs at December 31, 2000
were $98.2 million, and included investments carried
at fair value, as previously described.

As of December 31, 2000, the actuarial accrued li-
ability for healthcare benefits, the portion of the pre-
sent value of plan promises to pay benefits in the
future that are not covered by future normal cost
contributions, was $124.9 million; the actuarial ac-
crued liability for healthcare benefits at that date was
$26.7 million.

Employer contributions are made in accordance with
actuarially determined requirements. The employer
contribution requirement was approximately $3 mil-
lion or 4.75 percent of active member payroll for the
period, January 1 through December 31, 2000.

D. Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP)

Pension Benefits

The ARP is a defined contribution retirement plan
that is authorized under Section 3305.02, Ohio Re-
vised Code. The ARP provides at least three or
more alternative retirement plans for academic and
administrative employees of Ohio’s institutions of
higher education, who otherwise would be covered
by STRS or PERS. Classified civil service employ-
ees are not eligible to participate in the ARP.

The Board of Trustees of each public institution of
higher education enters into contracts with each ap-
proved retirement plan provider. Once established,
full-time faculty and unclassified employees who are
hired subsequent to the establishment of the ARP,
or who had less than five years of service credit un-
der the existing retirement plans, may choose to en-
roll in the ARP. The choice is irrevocable for as long
as the employee remains continuously employed in
a position for which the ARP is available. For those
employees that choose to join the ARP, any prior
employee contributions that had been made to
STRS or PERS would be transferred to the ARP.
The Ohio Department of Insurance has designated
eight companies as being eligible to serve as plan
providers for the ARP.

Ohio law requires that employee contributions be
made to the ARP in an amount equal to those that
would otherwise have been required by the retire-
ment system that applies to the employee’s position.
Therefore, employees who would have otherwise
been enrolled in STRS or PERS would contribute
9.3 percent or 8.5 percent (9.0 percent for law en-
forcement employees) of their gross salaries’,
respectively. Employees may also voluntarily make
additional contributions to the ARP.
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Ohio law also requires each public institution of
higher education contribute 5.76 percent of a partici-
pating employee’s gross salary for the year ended
June 30, 2001 to STRS in cases when the employee
would have otherwise been enrolled in STRS.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, employers were
not required to contribute to the ARP on behalf of
employees that would otherwise have been enrolled
in PERS.

The employer contribution amount is subject to ac-
tuarial review every third year to determine if the rate
needs to be adjusted to mitigate any negative finan-
cial impact that the loss of contributions may have
on STRS and PERS. The Board of Trustees of each
public institution of higher education may also make

additional payments to the ARP based on the gross

NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The State has pledged its full faith and credit for the
payment of principal and interest on general obliga-
tion bonds accounted for and included with obliga-
tions in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

At various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 17 con-
stitutional amendments (the last adopted in Novem-
ber 2000 for land conservation purposes), have au-
thorized the incurrence of general obligation debt for
the construction and improvement of common
school and higher education facilities, highways,
local infrastructure improvements, research and de-
velopment of coal technology, and natural re-
sources. In practice, general obligation bonds are
retired over periods of 10 to 25 years.

A 1999 constitutional amendment provided for the
issuance of Common Schools Capital Facilities
Bonds and Higher Education Capital Facilities
Bonds. As of June 30, 2001, the General Assembly
had authorized the issuance of $1.25 billion in
Common Schools Capital Facilities Bonds, of which
$340 million had been issued and $313.2 million
was outstanding. As of June 30, 2001, the General
Assembly had also authorized the issuance of $1.21
billion in Higher Education Capital Facilities Bonds,
of which $450 million had been issued and $427.7
million was outstanding.

Through approval of the November 1995 amend-
ment, voters authorized the issuance of Highway
Capital Improvements Bonds in amounts up to $220
million in any fiscal year (plus any prior fiscal years’
principal amounts not issued under the new authori-
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salaries of employees multiplied by a percentage the
respective Board of Trustees approves.

The ARP provides full and immediate vesting of all
contributions made on behalf of participants. The
contributions are directed to one of the eight invest-
ment management companies as chosen by the par-
ticipants. The ARP does not provide disability bene-
fits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement
health care benefits, or death benefits. Benefits are
entirely dependent on the sum of the contributions
and related investment income generated by each
participant’s choice of investment options.

Employer and employee contributions required and
paid for the year ended June 30, 2001 totaled $48.1
million and $35.5 million, respectively.

zation), with no more than $1.2 billion outstanding at
any time. As of June 30, 2001, the General Assem-
bly had authorized the issuance of approximately
$1.1 billion in Highway Capital Improvements Bonds,
of which $1.0 billion had been issued and $802.5
million was outstanding.

A 1987 constitutional amendment provided for the
issuance of $1.2 billion of general obligation bonds
for infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure
Bonds), of which no more than $120 million may be
issued in any calendar year. As of June 30, 2001,
the General Assembly had authorized $1.2 billion of
these bonds to be sold, of which approximately $1.2
billion had been issued and $874.1 million (net of
unaccreted discount of $105.5 million on deep-
discount bonds issued) was outstanding. In No-
vember 1995, voters approved another constitutional
amendment that provided for the issuance of an ad-
ditional $1.2 billion of Infrastructure Bonds, of which
no more than $120 million (plus any prior years’
principal amounts not issued under the new authori-
zation) may be sold in any state fiscal year. As of
June 30, 2001, the General Assembly had author-
ized $600 million in Infrastructure Bonds to be is-
sued under the provisions of the 1995 constitutional
amendment, of which $360 million had been issued
and $334.8 million was outstanding.

A 1968 constitutional amendment authorized the
issuance of Highway Obligations in amounts up to
$100 million in any calendar year, with no more than
$500 million in principal amount outstanding at any
one time. The aggregate of General Assembly au-
thorizations, as of June 30, 2001, for Highway
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Obligations, was approximately $1.75 billion, all of
which had been issued and $130.5 million was out-
standing.

Coal Research and Development Bonds and Parks,
Recreation, and Natural Resources Bonds may be
issued as long as the outstanding principal amounts
do not exceed $100 and $200 million, respectively.
As of June 30, 2001, the General Assembly had au-
thorized the issuance of $150 million in Coal Re-
search and Development Bonds, of which $107 mil-
lion had been issued and $25.4 million was out-
standing. Legislative authorizations for the issuance
of Natural Resources Bonds totaled $272 million, as
of June 30, 2001, of which $160 million had been
issued and $125.8 million was outstanding.

General obligation bonds outstanding and bonds
authorized but unissued, as of June 30, 2001, are
presented in the table below.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes changes in general obligation bonds re-
ported in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

Future general obligation debt service requirements,
as of June 30, 2001, are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2002.......... $ 279,100 $ 141,082 $ 420,182
2003.......... 282,915 127,860 410,775
2004.......... 274,610 115,565 390,175
2005.......... 244,330 103,657 347,987
2006.......... 231,580 93,047 324,627
Thereafter. 1,827,010 470,859 2,297,869
3,139,545 1,052,070 4,191,615
Unaccreted
Discount.... (105,508) — (105,508)
Total.......... $3,034,037 $1,052,070 $4,086,107

In prior years, the Treasurer of State defeased cer-
tain Infrastructure Improvement Bonds by placing
the proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to
provide for all future debt service payments on the
old bonds. Accordingly, the various trust accounts’
assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not
included in the State’s financial statements. As of
June 30, 2001, $62.9 million of Infrastructure Im-
provement Bonds are considered defeased and no
longer outstanding.

Primary Government
General Obligation Bonds

As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Average

Fiscal Net Maturing Authorized

Years Interest Through Outstanding But
Description of General Obligation Bond Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance Unissued
Common Schools Capital Facilities............ 2000-01 4.5%-5.4% 2020 $ 313,195 $ 910,000
Higher Education Capital Facilities............. 2000-01 4.8%-5.4% 2021 427,680 761,310
Highway Capital Improvements................. 1997-01 4.1%-5.0% 2011 802,500 92,500
Infrastructure Improvements...................... 1990-01 4.2%-7.6%* 2020 1,208,952 240,014
Highway Obligations..............ccccceiiiiinenne 1993-97 4.5%-4.8% 2005 130,500 —
Coal Research and Development.............. 1992-00 4.5%-5.6% 2010 25,400 43,000
Natural Resources...........ccccceeeeeeiiiiieeeeenn, 1995-00 4.5%-5.6% 2015 125,810 112,000
Total General Obligation Bonds............ $3,034,037  $2,158,824

*Coupon rates

NOTE 11 REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES

The State Constitution permits state agencies and
authorities to issue bonds that are not supported by
the full faith and credit of the State. These bonds
pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on
the acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt

service. Issuers for the primary government include
the Ohio Building Authority (OBA), which has issued
revenue bonds on its own behalf and for the Ohio
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation, the Treasurer of
State for the Ohio Department of Development's
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Office of Business Development, and the Depart-
ment of Transportation. Major issuers for the State’s
component units include the Ohio Water Develop-
ment Authority, the Ohio State University, the Uni-
versity of Cincinnati, and Kent State University.

A. Primary Government

Revenue bonds accounted for in the Enterprise
Fund finance the costs of the William Green Build-
ing, which houses the main operations of the Ohio
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation in Columbus.

OBA revenue bonds reported in the Internal Service
Fund finance the costs of office buildings and related
facilities for shared use by local governments. The
principal and interest requirements on these bonds
are paid from rentals received under the long-term
lease agreements discussed in NOTE 6.

Economic development bonds, issued by the Treas-
urer of State for the Office of Business Develop-
ment’s Direct Loan Program, provide financing for
loans and loan guarantees to businesses within the
State for economic development projects that create
or retain jobs in the State. The taxable bonds are
backed with profits derived from the sale of spiritu-
ous liquor by the Division of Liquor Control and
pledged moneys and related investment earnings
held in reserve under a trust agreement with a finan-
cial institution.

As of June 30, 2001, approximately $149.8 million in
economic development bonds payable from liquor
profits were outstanding.

In fiscal years 1998 and 2000, the Treasurer of State
issued a total of $90 million in State Infrastructure
Bank Bonds for the Department of Transportation, of
which $69 million was outstanding, as of June 30,
2001. The bonds finance construction costs of the
Spring-Sandusky Highway Project in Columbus.
The State has pledged federal highway receipts as
the primary source of moneys for meeting the princi-
pal and interest requirements on the bonds.

Revenue bonds outstanding for the primary govern-
ment, as of June 30, 2001, are presented in the ta-
ble below.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes changes in revenue bonds reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds
of the primary government, as of June 30, 2001, are
as follows (dollars in thousands):

Enterprise Fund

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2002............ $ 9,000 $ 8,571 $ 17,571
2003 ............ 10,000 8,175 18,175
2004 ............ 11,000 7,734 18,734
2005............ 12,000 7,240 19,240
2006............ 13,000 6,688 19,688
Thereafter.... 124,255 27,390 151,645
179,255 65,798 245,053
Unamortized
Discount...... (1,783) — (1,783)
Total ............ $177,472 $65,798  $243,270

Primary Government
Revenue Bonds
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Maturing
Year Interest Through Outstanding
Description of Revenue Bond Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance
Enterprise:
Ohio Building Authority/
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation ............cccccoeeeeiiineen. 1994 3.3%-5.1% 2014 $177,472
Internal Service:
Ohio Building AUhOTitY .......c.ccviiiiiiiieiie e 1986-97 4.5%-9.8% 2008 25,646
General Long-Term Obligations:
Treasurer of State:
Economic Development ... 1997 6.6%-7.7% 2022 149,820
State Infrastructure Bank ........ccccoooeveveiiiiiii 1998-00 4.3%-5.0% 2009 69,080
Total General Long-Term Obligations.............ccccccceeee.. 218,900
Total Revenue BoNdS.......ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $422,018
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Internal Service Fund

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2002 ............ $ 3,359 $1,565 $ 4,924
2003 ............ 3,531 1,394 4,925
2004 ............ 3,730 1,196 4,926
2005 ............ 3,888 2,446 6,334
2006 ............ 4,320 2,079 6,399
Thereafter.... 7,146 433 7,579
25,974 9,113 35,087
Unamortized
Discount....... (328) — (328)
Total ............ $25,646 $9,113 $34,759
General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2002 ............ $ 13,250 $ 14,294 $§ 27,544
2003 ............ 14,005 13,538 27,543
2004 ............ 14,790 12,735 27,525
2005 ............ 15,655 11,874 27,529
2006 ............ 17,590 10,953 28,543
Thereafter.... 143,610 84,133 227,743
Total ............ $218,900 $147,527 $366,427

In December 1998, the Treasurer of State entered
into a forward purchase refunding agreement to ad-
vance refund approximately $102 million in Series
1996 Taxable Development Assistance Bonds on
October 1, 2006. Under the terms of the bond pur-
chase agreement, the underwriter has agreed to
purchase approximately $102 million in Series 1998
Taxable Development Assistance Refunding Bonds
and deliver to the escrow agent on or before August
25, 2006 cash and/or direct U.S. government obliga-
tions sufficient to provide for the redemption of the
refunded bonds on October 1, 2006. Because the
State has not taken delivery of the proceeds from
the issuance of the Series 1998 Taxable Develop-
ment Assistance Refunding Bonds, as of June 30,
2001, no obligation for the refunding bonds has
been included in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group.

B. Component Units

Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) bonds
and notes provide financing to local government
authorities (LGA) in the State of Ohio for the acquisi-
tion, construction, maintenance, repair, and opera-
tion of water development projects and solid waste
projects, including the construction of sewage and
related water treatment facilities. The principal and
interest requirements on OWDA obligations are
generally paid from investment earnings, federal
funds and/or repayments of loan principal and inter-
est thereon from the LGAs.

A portion of OWDA'’s outstanding bonds has been
issued for the Water Pollution Control Loan Pro-
gram, which provides low-cost financing to LGAs for
the construction of wastewater treatment facilities.
In the event pledged program revenues, which con-
sist of interest payments from the LGAs as reim-
bursement for construction costs, are not sufficient
to meet debt service requirements for the bonds, the
General Assembly may appropriate moneys for the
full replenishment of a bond reserve. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2000, approximately $593 million in bonds
were outstanding for this program.

Future bond service requirements for the Water Pol-
lution Control Loan Program revenue bonds, as of
December 31, 2000, are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Year Ending

December 31, Principal Interest Total

240 [0 1 I $ 25200 $ 31,245 $ 56,445

2002....ceeeeeeiinnn. 30,440 29,904 60,344

2003....cceeeeeenn. 31,950 28,252 60,202

2004 .....coeeeenn. 33,175 26,441 59,616

2005....ccccieiiiinnnn. 34,405 24,554 58,959
Thereafter............... 436,160 139,639 575,799

591,330 280,035 871,365
Net Unamortized
Premium ................. 1,708 — 1,708

Total......cccoeiiee $593,038  $280,035  $873,073

Generally, bonds and notes issued by the state uni-
versities and state community colleges are payable
from the institutions’ available receipts, including
student fees, rental income, and gifts and donations,
as may be provided for in the respective bond pro-
ceedings, for the construction of residence educa-
tional facilities and auxiliary facilities such as dining
halls, hospitals, parking facilities, bookstores, and
athletic facilities.

Except as previously discussed with respect to
OWDA’s Water Pollution Control Loan Program
bonds, the State is not obligated in any manner for
the debt of its component units.

Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds
and notes reported in the component unit funds, as
of June 30, 2001, are presented in the table on the
following page.
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Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Ohio Water Development Authority

(12/31/00) Ohio State University University of Cincinnati
Year Ending
December 31 or June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2007 ., $ 100,970 $ 72,903 $ 173,873
104,495 68,537 173,032  $ 94,596 $ 14,941 $109,537 $ 66,816 $ 22,810 $ 89,626
96,575 63,678 160,253 9,246 13,082 22,328 14,230 19,217 33,447
97,285 58,668 155,953 9,518 12,059 21,577 13,136 18,561 31,697
96,865 53,600 150,465 10,020 11,051 21,071 14,921 17,925 32,846
— — — 8,623 10,086 18,709 17,031 17,157 34,188
922,455 298,426 1,220,881 263,147 85,349 348,496 308,550 179,302 487,852
1,418,645 615,812 2,034,457 395,150 146,568 541,718 434,684 274,972 709,656
Net Unamortized
Premium/(Discount)........ (16,437) — (16,437) — — — — — —
Unamortized Loss .......... (4,066) — (4,066) — — — — — —
Total .o, $1,398,142 $615,812 $2,013,954 $395,150 $146,568 $541,718 $434,684 $274,972 $709,656
Kent State University Other Component Units Total Component Units
Year Ending
December 31 or June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
$ 100,970 $ 72,903 $ 173,873
$ 2420 $ 11,160 $ 13,580 $ 32,740 $ 30,260 $ 63,000 301,067 147,708 448,775
3,980 11,047 15,027 29,282 28,763 58,045 153,313 135,787 289,100
1,815 10,927 12,742 31,304 27,369 58,673 153,058 127,584 280,642
1,860 10,841 12,701 29,778 25,902 55,680 153,444 119,319 272,763
1,715 10,751 12,466 27,727 24,434 52,161 55,096 62,428 117,524
209,000 164,941 373,941 452,132 225,219 677,351 2,155,284 953,237 3,108,521
220,790 219,667 440,457 602,963 361,947 964,910 3,072,232 1,618,966 4,691,198
Net Unamortized
Premium/(Discount)........ — — — 1,378 — 1,378 (15,059) — (15,059)
Unamortized Loss .......... — — — — — — (4,066) — (4,066)
Total.ooeeeieieec $220,790 $219,667 $440,457 $604,341 $361,947 $966,288 $3,053,107 $1,618,966 $4,672,073

NOTE 12 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The Ohio Building Authority (OBA) and the Treas-
urer of State issue special obligation bonds reported
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

OBA bonds finance the capital costs of categories of
facilities including correctional facilities and office
buildings for state departments and agencies and, in
some cases, related facilities for local governments.

Under the authority of Chapter 154, Ohio Revised
Code, the Treasurer of State is the issuer of special
obligation bonds that finance the cost of capital
facilities for state-supported institutions of higher
education, mental health and retardation institutions,
and parks and recreation. Prior to September 14,
2000, when House Bill 640 became effective and
reassigned the issuing authority for these obligations
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to the Treasurer of State, the Ohio Public Facilities
Commission issued the Chapter 154 bonds.

Elementary and Secondary Education Bonds, which
the Treasurer of State issued for the Department of
Education, finance the construction costs of capital
facilities for local school districts.

The State reports OBA bonds issued for capital pro-
jects that benefit state agencies as special obligation
bonds, while OBA bonds issued to finance the costs
of local government facilities are reported as reve-
nue bonds (See NOTE 11).

Pledges of lease rental payments from appropria-
tions made to the General Fund and the Highway
Safety and Highway Operating Special Revenue
funds, moneys held by trustees pursuant to related
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trust agreements, and other receipts, as required by
the respective bond documents, secure the special
obligation bonds.

Special obligation bonds outstanding and bonds au-
thorized but unissued, as of June 30, 2001, are pre-
sented in the table below.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes changes in special obligation bonds re-
ported in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

Future special obligation debt service requirements,
as of June 30, 2001, are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

In April 2001, the Treasurer issued $472.4 million in
special obligations to advance refund $471.8 million
in outstanding Chapter 154 bonds. From the net
proceeds of $504.8 million of the advance refunding,
approximately $500 million was deposited in an ir-
revocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the refunded bonds. The Treasurer
advance refunded the bonds to reduce total debt
service payments by $12.2 million and to obtain an
economic gain of $14.5 million.

In prior years, the OBA and the Treasurer of State
defeased certain bond issues by placing the pro-
ceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide
for all future debt service payments on the old
bonds. Accordingly, the various trust accounts’ as-
sets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not

Year Ending o included in the State’s financial statements. As of
June 30, Principal Interest Total June 30, 2001, $637.3 million of special obligation
2002 ... $ 469,186 $ 233,652 $ 702,838 bonds are considered defeased and no longer out-
2003.............. 459,419 209,702 669,121 standing.
2004 .............. 457,885 187,000 644,885
2005.............. 435,672 172,534 608,206
2006.............. 424,979 149,961 574,940
Thereafter...... 2,496,914 553,493 3,050,407
Total .............. $4,744,055 $1,506,342 $6,250,397
Primary Government
Special Obligation Bonds
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Maturing Authorized
Years Interest Through Outstanding But
Issuer Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance Unissued
Ohio Building Authority.........ccccccevivennnnns 1986-01 3.1%-9.8% 2021 $2,436,380 $685,910
Treasurer of State:
Chapter 154 Bonds:
Higher Education Facilities................ 1992-01 4.3%-6.1%* 2014 1,732,395 —
Mental Health Facilities...................... 1992-01 4.1%-6.0%* 2015 280,400 133,915
Parks and Recreation Facilities......... 1993-01 4.0%-5.5%* 2016 100,235 51,100
Elementary and Secondary Education ... 1996-99 3.7%-5.8% 2008 194,645 —
Total Special Obligation Bonds............. $4,744,055 $870,925

*Average effective interest rates

NOTE 13 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

As of June 30, 2001, approximately $12.3 million in
certificate of participation (COP) obligations were
reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

In fiscal year 1992, the Department of Transporta-
tion participated in the issuance of $8.7 million of
COP obligations to finance the acquisition of the
Panhandle Rail Line Project. During fiscal year

1996, the Department also participated in the issu-
ance of $10 million in COP obligations to finance
state assistance to the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority for a share of the Cleveland Water-
front Transit Line Project’s construction cost, and
$10.2 million in obligations to provide assistance to
the Rickenbacker Port Authority for facility improve-
ments at the Rickenbacker International Airport in
Franklin and Pickaway counties.
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Primary Government
Certificate of Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Maturing
Year Interest Through Outstanding
Project Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance
General Long-Term Obligations:
Department of Transportation:
Panhandle Rail Line Project............ccccoeecvivieieeeiiecnnns 1992 6.2%-6.5% 2012 $ 6,245
Waterfront Transit Line Project..........cccccceveeeiiiiiiinnenn... 1996 4.7%-4.8% 2003 3,315
Rickenbacker Port Authority Improvements .................. 1996 6.1% 2007 2,745
Tt e $12,305
Under the COP financing arrangements, the State is General Long-Term Obligations
required to make rental payments from the . Account Group
Transportation Certificates of Participation Debt Year Ending o
Service Fund and the General Fund (subject to June 30, Principal Interest Total
biennial appropriations) that approximate the interest 2002 ........... $ 2,405 $ 685 $ 3,090
and principal payments made by trustees to 2003 ........... 2,530 558 3,088
certificate holders. 2004 ........... 890 465 1,355
2005 ........... 945 408 1,353
Obligations outstanding for the primary government %gg?eéf'{é}'"' lggg 1 ?gg ;ggg
under COP financing arrangements, as of June 30 ’ ’ ’
’ ’ Total ........... $12,305 $3,600 $15,905

2001, are presented in the table above.

For the year ended June 30, 2001, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes changes in COP obligations reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

As of June 30, 2001, the primary government’s fu-
ture commitments under the COP financing ar-
rangements are as follows (dollars in thousands):

For the State’s component units, approximately
$11.1 million in COP obligations are reported in the
College and University Funds. The obligations fi-
nance building construction costs at the Ohio State
University and University of Cincinnati.

As of June 30, 2001, future commitments under the
COP financing arrangements for the State’s compo-
nent units are detailed in the table below.

Component Units
Future Funding Requirements
for Certificate of Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Ohio State University University of Cincinnati

Total Component Units

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2002 .....cccueeneen. $ 870 $ 437 $ 1,307 $ 250 $ 75 $ 325 $ 1,120 $ 512 $ 1,632
2003 ..o 925 401 1,326 250 63 313 1,175 464 1,639
2004 ................ 980 361 1,341 90 51 141 1,070 412 1,482
2005 ......ccueeee 720 321 1,041 90 46 136 810 367 1,177
2006 ................ 355 293 648 90 41 131 445 334 779
Thereafter........ 5,825 1,911 7,736 660 146 806 6,485 2,057 8,542
Total..cooeeeeenen $9,675 $3,724  $13,399 $1,430 $ 422 $1,852 $11,105 $4,146  $15,251
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As of June 30, 2001, other general long-term obliga-
tions of the State reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Compensated Absences (A.)................ $332,413
Lease Agreements (B.) ......ccccceeeiinnnnnn 4,721
Judgments, Settlements,
and Claims (C.)...coovvveeeviiieeeiieeens 65,347
Litigation Liabilities (C.)......cccceeveennnnnen. 20,000
Workers’ Compensation Obligation (D.) 559,300
Total Other General
Long-Term Obligations...................... $981,781

For the year ended June 30, 2001, NOTE 15 sum-
marizes the changes in other general long-term obli-
gations reported in the General Long-Term Obliga-
tions Account Group.

A. Compensated Absences

To lessen the impact of terminal leave pay on a
given state agency’s budget, an accrued leave fund-
ing program was instituted by law in 1982. State
agencies must contribute a percentage of their gross
payroll to a common pool of resources from which
terminal leave expenditures/expenses are paid. The
amount of cash equity with Treasurer and related
interest receivable available to satisfy terminal pay
claims at June 30, 2001 was approximately $24.7
million. These and related assets are reported as
part of the Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits
Agency Fund.

The compensated absence liability for the primary
government’s proprietary funds is reported net of the
funds’ portion of accrued leave funding and is in-
cluded in “Accrued Liabilities.” The compensated
absence liability for the primary government’'s gov-
ernmental funds is also reported net of the funds’
portion of the accrued leave funding and is reported
as part of the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group.

For the primary government, the gross compensated
absences liability, as of June 30, 2001, was $395
million, of which $40.4 million is allocable to the pro-
prietary funds and $354.6 million is allocable to the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
The net (after reduction of the $24.7 million) com-
pensated absence liability, as of June 30, 2001, was
$370.3 million, of which $37.9 million is reported in
the proprietary funds and $332.4 million is reported
in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group.

For the State’s component units, the compensated
absences liability, as of June 30, 2001, in the

amount of $212.7 million is included in “Accrued Li-
abilities.”

B. Lease Agreements

The State’s primary government leases office build-
ings and office and computer equipment. Although
the lease terms vary, most leases are renewable
subject to biennial appropriations by the General
Assembly. If the likelihood of the exercise of a fiscal
funding clause in the lease agreement is, in the
management’s judgment, remote, then the lease is
considered noncancelable for financial reporting
purposes and is reported as a fund expendi-
ture/expense for operating leases or in the General
Long-Term Obligations Account Group or appropri-
ate proprietary fund type for capital leases.

Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued
at the lower of fair value or the present value of the
future minimum lease payments at the lease’s incep-
tion. The noncurrent portion of capital lease obliga-
tions for the proprietary fund types are reported in
those funds as long-term obligations. The related
assets and depreciation of these assets are included
in the proprietary funds. Capital lease obligations for
the governmental fund types are reported in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group and
the related assets are reported in the General Fixed
Assets Account Group.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in
the combined balance sheet) contain various re-
newal options as well as some purchase options.

Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and con-
tingent rents are considered immaterial to the future
minimum lease payments and current rental expen-
ditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as
expenditures or expenses of the related funds when
paid or incurred.

The primary government’s total operating lease ex-
penditures/expenses for fiscal year 2001 were ap-
proximately $92.5 million.

Future minimum lease commitments for operating
leases and capital leases judged to be noncancel-
able, as of June 30, 2001, are as follows (dollars in

thousands):
Primary Government

Operating

Year Ending June 30, Leases
2002 $6,222
2003 .. 3,091
2004 ... 106
Total minimum lease payments................... $9,419
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Capital Leases

General

Year Ending Enterprise Long-Term

June 30, Funds Obligations Total
2002 ............ $191 $2,145 $2,336
2003 ............ 15 1,631 1,646
2004 ............ — 871 871
2005 ............ — 396 396
2006 ............ — 120 120
Thereafter.... — 101 101

Total minimum

lease payments 206 5,264 5,470

Amount

representing

interest ............. (7) (543) (550)

Present value

of net minimum

lease payments $199 $4,721 $4,920

As of June 30, 2001, the primary government had
the following fixed assets (net of accumulated de-
preciation for proprietary funds) under capital leases,
which are reported under “Accrued Liabilities” in the
proprietary funds (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government

Amortization expense for the proprietary funds is
included with depreciation expense.

For the component units, capital lease obligations
are included under the “Accrued Liabilities” account.
Future minimum lease commitments for capital
leases judged to be noncancelable and fixed assets
under capital leases for the component unit funds,
as of June 30, 2001, are presented in the table be-
low.

C. Judgments, Settlements, and
Claims/Litigation Liabilities

The Ohio Department of Education has been in-
volved with several school desegregation court
cases filed against the State by various local boards
of education. In cases when the judgment went
against the State, the courts decided the State was
responsible for sharing in all past and future deseg-
regation costs. As of June 30, 2001, the State was
responsible for an estimated $32.5 million liability for
past desegregation costs, which is recorded in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group until
such time that it becomes payable from the General
Fund.

General
Enterprise Fixed
Fund Assets Total
Equipment.... $177 $8,565 $8,742
Vehicles........ — 112 112
Total.............. $177 $8,677 $8,854

Component Units

Future Funding Requirements for Capital Lease Obligations

and Fixed Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases
As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
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Kent Other Total
Ohio State University State Component Component
Year Ending June 30, University of Cincinnati University Units Units
2002 ..o $ 2,995 $ 10,151 $ 2,233 $12,725 $ 28,104
2003 ... 2,995 10,140 2,029 6,484 21,648
2004 ..o 1,192 11,047 1,843 3,866 17,948
2005 ... 530 11,046 1,650 2,381 15,607
2006 ......ooieiiee e 386 11,198 1,632 1,580 14,796
Thereafter.........ccooveieiniienenn. 480 188,276 7,637 2,556 198,949
Total Minimum Lease Payments..... 8,578 241,858 17,024 29,592 297,052
Amount Representing Interest........ (766) (100,606) (3,407) (3,592) (108,371)
Present Value of Net Minimum
Lease Payments..........ccccceevrieneenns $ 7,812 $141,252 $13,617 $26,000 $188,681
Land ... $ — $ — $ — $ 208 $ 208
Buildings ....cvvevvriieeeeeeeen, — 111,331 — 7,009 118,340
Land Improvements .................... — — — 11,808 11,808
Equipment ... 14,822 — 14,984 33,316 63,122
Vehicles.......ocoevviiniiiiecee, — — — 692 692
Total ceoeieiiiece e $14,822 $111,331 $14,984 $53,033 $194,170
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Additionally, the State has accrued $26.4 million and
$6.4 million for potential refunds and other claims,
respectively.

For information on the State’s loss contingencies
arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 22.

D. Workers’ Compensation Obligation

The State’s primary government is permitted to pay
its workers’ compensation liability on a terminal-
funding (pay-as-you-go) basis. As a result, the
Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized
an unbilled premium receivable of $559.3 million for
the State’s portion of its actuarially determined liabil-
ity for compensation. The State records all of this
liability in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group, since the current portion of the liability
is not measurable.

E. Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Deferred Prize Awards

Deferred prize awards payable in installments over
future years totaling approximately $1.07 billion, as
of June 30, 2001, are recorded as “Liabilities Pay-
able from Restricted Assets” at present value based
upon interest rates the Treasurer of State provides
the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund. The
interest rates, ranging from 4.0 to 11.7 percent, rep-
resent the expected long-term rate of return on the
assets restricted for the payment of deferred prize
awards. Once established for a particular deferred
prize award, the interest rate does not fluctuate with
changes in the expected long-term rate of return.
The difference between the present value and gross
amount of the obligations is amortized into income
over the terms of the obligations using the interest
method.

The present value of future payments of unpaid

prize awards, as of June 30, 2001, is as follows (dol-
lars in thousands):

Year Ending June 30,

2002, $ 151,125
2003, 145,209
2004.....eeeieeeeeeeeeie 142,126
2005.....cceieeeeeeeeeee 136,015
2006......ceveeeieeeeeeeeeiree 126,637
Thereafter......cccccccc......... 1,017,482

1,718,594

Unamortized Discount.......... (650,649)
Net Prize Liability ................. $1,067,945

The State reduces prize liabilities by an estimate of
the amount of prizes that will ultimately be un-
claimed.

In May 1999, the Lottery Commission adopted an
administrative rule, which allowed winners of annuity
prizes the option to cash out their remaining de-
ferred prize payments at a discounted lump-sum
amount. This rule, which was in effect from July 1,
1999 through December 31, 2000, was a response
to a temporary change in the Internal Revenue Code
to allow discounted lump-sum cash payments to be
made to certain annuity prizewinners without the
constraints of “constructive receipt.” This option,
which provided an alternative for annuity winners
who did not have a cash option at the time they won
or experienced a changed circumstance from the
time they elected the annuity option, resulted in a
gain from the early extinguishment of the deferred
prize awards liability in the amount of $3.3 million for
2001.

Tuition Benefits

The actuarial present value of future tuition benefits
payable from the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise
Fund totaling $486.8 million, as of June 30, 2001,
are recorded as “Liabilities Payable from Restricted
Assets.” The valuation method reflects the present
value of estimated tuition benefits that will be paid in
future years and is adjusted for the effects of pro-
jected tuition increases at state universities and
state community colleges and termination of plan
participation.

The following assumptions were used in the actuar-
ial determination of tuition benefits payable: 7.5 per-
cent rate of return, compounded annually, on the
investment of current and future assets; a projected
annual tuition increase of 8.20 percent for the next
four years and 5.75 percent annually thereafter; and
a 2.5 percent Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation
rate. The projected tuition growth rates represent a
change in the assumption for annual tuition growth
from the constant annual 6.0 percent growth rate
assumption previously applied. The 5.75 percent
assumption for 2006 and later years approximates
the average real increase in tuition annually from
1975 through 2005 (adjusted for inflation) assuming
8.2 percent increases in tuition annually from 2002
through 2005 combined with the actuary's 2.5 per-
cent assumption for future inflation.
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As of June 30, 2001, the actuarial value of net as-
sets available for payment of the tuitions benefits
payable was $555.4 million. In determining the ac-
tuarial value of net assets available, the Authority
has applied the smoothed methodology. This meth-
odology recognizes annually one-third of the differ-
ence between assets at fair value and the expected
assets based on the actuarial investment return as-
sumption. Consequently, the assets used to deter-
mine the program’s surplus are not the same as the
market or cost value of the program’s assets re-
ported in the Authority’s financial statements.

F. Reserve for Compensation

The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund pro-
vides benefits to employees for losses sustained
from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bu-
reau has computed a reserve for compensation, as
of June 30, 2001, in the amount of $12.5 billion. The
reserve, which includes estimates for reported
claims and claims incurred but not reported, is in-
cluded in the “Benefits Payable” balance reported for
the Enterprise Fund. NOTE 23A describes the
changes in this liability.

NOTE 15 CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations, for the
year ended June 30, 2001, are presented in the fol-
lowing table.

Fiscal year 2001 additions to the general obligation
bonds and special obligation bonds do not include

premiums/(discounts) and bond issuance costs total-
ing $62.9 million. These costs came to approxi-
mately $22.4 million and $40.5 million, respectively
for each type of bond issuance, and are netted with
bond proceeds reported on the governmental funds’
combined operating statement.

Primary Government
Changes in Other General Long-Term Obligations
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

General
Obligation Revenue
Bonds Bonds

(NOTE 10) _(NOTE 11)

Other
Special Certificates General
Obligation of Long-Term

Bonds Participation Obligations
(NOTE 12) (NOTE 13) (NOTE 14) Total

Balance, as of June 30, 2000................ $2,461,673 $232,785 $4,973,657 $14,590 $978,159 $8,660,864
Additions:
Debt ISSUES .......ccoevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 820,000 — 729,090 — — 1,549,090
Deep-Discount Accretions.................. 15,014 — 120 — — 15,134
Increase in Compensated Absences — — — — 836 836
Increase in Lease Obligations ........... — — — — 543 543
Increase in Workers’
Compensation Obligation............... — — — — 11,000 11,000
Increase in Judgments,
Settlements, and Claims................. — — — — 33,752 33,752
Increase in Litigation Liabilities.......... — — — — 11,000 11,000
Total Additions ........ccevvvveveveeevirienne 835,014 — 729,210 — 57,131 1,621,355
Deductions:
Debt Retirements, Terminations,
and Defeasances...........ccccceeeennn. 262,650 958,812 2,285 — 1,237,632
Decrease in Lease Obligations.......... — — — — 2,012 2,012
Decrease in Judgments,
Settlements, and Claims................. — — — — 33,497 33,497
Decrease in Litigation Liabilities ........ — — — — 18,000 18,000
Total Deductions..............cvvvvvevvevvnnnnnnnn. 262,650 958,812 2,285 53,509 1,291,141
Balance, as of June 30, 2001................ $3,034,037 $218,900 $4,744,055 $12,305 $981,781 $8,991,078
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NOTE 16 NO COMMITMENT DEBT

The State of Ohio by action of the General Assembly
created various financing authorities for the ex-
pressed purpose of making available to non-profit
and, in some cases, for profit private entities lower
cost sources of capital financing for facilities and
projects found to be for a public purpose. Fees are
assessed to recover related processing and applica-
tion costs incurred.

The authorities’ debt instruments represent limited
obligations payable solely from payments made by
the borrowing entities. Most of the bonds are se-
cured by the property financed. Upon repayment of
the bonds, ownership of acquired property transfers
to the entity served by the bond issuance. This debt
is not deemed to constitute debt of the State or

pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accord-
ingly, these bonds are not reflected in the accompa-
nying financial statements.

As of June 30, 2001, revenue bonds and notes out-
standing that represent “no commitment” debt for the
State are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Outstanding
Organization Amount

Ohio Department of Development:

Ohio Housing Finance Agency ...... $2,300,618
Ohio Enterprise Bond Program...... 95,463
Hospital Facilities Bonds................ 9,130

Total No Commitment Debt .... $2,405,211

NOTE 17 ENTERPRISE FUNDS — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The primary government has six enterprise funds,
which provide for the tuition guarantee program, lig-
uor sales, lottery sales, workers’ compensation in-
surance services, underground state parking facili-
ties, and government audit and management advi-
sory services.

Segment information, as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001, is as follows.

Primary Government
Segment Information for the Enterprise Funds
As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Tuition Underground  Office of Total
Trust Liquor Lottery Workers’ Parking Auditor Enterprise
Authority Control Commission Compensation  Garage of State Funds

Operating Revenues........... $ 77,453  $454,268 $2,100,081 $ 2,549,227 $ 2,633 $38,302 $ 5,221,964
Depreciation..........cccceceeen, 77 653 13,685 423 3,457 28,318
Amortization of Premiums.... — — 317 — — 81,491
Operating Income (Loss) ..... (52,539) 126,532 (1,925,039) 261 (33,049) (1,224,917)
Operating Transfers-in......... — — — — 36,715 36,715
Operating Transfers-out....... — 121,261 6,795 773 — 765,865
Net Income (Loss)................ (52,539) 5,316 (1,933,304) (339) 2,685 (1,953,360)
Fixed Asset Additions .......... 11 624 3,344 452 4,565 10,284
Fixed Asset Disposals.......... — 602 7,880 — 2,597 69,079
Net Working Capital............. 37,138 19,806 (155,251) 1,929 17,898 (15,764)
Increase (Decrease) in

Cash & Cash Equivalents . 228 2,350 (43,613) (47,891) (246) 1,272 (87,900)
Total Assets....cccccovveeeeenneen, 552,504 49,980 1,759,337 22,958,751 10,167 29,228 25,359,967
Liabilities Payable from

Restricted Assets.............. 486,800 — 1,576,196 — — — 2,062,996
Bonds and Other Non-

current Liabilities Payable

from Operating Revenues. — 2,400 12,693,347 113 6,227 12,704,388
Total Equity.......cccovvieeennnn, 56,240 19,866 4,516,018 8,955 19,439 4,752,124
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NOTE 18 CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, changes in contributed capital reported in the primary government’s pro-

prietary funds are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Enterprise
Fund Internal Service Fund
Total
Underground Internal Total
Parking Information  Ohio Penal Support Service Proprietary
Garage Technology Industries Services Fund Funds
Contributed Capital Balance, July 1, 2000 ...... $411 $53,696 $1,762 $5,562 $61,020 $61,431
Additions:
Transfer of Fixed Assets from the
General Fixed Assets Account Group.......... — 44 — — 44 44
Capital Contribution from the
Administrative Services Building
Improvements Capital Projects Fund
(Reported as Residual Equity Transfer-out).... — 2,168 — — 2,168 2,168
Total ADditions ........oevviviiiiii e — 2,212 — — 2,212 2,212
Contributed Capital Balance, June 30, 2001 ... $411 $55,908 $1,762 $5,562 $63,232 $63,643

NOTE 19 FUND EQUITY

A. Other Reserves and Designations

Details on the “Reserved for Other” account reported
for the governmental and expendable trust funds
and the “Restricted Fund Balances” account re-

ported for the component unit funds, as of June 30,
2001, are presented in the table below and on the
following page.

Primary Government

Reserved for Other Fund Balance

As of June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Special Debt Capital Expendable
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Total

Human Services Stabilization ............. $100,000 $ — $ — $ — $ — $100,000
Department of Development’s
Office of Minority Financial Incentives
— Mini-Loan Program Deposits......... 417 — — — — 417
Assets in Excess of

Debt Service Requirements.............. — — 837 — — 837
INVENtOri€Ss .....vveeieeiieeeeeeeeeeee e, 770 30,368 — — — 31,138
Advances to Other Funds ................... — 20,000 — — 190,858 210,858
Other Assets — Prepaids.................... 243 225 — — — 468
Ohio Enterprise Bond Program........... — 10,000 — — — 10,000
Loan Commitments............cccceeeeeeeeens — 77,761 — 521 — 78,282
Advances to Local Governments......... 8,257 — — — — 8,257
State and Local

Highway Construction ...................... — 123,816 — — — 123,816
Special Purpose Restrictions:

Public Assistance and Medicaid....... — 84,629 — — — 84,629

Health and Human Services............. — 10,255 — — — 10,255

Justice and Public Protection........... — 8,706 — — — 8,706

Environmental Protection

and Natural Resources.................. — 3,320 — — — 3,320
Community and
Economic Development ................ — 1,615 — — — 1,615
Total Reserved for Other.................. $109,687 $370,695 $837 $521 $190,858 $672,598
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Component Units
Restricted Fund Balance
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
University Other Total
Ohio State of Component  Component
University Cincinnati Units Units
General Operations (includes Auxiliary Enterprises) ................... $ 277,323 $ 86,139 $100,721 $ 464,183
LO@N Programs .......cccuuiiiiiiie ettt a e 66,395 32,802 113,034 212,231
Endowment and Quasi-Endowment Activities ................cc...oooel 1,027,532 1,018,106 165,952 2,211,590
Plant Operations ............uevviieiiiieciieeee et 2,566 17,358 11,179 31,103
Annuity and Life INCOME ..........oeiiiiiiiii e 2,907 4,726 — 7,633
University Foundations ..., — 60,453 864 61,317
Grants and Contracts..........coooeevvveeeiieiiieeeee e — — 2,876 2,876
Auxiliary ENterpriSes ........cooiiiiiiiiiiii e — — 158 158
SCholarShiPs ...oveeiiiecec e — — 152 152
Total Restricted Fund Balance...........ccoccevieiiiieiiiiiee e $1,376,723 $1,219,584 $394,936 $2,991,243

Retained earnings for the Enterprise Fund, as of
June 30, 2001, are reserved for the payment of tui-
tion benefits, deferred lottery prizes, and insurance
claims in the amounts of $18.9 million, $66 million
and $112.3 million, respectively.

B. Fund Deficits
The following funds report deficits, as of June 30,
2001 (dollars in thousands).

Higher Education Capital Facilities

General Obligations Debt Service Fund .. $ (473)
Fund’'s unreserved fund balance is designated for Capital Projects Fund ...........cccocovevennn. (10,686)
budget stabilization. .
Information Technology
. . Int | Service Fund..........coccceieviiennnn, 1,105
As of June 30, 2001, designations of unreserved nierna ﬁwlce an o ( )
fund balance for the component unit funds are pre- School Facilities Commission
sented in the table below. Discretely Presented Component Unit..... (280,625)
Component Units
Designated Fund Balance
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Other Total
Ohio Miami Component Component
Designated for: University University Units Units
Educational and General Programs ............cccocvevveevennnne. $25,806 $ 45,314 $173,781 $244,901
Auxiliary ENterprises........cccovvveeieeiieiiiieeiie e 2,086 874 17,761 20,721
Hospital Operations ...........ccooocvviiiieeiee e 493 — 250 743
Loan Programs ........cc.uueiiieiaeei e 1,330 844 2,082 4,256
Endowment and Quasi-Endowment Activities................. 13,234 35,961 83,336 132,531
Plant Operations..........c.ccceeeeiiiiee e 52,817 31,698 53,665 138,180
Total Designated Balance.............cccccoeeviiieeenen. $95,766 $114,691 $330,875 $541,332
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Condensed financial statements for the component unit funds are as follows.
Component Units
Condensed Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Ohio Water
Development University Other Total
Authority Ohio State of Component Component
(12/31/00) University Cincinnati Units Units
Assets
Cash Equity with Treasurer ................ $ 68 $ — $ — $ 723,211 $ 723,279
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............... 14,659 76,373 51,399 149,209 291,640
Investments ........cccceevieiiicinen e, 905,569 1,602,894 848,749 1,155,471 4,512,683
Collateral on Lent Securities............... — — — 315,784 315,784
Receivables.........ccccoociiiiiiiiiiiee. 2,172,130 391,394 132,843 337,539 3,033,906
Due from Other Funds..............ccuec..... 185 344,801 271,725 105,842 722,553
INVeNtories.........eeeeeiiiiieeeeeeee — 19,046 4,722 19,624 43,392
Restricted Assets.........cooouveeeieeeeennnnnn.. — — — 162,310 162,310
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated
depreciation, as applicable)................ 564 3,100,846 1,415,351 5,401,626 9,918,387
Other Assets........cccceeeiiiieeeeiieee e, 17,321 37,754 680,514 50,021 785,610
Total ASsetS....cccvvevieeeeiiieeeeeees $3,110,496 $5,573,108 $3,405,303 $8,420,637 $20,509,544
Liabilities
Accounts Payable............ccccceeeieenns $ 31,300 $ 95,469 $ 30696 $ 101,998 $ 259,463
Accrued Liabilities............cccceeeiienens 6,187 235,461 244222 260,804 746,674
Obligations Under Securities Lending — — — 315,784 315,784
Intergovernmental Payable................. 6,758 — — 999,957 1,006,715
Due to Other Funds...........ccccceviiieennn. 185 344,801 271,725 105,842 722,553
Deferred Revenue..........cccccooeevvvunnnn... — 88,974 8,345 132,307 229,626
Refund and Other Liabilities ............... 6,631 38,497 63,156 51,145 159,429
Revenue Bonds and Notes................. 1,398,142 395,150 434,684 825,131 3,053,107
Certificates of Participation................. — 9,675 1,430 — 11,105
Total Liabilities.........cccceovveeeeiiieeeee. 1,449,203 1,208,027 1,054,258 2,792,968 6,504,456
Fund Equity and Other Credits
Investment in General Fixed Assets... — 2,727,901 1,088,807 4,828,707 8,645,415
Total Unreserved Retained Earnings.. 1,661,293 — — — 1,661,293
Total Fund Balance ..........c.cccccuernneee. — 1,637,180 1,262,238 798,962 3,698,380
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits .. 1,661,293 4,365,081 2,351,045 5,627,669 14,005,088
Total Liabilities, Fund Equity
and Other Credits ..........ccceeviiierennee. $3,110,496 $5,573,108 $3,405,303 $8,420,637 $20,509,544
Colleges and Universities
Condensed Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Total
College and
University Other University
Ohio State of Colleges and Component
University Cincinnati Universities Units
Total Revenues and Other AdditionS...........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeennnn. $ 2,057,403 $ 614,974 $ 2,782,731 $ 5,455,108
Total Expenditures and Other Deductions........................ (2,489,989) (827,850) (3,709,332) (7,027,171)
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ............... 515,236 245,908 1,231,707 1,992,851
Net Increase (Decrease) for the Year Before
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle.... 82,650 33,032 305,106 420,788
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle....... — — (45,770) (45,770)
Net Increase (Decrease) for the Year.........c.c.ccoooevvnnneen. 82,650 33,032 259,336 375,018
Fund Balance and Other Credits, July 1 (as restated)...... 4,282,431 2,318,013 5,648,958 12,249,402
Fund Balance and Other Credits, June 30 ....................... $ 4,365,081 $2,351,045 $5,908,294 $12,624,420
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Colleges and Universities
Condensed Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Total REVENUES ...

Expenditures:
Educational and General..........cccccoviiieieiiiiiiince e
Auxiliary Enterprises.........cuuuvvvvvieveveiminiiiinennns
HOSPILAIS ...

Total EXpenditures............euviveeeeeeiiiiiiiecnceceeeeee e
Mandatory Transfers, Net...........cccoooiiiiiiii e

Total Expenditures and Mandatory Transfers.............

Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions):
Operating Transfers from Primary Government.............
Nonmandatory Transfers, Net .........cccccccoovviiiieniecenn.
Additions (Deductions) ...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e
Total Other Transfers and Additions (Deductions)......

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balances.....................

Total
College and
University Other University
Ohio State of Colleges and Component
University Cincinnati Universities Units
$1,746,341 $504,866 $2,248,476 $4,499,683
1,370,357 603,782 2,569,433 4,543,572
150,357 66,446 415,365 632,168
627,970 — 158,324 786,294
2,148,684 670,228 3,143,122 5,962,034
38,578 28,332 52,959 119,869
2,187,262 698,560 3,196,081 6,081,903
450,764 199,651 1,075,464 1,725,879
1,823 (9,023) (56,415) (63,615)
72,377 (1,387) 15,713 86,703
524,964 189,241 1,034,762 1,748,967
84,043 $ (4,453) $ 87,157 $ 166,747

NOTE 21 JOINT VENTURES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

A. Joint Ventures

Great Lakes Protection Fund (GLPF)

The Great Lakes Protection Fund is an lllinois non-
profit organization that was formed to further federal
and state commitments to the restoration and main-
tenance of the Great Lakes Basin’s ecosystem. The
governors of seven of the eight states that border on
the Great Lakes comprise the GLPF’s membership.
Under the GLPF’s articles of incorporation, each
state is required to make a financial contribution.
Income earned on the contributions provides grants
to projects that advance the goals of the Great
Lakes Toxic Substances Control Agreement and the
binational Great Lakes Quality Agreement.

Each governor nominates two individuals to the
GLPF’s board of directors who serve staggered two-
year terms. All budgetary and financial decisions
rest with the board except when restricted by the
GLPF’s articles of incorporation.

Annually, one-third of the GLPF’s net earnings is
allocated and paid to member states in proportion to
their respective cash contributions to the GLPF. The
allocation is based on the amount and period of time
the states’ contributions were invested. GLPF earn-

ings distributions are to be used by the states to fi-
nance projects that are compatible with the GLPF’s
objectives. Ohio has applied its distribution (ap-
proximately $1.1 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2000) to the operations of its own protection
program, known as the Lake Erie Protection Pro-
gram, which is modeled after the GLPF.

Required contributions and contributions received
from the states, which border the Great Lakes, as of
December 31, 2000 (the GLPF’s year end), are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Contribution Contribution Contribution

Required Received Percentage

Michigan.......... $25,000 $25,000 30.9%
Indiana*........... 16,000 — —
llinois............... 15,000 15,000 18.4
(0] 5[ To — 14,000 14,000 17.3
New York......... 12,000 12,000 14.8
Wisconsin........ 12,000 12,000 14.8
Minnesota........ 1,500 1,500 1.9
Pennsylvania... 1,500 1,500 1.9

Total........ $97,000 $81,000 100.0%

*The State of Indiana has not yet elected to join the Great
Lakes Protection Fund.
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Summary financial information for the GLPF, for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, is as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Cash and Investments ........ccccceeeeeeeieeeeennnn. $133,416
Other ASSEetS ......eeeeeeeicieeeeeeeeee e, 935

Total Assets.......ccccceevvveveieieiiennn, $134,351

Total Liabilities ....ovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 3,148
Total Fund EQUItY .......coveeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeees 131,203

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity ... $134,351
Total Revenues and Other Additions .......... $ 8,148
Total Expenditures ...........cooocvvivieeeeeeiicnnen. (10,530)

Net Decrease in Fund Equity........ $( 2,382)

In the event of the Fund’s dissolution, the State of
Ohio would receive a portion of the Fund’s assets
equal to the lesser of the amount of such assets
multiplied by the ratio of its required contribution to
the required contributions of all member states, or
the amount of its required contribution.

Local Community and Technical Colleges

The State’s primary government has an ongoing
financial responsibility for the funding of six local
community colleges and eight technical colleges.
With respect to the local community colleges, State
of Ohio officials appoint three members of each col-
lege’s respective nine-member board of trustees;
county officials appoint the remaining six members.
The governing boards of the technical colleges con-
sist of either seven or nine trustees, of whom state
officials appoint two and three members, respec-
tively; the remaining members are appointed by the
local school boards located in the respective techni-
cal college district.

The Ohio General Assembly appropriates moneys to
these institutions from the General Fund to subsidize
operations so that higher education can become
more financially accessible to Ohio residents. The
primary government also provides financing for the
construction of these institutions’ capital facilities by
meeting the debt service requirements for the Higher
Education Capital Facilities general obligation bonds
issued by the Ohio Public Facilites Commission
(OPFC) and Higher Education Facilities special obli-
gation bonds, previously issued by the OPFC, for
these purposes.

Expenditures benefiting the local community and
technical colleges are included in the “Higher Educa-
tion Support” expenditures reported in the General
Fund and the Higher Education Improvements Capi-
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tal Projects Fund are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund Total

Local Community Colleges:

Cuyahoga Community College $ 47,454 $ 4,682 $ 52,136
Jefferson Community College 4,069 105 4,174
Lakeland Community College 16,592 4,098 20,690
Lorain County

Community College ............ 23,112 1,536 24,648
Rio Grande
Community College ............ 4,700 888 5,588
Sinclair Community College... 43,380 3,931 47,311
Total Local
Community Colleges.......... 139,307 15,240 154,547
Technical Colleges:
Belmont Technical College..... 5,420 150 5,570
Central Ohio
Technical College................ 4,620 352 4,972
Hocking Technical College .... 18,773 2,135 20,908
Lima Technical College.......... 7,928 127 8,055
Marion Technical College ...... 3,972 478 4,450
Muskingum Technical College 5,816 3,552 9,368
North Central State College... 7,822 728 8,550
Stark State College
of Technology ...........cccc...... 11,959 1,678 13,637
Total Technical Colleges.. 66,310 9,200 75,510
Total...ooooeeeiiiees $205,617  $24,440 $230,057

Information for obtaining complete financial state-
ments for each of the primary government’s joint
ventures is available from the Ohio Office of Budget
and Management.

B. Related Organizations

Officials of the State’s primary government appoint a
voting majority of the governing boards of the Ohio
Turnpike Commission, the Petroleum Underground
Storage Tank Release Compensation Board, the
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority, the Higher
Education Facility Commission, and the Ohio Legal
Assistance Foundation. However, the primary gov-
ernment’s accountability for these organizations
does not extend beyond making the appointments.
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During fiscal year 2001,

e The primary government distributed $2.3
million in motor vehicle fuel excise tax col-
lections from the Special Revenue Fund to
the Ohio Turnpike Commission. Also, the
primary government paid the Commission
approximately $2.5 million from the Special
Revenue Fund to fund some of its capital
project costs.

e Separate funds, established for the Petro-
leum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board, the Ohio Air Quality
Development Authority, and the Higher Edu-
cation Facility Commission, were accounted
for on the primary government’s Central Ac-
counting System. The primary purpose of
the funds is to streamline payroll and other

NOTE 22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation

The State, its units, and employees are parties to
numerous legal proceedings, which normally occur
in governmental operations.

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of pend-
ing litigation has been assessed to be probable, li-
abilities are recorded in the financial statements. As
of June 30, 2001, $20 million in liabilities ultimately
payable from various governmental funds has been
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Ac-
count Group for this purpose.

In a September 6, 2001 opinion, the Ohio Supreme
Court resolved the litigation that had long been
pending in Ohio courts questioning the constitution-
ality of the State’s system of school funding and
compliance with the constitutional requirement that
the State provide a “thorough and efficient system of
common schools.” The majority of the Court con-
cluded that the system of school funding, as it had
been modified and developed since 1991 and as-
suming full implementation of two modifications
newly ordered by the Court, will meet constitutional
requirements. (Two dissenters would find the sys-
tem not yet in compliance; a third continued to con-
clude that compliance was a matter for the legisla-
tive branch, not the judiciary.) The two modifications
directed by the Court, both of which would require
action by the General Assembly, are:

e Revisions of the formula and factors in-
volved in calculating the per student costs of

administrative disbursement processing for
these organizations. The financial activities
of the funds, which do not receive any fund-
ing support from the primary government,
have been included in the Other Agency
Fund.

e The Public Defender’s Office compensated
the Ohio Legal Assistance Foundation ap-
proximately $578 thousand from the Spe-
cial Revenue Fund for administrative ser-
vices performed under contract for the dis-
tribution of state funding to nonprofit legal
aid societies. Also, during fiscal year 2001,
the Ohio Legal Assistance Foundation re-
ceived approximately $833 thousand in
state assistance from the Special Revenue
Fund.

providing an adequate education; the Court
stated no deadline, but required that the re-
visions be applied retroactively to July 1,
2001 (the beginning of the current bien-
nium). OBM estimates the additional cost of
this change to the State in fiscal year 2002
could be as much as $1.24 billion. The
Court has granted the State’s motion for re-
consideration and clarification of this or-
dered modification. It has also referred to a
master commissioner the issues raised in
that motion and any other issues the parties
and the selected mediator consider appro-
priate issues for mediation, and stayed the
cause pending completion of the settlement
conferences.

e The effective date of full implementation of a
parity aid program (already adopted and be-
ing phased in) is moved up by two years --
full funding to be in fiscal year 2004 rather
than 2006. That program is aimed at provid-
ing poorer districts with resources similar to
those available to wealthier districts.

It is not possible at this time to state what the results
of referral to a master commissioner or of mediation
will be, or what the Court’s final action on reconsid-
eration will be, or what or when the General Assem-
bly’'s responses will be, or what effect they or any
related actions may have on the State’s overall fi-
nancial condition (particularly in the current fiscal
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biennium) or on specific State operations or func-
tions.

As stated in the conclusion to the maijority opinion:

The state is hereby ordered to implement
the changes described.... Because we have
no reason to doubt [State] defendants’ good
faith, we have concluded there is no reason
to retain jurisdiction of the matter before us.
If the order receives less than full compli-
ance, interested parties have remedies
available to them.

The Court had previously set as general base
threshold requirements that every school district
have enough funds to operate, an ample number of
teachers, sound and safe buildings, and equipment
sufficient for all students to be afforded an educa-
tional opportunity.

In response to that prior litigation, the General As-
sembly has taken several steps, including signifi-
cantly increasing State funding for public schools. In
addition, at the November 1999 election, electors
approved a constitutional amendment submitted by
the General Assembly authorizing the issuance of
State general obligation debt for school buildings
and for higher education facilities. December 2000
legislation addressed certain mandated programs
and reserves, characterized by the plaintiffs and the
Court as “unfunded mandates.”

Litigation pending in the Ohio Court of Claims con-
tests the Ohio Department of Human Services
(ODHS, now Ohio Department of Job and Family
Services) former Medicaid financial eligibility rules
for married couples when one spouse is living in a
nursing facility and the other resides in the commu-
nity. ODHS promulgated new eligibility rules effec-
tive January 1, 1996. ODHS appealed an order of
the federal court directing it to provide notice to per-
sons potentially affected by the former rules from
1990 through 1995, and the Court of Appeals ruled
in favor of ODHS; plaintiff’s petition for certiorari was
not granted by the U.S. Supreme Court. As to the
Court of Claims case, it is not possible to state the
period (beyond the current fiscal year) during which
necessary additional Medicaid expenditures would
have to be made. Plaintiffs have estimated total ad-
ditional Medicaid expenditures at $600 million for the
retroactive period and, based on current law, it is
estimated that the State's share of those additional
expenditures would be approximately $240 million.
The Court of Appeals has certified the class action
and has ordered notice be sent to the members of
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the class. No liability has been reported in the fi-
nancial statements for this matter.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of
management after consultation with the Attorney
General, likely to have a material adverse effect on
the financial position of the State’s fund types and
account groups.

B. Federal Awards

The State of Ohio receives significant awards from
the federal government in the form of grants and
entitlements, including certain non-cash programs
(which are not included in the General-Purpose Fi-
nancial Statements). Receipt of grants is generally
conditioned upon compliance with terms and condi-
tions of the grant agreements and applicable federal
regulations, including the expenditure of resources
for eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are
subject to either the Federal Single Audit or to finan-
cial compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the
federal government or their designees. Disallow-
ances and sanctions as a result of these audits may
become liabilities of the applicable funds or the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

As a result of the fiscal year 2000 State of Ohio Sin-
gle Audit (completed in February 2001), approxi-
mately $28.6 million of federal expenditures are in
question as not being appropriate under the terms of
the respective grants. The amount of expenditures,
which may be ultimately disallowed by the grantor,
cannot be determined at this time, and conse-
quently, no provision for any liability or adjustments
for this matter has been recognized in the State’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2001.

C. Tax Refund Claims

Corporate franchise tax and sales and use tax re-
fund claims in the amount of $32.8 million and $4.1
million, respectively, are pending an official determi-
nation of the Tax Commissioner at the Ohio Depart-
ment of Taxation. The claims arose from refund
claims taxpayers filed during fiscal year 2001 for tax
periods occurring in fiscal year 2001 and in prior
years. No liability has been reported in the financial
statements for this matter.

D. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2001, the Department of Transporta-
tion had contractual commitments of approximately
$1.57 billion for highway construction projects.
Funding for future expenditures is expected to be
provided from federal, primary government, general
obligation and revenue bonds, and local government
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sources in amounts of $953.1 million, $375 million,
$208 million, and $38.1 million, respectively.

As of June 30, 2001, non-highway construction
commitments for the primary government’s budgeted
capital projects funds are as follows (dollars in thou-
sands):

Capital Projects Fund

Higher Education Improvements................. $237,930
Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities
Improvements...........coevvveiiiiieieiiinininininenns 26,725
Parks and Recreation Improvements.......... 21,519
Administrative Services
Building Improvements.............ccccccevvneee. 72,875
Youth Services Building Improvements....... 21,962
Transportation Building Improvements........ 542
Adult Correctional Building Improvements .. 58,027
Highway Safety Building Improvements...... 11,220
Ohio Parks and Natural Resources............. 31,353
TOtAl et $482,153

E. Tobacco Settlement

In November 1998, the Attorneys General of 46
states, five U.S. territories, and the District of Co-
lumbia signed the Master Settlement Agreement
(MSA) with the nation’s largest tobacco manufactur-
ers. This signaled the end of litigation brought by
the Attorneys General against the manufacturers in
1996 for state health care expenses attributed to
smoking—related claims. The remaining four states
(Florida, Minnesota, Mississippi, and Texas) settled
separately.

According to the MSA, participating tobacco manu-
facturers are required to adhere to a variety of new
marketing and lobbying restrictions and provide
payments to the states in perpetuity.

While Ohio’s share of the total base payments to the
states through 2025 will not change over time, the
amount of the annual payment is subject to a num-
ber of adjustments, including an inflation adjustment
and a volume adjustment. Some of these adjust-
ments (for example, inflation) should contribute to an
increase in the payments and others (for example,
domestic cigarette sales volume) may decrease the
payments. But the net effect of these adjustment
factors on future payments is very uncertain, which
makes it difficult to speculate on how different Ohio’s
real payments will be from the pre-adjusted base
payment amounts.

In addition to the base payments, Ohio will receive
payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund. The
Strategic Contribution Fund was established to re-
ward states that played leadership roles in the to-
bacco litigation and settlement negotiations. Alloca-
tions from the fund are based on a state’s contribu-
tion to the litigation and settlement with the tobacco
companies. These payments are also subject to the
adjustment factors outlined in the MSA.

A schedule of pre-adjusted base payments and
payments from the Strategic Contribution Fund for
the State of Ohio in future years follows (dollars in
thousands):

Pre-adjusted

Payments
Pre-adjusted From the
MSA Strategic
Year Ending Base Contribution
June 30, Payments Fund Total
2002 ........... $ 418,783 $ — $ 418,783
2003 ........... 422,746 — 422,746
2004 ........... 352,827 — 352,827
2005 ........... 352,827 — 352,827
2006 ........... 352,827 — 352,827
Thereafter... 7,176,739 239,500 7,416,239
Total ........... $9,076,749 $239,500  $9,316,249

During fiscal year 2001, Ohio received $315.8 mil-
lion, which was $33 million or 9.5 percent less than
the pre-adjusted base payment for the year. During
fiscal year 2000, the first year when base payments
were made to the states under the settlement, the
State received $412.3 million, which was $31.6 mil-
lion or 7.1 percent less than the pre-adjusted base
payment for fiscal year 2000.

In fiscal year 2000, the State enacted legislation to
allocate its anticipated share of the proceeds of the
national tobacco settlement. A comprehensive allo-
cation had been made through fiscal year 2012 and
a partial allocation has been made through fiscal
year 2025. (In light of the constitutional two-year
limitation on appropriations, those allocations are
subject to the General Assembly making biennial
appropriations to fund them.) None of the moneys
are to be applied to existing operating programs of
the State. The main portion of the moneys will go to
assist the financing of elementary and secondary
school capital facilites. The State has targeted
other amounts for new programs for smoking cessa-
tion and other health-related purposes, biomedical
research and technology transfer, and assistance to
the tobacco-growing areas in Ohio.
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A. Workers’ Compensation Benefits

The Ohio Workers’ Compensation System, which
the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the In-
dustrial Commission administer, is the exclusive
provider of workers’ compensation insurance to pri-
vate and public employers in Ohio who are not self-
insured. The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise
Fund provides benefits to employees for losses sus-
tained from work-related injuries or illnesses.

The “Benefits Payable” account balance, as of June
30, 2001, in the amount of approximately $12.5
billion includes reserves for indemnity and medical
claims, including actuarial estimates for both re-
ported claims and claims incurred but not reported.
The estimate for this liability is based on historical
claims experience data and assumptions and pro-
jections as to future events, including claims fre-
quency, severity, persistency, and inflationary
trends for medical claim reserves. The compensa-
tion adjustment expenses liability, which is included
in “Refund and Other Liabilities” in the amount of
approximately $1.6 billion, is an estimate of future
expenses to be incurred in the settlement of claims.
The estimate for this liability is based on projected
claim-related expenses, estimated costs of the
managed care Health Partnership Program, and
the reserve for compensation.

Management of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Com-
pensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio
believes that the reported liability estimates are ade-
quate; however, the ultimate liabilities may vary from
amounts provided. While management uses avail-
able information to estimate the liabilities, future
changes to the reserves for compensation and com-
pensation adjustment expenses may be necessary
based on claims experience and changing claims
frequency and severity conditions. The methods of
making such estimates and for establishing the re-

sulting liabilities are reviewed and updated quarterly
based upon current circumstances. Any adjust-
ments resulting from changes in estimates are rec-
ognized in the current period.

Benefits payable and the compensation adjustment
expenses liability have been discounted at 6.0 per-
cent to reflect the present value of future benefit
payments. The undiscounted reserves for the bene-
fits and compensation adjustment expenses totaled
$29.5 billion, as of June 30, 2001, and $28.5 billion,
as of June 30, 2000. For additional information, re-
fer to the Fund’s separate audited financial report,
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

Changes in the balance of benefits payable and the
compensation adjustment expenses liability for the
Workers’ Compensation Program during the past
two fiscal years are presented in the table below.

B. Ohio Med Health Plan

Employees of the primary government have the op-
tion of participating in the Ohio Med Health Plan,
which is a fully self-insured health benefit plan es-
tablished July 1, 1989. Medical Mutual of Ohio ad-
ministers the plan under a claims administration con-
tract with the primary government.

When it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, the
primary government reports liabilities for the gov-
ernmental and proprietary funds. Liabilities include
an amount for claims that have been incurred but
not reported. The plan’s actuary calculates esti-
mated claims liabilities based on prior claims data,
employee enroliment figures, medical trends, and
experience.

Primary Government
Changes in Workers’ Compensation Benefits Payable
and Compensation Adjustment Expenses Liability

Last Two Fiscal Years
(dollars in millions)
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2001 2000

Benefits Payable and Compensation
Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of July 1 .........ccccceeeeene $13,638 $14,041
Incurred Compensation
and Compensation Adjustment Benefits ..............ccccoiiie 2,494 1,177
Incurred Compensation
and Compensation Adjustment Benefit Payments................ (2,020) (1,886)
Change in Liability Due to Decrease in Discount Rate......... — 306
Benefits Payable and Compensation
Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of June 30....................... $14,112 $13,638




STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 23 RISK FINANCING (Continued)

Governmental and proprietary funds pay a share of
the costs for claims settlement based on the number
of employees opting for plan participation and the
type of coverage selected by participants. The
payments are reported in the Payroll Withholding
and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund until such time
that the primary government pays the accumulated
resources to Medical Mutual of Ohio for claims set-
tlement.

For governmental funds, the primary government
recognizes claims as expenditures to the extent that
the amounts are payable with expendable available
financial resources; any remaining accrued un-
funded liabilities are reported in the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group. For proprietary
funds, claims are recognized as expenses when in-
curred.

As of June 30, 2001, approximately $16.8 million in
assets was available in the Agency Fund. Changes
in the balance of Ohio Med health claims liabilities
during the past two fiscal years are as follows (dol-
lars in thousands):

NOTE 24 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A. Bond Issuances

JUNE 30, 2001
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2001 2000

Claims Liabilities,
asof July 1................ $24,154 $20,092
Incurred Claims......... 131,798 102,635
Claims Payments...... (122,122) (98,573)
Claims Liabilities,
asofJune30............ $33,830 $24,154

As of June 30, 2001, the estimated claims liability
exceeded the resources on deposit in the Payroll
Withholding and Fringe Benefits Agency Fund for
the payment of claims by approximately $17 million,
thereby, resulting in a funding deficit. The net claims
liability, which is payable from expendable available
financial resources in the governmental funds, as of
June 30, 2001, is reported as a fund liability in the
governmental and proprietary funds and is included
under “Accrued Liabilities.”

C. Other Risk Financing Programs

The primary government has established programs
to advance fund potential losses for vehicular liability
and theft in office. The potential amount of loss aris-
ing from these risks, however, is not considered ma-
terial in relation to the State’s financial position.

Subsequent to June 30, 2001 (December 31, 2000 for the Ohio Water Development Authority), the State issued
major debt as detailed in the table below and on the following page.

Debt Issuances
Subsequent to June 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Interest
Coupon
Issue Date Rates Amount

Primary Government:

Coal Development General Obligation Bonds, Series F ................. August 2001 4.0%-5.0% $ 15,000
Natural Resources General Obligation Bonds, Series F................. August 2001 4.0%-5.0% 20,000
Mental Health Capital Facilities Special Obligation Bonds,
Series H-2001B .. ..o August 2001 3.0%-5.5% 30,000
Common Schools General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001B........... August 2001 3.5%-5.5% 200,000
Major New State Infrastructure Project Revenue Bonds,
SErIES 20017 ..ee e September 2001 3.5%-5.0% 100,000
Higher Education General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001B............ October 2001 4.0%-5.0% 175,000
Total Primary Government ...........cccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiee. $540,000
(Continued)
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Interest
Coupon
Issue Date Rates Amount
Component Units:
Ohio Building Authority:
State Facilities Refunding Bonds (Adult Correctional Building
Fund Projects), 2001 SEreS A ......cccvvvieeieiee e, July 2001 4.38%" $249,850
Ohio Water Development Authority:
Water Pollution Control Fund Refunding Revenue Bonds,
State Match Series 2001 ............ooooeeiiiiiiiiieee April 2001 3.5%-5.3% 53,590
Adjustable Rate Water Development Revenue Notes —
RD Loan Advance, Series 2001-A .......coooriiiee e April 2001 Variable Rate 6,500
Water Development Revenue Bonds:
Fresh Water Improvement, Series 2001A........ccccoeeiiiiiiiiieneeeeen, September 2001 4.0%-5.4% 25,345
Fresh Water Refunding, Series 2001B ...........cccccoieiiiiiiiiiinnenenn, September 2001 4.0%-5.5% 53,005
Total Component UNItS ............ccceeeeeeeeeieiieeieeee e $388,290

*Average interest rate

B. Workers’ Compensation Premium Credit
Effective July 1, 2001, the Bureau of Workers’ Com-
pensation will include a 75 percent premium credit in
its bills to private employers for their workers’ com-
pensation insurance coverage during the first and
second half of state fiscal year 2002. The credit,
which the Workers’ Compensation Oversight Com-
mission approved on April 24, 2001, will return an
estimated $1.3 billion to these employers.

C. Child Support Case Reviews

Effective October 25, 2001, Senate Bill 170 author-
ized the Ohio Department of Job and Family Ser-
vices to compensate child support recipients dating
back to October 1997. The legislation requires
county child support enforcement agencies to audit
child support cases, from October 1997 to Septem-
ber 2000, to identify instances in which state income
tax refunds and/or past due child support payments
were kept by the State to offset the cost of public
assistance. While not required by law, the return of
past due payments that were kept during this time
period is an option Ohio is exercising as part of the
State's commitment to welfare reform.
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The Department will distribute payments to families
based on the county audit findings. Interest of 6.5
percent a year will be paid in cases in which the total
interest exceeds $10. It is estimated that families
will receive a total of up to $44 million, including $6
million in interest.

D. State’s Economy

The Ohio economy has declined since the beginning
of the current budget cycle in July 2001. Ohio’s
economy is now in a recession that has been char-
acterized by layoffs and falling corporate profits.
The State’s fiscal conditions have changed in recent
months. In addition to increasing demands for more
government spending on human services programs
in response to the weakening economy, the State’s
personal income, corporate income, and sales tax
revenues have been unable to reach projected lev-
els of collections.

The Ohio Constitution prohibits the State from bor-
rowing money to fund operating expenditures in the
General Revenue Fund (GRF), the State’s largest
non-GAAP budgetary basis operating fund included
in the General Fund. Therefore, by law, the GRF’s
budget must be balanced so that appropriations do
not exceed available cash receipts and cash bal-
ances for the current fiscal year.



COMBINING
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure

for designated purposes.

The Community and Economic Development
Fund accounts for programs administered by
the Department of Development and other vari-
ous state agencies, which were created to as-
sure the efficient use of resources for the
State’s community and economic growth and
development.

The Job, Family and Other Human Services
Fund accounts for public assistance programs
primarily administered by the Department of
Job and Family Services, which provides finan-
cial assistance, services, and job training to
those individuals and families who do not have
sufficient resources to meet their basic needs.

The Health Fund accounts for public health
programs primarily administered by the De-
partment of Health, which promotes the preven-
tion and treatment of diseases and illnesses
through technical assistance, health education,
and research.

The Mental Health and Retardation Fund ac-
counts for mental health care and retardation
programs primarily administered by the De-
partment of Mental Health and the Department
of Mental Retardation and Developmental Dis-
abilities, which provide assistance, services,
and medical care to those individuals with men-
tal health and developmental disability prob-
lems.

The Education Fund accounts for programs
administered by the Department of Education,
the Ohio Board of Regents, and other various
state agencies, which prescribe the State’s
minimum educational requirements and which
provide funding and assistance to local school
districts for basic instruction and vocational and
technical job training and to the State’s colleges
and universities for post-secondary education.
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The Highway Safety Fund accounts for public
safety programs primarily administered by the
Department of Public Safety, which enforces
traffic-related laws for the purpose of reducing
accidents, deaths, injuries, and property dam-
ages on Ohio’s highways.

The Highway Operating Fund accounts for
programs administered by the Department of
Transportation, which is responsible for the
planning and design, construction, and mainte-
nance of Ohio’s highways, roads, and bridges
and for Ohio’s public transportation programs.

The Natural Resources Fund accounts for
environmental programs administered by the
Department of Natural Resources, the Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency, and other various
state agencies, which promote, protect, and
manage the State’s natural resources and envi-
ronment.

The Wildlife and Waterways Safety Fund ac-
counts for programs administered by the De-
partment of Natural Resources’ Divisions of
Wildlife and Watercraft, which promote, protect,
and manage the State’s wildlife and waterways
and which provide technical assistance and
education to the public.

The Revenue Distribution Fund accounts for
tax relief and aid to local government programs,
which derive funding from tax and other reve-
nues levied, collected, and designated by the
State for these purposes.

The Local Infrastructure and Transportation
Improvements Fund accounts for the Local
Transportation Improvement Program adminis-
tered by the Ohio Public Works Commission,
which provides grants and loans to local gov-
ernments for highway, road, and bridge con-
struction.



The Tobacco Settlement Fund accounts for The Sports Facilities Improvements Fund

various health, education, economic, and law accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital
enforcement-related programs funded with facilities defined as Ohio sports facilities in Sec-
moneys received under the Master Settlement tion 3383.01(J), Ohio Revised Code.
Agreement with the nation’s largest tobacco

companies.

The Arts Facilities Improvements Fund ac-
counts for bond proceeds that finance construc-
tion of and improvements to various arts and
sciences facilities at the state and local level.
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(dollars in thousands)

COMMUNITY JOB, FAMILY
AND ECONOMIC AND OTHER
DEVELOPMENT HUMAN SERVICES HEALTH
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ....................... $ 374,813 $ 177,779 $ 39,268
Cash and Cash Equivalents . . ...................... 9,681 25,812 —
Investments . ........ . . . .. .. 140,245 40,160 —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ...................... 178,468 84,341 17,315
Receivables:
TaXES . v o e e e e e 1,666 — —
Intergovernmental . . . ... ... .. .. ... 16,392 324,397 16,812
Loans, Net . . ... ... ... e 472,576 — —
Other .« . 13,155 35,401 17,962
Due from Other Funds . ............. ... . ... ...0.... 2,696 92 49
Inventories . . ........ .. . . . .. — — —
Advancesto Other Funds. . ........................ — — —
Other ASSetS. . . .o oo s 225 — 1,232
TOTAL ASSETS. ... ....... ... .. .. ... ...... $ 1,209,917 $ 687,982 $ 92,638
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . ........... ... ... ... . ... ..... $ 58,293 $ 60,355 $ 23,551
Accrued Liabilities. . ......... ... . . . . . ... 5272 8,727 2,143
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 178,468 84,341 17,315
Intergovernmental Payable. . .. ..................... 10,647 196,076 7,743
DuetoOther Funds ............ .. ... e, 721 474 90
Deferred Revenue ... ............c. . uiiiiiiiinn.. 15,112 183,763 9,541
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ..................... 598 7,581 —
Advances from Other Funds. . ...................... 190,858 — —
Total Liabilities . . ... ........ ... ... 459,969 541,317 60,383
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
ENCUMbBIancCes . .. ... ..o, 387,505 718,366 11,029
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . . ............. 460,642 — —
Other:
Inventories . . . ... ... — — —
AdvancestoOtherFunds . ... .................... — — —
Prepaids. . . . ... 225 — —
Ohio Enterprise Bond Program . . .................. 10,000 — —
Loan Commitments . . ......... ... uiieieenn.. 16,210 — —
State and Local Highway Construction . . . ... ......... — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . . ................. — 84,629 —
Health and Human Services . .. ... ................ — — 10,255
Justice and Public Protection. . . .. ................. — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . . .. — — —
Community and Economic Development. . ... ......... 1,615 — —
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. .............. (126,249) (656,330) 10,971
Total Fund Balances. . ..................c.c.c.cc.... 749,948 146,665 32,255

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .. $ 1,209,917 $ 687,982 $ 92,638




MENTAL HEALTH

WILDLIFE AND

AND HIGHWAY HIGHWAY NATURAL WATERWAYS
RETARDATION EDUCATION SAFETY OPERATING RESOURCES SAFETY

$ 56,494  § 74516  $ 153,071 976,083 144,146  $ 53,395
— 696 — — 1,158 —

— 4,512 — — — —
24,934 33,435 67,098 427,699 63,517 23,398
— — — 53,364 2,029 1,980

95,589 148,429 811 81,112 140 —

— 10,410 — 46,899 287 —
439 472 445 3,101 699 1,276
27 119 1,790 2,579 349 137

— — — 30,368 — —

— — — 20,000 — —

— 3,016 — — — —
$ 177483 $ 275605 $ 223215 1,641,205 212325 § 80,186
$ 17,553  $ 3795 $ 8,886 116,917 6693 $ 974
827 874 8,540 14,636 3,366 1,569
24,934 33,435 67,098 427,699 63,517 23,398

60,358 67,562 4,990 4,557 614 —
537 154 1,178 282 81 2
23,371 113,533 1,224 43,373 1,156 6

27 — — — — —
127,607 219,353 91,916 607,464 75,427 25,949
416,859 327,686 26,265 1,396,023 31,196 7,690

— 10,018 — 1,301 — —

— — — 30,368 — —

— — — 20,000 — —

— — 8,706 — — —

— — — — 3,320 —
(366,983) (281,452) 96,328 (413,951) 102,382 46,547
49,876 56,252 131,299 1,033,741 136,898 54,237
$ 177483 $ 275605 $ 223,215 1,641,205 212325 § 80,186

(continued)
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(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... ....................
Cash and Cash Equivalents . . ......................
Investments . ......... ... . . ..
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ......................
Receivables:

Intergovernmental . . ... ....... ... .. . ... . .
Loans, Net . . .. ... ... . e

Inventories . . ........ .. .. . ..
Advances to Other Funds. . ... ..........ccovuue....
Other ASSetS. . . .o oo s

TOTALASSETS.............................

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . .. ...... ... ... .. ... .. ... . . ...
Accrued Liabilities. . .. .......... ... . . . . .. ...
Obligations Under Securities Lending .. ..............
Intergovernmental Payable. . .. .....................
DuetoOther Funds ............. ... ... iiiiiinn.
Deferred Revenue . ..............c.c0 e iiiiiiiiinn..
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . .....................
Advances from Other Funds. . ......................

Total Liabilities . . ... ........ ... ...

Fund Balances:

Reserved for:
Encumbrances . .. ... .. ... ..
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . ... ...........

Other:

Inventories . . . ... ...
AdvancestoOtherFunds . . ... ...................
Prepaids. . . ... ...
Ohio Enterprise Bond Program . . .. ................
Loan Commitments . . ......... ... uiieieenn..
State and Local Highway Construction . . . ... .........
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . ... ...............
Health and Human Services . .. ... ................
Justice and Public Protection. . ... .................
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources. . . . . . ..
Community and Economic Development. . .. ..........
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. ..............

Total Fund Balances. . . .........................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. ..

LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND

REVENUE TRANSPORTATION TOBACCO
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS SETTLEMENT
$ 206,427 $ 206,455 $ 369,327
— — 26
— — 250,017
90,991 90,451 208,894
229,738 — —
— 198,000 —
107 649 1,164
8,468 459 823
$ 535,731 $ 496,014 $ 830,251
$ — $ 4,777 $ 217
— 36 16
90,991 90,451 208,894
240,892 1,154 —
53 7 —
6,224 — —
70,389 — —
408,549 96,425 209,127
— 31 930
— 196,708 —
— 61,551 —
123,816 — —
3,366 141,299 620,194
127,182 399,589 621,124
$ 535,731 $ 496,014 $ 830,251




ARTS SPORTS
FACILITIES FACILITIES
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL

$ 46,226 $ 26,804 $ 2,904,804
— — 37,373

— — 434,934

20,297 11,789 1,342,627

— — 288,777
— - 683,682
— — 728,172

147 85 75,102

104 60 17,752
— — 30,368
— — 20,000
— — 4,473

$ 66,774 $ 38,738 $ 6,568,064

$ 5,241 $ — $ 307,252
— — 46,006

20,297 11,789 1,342,627

— — 594,593

— — 3,579

— — 397,303

— — 78,595

— — 190,858

25,538 11,789 2,960,813

20,999 20,148 3,364,727
— — 668,669

— — 30,368
— — 20,000
— — 225
— — 10,000
— — 77,761
— — 123,816
— — 84,629
— — 10,255
— — 8,706
— — 3,320
— — 1,615

20,237 6,801 (796,840)

41,236 26,949 3,607,251
$ 66,774 $ 38,738 $ 6,568,064




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COMMUNITY JOB, FAMILY
AND ECONOMIC AND OTHER
DEVELOPMENT HUMAN SERVICES HEALTH
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES . . . o e $ 3,426 $ — $ —
Sales TAXES . . . .o ot 15,786 — —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . .. ....... ..., 255 — —
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. ... ..........c..iiiiineinin... 1,205 — —
Other Taxes . . . ... e e et 23,937 5,525 —
Licenses, Permitsand Fees . . ... ............c.couuiuiiiin.. 182,647 287,393 15,844
Sales, Servicesand Charges.. ... ... . 19,108 — 5
Federal Government. . .. ..........c.. .. 337,492 2,663,121 343,062
Tobacco Settlement . .. .......... .. — — —
Investment Income. . .. ......... . . . . . ... 21,278 14,259 503
Other. . . o 48,752 88,574 26,696
TOTAL REVENUES . . ... ...\ 653,886 3,058,872 386,110
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . ................... 126 252 —
Higher Education Support. . .. ......... ... — 752 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . . ......................... — 2,713,864 —
Health and Human Services. . ... ........... ... iiiii... —_— 411,953 394,911
Justice and Public Protection . . .............. ... ..., 131,035 25,431 1
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources .. ............ 349 — —
Transportation. . .. .. ... 935 — —
General Government . . ... ........ ... 125,723 2,125 —
Community and Economic Development . ... ................. 388,106 — 952
INTERGOVERNMENTAL. . . . . ... . et e e e — — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . o e e e e e e e e e et e e — 1,104 —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . ... ....... e, 646,274 3,155,481 395,864
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ............cccouuuuvnn... 7,612 (96,609) (9,754)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds. . .. ... ... . . — — —
Operating Transfers-in . . ............. .. 41,284 47,866 10,322
Operating Transfers-out . ... ..., (12,377) (5,319) (429)
Operating Transfers to Component Units. ... ................. — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . ............. 28,907 42,547 9,893
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . . ... ...... ... ... 36,519 (54,062) 139
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (asrestated) . .. ........................ 689,486 200,727 32,116
Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories . .............. — — —
Residual Equity Transfers In. . .. ....... .. ... .. .. ... .. ...... 23,943 — —
FUND BALANCES,JUNE30. ........................... $ 749,948 $ 146,665 $ 32,255




MENTAL HEALTH WILDLIFE AND
AND HIGHWAY NATURAL WATERWAYS
RETARDATION EDUCATION SAFETY RESOURCES SAFETY
$ —_ —_ P —_ P
— — — 11,375 —
— — — — 10,878
— — 1,638 8,113 —
1 753 101,613 81,073 33,631
— 424 18,910 1,851 608
622,911 986,635 13,313 47,029 11,510
166 9,383 11,655 3,253 4,160
24,279 15,991 24,913 29,661 3,139
647,357 1,013,186 172,042 182,355 63,926
— 1,614,928 — _ _
— 14,705 — — —
711 — — — —
653,052 199 158 — —
— 21,715 315,448 453 —
— — — 157,825 56,522
— — — 4,569 —
— — — 6,667 —
— — 7,050 — 2,861
653,763 1,651,547 322,656 169,514 59,383
(6,406) (638,361) (150,614) 12,841 4,543
2,700 646,740 175,101 170 966
— (63,379) (10,075) (2,497) (11)
2,700 583,361 165,026 (2,327) 955
(3,706) (55,000) 14,412 10,514 5,498
53,582 111,252 116,887 126,384 48,739
$ 49,876 56,252 131,299 136,898 54,237

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes............
SalesTaxes .............

Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . .. ...,

Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. . .
OtherTaxes .............
Licenses, Permits and Fees .
Sales, Services and Charges
Federal Government. . . . ...

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education . ...................

Higher Education Support. . .

Public Assistance and Medicaid. . ............. ... ... .......

Health and Human Services.
Justice and Public Protection

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . .............

Transportation. . ... .......
General Government . . . ...

Community and Economic Development . . .. .................

INTERGOVERNMENTAL. . . . . ..
CAPITAL OUTLAY . ..........
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ... .......................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds. . .........
Operating Transfers-in . . . . .
Operating Transfers-out . . . .

Operating Transfers to Component Units. ... .................
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . .. .............

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . ..........................

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (asrestated) . .. ........................
Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories . ..............

Residual Equity Transfers In.

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. ...........................

LOCAL
INFRASTRUCTURE
AND
REVENUE TRANSPORTATION TOBACCO
DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS SETTLEMENT
852,476 $ — $ —
310,586 — —
110,231 — —
1,044,393 — —
18,419 — —
344,453 — —
— — 315,812
3,755 16,688 29,875
64 758 28
2,684,377 17,446 345,715
20,464 — —
— — 257
— — 5,780
—_— — 174
— 1,090 31
1,998,659 160,173 —
2,019,123 161,263 6,242
665,254 (143,817) 339,473
— 122,968 —
64,095 62,516 —
(728,241) — —
— — (138,063)
(664,146) 185,484 (138,063)
1,108 41,667 201,410
126,074 357,922 419,714
127,182 $ 399,589 $ 621,124




ARTS
FACILITIES
IMPROVEMENTS

SPORTS
FACILITIES
IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL

2,666

855,902
326,372
121,861
1,428,441
57,632
1,103,122
42,996
5,924,921
315,812
197,336
309,452

2,666

10,683,847

9,314
3,621

3,193

1,635,770
15,714
2,714,675
1,466,053
494,257
214,696
1,709,123
132,417
396,846
2,171,339

14,636

12,935

3,193

10,965,426

(10,269)

(2,050)

(281,579)

30,342

24,087

122,968
1,658,581
(1,039,383)

(138,063)

30,342

24,087

604,103

20,073
21,163

22,037
4,912

322,524

3,264,004
(3,220)
23,943

$ 41,236

3 26,949

3,607,251




STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INCOIMIE TAXES .ottt e e s $ 3,406 $ 3,406 $ —
SAIES TAXES ..ot 15,761 15,761 —
Corporate and Public Ultility Taxes ............ccocueeeeeviveeeaeesscrennnnn. 254 254 —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES ..........coouueeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,206 1,206 —
(010 =Y A 1= =K 23,938 23,938 —
Licenses, Permits and FEES .............couueuuueeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeiiiiieaaeeaanan, 182,243 182,243 —
Sales, Services and Charges ...........ccccueeevecveeeeeeesiiieaseesscieeennnn 10,145 10,145 —
Federal GOVEINMENLT ............coooeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 294,547 294,547 —
Tobacco SEtHEMENt .................cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaeaan — — —
INVESEMENTt INCOME..........cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 12,286 12,286 —
(01 11T 100,915 100,915 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...t e et eaens 644,701 644,701 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ...............c..cccccco...... 1,358 993 365
Higher Education SUPPOIT ..............eeeeeeeeeiieeeeesicieieeeeeesieeaae — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ...............ccccccuuevveeeeeeeeeeeeennnnn. — — —
Health and HUMAaN SEIViICES ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeveennnns — — —
Justice and Public ProtecCtion ..............cccceeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiennn.. 182,198 150,144 32,054
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ..................... 388 369 19
TranSPOrtAtioN ...........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeee e e 1,891 838 1,053
General GOVEIMIMENE .............uuueeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 147,135 136,563 10,572
Community and Economic Development ................ccccceeevnunne.. 553,978 494,557 59,421
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ...ttt — — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY oo e et ettt ettt et eee e e — — —
DEBT SERVICE ... ettt ettt e ettt et e e nenaean 770 — 770
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ccccovveeeeieeeanann, 887,718 783,464 104,254
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........cccoouevveennnn.. (243,017) (138,763) 104,254
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........ouuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............ooooooeieee e 43,059 43,059 —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut .............ccueeeeceieeeeeeeeiiieee e (29,582) (29,582) —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ........cccouueeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaae e 14,306 14,306 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccocvuiieeeinnn. 27,783 27,783 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES .........ooveeeeeeeeee s, (215,234) (110,980) 104,254
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (aS restated) ..................ococooeoeeeeeeseeeernnn. 70,981 70,981 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 _...........ccocovioooeeoo. § (144,253) §  (39,999)  $ 104,254




JOB, FAMILY AND

OTHER HUMAN SERVICES HEALTH
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
5,525 5,525 — — — —
287,595 287,595 — 20,698 20,698 —
— — — 2,583 2,583 —
2,185,190 2,185,190 — 327,820 327,820 —
11,777 11,777 — 376 376 —
165,491 165,491 — 81,574 81,574 —
2,655,578 2,655,578 — 433,051 433,051 —
303 248 55 — — —
1,000 88 912 — — —
2,403,797 2,125,448 278,349 — — —
477,314 443,805 33,509 472,740 437,045 35,695
45,168 21,621 23,547 10 1 9
2,022 1,793 229 — — —
— — — 3,946 2,243 1,703
6,457 351 6,106 — — —
2,936,061 2,593,354 342,707 476,696 439,289 37,407
(280,483) 62,224 342,707 (43,645) (6,238) 37,407
3,130 3,130 — 2,865 2,865 —
(5,600) (5,600) — (86) (86) —
25,292 25,292 — 5,328 5,328 —
22,822 22,822 — 8,107 8,107 —
(257,661) 85,046 342,707 (35,538) 1,869 37,407
(816,393) (816,393) — 7,923 7,923 —
$ (1,074,054 $ (731,347) $ 342,707 $ (27615 $ 9,792 $ 37,407

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
MENTAL HEALTH AND RETARDATION
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
JNCOME TAXES .. $ — $ — $ —
SAIES TAXES ..ottt — — —
Corporate and Public Ultility Taxes ............ccocueeeeeviveeeaeesscrennnnn. — — —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES .......ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecieeaeeeaeeeeenn, — — —
OUNEI TAXES vttt eaaanaaeans — — —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ............ueeeeeeeeeeeeieeeiieeieeeeeeeeeeaeen 1 1 —
Sales, Services and Charges ..........ccccceeevecvveeeeeesiieeeseesscieeannnn. — — —
Federal GOVEIMMENL .............oouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetieeae e 1,342,850 1,342,850 —
Tobacco SEtteMENt .................cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaeaa — — —
INVESEMENTt INCOME............ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 130 130 —
(01 11T 28,415 28,415 —
TOTAL REVENUES ........oveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e aaaitaaaaaaaaaenn 1,371,396 1,371,396 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ..................c..cccco...... — — —
Higher Education SUPPOIt ............c..ceeeeeeeeieeeeeeiciieieee e — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ...............cccccceueeveeeeeeeeeeeeeennnn. 844,022 844,021 1
Health and HUManN ServiCes ..........eeeeeeeieiiiiiiiceeeeeeaeeaae 710,019 649,946 60,073
Justice and Public ProtecCtion ..............cccceeeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiriiennn.. — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ..................... — — —
TranSPOrtAtioN ...........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e — — —
General GOVEIMMENT ........ccoeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecveveaeaes — — —
Community and Economic Development ................ccccceeevannee. — — —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ........ ..ottt — — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ot e ettt ettt e et e e tteaaaaaaanaeaes — — —
DEBT SERVICE ... ettt ettt e ettt et e e nenaean — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ........c.c...ccovveeveeeeerrrnnn, 1,554,041 1,493,967 60,074
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccoouvveennnn.. (182,645) (122,571) 60,074
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA ProCEEAS ........ouvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............cooooooeei e e — — —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............ccueeeeceieeeeeeeeiiiee e e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ........c.ccuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiaeaee 5,266 5,266 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .........ccoiuiieeene. 5,266 5,266 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES .........ooveeeeeeee e, (177,379) (117,305) 60,074
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) ..................cccocoerevevrernnersrinrannnn. (271,087) (271,087) —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ...........ccc.evovevevoeeeeo. § (448,466)  $  (388,392) § 60,074




EDUCATION HIGHWAY SAFETY

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— $ — $ — $ — $ — s —
— — — 1,638 1,638 —
753 753 — 102,091 102,091 —
424 424 — 18,731 18,731 —
1,024,054 1,024,054 — 12,687 12,687 —
6,761 6,761 — 8,599 8,599 —
25,683 25,683 — 28,346 28,346 —
1,057,675 1,057,675 — 172,092 172,092 —
1,928,504 1,501,258 427,246 — — —
8,676 7,294 1,382 — — —
234 204 30 215 156 59
25,587 21,856 3,731 349,082 325,496 23,586
— — — 14,231 9,075 5,156
— — — 14,000 10,135 3,865
1,963,001 1,530,612 432,389 377,528 344,862 32,666
(905,326) (472,937) 432,389 (205,436) (172,770) 32,666
445,969 445,969 — 191,951 191,951 —
187,178 187,178 — (16,850) (16,850) —
110,169 110,169 — 7,410 7,410 —
743,316 743,316 — 182,511 182,511 —
(162,010) 270,379 432,389 (22,925) 9,741 32,666
(581,638) (581,638) — 103,594 103,594 —

(743,648) $ (311,259) $ 432,389 $ 80,669 $ 113,335 $ 32,666

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
HIGHWAY OPERATING
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
JNCOME TAXES .. $ — $ — $ —
SAIES TAXES ..ottt — — —
Corporate and Public Ultility Taxes ............ccocueeeeeviveeeaeesscrennnnn. — — —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES .......ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecieeaeeeaeeeeenn, 355,853 355,853 —
OUNEI TAXES vttt aaeaaaaaaeans — — —
Licenses, Permits and FEES .............oooeeuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiieaeeeaannn, 55,879 55,879 —
Sales, Services and Charges ...........cccceeevecveeeeeeesiiieeseeescreeaenn 2,090 2,090 —
Federal GOVEIMMENL .............oouuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetiieeeaaeaas 888,485 888,485 —
Tobacco SEtHEMENt ................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaeaa — — —
INVESIMENT INCOME........c.ccveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 57,750 57,750 —
(01 11T 65,748 65,748 —
TOTAL REVENUES ........ooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e aaaitaaaaaeaeaeas 1,425,805 1,425,805 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ..................ccccccco...... — — —
Higher Education SUPPOIT ............c..ceeeeeeeeieeeeeeicieieee e — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ...............cccccceeeevvveeeeeeeeeeeeennnn. — — —
Health and HUMAaN SEIViCes ...............ccooeeeeeeeeeeeeererevevevnnnns — — —
Justice and Public Protection ..............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiennn.. — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ..................... — — —
TranSPOrtation .............ocoooiiueeeeeeeeeeeee e 2,579,388 1,900,707 678,681
General GOVEIMMENT ........coeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeecveveaeeens — — —
Community and Economic Development ................ccccceeevannnee. — — —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ........ ..ottt — — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ot e ettt ettt e et e e tteaaaaaaanaeaes — — —
DEBT SERVICE ... ettt et 48,344 26,206 22,138
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES .......cc..oocvveoeeeeeeeran, 2,627,732 1,926,913 700,819
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccoouvveennnn.. (1,201,927) (501,108) 700,819
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........oovuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............cooooooiee e 552,392 552,392 —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ............c..cceeevceieeeeeeeeiiieee e e (210,889) (210,889) —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ........ccccuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaaaaae 117,437 117,437 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccccuiieeeinnn. 458,940 458,940 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES .........o.oveeeeeeeee s, (742,987) (42,168) 700,819
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) ..................cccocoerevevrernnersrinrannnn. (501,894) (501,894) —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ............c..oovvvvvviicianiiiiiicvcncneene. $ (1,244,881) $  (544,062) $ 700,819




NATURAL RESOURCES WILDLIFE AND WATERWAYS SAFETY

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
11,375 11,375 — — — —
— — — 9,805 9,805 —
7,967 7,967 — — — —
81,456 81,456 — 32,874 32,874 —
1,851 1,851 — 608 608 —
48,291 48,291 — 14,566 14,566 —
2,406 2,406 — 3,111 3,111 —
39,326 39,326 — 4,187 4,187 —
192,672 192,672 — 65,151 65,151 —
776 456 320 — — —
221,242 179,004 42,238 65,840 57,521 8,319
5,355 4,665 690 — — —
10,015 3,513 6,502 — — —
— — — 25,014 5,703 19,311
237,388 187,638 49,750 90,854 63,224 27,630
(44,716) 5,034 49,750 (25,703) 1,927 27,630
4,198 4,198 — 10 10 —
(3,808) (3,808) — (11) (11) —
4,672 4,672 — 789 789 —
5,062 5,062 — 788 788 —
(39,654) 10,096 49,750 (24,915) 2,715 27,630
98,961 98,961 — 41,912 41,912 —

59,307 $ 109,057 $ 49,750 $ 16,997 $ 44,627 $ 27,630

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
REVENUE DISTRIBUTION
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INCOIMIE TAXES .ottt e e s $ 852,476 $ 852,476 $ —
SAIES TAXES ..ot 299,370 299,370 —
Corporate and Public Ultility Taxes ............ccocueeeeeviveeeaeesscrennnnn. 95,066 95,066 —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES .......ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecieeaeeeaeeeeenn, 986,710 986,710 —
(010 =Y A 1= =K 18,441 18,441 —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ............uueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeaeen 518,341 518,341 —
Sales, Services and Charges ...........ccccueeevecveeeeeeesiiieaseesscieeennnn — — —
Federal GOVEIMMENL .............oouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetiieae e — — —
Tobacco SEttemMENt .................ccooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaean — — —
INVESEMENTt INCOME...........cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 2,983 2,983 —
(01 11T 63 63 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...t 2,773,450 2,773,450 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ...............c..ccccccco...... — — —
Higher Education SUPPOIt ............c..eeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeicieiee e — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ...............ccccceeveveeeeeeeeeeeeeennnn. — — —
Health and HUMAaN SEIViCesS ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeereereveveennnns — — —
Justice and Public Protection ...............ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiennn.. — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ..................... — — —
TranSPOrtation ..............coooiiueeeeieeeeeee e — — —
General GOVEIMMENT .......cooeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeaeaeaes — — —
Community and Economic Development ................ccccceeevnnnne.. — — —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ... 2,237,791 2,202,113 35,678
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ot e e et ettt ettt e et a s e aaaaaaneaes — — —
DEBT SERVICE ... ettt ettt e ettt et e e nenaean — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ........c.c...ccovveeveeeeerrrnnn, 2,237,791 2,202,113 35,678
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccoouvveennnn.. 535,659 571,337 35,678
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA ProCEEAS ........ouvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............cooooooeei e e 64,095 64,095 —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............ccueeeeceieeeeeeeeiiiee e e (716,436) (716,436) —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeieeieieeeeeeaeeeenn — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .........ccoiuiieeene. (652,341) (652,341) —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ..o e, (116,682) (81,004) 35,678
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (aS restated) ..................ococooeoeeeeeeseeeernnn. 287,111 287,111 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ...........cocc0ovvvoveieeieeeeo. $ 170,429 $ 206,107  $ 35678




LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE AND

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS TOBACCO SETTLEMENT
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
— — — 315,812 315,812 —
12,389 12,389 — 23,029 23,029 —
12,675 12,675 — 28 28 —
25,064 25,064 — 338,869 338,869 —
— — — 5,011 278 4,733
— — — 244,697 233,907 10,790
— — — 669 181 488
1,471 1,112 359 22,689 21,150 1,539
648,476 195,954 452,522 15,759 — 15,759
649,947 197,066 452,881 288,825 255,516 33,309
(624,883) (172,002) 452,881 50,044 83,353 33,309
122,969 122,969 — — — —
62,516 62,516 — 281,931 281,931 —
— — — (419,994) (419,994) —
11 11 — — — —
185,496 185,496 — (138,063) (138,063) —
(439,387) 13,494 452,881 (88,019) (54,710) 33,309
191,355 191,355 — 419,994 419,994 —
(248,032) $ 204,849 $ 452,881 $ 331,975 $ 365,284 $ 33309

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
ARTS FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
JNCOME TAXES .. $ — $ — $ —
SAIES TAXES ..ottt — — —
Corporate and Public Ultility Taxes ............ccocueeeeeviveeeaeesscrennnnn. — — —
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES .......ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecieeaeeeaeeeeenn, — — —
OUNEI TAXES vttt eaaanaaeans — — —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ............ueeeeeeeeeeeeieeeiieeieeeeeeeeeeaeen — — —
Sales, Services and Charges ...........cccceeevecveeeeeeesiieeaseessceeannnn. — — —
Federal GOVEIMMENL ..............ouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetiieae e — — —
Tobacco SEtHEMENt .................cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaeaan — — —
INVESEMENTt INCOME............oovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 1,840 1,840 —
(01 11T — — —
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt e ettt vaeeetiaaaaaaens 1,840 1,840 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ..................cc.cccco...... — — —
Higher Education SUPPOIt ............c..ceeeeeeeeieeeeeeiciieieee e — — —
Public Assistance and Medicaid ...............cccccceueeveeeeeeeeeeeeeennnn. — — —
Health and HUMAaN SEIVICES ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeereerereeeennnns — — —
Justice and Public Protection ..............ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiennn.. — — —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ..................... — — —
TranSPOrtation .............ocoooioueieeieeeeeee e — — —
General GOVEIMMENT ........coeeeeeeeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceveveaeeens — — —
Community and Economic Development ................ccccceeeennenee. — — —
INTERGOVERNMENTAL ... 40,568 15,356 25,212
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..o 15,731 11,326 4,405
DEBT SERVICE ... et ettt et e e teee ettt e e eenaean — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ........cc..cooieieeaeieeiaannnn, 56,299 26,682 29,617
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccoouvveennnn.. (54,459) (24,842) 29,617
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA ProCEEAS ... 30,342 30,342 —
Operating Transfers=in ..............cooooooeeee e — — —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............coueeeeceieeeeeeeeiiieeeeeecieeae e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeenn — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccoiuuiiieeennn. 30,342 30,342 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ..........cooveeeeeeeee et e (24,117) 5,500 29,617
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) ............c.c....ccovvvvveeveresaessnenennn. 14,236 14,236 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 .............ccooevivioeeevee. § (9,881) § 19,736 § 29,617




SPORTS FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ — $ — $ — $ 855882 $ 855882 $ —
— — — 315,131 315,131 —
— — — 106,695 106,695 —
— — — 1,353,574 1,353,574 —
— — — 57,509 57,509 —
— — — 1,281,931 1,281,931 —
— — — 36,432 36,432 —
— — — 6,138,490 6,138,490 —
— — — 315,812 315,812 —
664 664 — 144,101 144,101 —
— — — 552,451 552,451 —
664 664 — 11,158,008 11,158,008 —
— — — 1,930,165 1,502,499 427,666
— — — 14,687 7,660 7,027
— — — 3,247,819 2,969,469 278,350
— — — 1,905,219 1,765,063 140,156
— — — 603,490 519,755 83,735
— — — 287,470 236,894 50,576
— — — 2,581,279 1,901,545 679,734
— — — 154,512 143,021 11,491
— — — 592,099 522,575 69,524
26,900 20,000 6,900 2,969,494 2,433,423 536,071
— — — 61,433 26,455 34,978
— — — 63,114 36,341 26,773
26,900 20,000 6,900 14,410,781 12,064,700 2,346,081
(26,236) (19,336) 6,900 (3,252,773) (906,692) 2,346,081
24,088 24,088 — 177,399 177,399 —
— — — 1,652,116 1,652,116 —
— — — (1,216,078) (1,216,078) —
— — — 290,680 290,680 —
24,088 24,088 — 904,117 904,117 —
(2,148) 4,752 6,900 (2,348,656) (2,575) 2,346,081
1,805 1,805 — (933,140) (933,140) —
$ (343)  § 6,557 $ 6,900 $ (3,281,796) $ (935715)  $ 2,346,081




DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of general long-

term debt principal and interest.

The Economic Development Revenue Bonds
Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on revenue bonds issued to finance
loans to individuals, corporations, and agencies
within the State for economic development pro-
jects that create or retain jobs in the State.

The Transportation Certificates of Participa-
tion Fund accounts for the payment of certifi-
cate of participation-related obligations that fi-
nanced the acquisition of the Department of
Transportation’s Panhandle Rail Line Project.

The Coal Research/Development General
Obligations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation
bonds that have been authorized under Section
15 of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to finance
coal research and development projects.

The Improvements General Obligations
Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on general obligation bonds that have
been authorized under Section 2f of Article VIII,
Ohio Constitution, to finance the improvement
of higher education facilities, public schools,
and natural resources.

The Highway Improvements General Obliga-
tions Fund accounts for the payment of princi-
pal and interest on general obligation bonds
that have been authorized under Section 2g of
Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to finance the
acquisition of rights-of-way and the construction
and reconstruction of the State’s highways and
urban extensions.

The Development General Obligations Fund
accounts for the payment of principal and inter-
est on general obligation bonds that have been
authorized under Section 2h of Article VIII, Ohio
Constitution, to finance the construction, im-
provement, and development of higher educa-
tion facilities, public schools, and natural re-
sources.
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The Highway General Obligations Fund ac-
counts for the payment of principal and interest
on general obligation bonds that have been au-
thorized under Section 2i of Article VIII, Ohio
Constitution, to finance the construction of the
State’s highways.

The Public Improvements General Obliga-
tions Fund accounts for the payment of princi-
pal and interest on general obligation bonds
that have been authorized under Section 2i of
Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to finance the
improvement of higher education facilities, wa-
ter pollution controls, parks, and natural re-
sources.

The Vietnam Conflict Compensation General
Obligations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation
bonds that have been authorized under Section
2j of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to provide
funding for the compensation to Ohioans that
served in the military during the Vietnam Con-
flict.

The Local Infrastructure Improvements
General Obligations Fund accounts for the
payment of principal and interest on general
obligation bonds that have been authorized un-
der Section 2k of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution,
to finance the cost of local government’s public
infrastructure improvement projects.

The Higher Education Facilities Special Ob-
ligations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on special obligation
bonds issued to finance the construction of
higher education facilities.

The Mental Health Facilities Special Obliga-
tions Fund accounts for the payment of princi-
pal and interest on special obligation bonds is-
sued to finance the construction of mental
health facilities.



The Parks and Recreation Facilities Special
Obligations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on special obligation
bonds issued to finance the construction of
parks and recreation projects and state park
facilities.

The State Projects General Obligations Fund
accounts for the payment of principal and inter-
est on general obligation bonds that have been
authorized under Section 2| of Article VIII, Ohio
Constitution, to finance capital improvements at
state and local parks and other natural re-
sources-related projects.

The School Building Program Special Obli-
gations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on special obligation
bonds that have been authorized under Section
2i of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to finance
the costs of school buildings and classroom
facilities used by public school districts for ele-
mentary and secondary education purposes.

The Highway Capital Improvements General
Obligations Fund accounts for the payment of
principal and interest on general obligation
bonds that have been authorized under Section
2m of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution, to finance
capital improvements to the state highway sys-
tem.

The Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds
Fund accounts for the payment of principal and
interest on revenue bonds that have been au-
thorized under the authority of Section 5531.10,
Ohio Revised Code, to finance the construction
of the Spring-Sandusky Highway Project in Co-
lumbus.

The Higher Education Capital Facilities
General Obligations Fund accounts for the
payment of principal and interest on general
obligation bonds that have been authorized un-
der Section 2n of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution,
to finance the costs of capital facilities for state-
supported and state-assisted institutions of
higher education, including those for technical
education.

The Common Schools Capital Facilities
General Obligations Fund accounts for the
payment of principal and interest on general
obligation bonds that have been authorized un-
der Section 2n of Article VIII, Ohio Constitution,
to finance the costs of facilities for a system of
common schools throughout Ohio.

The Ohio Building Authority Special Obliga-
tions Fund accounts for the payment of princi-
pal and interest on special obligation bonds is-
sued to finance the construction of state office
buildings and the costs of capital improvements
for the Departments of Administrative Services,
Youth Services, Transportation, Rehabilitation
and Correction, Natural Resources, and Public
Safety and for the Arts and Sports Facilities
Commission.

The Enterprise Revenue Bonds Fund ac-
counts for the payment of principal and interest
on taxable revenue bonds issued to provide a
reserve and pledge to secure, in part, the pay-
ment of principal and interest on the Ohio En-
terprise Bonds, a no commitment debt for the
State that is issued under the authority of Sec-
tion 166.09, Ohio Revised Code.
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STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH/
ECONOMIC TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATES OF GENERAL
REVENUE BONDS PARTICIPATION OBLIGATIONS

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... .................... $ — $ — $ 49
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... .................... — — —
Investments ... ....... .. ... 5,367 948 —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . . ..................... 1,011 — 21
Receivables:

TOTALASSETS........ .. ... ... $ 6,378 $ 948 $ 70

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities. . ......... ... . .. . . ... $ — $ — $ —

Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 1,011 — 21
Refund and Other Liabilities . . .. .................... — — —

Total Liabilities . . ... ........ . . .0 ..., 1,011 — 21

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt Service . . . . ..o 5,367 948 49
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . . ............. — — —
Other:
Assets in Excess of Debt Service Requirements . . ... ... — — —
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . . . .............. — — —

Total Fund Balances. . ..................c.cc.cc.... 5,367 948 49
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .. $ 6,378 $ 948 $ 70




VIETNAM

HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS COMPENSATION
GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL

OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS

$ 269 $ 7 8 80 $ 53,555 § 51§ —
145 60 320 420 255 28

118 3 35 23,417 22 —

1 — 1 168 — —

1 — — 119 — —
$ 534 $ 70 § 436 3 77679 $ 328 § 28
$ — $ - $ — $ — $ - $ —
118 3 35 23,417 22 —
130 55 270 170 155 25
248 58 305 23,587 177 25

— — — 54,092 — —
286 12 131 — 151 3
286 12 131 54,092 151 3
$ 534 70 § 436 3 77679 $ 328 § 28

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . .....................
Cash and Cash Equivalents . . .....................
Investments . .......... ... ...
Collateral on Lent Securities. . . ....................

Receivables:

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accrued Liabilities. . . .......... ... .. . . . . . . . ... ...
Obligations Under Securities Lending .. .............
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ....................

Total Liabilities . . .. ....... ... . ... .. iiiin...

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

DebtService . . . .. ..o e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . .............

Other:

Assets in Excess of Debt Service Requirements . . .. . ..
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. .............

Total Fund Balances. . . ........................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. ..

LOCAL HIGHER

INFRASTRUCTURE EDUCATION MENTAL HEALTH

IMPROVEMENTS FACILITIES FACILITIES

GENERAL SPECIAL SPECIAL

OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS

$ 162§ — $ —
— 231 91
— 1,150 36

64 — —

— 2,671 —

1 JE— JE—
$ 227 3952  § 127
$ — $ 82 $ —
64 — —

64 82 —
163 1,164 52

— 2,571 —
— 135 75
163 3,870 127
$ 227 3952 § 127




HIGHER

PARKS AND SCHOOL HIGHWAY EDUCATION
RECREATION BUILDING CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL
FACILITIES STATE PROJECTS PROGRAM IMPROVEMENTS BANK FACILITIES
SPECIAL GENERAL SPECIAL GENERAL REVENUE GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS BONDS OBLIGATIONS
— 46 — 3 5402 $ — 42
47 — — — — —
5 — 451 — 182 —
— 19 85 2,169 — 17
52 § 65 53 $ 7595 $ 182 59
3 8 — —  $ 944  § — 515
— 19 85 2,169 — 17
3 19 85 3,113 — 532
5 46 451 4,482 182 —
44 — — — — —
— — — — — (473)
49 46 451 4,482 182 (473)
52 § 65 53 $ 7595 $ 182 59

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer . . .....................
Cash and Cash Equivalents . . .....................
Investments . ......... ... . ...
Collateral on Lent Securities. . .. ...................

Receivables:

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accrued Liabilities. . ......... ... . ... .
Obligations Under Securities Lending .. .............
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ....................

Total Liabilities . . ... ........ ... ..

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

DebtService . . . ... e
Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . . ............

Other:

Assets in Excess of Debt Service Requirements . . . . . ..
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. .............

Total Fund Balances. . .........................
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. ..

COMMON

SCHOOLS OHIO
CAPITAL BUILDING
FACILITIES AUTHORITY
GENERAL SPECIAL
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS TOTAL

$ 33 $ — 59,696

— 8 1,605

— 48,567 56,706

14 — 26,995

— — 2,571

— 511 696

— — 130

$ 47 $ 49,086 148,399

$ — $ 1,032 2,576

14 — 26,995

— — 805

14 1,032 30,376

33 48,054 115,088

— — 2,571

— — 837

— — (473)

33 48,054 118,023

$ 47 $ 49,086 148,399
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STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH/
ECONOMIC TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT
DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATES OF GENERAL
REVENUE BONDS PARTICIPATION OBLIGATIONS
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. . ............c.. i uiiiiiiunnnnn. $ — $ — $ —
Licenses, Permitsand Fees. . ......... ... ... .. ..., — — —
InvestmentiIncome. .. ....... ... .. . ... ... 307 68 17
Other. . . . — 696 —
TOTALREVENUES . . ... ... ... . . i 307 764 17
EXPENDITURES:
DEBTSERVICE . .. ... ... et 16,132 764 7,244
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . .. ... . e 16,132 764 7,244
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . . . ... ..... ... ..., (15,825) — (7,227)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds. . .. ... ... ... .. — — —
Refunding Bond Proceeds . .. .......... ... ... . ... . ... ... — — —
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. .. ................ — — —
Operating Transfers-in .. .......... ..., 15,818 — 7,226
Operating Transfers-out. . .. ...... ... ... ... . ... ... — — (20)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . . ............. 15,818 — 7,206
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . ... ..., (7) — (21)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . . . . . e 5,374 948 70
Residual Equity Transfers-out .. ... ... ... .. ... .. ... ....... — — —
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE30................ $ 5367 $ 948 3 49




VIETNAM

HIGHWAY PUBLIC CONFLICT
IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS DEVELOPMENT HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS COMPENSATION
GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS
$ — $ — $ — $ 29,013  $ — $ —
— — — 15,131 — —
22 6 8 5,655 6 —
22 6 8 49,699 6 —
— — — 51,636 — —
— — — 51,636 — —
22 6 8 (1,937) 6 —
— — 9 (35 9 —
— — (9) (35) €) —
22 6 (1) (1,972) 3 —
264 6 132 56,064 154 3
$ 286 $ 12 $ 131 3 54,092 $ 151 $ 3

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
LOCAL HIGHER
INFRASTRUCTURE EDUCATION MENTAL HEALTH
IMPROVEMENTS FACILITIES FACILITIES
GENERAL SPECIAL SPECIAL
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. . .............. i, $ — — $ —
Licenses, Permitsand Fees . . . ......... .. ... .. ... .. ...... — — —
InvestmentIncome. .. ....... ... . .. . ... 171 69 21
Other. . . . — 209 123
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . .. .. e 171 278 144
EXPENDITURES:
DEBTSERVICE . . . ... ...t et 132,042 331,630 55,891
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . ... ... . . e 132,042 331,630 55,891
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ............cccuuuuinnn... (131,871) (331,352) (55,747)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds. . .. ... ... . — — —
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . ............ ... .. ... .. ..... — 424,499 59,289
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . ................. — (420,264) (58,709)
Operating Transfers-in . . ............. .. 132,095 325,135 55,131
Operating Transfers-out . ... ....... ..., (67) — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . .. ............. 132,028 329,370 55,711
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . ..........c.uuiiaennn... 157 (1,982) (36)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 . . . .. . . e e e e e et e i 6 5,852 163
Residual Equity Transfers-out . ........... ... .. ........... — — —
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30. ............... $ 163 3870 $ 127




HIGHER

PARKS AND SCHOOL HIGHWAY EDUCATION
RECREATION BUILDING CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL
FACILITIES STATE PROJECTS PROGRAM IMPROVEMENTS BANK FACILITIES
SPECIAL GENERAL SPECIAL GENERAL REVENUE GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS BONDS OBLIGATIONS
— s — s — s — s — s —
31 17 28 4,946 177 37
60 — — — — —
91 17 28 4,946 177 37
12,735 15,532 41,784 113,652 11,431 33,498
12,735 15,532 41,784 113,652 11,431 33,498
(12,644) (15,515) (41,756) (108,706) (11,254) (33,461)
105 — — — — 5,125
20,998 — — — — —
(20,777) — — — — —
11,844 15,517 41,707 111,528 11,277 27,968
— (51) — (39) — (113)
12,170 15,466 41,707 111,489 11,277 32,980
(474) (49) (49) 2,783 23 (481)
523 95 500 1,699 159 8
$ 49 $ 46 $ 451 § 4482 $ 182  $ (473)

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
COMMON
SCHOOLS OHIO
CAPITAL BUILDING
FACILITIES AUTHORITY ENTERPRISE
GENERAL SPECIAL REVENUE
OBLIGATIONS OBLIGATIONS BONDS
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes. .. ..........c. ..., $ — — $ —
Licenses, Permitsand Fees . . ... .............couuuiiiin.. — — —
Investment Income. . ........... . . . . . . ... 21 3,077 2,112
Other. . o — — —
TOTAL REVENUES . . . . . . ... . e et et e 21 3,077 2,112
EXPENDITURES:
DEBTSERVICE . . . ... ... e e et 27,801 281,026 1,393
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . ...........ooiiiiiineannnnn. 27,801 281,026 1,393
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ...........cccuuuueunnn... (27,780) (277,949) 719
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds. . . ......... . — — —
Refunding Bond Proceeds . .. ........ ... ... ... . ... ... ..... — — —
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . ................. — — —
Operating Transfers-in . . ............. . .. 27,893 279,839 —
Operating Transfers-out . . .............. i, (85) (4,209) (8,340)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . .............. 27,808 275,630 (8,340)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . ... ..., 28 (2,319) (7,621)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 . . . ... e ettt e e 5 50,373 31,564
Residual Equity Transfers-out ... .......... ... ... ... — — (23,943)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE30. ............... $ 33 48,054 § —




TOTAL

$ 29,013
15,131

16,696

1,088

61,928

1,134,191
1,134,191

(1,072,263)

5,230
504,786
(499,750)

1,062,978

(12,977)
1,060,267

(11,996)

153,962
(23,943)

$ 118,023



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

COAL RESEARCH / DEVELOPMENT
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES ..........c.cceeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeanens $ — $ — $ —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ...........ouueeeeeeueeeeeieeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeen. — — —
INVeStMENt INCOME ..........coeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 12 12 —
(01 1= GRS 7,227 7,227 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt aaae e 7,239 7,239 —
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE ... oo 7,760 7,267 493
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........ccccvvveveeevieeiaaea 7,760 7,267 493
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........ccccccvvvuieee.. (521) (28) 493
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BoNd ProCeeds ...........ooooeeeeeitte e — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ............ccoooooeeee e — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccccveieeean ... — — —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ..........c.ceveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeranaenn (521) (28) 493
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 ..ot e e et e e e, 76 76 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ... § (445) $ 48 $ 493




IMPROVEMENTS HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
17 17 — 5 5 —
17 17 — 5 5 —
17 17 — 5 5 —
17 17 — 5 5 —
250 250 — 1 1 —
267§ 267§ — $ 6 8 6 8 —

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
DEVELOPMENT
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES ........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ — $ — $ —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ...........ouueeeeeeueeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeee — — —
INVeStMENt INCOME ...........oovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 5 5 —
(111 — — —
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt e e 5 5 _
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE ... ettt e ettt te e ee e eeans 9 9 .
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........ccccvvvvvieeeieeiaaennn 9 9 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........cccccevvveee.. (4) (4) —_
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........oovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating Transfers=in ..............ooooooeee e e — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccccvneeeeenn... —_ —_ —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ........cccooveeeveeveereeae e (4) (4) —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 ..o e e et e e e, 83 83 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ... § 79 $ 79 $ —




HIGHWAY PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 29,013 $ 29,013 $ — — $ — $ —
15,131 15,131 — — — —
4,078 4,078 — 4 4 _
48,222 48,222 — 4 4 —
51,686 51,671 15 9 9 —
51,686 51,671 15 9 9 —
(3,464) (3,449) 15 (5) (5) —
(3,464) (3,449) 15 (5) (5) —
56,492 56,492 — 55 55 —
$ 53,028 $ 53,043 $ 15 50 $ 50 $ —

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES ........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — $ — $ —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ...........ouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeen — — —
INVESTMENT INCOME ..o 130 130 —
(01 11T 132,095 132,095 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt ae e e e 132,225 132,225 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE ..o oo 134,062 132,658 1,404
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........ccccvvvviiieeieeiaaen 134,062 132,658 1,404
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccevvvieee.e. (1,837) (433) 1,404
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........ouvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 549 549 —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............cooooooeeee e — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........ccccveieeenn ... 549 549 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES .........o.oeeeeee e et e (1,288) 116 1,404

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 ...ooiiiiiiiie e et e e v 29 29 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ... § (1,259) $ 145 $ 1,404




STATE PROJECTS HIGHWAY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
— $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
15 15 — 3,797 3,797 —
15,517 15,517 — — — —
15,532 15,532 — 3,797 3,797 —
15,711 15,697 14 113,839 113,757 82
15,711 15,697 14 113,839 113,757 82
(179) (165) 14 (110,042) (109,960) 82
— — — 944 944 —
— — — 111,528 111,528 —
— — — 112,472 112,472 —
(179) (165) 14 2,430 2,512 82
209 209 — 2,400 2,400 —
30 $ 44 $ 14 $ 4,830 $ 4,912 $ 82

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
HIGHER EDUCATION CAPITAL FACILITIES
GENERAL OBLIGATIONS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
Motor Vehicle FUEI TAXES ........cccueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ — $ — $ —
Licenses, Permits @and FEES ...........ouueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeen. — — —
INVeStMENt INCOME ...........oovvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 32 32 —
(01 1= 27,968 27,968 —
TOTAL REVENUES ...ttt aeaa e e 28,000 28,000 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
DEBT SERVICE ... e e eve et 40,374 34,100 6,274
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........ccccvvvvvieeeieeiaeennn 40,374 34,100 6,274
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........ccccovvveee.. (12,374) (6,100) 6,274
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA ProCEEAS ... 5,640 5,640 —
Operating Transfers=in ..............cooooooeeeeeeeeeie e — — —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ........cccvneeeeean ... 5,640 5,640 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES ........cccooveveveeveer e e (6,734) (460) 6,274

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 ..o e et e e v 499 499 —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ... § (6,235) $ 39 $ 6,274




COMMON SCHOOLS CAPITAL FACILITIES

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ — $ — $ — $ 29,013 $ 29,013 $ —
— — — 15,131 15,131 —
15 15 — 8,110 8,110 —
27,893 27,893 — 210,700 210,700 —
27,908 27,908 — 262,954 262,954 —
28,550 28,095 455 392,000 383,263 8,737
28,550 28,095 455 392,000 383,263 8,737
(642) (187) 455 (129,046) (120,309) 8,737
209 209 — 7,342 7,342 —
— — — 111,528 111,528 —
209 209 — 118,870 118,870 —
(433) 22 455 (10,176) (1,439) 8,737
9 9 — 60,103 60,103 —
$ (424)  $ 31 $ 455 $ 49,927 $ 58,664 3 8,737




[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]

132



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities and
for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

The Infrastructure Bank Obligations Fund
accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
Spring-Sandusky Highway Project in Colum-
bus.

The Higher Education Improvements Fund
accounts for bond proceeds that finance the
construction of facilities for state-assisted
higher education institutions.

The Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facili-
ties Improvements Fund accounts for bond
proceeds that finance the construction of men-
tal health/mental retardation facilities.

The Parks and Recreation Improvements
Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
the capital improvement of parks and recreation
facilities.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts
for bond proceeds that finance the construction
of state office buildings and rehabilitation and
correctional facilities.

The Administrative Services Building Im-
provements Fund accounts for bond proceeds
that finance capital improvements for the De-
partment of Administrative Services.

The Youth Services Building Improvements
Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital improvements for the Department of
Youth Services.

The Transportation Building Improvements
Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital improvements for the Department of
Transportation.

The Adult Correctional Building Improve-
ments Fund accounts for bond proceeds that
finance capital improvements for the Depart-
ment of Rehabilitation and Correction.

The Highway Safety Building Improvements
Fund accounts for bond proceeds that finance
capital improvements for the Department of
Public Safety.

The Ohio Parks and Natural Resources Fund
accounts for bond proceeds that finance capital
improvements for state and local parks and
other natural resources-related projects.

The Highway Capital Improvement Fund ac-

counts for bond proceeds that finance capital
improvements to the state highway system.
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STATE OF OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

MENTAL HEALTH/
MENTAL

INFRASTRUCTURE HIGHER RETARDATION
BANK EDUCATION FACILITIES
OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... .................... $ 10,817 $ 97,015 $ 6,504
Investments . ......... ... . ... — — —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ...................... 4,754 42 591 2,802
Receivables:
Other .« . 34 316 20
Due from Other Funds . . ............ ... .. .cc.couu... 24 223 14
TOTAL ASSETS . ... ... .. .. . . . . . ... . ... $ 15,629 $ 140,145 $ 9,340
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . ........ ... ... . ... .. ... ... .... $ 1,561 $ 35,548 $ 2,623
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 4,754 42 591 2,802
DuetoOther Funds . ......... ... .. . . .. . . iiui... — — —
Advances from Other Funds. . ... ................... 20,000 — —
Total Liabilities . . . ... ....... .. ... 26,315 78,139 5,425
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
ENCUMbBIanCes . . ... ...ttt eeinann. 34,279 204,341 24,530
Other:
Loan Commitments . .. ......... .. .iuiiueenn.. — 521 —
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. .............. (44,965) (142,856) (20,615)
Total Fund Balances. . ... .......... ... ... ....... (10,686) 62,006 3,915

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .. $ 15,629 $ 140,145 $ 9,340




ADMINISTRATIVE YOUTH ADULT
PARKS AND OHIO SERVICES SERVICES TRANSPORTATION CORRECTIONAL
RECREATION BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
$ 20,588 $ —  $ 115932 § 37,139 241§ 76,837
— 10,286 — — — —
9,037 — 51,022 16,311 105 33,648
65 42 376 117 1 244
46 — 266 83 1 172
$ 29736 § 10,328 § 167,596 § 53,650 348 $ 110,901
$ 951 $ 243§ 3983 $ 1,765 -  $ 3,544
9,037 — 51,022 16,311 105 33,648
— — — 22 — 14
9,988 243 55,005 18,098 105 37,206
20,568 — 69,005 20,176 542 54,483
(820) 10,085 43,586 15,376 (299) 19,212
19,748 10,085 112,591 35,552 243 73,695
$ 29736 § 10,328 § 167,596 § 53,650 348 $ 110,901

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
(continued)
HIGHWAY OHIO PARKS
SAFETY AND HIGHWAY
BUILDING NATURAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS RESOURCES IMPROVEMENT
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... .................... $ 23,542 $ 10,544 $ 205,905
Investments . ......... ... . ... — — —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ...................... 10,359 4,591 90,443
Receivables:
Other .« . 75 33 651
Due from Other Funds . . ............ ... .. .cc.couu... 53 24 460
TOTAL ASSETS . ... ... .. .. . . . . . ... . ... $ 34,029 $ 15,192 $ 297,459
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . ........ ... ... . ... .. ... ... .... $ 87 $ 2,477 $ 10,527
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 10,359 4,591 90,443
DuetoOther Funds . .......... ... . . ... . . iiei... — — 164
Advances from Other Funds. . ...................... — — —
Total Liabilities . . . ... ....... .. ... 10,446 7,068 101,134
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances . .. ... ... ... ... 11,134 28,878 161,521
Other:
Loan Commitments .. ......... ... uuieennn.. — — —
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). . .. .............. 12,449 (20,754) 34,804
Total Fund Balances. . . ......................... 23,583 8,124 196,325

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES . .. $ 34,029 $ 15,192 $ 297,459




TOTAL

$ 605,064
10,286
265,663

1,974
1,366
$ 884,353

$ 63,309
265,663

200

20,000

349,172

629,457

521
(94,797)
535,181

$ 884,353



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

MENTAL HEALTH/
MENTAL
INFRASTRUCTURE HIGHER RETARDATION
BANK EDUCATION FACILITIES
OBLIGATIONS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
REVENUES:
Investment Income. . . .. .......... . . . . . . $ 727 $ 7,468 $ 1,614
Other. . . — 17 1
TOTALREVENUES . . . . . ... . e 727 7,485 1,615
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Higher Education Support. . .. ....... ... . . . . . . .. — 53,272 —
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . o e e 24,105 — 30,044
DEBT SERVICE . . . . ... ... . . e — — —

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . ... ... 24,105 53,272 30,044
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . ... ..., (23,378) (45,787) (28,429)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds. . . ......... . — 302,827 —

Operating Transfers-in .. .......... ..., — — —

Operating Transfers-out . . .. ....... ..., — (587) —

Operating Transfers to Component Units. . ................... — (248,134) —

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . .. ............ — 54,106 —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCINGUSES ... ..., (23,378) 8,319 (28,429)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (asrestated) . . .. ....................... 12,692 53,687 32,344
Residual Equity Transfers-out .. .............. ... . — — —
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE30. . .............. $ (10,686) $ 62,006 $ 3,915




ADMINISTRATIVE YOUTH ADULT
PARKS AND OHIO SERVICES SERVICES TRANSPORTATION CORRECTIONAL
RECREATION BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING BUILDING
IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS
$ 1,089 388 $ 4222 $ 2147 $ 39 § 6,732
79 — — 1 — 2,796
1,168 388 4,222 2,148 39 9,528
14,794 4,270 47,213 23,848 12 54,022
1,070 — — — — —
15,864 4,270 47,213 23,848 12 54,022
(14,696) (3,882) (42,991) (21,700) 27 (44,494)
25,147 239,541 — — _ _
— 7,126 124,067 41,041 — —
— (239,887) (7,126) — — —
25,147 6,780 116,941 41,041 — —
10,451 2,898 73,950 19,341 27 (44,494)
9,297 7,187 40,809 16,211 216 118,189
— — (2,168) — — —
$ 19,748 10,085 § 112,591 § 35552 § 243 § 73,695

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
HIGHWAY OHIO PARKS
SAFETY AND HIGHWAY
BUILDING NATURAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS RESOURCES IMPROVEMENT
REVENUES:
InvestmentiIncome. .. ....... ... .. . ... ... $ 771 $ 1,689 $ 11,409
Other. . . o 525 64 3,492
TOTAL REVENUES . . ... .. ...\ 1,296 1,653 14,901
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:

Higher Education Support. . .. ... — — —
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . ot e e 2,612 23,259 173,002
DEBT SERVICE . . . . .. . . ettt — — —

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . ... ..., 2,612 23,259 173,002
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ... .........oouuiieunnn... (1,316) (21,606) (158,101)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Bond Proceeds. . . . ... s — — 208,115

Operating Transfers-in .. .......... ... i, 20,004 — —

Operating Transfers-out . ... ... .. — — —

Operating Transfers to Component Units. ... ................. — — —

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . .............. 20,004 — 208,115
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . ..........couuiiannn... 18,688 (21,606) 50,014
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (asrestated) . . ... ...................... 4,895 29,730 146,311
Residual Equity Transfers-out .. ........ ... ... ... ... ....... — — —
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE30. ............... $ 23,583 $ 8124 $ 196,325




TOTAL

$ 38,195
6,975

45,170

53272
397,181
1,070
451,523

(406,353)

775,630
192,238
(247,600)

(248,134)
472,134

65,781

471,568
(2,168)

$ 535,181



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

INFRASTRUCTURE BANK OBLIGATIONS

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INVESEMENE INCOME........c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 414 $ 414 $ —
(111 — — —
TOTAL REVENUES ... e ettt e e 414 414 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY oo et ettt ettt e eeaeee e aaae e e 38,131 38,098 33
DEBT SERVICE ............. ettt e e eee e eetaetearen e — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ...........cccovviieiereeeaanaenn, 38,131 38,098 33
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ccccocevvvennn... (37,717) (37,684) 33
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........ooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in .............ccoouoooeee e 20,000 20,000 —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............eceeevceireeeeeeeeiiiee e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeinn 170 170 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .......ccccovvnieeeneen. 20,170 20,170 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . S (17,547) (17,514) 33
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (aS reStated) ............c......oocvvirnireeneererirninns (7,550) (7,550) —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 _.............ccooovvivoece. § (25,097)  $  (25,064)  § 33




HIGHER EDUCATION IMPROVEMENTS

MENTAL HEALTH/MENTAL RETARDATION
FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 4,232 $ 4,232 $ — $ 1,264 $ 1,264 $ —
19 19 — 1 1 —
4,251 4,251 — 1,265 1,265 —
982,338 376,097 606,241 145,121 28,986 116,135
982,338 376,097 606,241 145,121 28,986 116,135
(978,087) (371,846) 606,241 (143,856) (27,721) 116,135
302,827 302,827 — — — —
15,537 15,537 — — — —
(15,537) (15,537) — — — —
373 373 — 245 245 —
303,200 303,200 — 245 245 —
(674,887) (68,646) 606,241 (143,611) (27,476) 116,135
(72,810) (72,810) — 7,098 7,098 —
$ (747,697) $ (141,456) $ 606,241 $ (136513) $ (20378 $ 116,135

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
PARKS AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INVESEMENE INCOME........c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 876 $ 876 $ —
(01 11T 79 79 —
TOTAL REVENUES ... et et eaaaae e 955 955 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY ... ettt ettt aan e e 67,850 16,748 51,102
DEBT SERVICE ..o oo e e e 1,070 1,070 —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........c.covvvee e e 68,920 17,818 51,102
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ccccocevvvennn... (67,965) (16,863) 51,102
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONA PrOCEEAS ... 25,147 25,147 —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............ooocooiee e e — — —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ............c.ccceeeeceieeeeeeeeiiieeeeeecirieae e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieieeeeeeeeeeennn 33 33 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .......ccccovvieeeneen. 25,180 25,180 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . eeen (42,785) 8,317 51,102

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (a$ restated) ..................occcoveeomeeereeeeseoirenen, (9,365) (9,365) —

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE30 _.............ccoviiviooecce. $ (52,150) $  (1,048) 51,102




ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS YOUTH SERVICES BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS

VARIANCE VARIANCE

FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 2,446 $ 2,446 $ — $ 1,437 $ 1,437 $ —
— — — 1 1 —

2,446 2,446 — 1,438 1,438 —
387,850 88,314 299,536 66,739 13,700 53,039
387,850 88,314 299,536 66,739 13,700 53,039
(385,404) (85,868) 299,536 (65,301) (12,262) 53,039
124,067 124,067 — 41,041 41,041 —

371 371 — 12 12 —

124,438 124,438 — 41,053 41,053 —
(260,966) 38,570 299,536 (24,248) 28,791 53,039
4,129 4,129 — (13,807) (13,807) —
$  (256,837) $ 42,699 $ 299,536 $ (38,055 $ 14,984 $ 53,039

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
TRANSPORTATION BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INVESEMENE INCOME........c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 15 $ 15 $ —
(111 — — —
TOTAL REVENUES ... et et eaaaae e 15 15 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ot e ettt te ettt e e e aae e e — — —
DEBT SERVICE ..........o oottt e ettt e e e et e e enaan e — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........c.covvve e e — — —
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ccccocevvvennn... 15 15 —
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........ouveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............ooocooiee e — — —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............cceeeeceieeeeeeeiiiieeeeeeiirieae e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeieeieieeeeeeaeeeeinns 2,281 2,281 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .......cccovvnieeeneen. 2,281 2,281 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . eeen 2,296 2,296 —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (aS reStated) ............c......oovvirnireeneerenirninns (2,599) (2,599) —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 .............ccoceveeieeiieieiieiiieiieaeee. $ (303) $ (303) $ —




ADULT CORRECTIONAL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS HIGHWAY SAFETY BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 4,958 $ 4,958 $ — $ 508 $ 508 $ —
1,296 1,296 — 525 525 —
6,254 6,254 — 1,033 1,033 —
289,274 59,420 229,854 35,685 9,845 25,840
289,274 59,420 229,854 35,685 9,845 25,840
(283,020) (53,166) 229,854 (34,652) (8,812) 25,840
1,500 1,500 — 20,004 20,004 —
341 341 — 753 753 —
1,841 1,841 — 20,757 20,757 —
(281,179) (51,325) 229,854 (13,895) 11,945 25,840
69,516 69,516 — 300 300 —

$ (211,663) $ 18,191 $ 229,854 $ (13,595) $ 12,245 $ 25,840

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
OHIO PARKS AND NATURAL RESOURCES
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES:
INVESEMENT INCOME.........eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et $ 1,137 3 1,137 $ —
(01 11T 65 65 —
TOTAL REVENUES ... et et eaaaae e 1,202 1,202 —_
BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CAPITAL OUTLAY ... 126,413 35,440 90,973
DEBT SERVICE ..........o oo ettt e et e e ee et e anaaanaan s — — —
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ..........c.covvvee v e 126,413 35,440 90,973
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES ............ccccocevvvennn... (125,211) (34,238) 90,973
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONd ProCEEAS ........ouvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers=in ..............coooooeeee e — — —
Operating TranSfers-0Ut ..............ouueeeeceieeeeeeeeiieee e e — — —
Encumbrance REVEISIONS ...........couuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeenn 218 218 —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) .......ccccovvnieeeneee. 218 218 —_
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . eeen (124,993) (34,020) 90,973
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated) ............c.c....ccoevvvvveevereseessnenennn. 13,067 13,067 —
BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ............cc..oovvvvvviiciiniiiiiicvcvcecec. $ (111,926) $ (20,953) $ 90,973




HIGHWAY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS

VARIANCE VARIANCE
FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 8,148 $ 8,148 $ — $ 25435 $ 25435 $ —
3,492 3,492 — 5,478 5,478 —
11,640 11,640 — 30,913 30,913 —
122,720 114,416 8,304 2,262,121 781,064 1,481,057
— — — 1,070 1,070 —
122,720 114,416 8,304 2,263,191 782,134 1,481,057
(111,080) (102,776) 8,304 (2,232,278) (751,221) 1,481,057
208,115 208,115 — 722,701 722,701 —
— — — 35,537 35,537 —
— — — (15,537) (15,537) —
22,842 22,842 — 27,639 27,639 —
230,957 230,957 — 770,340 770,340 —
119,877 128,181 8,304 (1,461,938) 19,119 1,481,057
(95,457) (95,457) — (107,478) (107,478) —

$ 24,420 $ 32,724 $ 8,304 $ (1,569,416) $ (88,359) $ 1,481,057
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises — where the State’s intent is that the cost of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or
where the State has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability

purposes.

The Tuition Trust Authority Fund accounts
for the operations of the Ohio Tuition Trust Au-
thority, including the guaranteed option college
savings plan backed by the State of Ohio (for-
merly known as the Ohio Prepaid Tuition Pro-
gram).

The Liquor Control Fund accounts for the op-
erations of the Department of Commerce’s Di-
vision of Liquor Control.

The Ohio Lottery Commission Fund ac-
counts for the operations of the Ohio Lottery
Commission.

The Workers’ Compensation Fund accounts
for the operations of the Ohio Bureau of Work-
ers’ Compensation and the Ohio Industrial
Commission.

The Underground Parking Garage Fund ac-
counts for the operations of the statehouse un-
derground parking garage in Columbus, Ohio.

The Office of Auditor of State Fund accounts
for the operations of the Ohio Auditor of State.
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STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

TUITION OHIO
TRUST LIQUOR LOTTERY
AUTHORITY CONTROL COMMISSION
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . ...................... 53 9,127 $ 41,877
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... .................... 243 7,367 9,381
Investments . ........ . . . .. .. 46,204 — —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ... ................... 23 4,029 18,183
Receivables:
Premiums and Assessments . . . .. ... — — —
Investment Trade. . ... .. ... ... .. — — —
(0 1= 79 — 37,237
Due fromOther Funds . ................ ... ...... — 7 —
Inventories . ... ........ ... — 26,829 —
Other ASSetS. . . .o oot — 161 5272
Total Current ASSets. . . ... 46,602 47,520 111,950
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ....................... — — 19,665
Dedicated Investments. . ............ ... ... .. ...... 505,706 — 1,108,761
Collateral on Lent Securities. . . ..................... — — 508,251
Other Receivables . . ........... ... ... ... .......... — — 5,625
Total Restricted Assets. . ........................ 505,706 — 1,642,202
Noncurrent Assets-Investments . ...................... — — —
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation). .. ........ 196 2,460 5,185
TOTALASSETS........... .. .. ... .. 552,504 49,980 $ 1,759,337
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . ........ ... ... ... . .. ... ....... 207 18,927 $ 9,799
Accrued Liabilities. . ......... ... . . . . . ... 161 656 43
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 23 4,029 18,182
Investment Trade Payable . . ....................... — — —
DuetoOther Funds . ......... ... .. . ... . iiei... — 2,473 —
Deferred Revenue . ..............c. . ueiiiiiiian.. — — 767
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ..................... 9,073 1,629 20,443
Revenue Bonds . ............c.c.uuiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. — — —
Total Current Liabilities. . . .. ..................... 9,464 27,714 49,234
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Deferred Prize Awards Payable . . ................... — — 1,067,945
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. — — 508,251
Benefits Payable. . ... ........ ... .. . ... . . ... . .... 486,800 — —
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 486,800 — 1,576,196
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities. . .. ......... ... .. . . . ... ... — 2,400 2,301
Benefits Payable. . .. ..... ... ... . ... . . .. .. .. ... — — —
Revenue Bonds . ............c.c.uuuiiiiiiiiinnnnn. — — —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities . . ... .................. — 2,400 2,301
Total Liabilities . . ... ....... . ... 496,264 30,114 1,627,731
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital. . ... ... ... ... ... ... — — —
Retained Earnings:
Reserved For:
Tuition Benefits Payable . . . .. .................... 18,906 — —
Insurance Claims Payable. . . ..................... — — —
Deferred Lottery Prizes. . . .......c.ouuuuuuuuinnnn. — — 66,006
Unreserved. . . ........ ... 37,334 19,866 65,600
Total Fund Equity . ... ....... ... o 56,240 19,866 131,606
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY. . ... .. $ 552,504 49,980 $ 1,759,337




UNDERGROUND

OFFICE OF

WORKERS’ PARKING AUDITOR

COMPENSATION GARAGE OF STATE TOTAL
$ 5189 $ 2,072 10,858  $ 69,176
1,680,942 — — 1,697,933
— — — 46,204
1,972,713 907 — 1,995,855
1,138,723 — — 1,138,723
506,890 — — 506,890
275,226 49 8,921 321,512
— — 1,681 1,688
— — — 26,829
14,452 — — 19,885
5,694,135 3,028 21,460 5,824,695
— — — 19,665
— — — 1,614,467
— — — 508,251
— — — 5,625
— — — 2,147,908
17,193,974 — — 17,193,974
170,642 7,139 7,768 193,390
$ 22,958,751 $ 10,167 29,228 $ 25,359,967
$ 14,442  § 146 853 $ 44,374
— 42 2,635 3,637
1,972,713 907 — 1,995,854
1,538,047 — — 1,638,047
— — — 2,473
428,017 4 — 428,788
1,787,167 — 74 1,818,386
9,000 — — 9,000
5,749,386 1,099 3,562 5,840,459
— — — 1,067,945
— — — 508,251
— — — 486,800
— — — 2,062,996
19,932 113 6,227 30,973
12,504,943 — — 12,504,943
168,472 — — 168,472
12,693,347 113 6,227 12,704,388
18,442,733 1,212 9,789 20,607,843
— 411 — 411
— — — 18,906
112,342 — — 112,342
— — — 66,006
4,403,676 8,544 19,439 4,554,459
4,516,018 8,955 19,439 4,752,124
$ 22,958,751 $ 10,167 29,228 $ 25,359,967




STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

TUITION OHIO
TRUST LIQUOR LOTTERY
AUTHORITY CONTROL COMMISSION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . .......................... $ 71,829 $ 453,416 $ 1,919,910
Premium and Assessment Income. . ........... ... ... ..... — — —
Investment Income. . .. ......... . . . . . .. 5,623 — 174,996
Other. . . o 1 852 5175
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . . . ............. ..., 77,453 454,268 2,100,081
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . ... ...... ..., .. — 280,204 —
Administration. . . ... ..... .. . ... 5,895 46,256 98,257
Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates. . .................... — — —
Bonuses and Commissions . . ... ............euuiiiiiniin.. — — 120,210
Prizes . . ... — — 1,112,824
Benefitsand Claims . .. ........... ... i 124,020 — —
Depreciation . . . . ... .. . 77 653 10,023
Other. . . o — 623 99,850
TOTAL OPERATINGEXPENSES . . ...........ccouiiienin... 129,992 327,736 1,441,164
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . . . .. oo oe e (52,539) 126,532 658,917
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income . . . ... ...... . . . . . ... — — —
Interest EXPENSE. . . . . . .o e — — (122)
Other. . o o — 45 (288)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) . ............ — 45 (410)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS. . .............. (52,539) 126,577 658,507
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in .. .......... ... .. — — —
Operating Transfers-out . ... ... .. — (121,261) (637,036)
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . ... ..., — (121,261) (637,036)
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM . . . .......... (52,539) 5,316 21,471
EXTRAORDINARY GAIN ON
DEFERRED LOTTERY PRIZE PAYOUTOPTION ................ — — 3,350
NETINCOME (LOSS) . . . . o oo e e e e e e e e (52,539) 5,316 24,821
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1. . . .. ... . et e e 108,779 14,550 106,785
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30. . . ..................... $ 56,240 $ 19,866 $ 131,606




UNDERGROUND OFFICE OF

WORKERS’ PARKING AUDITOR
COMPENSATION GARAGE OF STATE TOTAL
$ — $ 2,633 $ 38,302 $ 2,486,090
2,021,058 — — 2,021,058
514,570 — — 695,189
13,599 — — 19,627
2,549,227 2,633 38,302 5,221,964
— — 58,559 338,763
57,042 1,949 9,254 218,653
1,624,921 — — 1,624,921
— — — 120,210
_ — — 1,112,824
2,498,499 — — 2,622,519
13,685 423 3,457 28,318
280,119 — 81 380,673
4,474,266 2,372 71,351 6,446,881
(1,925,039) 261 (33,049) (1,224,917)
_ 173 — 173
— — (29) (151)
(1,470) — (952) (2,665)
(1,470) 173 (981) (2,643)
(1,926,509) 434 (34,030) (1,227,560)
— — 36,715 36,715
(6,795) (773) — (765,865)
(6,795) (773) 36,715 (729,150)
(1,933,304) (339) 2,685 (1,956,710)
— — — 3,350
(1,933,304) (339) 2,685 (1,953,360)
6,449,322 8,883 16,754 6,705,073

$ 4,516,018 3 8,544 $ 19,439 $ 4,751,713




STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

TUITION OHIO
TRUST LIQUOR LOTTERY
AUTHORITY CONTROL COMMISSION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMENS..........c.ccceeveeeeeieeseieeieeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 70,354 $ 453,518 $ 1,914,549
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSeSSMents..........c..cccccecveeercnennen. — — —
Cash Received from Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds....... — 1 113
Other Operating Cash RECEIDLS............ccceivcieieieeiieeeeeeee e 215 846 5,062
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services.... (1,126) (314,232) (77,977)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services.............cccoouuvereeerieescnnene. (2,509) (15,870) (20,760)
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims.............cccccccceveiivieanieesiesces (23,640) — —
Cash Payments for Lottery Prizes....................... — — (1,301,844)
Cash Payments for Bonuses and Commissions — — (120,268)
Cash Payments for Premium Dividend Credits and Rebates. — — —
Cash Payments for Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds......... (217) (2,354)
Other Operating Cash Payments.............ccccoeuveeriiiieesiieeiee s (123) (56) (82)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 43,171 123,990 396,439
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating TranSOrs=iN ...........ccccccouumuiisieeieeise ettt — — —
Operating TranSfers-OUL .............ccvuicueiiiieiiesee et — (121,261) (637,036)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES...........cooooeeeeicisaea — (121,261) (637,036)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds and Capital Leases...............c.ccccocouevvunenn. — (27) (2,224)
Interest Paid .............ccccoeevvieviiiniiesieeeeee e — — (122)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets ... (50) (419) (1,288)
Proceeds from Sales of Fixed ASSELS ..........ccccceeveecerceccinieeieeaeesans — 67 1,133
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...................... (50) (379) (2,501)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMENLES.............ccceeieieieiieiieeeeeeeee e (1,237,235) — (239,097)
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ........................ 1,173,503 — 400,998
Investment Income Received ............cc.ccccovvcecvrcecennene. 20,839 — 56,178
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees — — (18,594)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (42,893) — 199,485
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 228 2,350 (43,613)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiice 68 14,144 114,436
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ............cccoovvmcrcrcnane $ 296 $ 16,494 $ 70,823




UNDERGROUND OFFICE OF
WORKERS' PARKING AUDITOR
COMPENSATION GARAGE OF STATE TOTAL
$ — $ 2,049 $ 31,516 $ 2,471,986
1,453,410 — — 1,453,410
283 586 8,204 9,187
32,248 — 36 38,407
(88,286) (663) (9,208) (491,492)
(252,170) (1,173) (59,405) (351,887)
(1,816,226) — — (1,839,866)
— — — (1,301,844)
— — — (120,268)
(268,957) — — (268,957)
(1,897) (3) (6) (4,477)
— (1) (141) (403)
(941,595) 795 (29,004) (406,204)
— — 35,852 35,852
(6,795) (773) — (765,865)
(6,795) (773) 35,852 (730,013)
(8,000) — (649) (10,900)
(8,915) — (23) (9,060)
(3,262) (452) (4,968) (10,439)
— — 64 1,264
(20,177) (452) (5,576) (29,135)
(38,071,074) — — (39,547,406)
38,104,594 — — 39,679,095
1,041,894 184 — 1,119,095
(154,738) — — (173,332)
920,676 184 — 1,077,452
(47,891) (246) 1,272 (87,900)
1,734,022 2,318 9,586 1,874,574
$ 1,686,131 $ 2,072 $ 10,858 $ 1,786,674

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

TUITION OHIO
TRUST LIQUOR LOTTERY
AUTHORITY CONTROL COMMISSION
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS)..........cuveeeseeeeeesieeese st $ (52,539) $ 126,532 $ 658,917
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
INVESEMENt INCOME..........c.ccoiiiieeee e (5,623) — (174,996)
Borrower Rebates and Agent Fees..... — — 18,594
Depreciation ...........ccccccecueevccvereescennnn. 77 653 10,023
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts.......... — — —
Amortization of Premiums and DiSCOUNTS................cccevvvevcvieniieieennee. — — 81,174
Interest on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases.............cccceecvvveeriveaann. — — —
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Premiums and Assessments Receivable...............ccccccceveeencnnnncnn. — — —
Other Receivables .............cccccvcvvevenene.. (78) — (3,762)
Due from Other FUNGS ...........coooueiiiiiiieeiee e — (2) —
Inventories ..................... — (1,061) —
OFNEI ASSELS ...t — (16) (860)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable ...... ettt 112 (2,240) (2,213)
Accrued Liabilities ...... 7 17 230
Due to Other Funds ... — (6) —
Deferred Revenue ...... — — (1,599)
Benefits Payable................... — — —
Refund and Other Liabilities....................... 115 113 172
Liabilities Payable from Restricted ASSEts..........cc.coceuvvivieesvecisnann. 101,100 — (189,241)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $§ 43,171 $ 123,990 $ 396,439
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Fair Value of InVestments.................ccocveeveeeeevvecieseesreannnn, $ (12,230) $ — $ 70,133
Extraordinary Gain on Deferred Lottery Prize Payout Option................ — — 3,350



UNDERGROUND OFFICE OF
WORKERS' PARKING AUDITOR
COMPENSATION GARAGE OF STATE TOTAL

$ (1,925,039 $ 261 $ (33,049) (1,224,917)
(514,570) — — (695,189)
154,738 — — 173,332

13,685 423 3,457 28,318

65,454 — (36) 65,418

317 — — 81,491

8,915 — — 8,915
1,408,385 — — 1,408,385
(59,586) (6) 1,032 (62,400)
— — — 2
— — — (1,061)

2,244 — — 1,368

8,605 129 (259) 4,134

— (16) (74) 164
— 4 — )
(7,824) — — (9,423)

460,032 — — 460,032
(556,951) — (75) (556,626)

— — — (88,141)
$ (941,595 3 795 $ (29,004) (406,204)
$  (525055) $ — $ — (467,152)

3,350
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by a state
department or agency to other agencies and to other government units, on a cost-

reimbursement basis.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts
for the revenues and operating expenses of
state office buildings and other government
buildings owned by the Ohio Building Authority.

The Information Technology Fund accounts
for the revenues and expenses associated with
electronic data-processing and telecommunica-
tions services provided to state agencies and to
local governments.

The Ohio Penal Industries Fund accounts for
the revenues and expenses associated with the
purchase of raw materials and labor costs in-
curred in the production of manufactured goods
sold to state agencies.

The Support Services Fund accounts for the
revenues and expenses associated with the
purchase of food, medical, and other institu-
tional supplies and the costs of services pro-
vided to state agencies.
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STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

OHIO OHIO
BUILDING INFORMATION PENAL
AUTHORITY TECHNOLOGY INDUSTRIES
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . ...................... — $ 29,095 $ 22,840
Cash and Cash Equivalents. . ................ 235 — —
Investments . ......... .. .. . . . .. ... 1,626 — —
Collateral on Lent Securities. . . ............... — 12,808 10,083
Receivables:
Intergovernmental . . .. ........ ... ... ... .... — 56 425
Other . . o e e e 4,293 2,683 607
Due from Other Funds . ..................... — 14,163 17,670
Inventories . .............c. ... — 148 9,950
Other Assets. . ... .. 437 — —
Total Current Assets. . .................... 6,591 58,853 61,575
Restricted Assets:
Investments ............... .. .. ... 38,667 — —
Total Restricted Assets. . . ................. 38,667 — —
Noncurrent Assets:
Other Receivables . ........................ 19,727 — —
Total Noncurrent Assets. . ................. 19,727 — —
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation). . ... ...... — 19,641 3,626
TOTAL ASSETS . ... ... ... . . . ... 64,985 $ 78,494 $ 65,201
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . .. .......... .. ... . .. ... 12,787 $ 4,788 $ 3,953
Accrued Liabilities. . ............. ... ... .. ... 412 826 1,774
Obligations Under Securities Lending — 12,808 10,083
DuetoOtherFunds ........................ — 2,828 1,159
Deferred Revenue . ................ccccoi... 243 — —
Revenue Bonds .............. ... . ........ 3,359 — —
Total Current Liabilities. . . ................. 16,801 21,250 16,969
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Liabilities. . ............. ... ... .. ... — 2,441 4,371
Revenue Bonds ................c.cuuiiiin.. 22287 — —
Total Noncurrent Liabilities. . .. ............. 22,287 2,441 4,371
Total Liabilities . .. ....................... 39,088 23,691 21,340
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital. . ... .................... — 55,908 1,762
Retained Earnings:
Unreserved (Deficits) . . .. ... 25,897 (1,105) 42,099
Total Fund Equity . ... ....... ... ... ...... 25,897 54,803 43,861
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY. . ... .. $ 64,985 $ 78,494 $ 65,201




SUPPORT
SERVICES

TOTAL

3270 $ 55,205
— 235
— 1,626

1,444 24,335

1,726 2,207
— 7,483

5,070 36,903

8,705 18,803
— 437

20,215 147,234
— 38,667
— 38,667
— 19,727
— 19,727

2,743 26,010

22958 $ 231,638

6349 $§ 27,877
184 3,196

1,444 24,335

38 4,025
— 243
— 3,359

8,015 63,035
598 7,410
— 22,287
598 29,697

8,613 92,732

5,562 63,232

8,783 75,674

14,345 138,906

22958 $ 231,638




STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

OHIO OHIO
BUILDING INFORMATION PENAL
AUTHORITY TECHNOLOGY INDUSTRIES
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . .......................... $ 26,600 $ 84,502 $ 112,801
Other. . . o 2,672 1,534 —
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES . . . ... .......... ..., 29,272 86,036 112,801
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . ....... ... .. . ... 26,375 15,528 16,442
Administration. . ... ... ... .. 2,808 51,206 102,468
Depreciation . . . . . ... ... — 8,027 940
Other. . . o 1,415 2,678 4,172
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . .. ............ ... ....... 30,598 77,439 124,022
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) . . .. ..o oiiieeeeeen.. (1,326) 8,597 (11,221)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
InvestmentIncome. . ........... . . . . . . .. 1,834 822 —
Interest EXPENSE. . . . . . .o e (1,720) — —
Other. . . o e — (9) (72)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) . ............ 114 813 (72)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS. . .............. (1,212) 9,410 (11,293)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in . . ............ .. 29,857 — 9,558
Operating Transfers-out . ... ... .. (31,779) (5,000) —
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . ... ..., (1,922) (5,000) 9,558
NETINCOME (LOSS) . . . . oottt e e et e e et e e (3,134) 4,410 (1,735)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JULY 1. ... ... . . i 29,031 (5,515) 43,834

RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30 ........... $ 25897 § (1,105) §$ 42,099




SUPPORT

SERVICES TOTAL

$ 75238 $ 299,141
2 4,208

75,240 303,349
67,843 126,188
7,093 163,575

554 9,521

— 8,265

75,490 307,549
(250) (4,200)

— 2,656

— (1,720)

(953) (1,034)
(953) (98)
(1,203) (4,298)

— 39,415

— (36,779)

— 2,636
(1,203) (1,662)
9,986 77,336

$ 8,783 $ 75,674




STATE OF OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

OHIO OHIO
BUILDING INFORMATION PENAL
AUTHORITY TECHNOLOGY INDUSTRIES
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMENS..........c.cccoeeeeeeieiseieieieieeeeeeeenieee $ 26,728 $ 6,927 $ 4,530
Cash Received from Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds....... 1,011 73,147 112,661
Other Operating Cash RECEIDLS............ccceivceeiceieiieeeeeee e 19,520 1,633 30
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services.... (31,342) (47,697) (56,234)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services............ccccocuuvereeerieescnnene. (1,130) (20,007) (44,015)
Cash Payments for Quasi-External Transactions with Other Funds......... — (100) (24,648)
Other Operating Cash Payments..............cccoeiveeriieiieesiiesee s (16,913) (741) (1,289)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,126) 13,062 (8,965)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating TranSfOrs=iN ............ccccoiemiiisieiieiisie et 29,857 — 9,558
Operating TranSfers-0UL ............c.cccuivueeriiesiesee et (31,779) (5,000) —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES...........coooveeeieiesaaen (1,922) (5,000) 9,558
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds and Capital Leases............c..c.ccccocoevvnenn. (3,194) — —
Interest Paid .............ccccoeevoiemiiiiiiesieeeeee e (1,728) — —
Principal Receipts on Capital Leases ..... rrre e — 3,194 — —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital ASSEtS .........cccceevveeeveeeseencnenns — (3,122) (692)
Proceeds from Sales of Fixed ASSELS ..........ccccveeveecireecinieeieeeeesns — 6 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ...................... (1,728) (3,116) (692)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMENLES.............cccueveieiiiieiieeeeeeeee et (114,922) — —
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ... 118,150 — —
Investment Income ReCeIVed .............cccccieieeeeieeieeieeseeeeeeee s 2,592 775 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 5,820 775 —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 44 5,721 (99)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 ......c.coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 191 23,374 22,939
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ............cccovvemcrcncnaee $ 235 $ 29,095 $ 22,840
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS)..........cuveeeseeeseeseeeseee et $ (1,326) $ 8,597 $ (11,221)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
JD L] o= To] - 11 o o AU — 8,027 940
Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivable...................cccccovivieioiiiciiiiieiiese, — 161 (126)
Other Receivables 671 (224) 404
Due from Other FUNGS ...........cccoeiiiiiiieeiee e — (4,364) 4,142
INVENEOMIES ... — 23 77
Other Assets (61) — —
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable .............ccccoovoieieiiiiiiiieeeee e (1,275) 1,440 (2,523)
Accrued Liabillties .............ccooveieieiiii et — (94) 14
Due to Other Funds ... — (504) (672)
Deferred REVENUE ..........ccccceieiueiiieieiet et (135) — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $§ (2,126) $ 13,062 $ (8,965)

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in Fair Value of Investments.................cccccoueevueeeceesireearnnn, $ 46 $ —
Fixed Assets Acquired under Capital Leases...

Increase in Contributed Capital............c.ccccccvveescceeeesiiieesiiieesennenn — 2,212




SUPPORT

SERVICES TOTAL

$ 4,482 $ 42,667
74,333 261,152

1 21,084
(70,595) (205,868)
(4,300) (69,452)
(382) (25,130)
— (18,943)

3,539 5,510

— 39,415
— (36,779)

— 2,636
(11) (3,205)
— (1,728)

— 3,194
(1,124) (4,938)

4 10
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— (114,922)

— 118,150

— 3,367

— 6,595

2,408 8,074

862 47,366

$ 3,270 $ 55,440
$ (250) $ (4,200)
554 9,521

371 406

— 851

3,193 2,971

9 109

— (61)

(323) (2,681)

(11) (91)

(4) (1,180)
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3 3,539 $ 5,510
$ — $ 46
39 39
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

The Trust Funds account for assets the State holds in a trustee capacity. The Agency Funds ac-
count for assets the State holds as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments,

and/or other funds.

Expendable Trust

The Unemployment Compensation Fund ac-
counts for unemployment insurance benefit
claims.

The Unclaimed Funds Fund accounts for as-
sets held for owners of unclaimed intangible
property. Unclaimed property is property for
which the owner has not taken some action to
indicate ownership interest over a certain pe-
riod of time specified under Chapter 169, Ohio
Revised Code.

The Variable College Savings Plan Fund ac-

counts for the variable fund option savings plan
administered by the Tuition Trust Authority.

Pension Trust

Agency

The State Highway Patrol Retirement Sys-
tem Fund accounts for the accumulation of re-
sources for pension benefit payments to quali-
fied employees who participate in the State
Highway Patrol Retirement System.

Investment Trust

The STAROhio Fund accounts for the state-
sponsored external investment pool, which the
Treasurer of State administers for local gov-
ernment participants.

The Holding and Distribution Fund accounts
for assets held until such time that a determina-
tion has been made to refund amounts to the
original owners or to distribute amounts to other
funds.

The Centralized Child Support Collections
Fund accounts for assets temporarily held for
custodial parents.

The Ohio Building Authority Fund accounts
for assets held on the behalf of the Ohio Bu-
reau of Workers’ Compensation.

The Tax Refunds Fund accounts for assets
held to liquidate the State’s tax refund obliga-
tions.

The Payroll Withholding and Fringe Benefits
Fund primarily accounts for assets held to lig-
uidate the State’s payroll withholding obliga-
tions.

The Retirement Systems Fund accounts for
assets held in the custody of the Treasurer of
State for the Public Employees Retirement Sys-
tem, Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pen-
sion Fund, School Employees Retirement Sys-
tem, and State Teachers Retirement System.
While legal custodian, the Treasurer of State
does not manage or provide investment ser-
vices to the foregoing retirement systems.

The Other Fund accounts for assets held for

others, which are not accounted for in another
agency fund.
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STATE OF OHIO
TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

EXPENDABLE TRUST
VARIABLE
UNEMPLOYMENT UNCLAIMED COLLEGE
COMPENSATION FUNDS SAVINGS PLAN
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . ... .................... $ — $ 163 $ —
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... .................... — 4,903 —
Investments . .......... .. ... 9,200 229,989 427,853
Collateral on Lent Securities. . ...................... 1,734 24,828 —
Deposit with Federal Government ... ................ 2,214,245 — —
Receivables:
TaXES . v o e e e 136,476 — —
Intergovernmental . .. ............ ... . . ... ..., 24 — —
(0 1= 1 20,244 3,782
Due fromOther Funds ............................ — 516 —
Advances to Other Funds. . ... ..........cccvvuo.... — 190,858 —
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation). . . .. . ... — — —
Other ASSEts. . . .o e 7,224 — —
TOTALASSETS........... .. .. ... .. $ 2,368,904 $ 471,501 $ 431,635
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable. . .. ....... ... ... .. ... . ... $ — $ 836 $ —
Accrued Liabilities. . .. ........... .. ... . ... — — 554
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... ............. 1,734 24,828 —
Intergovernmental Payable. . ... .................... — — —
Investment Trade Payable . . . ...................... — — 3,349
DuetoOther Funds ............. . ... iiuiiin... — — —
Benefits Payable. . ... ....... ... ... . . . ... ... 44,937 — —
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . . .................... 36,684 — —
Liability for Escheat Property . .. .................... — 102,218 —
Total Liabilities . .. ........... . . ... i, 83,355 127,882 3,903
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Variable College Savings Plan Participants . . . ... ........ — — 427,732
Employees’ Pension and Other Postemployment
Healthcare Benefits . . .. ... ... — — —
Unemployment Benefits . .. ......... .. . ..., 2,285,549 — —
External Investment Pool Participants. . .. .............. — — —
Other:
AdvancestoOtherFunds . . ...................... — 190,858 —
Unreserved/Undesignated . ... ..................... — 152,761 —
Total Fund Balances. . . ......................... 2,285,549 343,619 427,732
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ... $ 2,368,904 $ 471,501 $ 431,635




PENSION INVESTMENT AGENCY
TRUST TRUST FUNDS
STATE
HIGHWAY
PATROL STAROHIO TOTAL
— 8 — $ 168511 $ 168674
83,046 — 162,635 250,584
521,536 8,517,082 126,797,532 136,503,192
9,777 1,582,266 159,842 1,778,447
— — — 2,214,245
— — — 136,476
— — — 24
1,949 15,581 3,339 44,896
3,078 — 232 3,826
— — — 190,858
171 — — 171
18 — 440,350 447,592
619575 $ 10,114,929 § 127,732,441 §$ 141,738,985
673 $ — 3 — 3 1,509
761 — — 1,315
9,777 1,582,266 159,842 1,778,447
— — 90,281 90,281
— 134,602 — 137,951
— — 29,317 29,317
— — — 44,937
46 398 127,453,001 127,490,129
— — — 102,218
11,257 1,717,266 127,732,441 129,676,104
— — — 427,732
608,318 — — 608,318
— — — 2,285,549
— 8,397,663 — 8,397,663
— — — 190,858
— — — 152,761
608,318 8,397,663 — 12,062,881
619575 $ 10,114,929 § 127,732,441 § 141,738,985




STATE OF OHIO

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

REVENUES:
Unemployment Taxes. . . .......... ..
Federal Government. . .. ... ... . ..
Contributions from Plan Participants . .......................
InvestmentiIncome. .. ....... .. ... .. .. ...

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . .............. ... ... ......
General Government . . ... ....... ...
TOTAL EXPENDITURES . ... .........ooiieaeannnnn.

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES ... ... ... ...................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating Transfers-out . ... ... ..

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . .. ............
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES . . . .........................

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1. . ... et

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30............................

VARIABLE
UNEMPLOYMENT UNCLAIMED COLLEGE
COMPENSATION FUNDS SAVINGS PLAN
666,125 § — $ —
16,333 — —
— — 433,544
150,407 11,005 (5,812)
6,889 100,818 —
839,754 111,823 427,732
1,056,026 — —
— 54,456 —
1,056,026 54,456 —
(216,272) 57,367 427,732
(33,692) — —
(33,692) — —
(249,964) 57,367 427,732
2,535,513 286,252 —
2285549 § 343619 $ 427,732




TOTAL

$ 666,125
16,333

433,544
155,600
107,707

1,379,309

1,056,026
54,456
1,110,482

268,827

(33,692)
(33,692)

235,135

2,821,765

$ 3,056,900



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PENSION TRUST FUND
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash EQUIVaIENTS .............c..coveioiiiiiiieieieee e

Receivables:

Employer's Contributions...............cccccueeeeiooieeieeiiieeaee.
Employees’ Contributions................ccccovvueeeeesceeeeeeasnnnnn.
INEEIESE ...

Investments:

Government and Corporate Bonds ............c..ccccevveeveeennn.
COMMON SEOCK ..o
Real ESIate ..........oovueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
Other INVESIMENLS ..........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaea

Total INVeSIMENTS ........cooeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeean
Collateral on Lent S€CUIItIES..........ccueeeeeeeeeeeiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeenn,

OFREE ASSELS ...t

Total CUrrent ASSELS .......eueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn

Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS ...

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable ..............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeaea e
Accrued Healthcare Benefits ............cccooeveeeiiciieieeiiiieeee,
Wages Payable............cccccoiiiiiiiiiiieaea e
Obligations Under Securities Lending..............cc.ccccevevvennnn.
Other Lia@bilities ..............ccouiioieeeeiieeee e

TOTAL LIABILITIES ...........cccooiiiiiii e,

FUND BALANCE RESERVED FOR EMPLOYEES'

PENSION AND POSTEMPLOYMENT

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS .............cccooiiiiic

(as of December 31, 2000)

POST-
PENSION EMPLOYMENT TOTAL

70,755 $ 12,291 $ 83,046
1,642 390 1,932
1,146 — 1,146
1,627 282 1,909

34 6 40
4,349 678 5,027
98,752 17,154 115,906
198,653 34,508 233,161
60,798 10,561 71,359
86,146 14,964 101,110
444,349 77,187 521,536
8,330 1,447 9,777
15 3 18
527,798 91,606 619,404
145 26 171
527,943 91,632 619,575
573 100 673

— 676 676

72 13 85
8,330 1,447 9,777
40 6 46
9,015 2,242 11,257
518,928 $ 89,390 $ 608,318




STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
STAROHIO INVESTMENT TRUST FUND
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Investments:
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations..................cccccccvveeennn. $ 8,189,294
Commercial PAPer...............ccueeeiieieiieeeeeae e 312,048
Repurchase AQre€meENts..........uuuuuueeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeiieveveaeveanes 15,740

Collateral on Lent SECUIHIES. ..............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeicieaaeeans 1,682,266

Interest RECEIVADIE...............c.ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 15,581
TOTAL ASSETS ...t et e 10,114,929

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Obligations Under Securities Lending.................ccccooieeiiiiieeieeenns 1,582,266
Investment Trade Payable................cccccirieeiiiiiiiiiieiaaaaaeaaeaeae 134,602
OLREI Li@DIMItIES ..ot eeeeeeeee e e 398
TOTAL LIABILITIES ... e 1,717,266
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST
FOR POOL PARTICIPANTS ..., $ 8,397,663

THE PRICING OF SHARES
Shares Outstanding (unlimited shares authorized)...................... $ 8397,663

Net Asset Value, offering and redemption price per share.......... $1.00



STATE OF OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

HOLDING AND DISTRIBUTION
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer .............cccccceeuu..
Cash and Cash Equivalents ............c.ccc..c.......
Collateral on Lent Securities ...............cc........
Other Receivables ............eeeeeeeevveeiiiiiaaaaaaann,

TOtAl ASSELS ..o

LIABILITIES

Obligations Under Securities Lending.............
Intergovernmental Payable ..................c..........
Due to Other FUNAS ..........cccooveeeieiiieeee
Refund and Other Liabilities ...........................

Total Liabilities .............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiiaana.

CENTRALIZED CHILD SUPPORT
COLLECTIONS

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents ...........................
Total ASSELS ...ccooviiieeeieeee e

LIABILITIES

Refund and Other Liabilities ...........................
Total Liabilities .............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiieeaane.

OHIO BUILDING AUTHORITY
ASSETS

INVesStments ..........cccceeeeeeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee,
Other Receivables ............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeannnn..

TOtal ASSELS ..o

LIABILITIES

Refund and Other Liabilities ...........................
Total Liabilities .............cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiiaane.

TAX REFUNDS
ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer ............cccccccceeuu..
Collateral on Lent Securities............................

TOtal ASSELS ..o

LIABILITIES

Obligations Under Securities Lending.............
Refund and Other Liabilities ...........................

Total Liabilities .............ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiiieaaeas

BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2001

47,729 1,205,950 1,217,904 35,775
7,890 581,490 583,171 6,209
3,103 15,772 3,103 15,772
588 3,320 967 2,941
59,310 1,806,532 1,805,145 60,697
3,103 15,772 3,103 15,772
1,476 8,719 8,583 1,612
30,677 1,072,568 1,080,888 22,357
24,054 708,113 711,211 20,956
59,310 1,805,172 1,803,785 60,697
— 1,882,620 1,792,296 90,324

— 1,882,620 1,792,296 90,324

— 1,882,620 1,792,296 90,324

— 1,882,620 1,792,296 90,324
5,638 2,003 4,385 3,156
123 563 631 55
5,661 2,566 5,016 3,211
5,661 2,566 5,016 3,211
5,661 2,566 5,016 3,211
21,772 1,398,599 1,417,192 3,179
1,413 1,403 1,413 1,403
23,185 1,400,002 1,418,605 4,582
1,413 1,403 1,413 1,403
21,772 1,398,599 1,417,192 3,179
23,185 1,400,002 1,418,605 4,582




BALANCE

BALANCE

JULY 1, 2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2001
PAYROLL WITHHOLDING AND
FRINGE BENEFITS
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer ...............c............ $ 65,373 $ 1,930,794 1,939,751 $ 56,416
Cash and Cash Equivalents ........................... 802 144,183 143,793 1,192
Collateral on Lent Securities.......................... 4,294 24,768 4,294 24,768
Other Receivables ............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaannn... 215 1,824 1,884 155
Due from Other Funds .............cccccevvvvveeeeenen... 93 2,488 2,472 109
Total ASSELS ......ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeen $ 70,777 $ 2,104,057 2,092,194 $ 82,640
LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending............. $ 4,294 $ 24,768 4,294  $ 24,768
Intergovernmental Payable ............................ 1,086 480,128 463,552 17,662
Due to Other FUNdS ............ccooevuveeeeeeiaeeiaa. 3,208 174,832 171,080 6,960
Refund and Other Liabilities ........................... 62,189 1,348,127 1,377,066 33,250
Total Liabilities ............cccceeevevvecveeeeeeieiennnns $ 70,777 $ 2,027,855 2,015,992 $ 82,640
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
ASSETS
INVESIMENLS ..o, $ 133,368,078 $ 227,797,798 234,389,379 $ 126,776,497
Total ASSELS ......cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeaeann $ 133,368,078 $ 227,797,798 234,389,379 $ 126,776,497
LIABILITIES
Refund and Other Liabilities:
Liability to:
Public Employees Retirement System ...... $ 57,487,102 $ 56,659,371 57,500,903 $ 56,645,570
Ohio Police and Fire Fund......................... 9,271,154 18,464,762 18,732,556 9,003,360
School Employees Retirement System ..... 9,083,934 82,262,480 83,029,698 8,316,716
State Teachers Retirement System .......... 57,525,888 70,411,185 75,126,222 52,810,851
Total Liabilities ............ccceeveveevccveeeeeeieiennnns $ 133,368,078 $ 227,797,798 234,389,379 $ 126,776,497
OTHER
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer .............cccccccve..... $ 78,853 $ 1,620,291 1,626,003 $ 73,141
Cash and Cash Equivalents............................ 91,340 133,884,865 133,911,295 64,910
INVESIMENLS ... 16,270 7,224 5,615 17,879
Collateral on Lent Securities............................ 5,149 192,583 79,833 117,899
Other Receivables ...........ccccooeueeeeeeeueeeiaiiannn. 281 2,271 2,364 188
Due from Other Funds ..............ccccccvueeueeeennn... 102 2,004 1,983 123
Other ASSELS e 458,603 128,455 146,708 440,350
Total ASSELS ......ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 650,598 $ 135,837,693 135,773,801 $ 714,490
LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending............. $ 5,149 $ 192,583 79,833 $ 117,899
Intergovernmental Payable ............................ 77,752 1,618,316 1,625,061 71,007
Refund and Other Liabilities ........................... 567,697 133,987,957 134,030,070 525,584
Total Liabilities ............ccceeveeeevvcveeeeerieeennnns $ 650,598 $ 135,798,856 135,734,964 $ 714,490

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)
BALANCE BALANCE
JULY 1, 2000 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS JUNE 30, 2001
TOTAL AGENCY
ASSETS
Cash Equity with Treasurer ...............c............ $ 213,727 6,155,634 $ 6,200,850 $ 168,511
Cash and Cash Equivalents............................ 100,032 136,493,158 136,430,555 162,635
INVESEMENLS .o, 133,389,886 227,807,025 234,399,379 126,797,532
Collateral on Lent Securities............................ 13,959 234,526 88,643 159,842
Other Receivables ...........ccccooeueeeeeeeneeeiaiiannn. 1,207 7,978 5,846 3,339
Due from Other Funds ...............cccccvuueueeennn... 195 4,492 4,455 232
Other ASSELS oo 458,603 128,455 146,708 440,350
Total ASSELS ......ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeae $ 134,177,609 370,831,268 $ 377,276,436 $ 127,732,441
LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending............. $ 13,959 234,526  $ 88,643 § 159,842
Intergovernmental Payable ............................. 80,314 2,107,163 2,097,196 90,281
Due to Other FUNdS ............cccoevueeeeeeeeieeeeaa. 33,885 1,247,400 1,251,968 29,317
Refund and Other Liabilities ........................... 134,049,451 367,125,780 373,722,230 127,453,001
Total Liabilities ............ccceeeevevvvcveeeeveieeennnns $ 134,177,609 370,714,869 $ 377,160,037 $ 127,732,441
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or constructed
for use by the State for general governmental purposes. These include all fixed assets except
those accounted for in the proprietary, trust, and college and university funds.

180



STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS:
- T Lo I $ 234,180
BUIIGINGS. ...ttt ee e e e e e e nnnee s 2,971,739
Land IMPIrOVEIMENLS. ..........uuueeeeeieieeeieieeee ettt aaaaaaaaaaaaaeeeaeas 185,542
Machinery and EQUIPIMENT...............coooeeeetett e e e e e eessses e 256,155
Y 21 (I V =] o] (=T 265,750
CONSIIUCHON-IN-PIrOGIESS. .......ceeeeeieiee ettt 291,793

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ..ot $ 4,205,159

INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE:

ACQUIRED BEFORE JULY 1, 987 ... ettt et eeeeiiiiieeeen $ 1,009,580

ACQUIRED ON OR AFTER JULY 1, 1987:
General FUNA REVENUES ............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeetteteee e eeeeeitaeaaanaanaaes 213,445
Special Revenue FUNA REVENUES ...........ccccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiveeeveeeaaaaaaan 663,772
Capital Projects Funds:
Special Obligation BONAS .............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeee et eeseeaa e e 2,261,855
Certificates Of PartiCipation .............ccccueeeeceiueeeeeeeeieiieeeeesiieeeeeeeserieaeeeseaeaaan 4,044
|3 0T = 11 [o ) o 52,463

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ..........cccocviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiea, $ 4,205,159



STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION

JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

REPORTING FUNCTION:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education .............
Higher Education Support ..........c.cccceveevevscenennn.
Public Assistance and Medicaid ............................
Health and Human Services ...........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeennnn.

Justice and Public Protection ...................cccc........
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources

Transportation ................ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeccririeeerereananan
General GoVernment ............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns
Community and Economic Development ..............

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ALLOCATED TO FUNCTIONS. .............ovvviiveviiiaaann e,

Construction-in-Progress ...........ccccueceeesceeeesnune..

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ........coovvveeeeeiieeeaen

LAND MACHINERY
IMPROVE- AND STATE

LAND BUILDINGS MENTS EQUIPMENT VEHICLES TOTAL
$ 14,123 $ 119,449 $ 3,654 $ 6,740 $ 1,313 $ 145279
— — — 399 — 399
— — — 19,798 201 19,999
5,886 475,552 56,682 33,064 10,189 581,373
11,097 1,332,362 54,289 45,731 62,026 1,605,505
158,768 168,318 38,320 21,482 34,554 421,442
20,833 262,462 13,5636 78,659 141,945 517,435
20,199 544,307 13,161 47,940 9,999 635,606
3,274 69,289 5,900 2,342 5,623 86,328
$ 234,180 $ 2,971,739 $ 185,542 $ 256,155 $ 265,750 3,913,366
291,793

$ 4,205,159



STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

BEGINNING DELETIONS/
BALANCE BALANCE NET BALANCE
JULY 1, 2000 ADJUSTMENTS ADDITIONS TRANSFERS JUNE 30, 2001
REPORTING FUNCTION:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education ............... $ 135,887 $ (1,207) $ 10,640 $ (41) $ 145,279
Higher Education Support .............cccoceeeeceeescceenne. 418 — 17 (36) 399
Public Assistance and Medicaid ............................. 18,147 901 1,145 (194) 19,999
Health and Human Services ............cccccevcveceennn.. 581,733 (17,743) 28,491 (11,108) 581,373
Justice and Public Protection ..............cccccccceeveueane. 1,266,571 47,993 198,472 (7,531) 1,505,505
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources .. 399,687 (1,550) 25,304 (1,999) 421,442
Transportation .............cccccevceeeceesceeesiesie e 500,667 (1,541) 32,039 (13,730) 517,435
General Government ............cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeieeeaaaens 608,723 (1,301) 32,202 (4,018) 635,606
Community and Economic Development ................ 85,952 (133) 1,163 (654) 86,328

TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ALLOCATED TO FUNCTIONS ......ocovooveeveeeeeeereean 3,597,785 25,419 329,473 (39,311) 3,913,366
Construction-in-Progress ...........cccucveeivceeecscuenanans 560,445 (38,485) 145,127 (375,294) 291,793
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS .......cccoeeviiieiieeiiaeee $ 4,158,230 $  (13,066) $ 474,600 $ (414,605) $ 4,205,159




DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS

The Discretely Presented Component Unit Funds account for the financial activities of the State of
Ohio’s component units, organizations that are legally separate from the State’s primary government
and for which the primary government is financially accountable. The Discretely Presented Component
Unit Funds are presented in three separate reporting categories: Governmental Funds, Proprietary

Funds, and College and University Funds.

Governmental Funds

The School Facilities Commission Fund ac-
counts for the revenues and expenditures as-
sociated with the School Facilities Commis-
sion’s operations, including its capital grant pro-
grams that provide assistance to local school
districts for the construction of school buildings.

Proprietary Funds

The Ohio Water Development Authority
Fund accounts for the revenues and expenses
associated with the Ohio Water Development
Authority’s operations and its programs, which
provide financial assistance to local govern-
ments for the construction of wastewater and
sewage facilities.

College and University Funds

The Ohio State University Fund accounts for
operations of Ohio State University, its hospi-
tals and clinics, the Ohio State University
Foundation, the Ohio Agricultural Research and
Development Center, the Ohio Supercomputer
Center, the Ohio State University Research
Foundation, the Ohio State University Student
Loan Foundation, Inc., the Transportation Re-
search Center of Ohio, Inc., Campus Partners
for Community Urban Redevelopment, Inc.,
University Affiliates, Inc., Reading Recovery
and Early Literacy, Inc., Ohio State University
Retirees Association, and OSU Managed
Health Care Systems, Inc.

The University of Cincinnati Fund accounts
for the operations of the University of Cincin-
nati, and the University of Cincinnati Founda-
tion and the Endowment Fund Association of
the University of Cincinnati.
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The Ohio University Fund accounts for the
operations of Ohio University located in Athens,
Ohio.

The Miami University Fund accounts for the
operations of Miami University located in Ox-
ford, Ohio.

The University of Akron Fund accounts for
the operations of the University of Akron.

The Bowling Green State University Fund
accounts for the operations of Bowling Green
State University.

The Kent State University Fund accounts for
the operations of Kent State University.

The University of Toledo Fund accounts for
the operations of the University of Toledo, in-
cluding the University of Toledo Real Estate
Corporation.

The Cleveland State University Fund ac-
counts for the operations of Cleveland State
University.

The Youngstown State University Fund ac-
counts for the operations of Youngstown State
University.

The Wright State University Fund accounts
for the operations of Wright State University
located in Dayton, Ohio.

The Shawnee State University Fund accounts
for the operations of Shawnee State University
located in Portsmouth, Ohio.



The Central State University Fund accounts
for the operations of Central State University
located in Wilberforce, Ohio.

The Medical College of Ohio Fund accounts
for the operations of the Medical College of
Ohio at Toledo and its hospital.

The Terra State Community College Fund
accounts for the operations of Terra State
Community College located in Fremont, Ohio.

The Columbus State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of Columbus
State Community College and the Columbus
State Community College Development Foun-
dation, Inc.

The Clark State Community College Fund
accounts for the operations of Clark State
Community College located in Springfield,
Ohio.

The Edison State Community College Fund
accounts for the operations of Edison State
Community College located in Piqua, Ohio.

The Southern State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of Southern
State Community College located in Hillsboro,
Ohio.

The Washington State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of Washing-
ton State Community College located in Mari-
etta, Ohio.

The Cincinnati State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of Cincin-
nati State Community College.

The Northwest State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of North-
west State Community College located in
Archbold, Ohio.

The Owens State Community College
Fund accounts for the operations of Owens
State Community College located in Toledo,
Ohio.
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STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer. . ... ......... ..o
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... ........... .. .
Investments. . .. ... ... ..
Collateral on Lent Securities . . .. ...

Receivables:

Intergovernmental . .. ...... .. .. ... ...
Loans, Net . . . ...

Other

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. . .. ............ ... ..o .
INVESIMENLS . . . .o

Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . .......... ...
Accrued Liabilities . . .. ... ...
Obligations Under Securities Lending. .. ..............................
Intergovernmental Payable . . ... ... ... .. .. . ...
Dueto Other FUNGS. . .. ... .. e
Deferred ReVenuUe. . .. ... ...
Refund and Other Liabilities . . .. .......... . ... . .
Revenue Bondsand Notes . . .. ...... ... .. ... . . ... i ..
Certificates of Participation . . ............. ... ...

Total Liabilities . . . .. ... ... .

Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Investment in General Fixed ASSetS . . . ...

Retained Earnings:

UNreServed. . .. ...

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances. . . ... .
Restricted Fund Balances . . .............. ..o ..
Unreserved/Designated . . .. ... ... .. ... .. . ... ...
Unreserved/Undesignated. ... ........... ... . ....iiiiiiiinainn..

Total Fund Equity

and Other Crediits . .. ... ... s

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY

ANDOTHERCREDITS. . ........... ... ... ............

Due from Other Funds . .. ... ... .. .. .. . .
INVENTONIES. . . . o o e

Other ASSELS . . . o o e

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY
OHIO
SCHOOL WATER
FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT
COMMISSION AUTHORITY

$ 723,211 $ 68
— 14,659
— 905,569

315,784 —
— 307
1,200 2,171,815
3,896 8
— 185
— 564
— 17,321
$ 1,044,091 $ 3,110,496
$ 9,441 $ 31,300
130 6,187

315,784 —
999,278 6,758
— 185
83 6,631
— 1,398,142
1,324,716 1,449,203
— 1,661,293

157 —

(280,782) —
(280,625) 1,661,293
$ 1,044,091 $ 3,110,496



COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

OHIO UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY  BOWLING GREEN KENT UNIVERSITY
STATE OF OHIO MIAMI OF STATE STATE OF
UNIVERSITY CINCINNATI UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY AKRON UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY TOLEDO
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — 8 — $ — $ —

76,373 51,399 2,655 40,328 125 2,959 2,567 775
1,602,894 848,749 135,381 201,510 96,987 126,437 276,156 91,627

9,383 — 3,493 — — 134 — 772

63,595 30,225 10,002 8,549 9,939 8,097 19,690 13,635

318,416 102,618 24,083 24,833 22,085 6,603 15,895 12,431

344,801 271,725 6,578 19,419 625 17,378 20,747 8,522

19,046 4,722 1,797 3,016 1,194 2,109 2,176 244

— — — — — 109 — —

— — 36,152 — 82,874 — — 30,807

3,100,846 1,415,351 675,968 625,607 589,642 422,179 537,727 447,930

37,754 680,514 10,225 947 6,429 203 6,763 9,011

$ 5,573,108 $ 3,405,303 $ 906,334 $ 924209 $ 809,900 $ 586,208 $ 881,721 $ 615,754
$ 95469 $ 30,696 $ 16,434 $ 13,457 $ 6279 $ 6694 $ 10,210 $ 12,321
235,461 244,222 35,849 33,044 24,612 20,797 36,666 18,788

344,801 271,725 6,578 19,419 625 17,378 20,747 8,522

88,974 8,345 14,904 7,414 14,788 10,585 16,799 17,617

38,497 63,156 6,003 6,052 5,981 2,195 3,632 269

395,150 434,684 130,845 52,381 161,153 84,613 220,790 117,553

9,675 1,430 — — — — — —

1,208,027 1,054,258 210,613 131,767 213,438 142,262 308,844 175,070
2,727,901 1,088,807 543,636 565,681 500,639 351,086 463,148 364,238
1,376,723 1,219,584 54,888 102,114 34,254 51,556 28,676 26,751

— — 95,766 114,691 61,569 29,021 79,710 40,602

260,457 42,654 1,431 9,956 — 12,283 1,343 9,093
4,365,081 2,351,045 695,721 792,442 596,462 443,946 572,877 440,684

$ 5,573,108 $ 3,405,303 $ 906,334 $ 924209 $ 809,900 $ 586,208 $ 881,721 $ 615,754

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
(continued)
COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES
CLEVELAND YOUNGSTOWN WRIGHT SHAWNEE
STATE STATE STATE STATE
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY
ASSETS
Cash Equity With TreaSUrer. . . . ..........uuuueeeenneaaaaaaeenn... $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... .............. ... 2,614 3,925 2,751 10,169
INVESIMENLS. . . . . . 44,830 23,248 80,881 7,568
Collateral on Lent Securities . . . ... — —_— — —
Receivables:
Intergovernmental . . ....... ... ... ... — 212 2,617 —_—
Loans, Net . . . ... ... 9,849 2,900 15,149 51
Other . o 11,200 5,551 15,166 2,051
Due from Other FuNds . ... ........ ... i — 7,691 11,092 1,955
INVENTONIES. . . . . o o 173 1,501 673 59
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents. . . ............ ... ... ...cciuiou.. - 153 84 347
INVesStMeENts . . .. ... . —_— 5,430 —_— 183
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) . .. ................... 490,724 273,240 347,829 92,471
Other ASSELS . . . o ot e 4,290 1,020 7,571 279
TOTAL ASSETS . ... $ 563,680 $ 324,871 $ 483,813 $ 115,133
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable . . .......... .. .. ... $ 2729 $ 1,102 $ 6,491 $ 911
Accrued Liabilities . . . . .. ... ... 12,789 13,335 20,205 3,832
Obligations Under Securities Lending. .. ........................... — — — —
Intergovernmental Payable . . ... ... ... ... .. . ... . — — — —
Dueto Other FUNGS. . . ... e — 7,691 11,092 1,955
Deferred REVENUE. . . . .. ... ... et 12,139 2,219 10,184 364
Refund and Other Liabilities . . . ........... ... ... 5,919 231 8,847 1
Revenue Bonds and Notes . . . .......... .. i, 10,995 15,710 10,629 3,470
Certificates of Participation . . ............. ..., — — — —
Total Liabilities . . . . . .. ... 44,571 40,288 67,448 10,533
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Investment in General Fixed ASSets . ... .........c.uiiiiiiieiinnn. 478,331 256,871 334,596 89,065
Retained Earnings:
UNreserved. . . ......o. —_— —_— —_— —_—
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
EncumbrancCes. . . ....... .. —_— —_— —_— —_—
Restricted Fund Balances . .. .............c. o uieiieiinnnnon. 23,008 16,173 35,733 2,845
Unreserved/Designated . . . .. ........ .o 15,168 8,528 46,036 5,324
Unreserved/Undesignated . .. ................ ... ... 2,602 3,011 — 7,366
Total Fund Equity
and Other Credits . .......... ... ieiiiianan.. 519,109 284,583 416,365 104,600

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY
ANDOTHERCREDITS. ............................. $ 563,680 $ 324,871 $ 483,813 $ 115,133




COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

TERRA COLUMBUS SOUTHERN WASHINGTON
CENTRAL MEDICAL STATE STATE CLARK STATE  EDISON STATE STATE STATE
STATE COLLEGE COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
UNIVERSITY OF OHIO COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE
$ — $ — 8 — 8 — 8 — $ — $ — 8 —
6,447 — 746 50,114 2,973 776 54 1,403
— 35,526 1,944 12,422 2,558 1,479 875 101
3,449 21,586 470 598 — 7 — 1,016
324 5,376 6 401 32 — 10 —
1,312 21,623 2411 5,583 1,694 2,308 1,696 565
2,815 — 692 4,813 188 498 97 530
— 3,441 276 1,571 179 164 102 89
4,318 — — 447 — 8 — 622
216 — — — — 276 179 —
101,164 328,991 38,197 129,592 43,465 24,279 27,096 23,977
221 460 38 — 683 86 137 32
$ 120,266 $ 417,003 $ 44,780 $ 205541 $ 51,772 $ 29881 $ 30,246 $ 28,335
$ 1,040 $ 7,659 $ 313 § 2487 $ 575 § 1 $ — 3 146
3,237 23,128 1,099 2,266 456 558 531 828
2815 — 692 4,813 188 498 97 530
4,464 — 1,445 5,976 574 1,728 895 926
1,042 5,454 — 4,585 752 — 14 —
3,347 — — 12,845 — 800 — —
15,945 36,241 3,549 32,972 2,545 3,565 1,537 2,430
101,164 327,761 38,197 114,824 43,418 23,479 26,966 24,466
1,268 9,136 53 3,282 2,288 567 452 —
1,889 2,275 648 26,833 1,687 2,250 — 226
— 41,590 2,333 27,630 1,834 — 1,291 1,213
104,321 380,762 41,231 172,569 49,227 26,296 28,709 25,905
$ 120,266 $ 417,003 $ 44,780 $ 205,541 $ 51,772 $ 29,881 $ 30,246 $ 28,335

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

ASSETS

Cash Equity with Treasurer. . ... ......... ..o
Cash and Cash Equivalents . ... .............. ...
Investments. . . ... ... ...
Collateral on Lent Securities . . .. ............ ..

Receivables:

Intergovernmental . .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ...
Loans, Net . . ...
Other .
Due from Other Funds . ... ... ... . . . . . .
INVENTONIES. . . . o o

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. . . ............ ... ... .c.ciiuiou..
INVESIMENTS . . . ..o
Fixed Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) . .. ...................
Other ASSEIS . . . . oo et e e e e

TOTALASSETS ...... ... ... i

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable . . . .......... ... .
Accrued Liabilities . . .. ... ... .
Obligations Under Securities Lending. .. ...........................
Intergovernmental Payable . . ... ......... ... .. . ... .
Dueto Other FUNGS. . . ... . e
Deferred Revenue. . .. ......... e
Refund and Other Liabilities . . .. ............. . ...
Revenue Bondsand Notes . . .. ............. ... . ... ...
Certificates of Participation . . ............. ...

Total Liabilities . . . . .. .. ...

Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Investment in General Fixed ASSetS . .. ... .

Retained Earnings:

UNreserved. . . ...

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:

EncumbrancCes. . . ....... ..
Restricted Fund Balances . . ............. . ...,
Unreserved/Designated . . .. ... ... ... . ... ... ... ...
Unreserved/Undesignated . . ... .............. ...

Total Fund Equity

and Other Credits . .. ........ ... e

TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY

ANDOTHERCREDITS. .............................

COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES

CINCINNATI NORTHWEST OWENS
STATE STATE STATE
COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE TOTAL

$ — 3 — 3 — 3 723,279
3,285 4,634 9,909 291,640

4,980 — 10,961 4,512,683

— — — 315,784

— 1,039 1,380 46,463

355 — 608 2,371,808

5,372 487 7,748 615,635

2,202 — — 722,553

14 154 692 43,392

— 105 — 6,193

— — — 156,117

66,674 23,436 91,438 9,918,387

182 — 1,444 785,610

$ 83,064 $ 29,855 $ 124,180 $ 20,509,544
$ 1,477 $ 532 § 1,699 $ 259,463
3,932 595 4,127 746,674

— — — 315,784

— — 679 1,006,715

2,202 — — 722,553

2,513 278 6,495 229,626

19 12 54 159,429

— — — 3,053,107

— — — 11,105

70,143 1417 13,054 6,504,456

66,251 23,452 91,438 8,645,415

— — — 1,661,293

— — — 157

384 679 829 2,991,243

5175 2,984 950 541,332

1,111 1,323 17,909 165,648

72,921 28,438 111,126 14,005,088

$ 83,064 $ 29,855 $ 124,180 $ 20,509,544
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STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

OHIO UNIVERSITY
STATE OF OHIO
UNIVERSITY CINCINNATI UNIVERSITY
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS:
Unrestricted Current Fund ReVenues ................cccccccceeeeeeeeeeennn. $ 1,297,686 $ 340,656 $ 233,211
Local Appropriations-Restricted ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeiniiinnnns 17,885 27 —
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted ...........ccccccoveeeeeeeeeeenannn. 208,433 114,848 38,815
State Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccoeeeeeeveeeveeeeenannn. 43,260 9,997 12,872
Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccoeeeeeeeieeeeeeeennnnn.. 3,469 257 513
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts-Restricted ..............cccc.......... 352,625 96,384 14,487
Endowment Income-Restricted ...............oooueeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeinnn. 14,840 20,697 1,737
Investment Income-Restricted .............ccocveeeveviveeeeesiiiieaeeeene (212,553) (57,306) (5,349)
Interest on Loans Receivable ..............ccooeeuueeeeeeeneeiiiieeeieiieeeeeenn. 2,448 783 184
Investment in Plant-Additions ..................cooeeeeucveeeeeeeeieeeeeinnn. 329,310 84,879 87,192
(01117 N — 3,752 67,100
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS ..........ccccevvvvveveannn. 2,057,403 614,974 450,762
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS:
Educational and General Expenditures .............cccccccoovocveneeennnn. 1,370,357 603,782 362,996
Auxiliary Enterprises EXpenditures .............ccccccoeeeevvveeeeeeviivennnannn. 150,357 66,446 61,091
Hospital EXPENAITUIES ..............ooeieeeiiieeeeee e 627,970 — 10,020
Indirect CoStS RECOVEIEd .........cccoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 49,982 27,336 5,198
Grant Refunds and AdjuSIMents ...........ccooccooeeeeieiiiiieeeeeee — 475 97
Loan Cancellations and Write-offs ........cccceeeeeeeeeeeiiieeiiiieeeeeeeeenn. 452 190 54
Administrative and Collection COSES .........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiieeaeeeaeeennnn, 659 — —
Expended for Plant Facilities ..................ccoveeeevecieiiaeeeeiiirieaeeesn, 207,686 58,735 69,740
Retirement of Indebtedness .............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeienn 29,961 26,488 10,296
Interest on INAebtedNESS ............ouueeeeeeeeieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 18,117 17,040 4,176
Investment in Plant-Deductions ..............cccccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeennnn, 33,543 13,808 59,732
(01117 N 905 13,5650 —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS .................... 2,489,989 827,850 583,400
TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ..............c.ccc........ 515,236 245,908 177,076
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE ..... 82,650 33,032 44,438
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle.................... — — —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FORTHE YEAR ... 82,650 33,032 44,438
FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated) ............ 4,282,431 2,318,013 651,283

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30 .......... $ 4,365,081 $ 2,351,045 $ 695721




BOWLING

UNIVERSITY GREEN KENT UNIVERSITY CLEVELAND
MIAMI OF STATE STATE OF STATE
UNIVERSITY AKRON UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY TOLEDO UNIVERSITY

$ 248,384 $ 148,508 $ 190,943 $ 216,001 $ 165,582 $ 85,858

11,800 20,500 13,902 33,984 19,578 15,309

3,921 1,101 3,978 8,595 6,299 8,315
337 579 98 199 875 600
14,260 40,729 2,639 4,620 8,395 6,309
3,179 704 10,233 5 — 1,246
(11,232) (14,468) 5,024 147 (1,427) 215
152 180 — 428 194 307
57,014 33,105 57,266 25,468 24,941 13,433
480 1,576 56,677 7,557 908 —
328,295 232,514 340,760 297,004 225,345 131,592
253,981 253,175 220,213 297,187 214,876 176,832
78,571 32,206 58,347 57,969 46,435 10,735
1,349 3,015 1,151 2,434 1,955 1,426
72 55 — 83 — —
66 203 9 517 157 63
122 787 77 13 — 315
43,753 20,524 54,701 23,150 15,614 8,188
4,740 2,821 3,245 5,523 5,235 9,995
2,898 9,147 3,335 7,781 4,858 810
3,681 6,164 57,761 3,943 15,914 1,055
21 1,692 25,537 — 708 —
389,254 329,789 424,376 398,600 305,752 209,419
110,947 121,452 102,681 141,065 93,570 103,051
49,988 24,177 19,065 39,469 13,163 25,224
49,988 24,177 19,065 39,469 13,163 25,224
742,454 572,285 424,881 533,408 427,521 493,885

$ 792,442 $ 596,462 $ 443,946 $ 572,877 $ 440,684 $ 519,109

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS:
Unrestricted Current Fund ReVENUES ..........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn,
Local Appropriations-Restricted ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeiniiinnnns
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............ccccevvvvuvevvevennnn.
State Grants and Contracts-Restricted ..............cccceeeeevevvvvvvevenennn.
Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............ccccceeeeevvcrerervennnn.
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts-Restricted ..............cccc..........
Endowment Income-Restricted ...............ccooveevvvveeeeeeeeaaeeeirinnn.
Investment Income-Restricted .............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiieieeeeeaeeennnn,
Interest on Loans Receivable .................cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeernnnn.

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS:
Educational and General Expenditures .............cccccccooveevieneeennin.
Auxiliary Enterprises EXpenditures ............cccoovuvveieeeeeieieieeiienn,
Hospital EXPENAITUIES ..............ooeieeeiiieeeeee e
Indirect Costs RECOVEIed ...........cccoovvceeiiiieeeieeee e
Grant Refunds and AdjuSIMents ...........ccooecoeeeeieiiiieeeeeee
Loan Cancellations and WIite-0ffs ...........cccccvevivcieeescieieieeaen
Administrative and Collection COSES .............ccoooveeeiciiieiaeeee.
Expended for Plant Facilities .................cccovueeeeeevieeeaeeeeiciieaeees,
Retirement of Indebtedness .............cccoooiooiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee

TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ..............c.ccc.........

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE...

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle....................
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FORTHE YEAR.........coovviiiiiiiiiieeaee
FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated) ............

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30 ..........

YOUNGSTOWN WRIGHT SHAWNEE
STATE STATE STATE
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY
$ 68,909 $ 110,849 $ 13,851
9,878 26,804 6,155
7,836 7,935 2,670
166 1,039 283
8,540 14,931 1,466
269 164 —
(454) 1,278 36
42 279 —
4,092 21,602 1,841
50 129 62
99,328 185,010 26,364
114,846 222,741 37,156
18,571 16,444 3,358
242 4,439 —
82 276 1
— 144 —
2,435 15,036 697
795 1,590 266
781 687 242
1,203 8,430 32
8 174 453
138,963 269,996 42,205
52,356 107,771 16,777
12,721 22,785 936
(45,770) — —
(33,049) 22,785 936
317,632 393,580 103,664
$ 284,583 $ 416,365 $ 104,600




TERRA

COLUMBUS

CENTRAL MEDICAL STATE STATE CLARK STATE EDISON STATE

STATE COLLEGE COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY

UNIVERSITY OF OHIO COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE

$ 9,835 $ 195566 $ 5,830 $ 49201 $ 8,446 $ 6,768
13,820 14,029 2,170 8,159 2,447 1,397
1,063 3,457 379 364 548 793

6 — 91 — 606 —

860 2,012 282 1,123 218 —
46 — — — — 5

56 1,982 35 (366) 93 —

192 119 — 3 — —
4,738 11,445 931 6,179 750 1,015
6 — 93 270 24 492
30,622 228,610 9,811 64,933 13,132 10,470
32,089 89,324 15,094 87,419 16,770 14,243
3,201 3,965 983 8,294 2,250 929

— 148,304 — — — —

567 — — — — —

15 — — 40 — —

7,195 8,721 366 — — —

226 — — — —
165 — — — — 64
157 2,127 49 718 489 7

— — 120 353 — —
43,615 252,441 16,612 96,824 19,509 15,243
21,508 42,610 7,609 43,992 7,867 6,210
8,515 18,779 808 12,101 1,490 1,437
8,515 18,779 808 12,101 1,490 1,437
95,806 361,983 40,423 160,468 47,737 24,859
$ 104,321 $ 380,762 $ 41,231 $ 172,569 $ 49,227 $ 26,296

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(continued)

SOUTHERN WASHINGTON CINCINNATI
STATE STATE STATE
COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE
REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS:
Unrestricted Current Fund RevVenues ................cc.ccccceeeeeeeeeeennn. 3 6,098 $ 5,764 3 21,742
Local Appropriations-Restricted ...............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeiniiinnnns — — —
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted ............cccccooeeeeeeeeeeenannnn. 3,397 2,817 4,219
State Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............cccceeeeeeeieeeeeeeennnnn. 952 665 2,878
Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted .............ccccceeeeevvcrerervennnn. 284 — 81
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts-Restricted ..............cccc.......... 125 — 900
Endowment Income-Restricted ..............ccoveeveeieeciieeeeeiiiieaeeesin, — (11) —
Investment Income-Restricted .............ccoeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeiiiiieeeeeaeeeennn, — — —
Interest on Loans Receivable ..................coooeeeeueeeeeeeeeeieeeeernnnn. — — 9
Investment in Plant-Additions .................ccoooeeeuevceeeeeeeieeeeeinnn. 1,322 156 1,227
(01117 N 270 — 2
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS ...........cccevvvvevaaann, 12,448 9,391 31,058
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS:
Educational and General Expenditures .............cccccccoovvcveeeeennii. 13,585 13,489 49,388
Auxiliary Enterprises EXpenditures .............ccccccoeeeevvveeeeeeviivennnannn. 1,624 814 920
Hospital EXPENAITUIES ..............ooeieeeiiieeeeee e — — —
Indirect COStS RECOVEIEA ...........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaann — — —
Grant Refunds and AdjuSIMents .............cooccoeeeeieiiiieeeeeeee — — —
Loan Cancellations and Write-offs .........cccueeeeeeeeeeeieieiiieieieeeieeenn. 5 — 35
Administrative and Collection COSES .........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiieeaeeeaeeennnn, — — 12
Expended for Plant Facilities .................ccoovueeeeeecieeeaeeeeiiieeaeeesn, 502 175 628
Retirement of Indebtedness .............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeiieannn — — —
Interest on INAebtedness ...............ueeeeeeeeeieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeee — —
Investment in Plant-Deductions ..............cccoeuueeeeeeeneeeiiieeeeeiieeeen, — 176 4,118
(01117 N 361 — —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS .................... 16,077 14,654 55,101
TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers from Primary Government ..............c.ccc......... 4,987 5,373 21,778
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR THE YEAR BEFORE
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE... 1,358 110 (2,265)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle.................... — — —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) FORTHE YEAR...........ccovoeeeeeeeeee e 1,358 110 (2,265)
FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated) ............ 27,351 25,795 75,186

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30 .......... $ 28,709 $ 25,905 $ 72,921




NORTHWEST OWENS

STATE STATE
COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE COLLEGE TOTAL

$ 6,812 $ 28565 $ 3,465,065
— — 17,912
1,341 8,229 582,031
1,938 2,736 132,552

_ — 9,483

— — 570,905

— — 53,114

— 7 (294,282)

— 23 5,343

705 4,223 772,834

218 485 140,151
11,014 44,268 5,455,108
13,586 64,827 4,537,956
1,274 6,467 631,251

_ — 786,294

_ — 99,094

— — 817

— 27 2,192

— — 2,129

— 1,265 539,111

— — 101,181

— — 70,101

56 — 213,163

— 43,882
14,916 72,586 7,027,171
6,157 36,870 1,992,851
2,255 8,552 420,788
_ — (45,770)
2,255 8,552 375,018
26,183 102,574 12,249,402

$ 28,438 $ 111,126 $ 12,624,420




STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

REVENUES:

Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges .............cccccccvvuveeeeeennnn.

Local APPropriations ..............uuuuuueuuiieieeeeeeeesieeeeeeccnninanns
Federal Grants and Contracts ...........cccceeeeevevvvvuveveeeeeeennnnnnn.

State Grants and CONracts ...........oeuuueeeeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecesesennns
Local Grants and CONtracts ............ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeccnsennnnnn,
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts ...............ccccceuueeuveeeeeeeeeeeennn.
Endowment INCOME .............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et
SAleS @NA SEIVICES ..ot eeeeetiee e,

INvestment INCOME ...............eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
OLNEI SOUICES ...t eesaaeveeeaeenes

TOTAL REVENUES ..............oovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeee e

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL:

Instruction and Departmental Research .............ccccccooveccceeen..

Separately Budgeted Research ............cccocvveeeecievnaeenn,
PUBIIC SEIVICE ...

Academic SUPPOIT .........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e

StUAENt SEIVICES ...ttt
Institutional SUPPOITt ...........c.ccoveeeeeeeeeeeieee e

Operation and Maintenance of Plant ...............ccccccoeviiiiieneeennii.
Scholarships and FEIOWSRIPS ...........c..ccceeevceeeeaeeeiieaeeeeee

TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL .............cccceeeveeeee
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES .............oovvveeeiiiiiiiiiiiceceeeeeeiii,
HOSPITALS ...t

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ............ouvvveiiiviiiiiiiiiiiiiieieceeeeecee,

MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Principal and Interest ..............ooeveeeeeeeeieieieeeeeeeieieeccinns

Renewals and Replacements ..............cccccoeeeiiivoeiieeiiiieieeee

(@] 1= N
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET ..........ccccevevvneennnn.

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS ..........

OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS):
OPERATING TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ............

NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:

ADDITIONS/(DEDUCTIONS):

Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue .......

Indirect Costs ReCOVEred ...........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaeeeaeeeeernnnn.

TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) ...

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES

OHIO UNIVERSITY
STATE OF OHIO
UNIVERSITY CINCINNATI UNIVERSITY
$ 369,735 $ 174,907 $ 155,128
14,656 14 —
207,736 113,577 36,658
38,571 9,962 12,146
2,874 332 642
231,519 34,977 12,607
17,558 37,324 1,046
786,191 113,918 59,722
25,600 12,375 3,776
51,901 7,480 18,508
1,746,341 504,866 300,233
531,410 219,866 164,749
262,514 96,133 23,978
104,423 44,455 14,783
105,385 62,519 42,447
56,471 25,976 20,565
132,087 56,440 37,441
76,984 38,730 30,058
101,083 59,663 28,975
1,370,357 603,782 362,996
150,357 66,446 61,091
627,970 — 10,020
2,148,684 670,228 434,107
38,533 28,197 4,797
45 135 52
38,578 28,332 4,849
2,187,262 698,560 438,956
450,764 199,651 149,459
(35,350) (9,907) (6,130)
37,173 884 (1,108)
122,359 29,247 5,420
(49,982) (27,336) (5,198)
— (3,298) (96)
524,964 189,241 142,347
$ 84,043 $ (4,453) $ 3,624




BOWLING

UNIVERSITY GREEN KENT UNIVERSITY CLEVELAND
MIAMI OF STATE STATE OF STATE
UNIVERSITY AKRON UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY TOLEDO UNIVERSITY

$ 153,363 $ 98,884 $ 117,923 $ 145,120 $ 107,563 $ 70,116

11,622 20,554 13,100 33,377 19,251 15,178

3,919 1,623 3,925 8,921 10,376 9,034
621 523 95 268 1,379 629
13,588 19,402 3,940 6,452 11,768 6,026
4,337 2,333 — 11 1,525 1,246
77,694 40,174 61,461 48,125 41,929 10,970
9,558 4,914 4,996 11,912 3,279 2,434
1,572 293 4,636 5,475 1,929 907
276,274 188,700 210,076 259,661 198,999 116,540
124,059 101,091 88,459 131,517 99,978 69,253
7,339 16,193 4,068 13,238 10,931 12,807
1,974 10,598 10,061 14,925 5,186 8,225
29,667 29,164 28,251 30,904 24,419 17,090
18,766 12,625 18,993 24,951 15,784 18,338
26,777 31,974 23,309 26,177 19,730 21,200
22,157 18,701 13,667 23,256 12,958 14,333
23,242 32,955 33,405 32,220 25,889 15,586
253,981 253,301 220,213 297,188 214,875 176,832
78,571 32,206 58,347 57,969 46,435 10,735
332,552 285,507 278,560 355,157 261,310 187,567
7,547 6,567 5,519 7,465 9,964 1,555
— — 2,821 — — —
5 87 7 113 154 96
7,552 6,654 8,347 7,578 10,118 1,651
340,104 292,161 286,907 362,735 271,428 189,218
87,423 105,441 89,276 123,963 88,590 77,665
(13,769) (776) (2,394) (3,413) — (75)
(7,555) 887 596 5 (3,487) (273)
4,717 5,310 — 3,674 1,692 419
(1,349) (3,015) — (2,434) (1,955) (1,426)
(21) (49) 106 (82) — —
69,446 107,798 87,584 121,713 84,840 76,310
$ 5,616 $ 4,337 $ 10,753 $ 18,639 $ 12,411 $ 3,632

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)
(vuriuriueu)

REVENUES:

Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges .............cccccccovveeeeeennnn.
Local APPropriations ..............eeeeeeieieieieseseeeeeisieesseseseeeecnneninnnns
Federal Grants and COntracts ...........cccoeeeeeeevvvveeeeveeeeeeeeeeeanaaaannn
State Grants and CONracts ...........ouuuueeeeeiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeececessenennns
Local Grants and CONtracts ............cccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeeccinsensnnnn,
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts ...............cccccuuueuuveeeeeeeeneennnn,
Endowment INCOME .............ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteee e,
SAleS @NA SEIVICES ..ot eeeeetiee e,
INVeStMent INCOME ..............ueeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeee e,
OUNEI SOUICES ...ttt ettt essassseveeeanaees

TOTAL REVENUES ............oouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceeeee e

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL:

Instruction and Departmental Research .............ccccccooveecceean..
Separately Budgeted Research ..............ccoocuveeeevccveeeeeesccrennn.
PUDBIIC SEIVICE ...
Academic SUPPOIT .........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
StUAENE SEIVICES ..o
Institutional SUPPOIT ............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeecee e
Operation and Maintenance of Plant ...............ccccccoeviiiiieneeennii.
Scholarships and FEIOWSRIPS ...........c..ccceeevceeeeaeeeiieaeeeeee
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL ...........covveieieeee e
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES ...........cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees
HOSPITALS ...ttt e e

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ...........ooovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeee e

MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:

Principal and INterest ...............uweeeeeeeeeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeins
Renewals and Replacements ..............ccccoeeeiiovoeiieiiciieeeeee,
(01 1= S

TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET ...........ccccvvvvvvnnnnns
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS ...

OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS):

OPERATING TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT .....

NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:

ADDITIONS/(DEDUCTIONS):
Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue

Indirect Costs ReCOVEred ...........coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiceeeeaaeaaeeeeennn,

TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) ...
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES ........

YOUNGSTOWN WRIGHT SHAWNEE
STATE STATE STATE
UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY UNIVERSITY
51,350 $ 74,870 $ 10,786
9,338 26,108 6,155
6,257 6,866 3,617
197 909 334
7,273 10,925 1,501
— 232 —
14,556 22 362 977
1,638 3,684 907
1,653 5,821 1,005
92,262 151,777 25,282
47,943 82,241 12,043
884 21,930 —
5,573 8,242 4,426
9,192 40,575 2,428
6,678 12,004 2,793
15,596 21,033 5,447
8,510 13,539 3,086
20,470 23,177 6,932
114,846 222,741 37,155
18,571 16,444 3,359
133,417 239,185 40,514
1,445 2,283 462
30 126 —
1,475 2,409 462
134,892 241,594 40,976
48,429 97,185 15,474
(895) (3,273) (520)
(1,110) (528) —
1,234 9,337 (454)
(242) (4,439) —
— (16) —
47,416 98,266 14,500
4,786 $ 8,449 $ (1,194)




TERRA

COLUMBUS

CENTRAL MEDICAL STATE STATE CLARK STATE EDISON STATE

STATE COLLEGE COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY

UNIVERSITY OF OHIO COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE

$ 3,525 $ 11,576 $ 4,640 $ 35396 $ 6,025 $ 5,506
13,864 13,503 2,182 8,159 2,447 1,397
1,258 2,562 474 2,534 574 793

6 — 54 — 606 —
860 7,686 192 1,940 87 119
4,665 158,700 1,025 8,627 1,390 1,210
411 2,840 165 3,037 — 118
434 15,748 277 472 1,006 206
25,023 212,615 9,009 60,165 12,135 9,349
5,954 46,620 5,394 38,815 5,023 4,737

930 14,588 — — — —
7,124 501 2,542 1,935 2,491 1,035
5,585 5,370 521 2,813 697 326
2,959 1,559 1,047 7,450 1,519 2,782
6,865 11,714 3,035 12,558 2,933 3,080
4,406 8,012 1,357 12,450 1,959 1,186
5,134 972 1,198 10,966 1,991 124
38,957 89,336 15,094 86,987 16,613 13,270
4,115 3,966 983 8,295 2,250 929

— 148,304 — — — —
43,072 241,606 16,077 95,282 18,863 14,199
246 — — 1,572 — 46
246 — — 1,572 — 46
43,318 241,606 16,077 96,854 18,863 14,245
19,051 38,836 6,962 41,372 7,525 6,210
— (7,798) — — — (973)

— (807) — — —

— 88 16 — 704 —

567 3,330 — — — —

— — (125) — — —
19,618 33,649 6,853 41,372 8,229 5,237
$ 1,323 $ 4,658 $ (215) § 4,683 1,501 $ 341

(continued)



STATE OF OHIO

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS - COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

(UUIIUIILIUU/
SOUTHERN WASHINGTON CINCINNATI
STATE STATE STATE
COMMUNITY COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE COLLEGE COLLEGE
REVENUES:
Tuition, Fees and Other Student Charges ...........c.ccceeeveveeeene.. $ 3,638 $ 4,126 $ 17,516
Local APPropriations ..............eeeeeeieeeieiissieeeeeieieeeeeseseeeenneninenns — — —
Federal Grants and CONtracts ...........cccccceeeeeeeeieeiieeieiceeeaeeeeeeeeen, 3,397 2,817 4,219
State Grants and CONLracts ..........ccccccceeeeeeeeeieeiiiiiiiicieeeeeeeeeeeeen 1,672 1,256 2,878
Local Grants and CONracts ............cccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeceeeececiasensnnnn, 284 — 81
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts ...............cccccuuueeeveeeeeeeeeeennnn. 125 — 453
Endowment INCOME .............ceeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeee e, — — —
SalES @NA SCIVICES ... 1,607 990 3,134
INVESTMENT INCOME ... — 82 513
OLNEI SOUICES ...ttt teseteesssssseseeeeneees 132 150 579
TOTAL REVENUES .........ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaeaee e eeseeean e 10,855 9,421 29,373
EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS:
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL:
Instruction and Departmental Research .............cccccoovecceenen.. 3,903 4,357 18,918
Separately Budgeted Research .............ccoocueeeeeecceeneeesscrennnn.. — — —
PUDIIC S@IVICE ...t 1,444 — 2,844
Academic SUPPOIT .........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 987 1,497 4,032
StUAENTE SEIVICES ...t 918 1,359 3,682
Institutional SUPPOIT ............ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 970 3,047 8,644
Operation and Maintenance of Plant ..............cccccccoovieivieneennnins 985 913 4,613
Scholarships and FEIOWSRIPS ...........c..ccoeeeecvveeeaeeeiiiaeeeeiee 4,377 2,490 6,655
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL ............ccoeeeveeeeeeeieaeannn, 13,584 13,663 49,388
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES ............ooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeieeeeae 1,625 814 920
HOSPITALS ...ttt ettt e e eae e e aee s — — —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .........cooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenevenaeae e 15,209 14,477 50,308
MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Principal and INterest ..............ouweeeeeeeeeeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeins — — —
Renewals and Replacements ..............ccccoeeeiioooeiieeiiiieieeee, — — —
(01 =7 N — — —
TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET .........ccovveeeeeeeveaaaaaa — — —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS .......... 15,209 14,477 50,308
OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS):
OPERATING TRANSFERS FROM PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ............ 4,485 5,198 21,596
NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET:
Capital ImpProvements ..........ccccccccveeeeeeeeicieeeesecieeaeeeeesiiieaa e — — —
(O] 1= S — — —
ADDITIONS/(DEDUCTIONS):
Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue ....... — — —
Indirect CoSts RECOVEIEd ...........uueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns — — —
(01 1= N — — —
TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) ... 4,485 5,198 21,596
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES ........ $ 131 $ 142 $ 661




NORTHWEST OWENS
STATE STATE
COMMUNITY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE COLLEGE TOTAL

4774 $ 21,306 $ 1,647,773

— — 14,670

1,360 8,343 574,342
1,937 3,540 134,695

_ _ 9,834

392 — 371,832

— — 65,612

— 6,029 1,465,456

280 814 93,333

1,566 386 122,136
10,309 40,418 4,499,683
6,063 25,065 1,837,458

— 172 485,705

1,147 2,666 256,600

416 2,627 446,912

1,299 7,543 266,061
2,112 6,939 479,108

976 8,914 321,750

1,574 10,900 449,978
13,587 64,826 4,543,572
1,273 6,467 632,168

_ — 786,294
14,860 71,293 5,962,034

— — 116,198

— — 2,821

— — 850

_ — 119,869
14,860 71,293 6,081,903
5,673 35,651 1,725,879

— (3,019) (88,292)

— — 24,677

— — 183,763

— — (93,479)

— — (3,581)

5,673 32,632 1,748,967
1,122  § 1,757  § 166,747
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Table 1

STATE OF OHIO

REVENUE BY SOURCE

ALL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES(a)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(dollars in thousands)

SOURCE 2001 2000® 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
INCOME TaXES.....ooeeeeeeeiaaseane $ 8,302,892 §$ 8,098,155 $ 7,143,344 § 6,828,242 § 5,879,016 $ 5,890,587 $ 5,456,017 $ 5,032,305 $ 4,732,247 $ 4,408,835
Sales TaXes .....ccooeeveeceeseaieseaeae 6,248,705 6,233,089 5,834,299 5,560,402 5,262,460 5,003,024 4,763,109 4,475,796 4,001,398 3,739,576
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes... 1,726,263 1,697,970 1,817,641 1,969,190 1,897,439 1,831,300 1,810,396 1,585,557 1,500,475 1,393,528
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes................ 1,457,454 1,459,374 1,445,679 1,399,948 1,351,476 1,332,294 1,293,038 1,290,315 1,189,184 1,160,405
Other TaXes.........ccevceveeeseeceneanean. 930,338 913,086 917,505 890,551 872,869 842,688 852,166 881,994 750,120 673,472
Licenses, Permits and Fees @ ........ 1,219,605 1,156,379 1,137,577 1,109,895 1,073,907 805,605 982,507 927,398 759,001 680,558
Sales, Services and Charges .......... 83,891 86,981 81,731 76,091 79,051 106,517 103,620 66,198 57,831 44,189
Federal Government © ¢ ® 10,433,668 9,321,234 8,697,800 8,349,038 8,454,831 8,435,891 8,305,109 7,314,031 6,376,312 5,847,198
Tobacco Settlement......................... 315,812 412,270 — — — — — — — —
Investment Income ® ..................... 486,817 443,566 554,915 554,523 418,799 — — — — —
(011111 S 514,544 481,856 481,748 473,432 436,154 654,457 562,031 744,109 514,339 615,823

Total Revenues by Source ........... $31,719,989  $30,303,960 $28,112,239 $27,211,312 $25,726,002 $24,902,363 $24,127,993 $22,317,703  $19,880,907 $18,563,584
Notes:

(a) This table includes revenues for the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

(f)

@

For comparative purposes, the revenue data for fiscal year 2000 have been restated for the reclassification of the School Facilities Commission discretely presented component unit
from the Special Revenue Fund.

For comparative purposes, the revenue data for fiscal year 1992 have been restated for changes in the State of Ohio’s reporting entity that resulted from the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, for fiscal year 1993.

For comparative purposes, the “Licenses, Permits and Fees” revenue for fiscal years 1992 through 1999 have been restated to reflect hospital assessments. Previously, this revenue
had been included in “Other” revenue.

For fiscal years 1995 through 2001, federal government revenue includes the effects of recognizing the distribution of food stamp benefits as revenue, in accordance with the
reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. Federal government revenue data for
fiscal years 1992 through 1994, however, have not been restated for the effect of this change in accounting principle.

For fiscal year 2001, federal government revenue includes the effects of recognizing nonexchange revenue, in accordance with the reporting requirements of GASB Statement No.
33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. Federal government revenue data for fiscal years 1992 through 2000, however, have not been restated for
the effect of this change in accounting principle.

For fiscal years 1992 through 1996, investment income had been included in “Other” revenue.



Table 2
STATE OF OHIO

EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

ALL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES(a)
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(dollars in thousands)

FUNCTION 2001 2000® 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
Current:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.. $ 7,194,883 $ 6,634,181 $ 6,403,978 $ 5,927,471 $ 5,449,086 $ 5,251,805 $ 4,850,750 $ 4,599,643 $ 4,497,568 $ 4,195,920
Higher Education Support O 506,511 439,137 377,868 354,530 422,482 423,473 407,839 421,041 368,611 327,874
Public Assistance and Medicaid ©............ 10,894,942 9,488,379 8,561,652 8,462,208 8,367,021 7,936,578 8,306,686 7,682,159 6,774,178 6,174,833
Health and Human Services....................... 2,555,221 2,613,853 2,548,360 2,485,176 2,328,762 2,333,583 2,197,732 1,974,086 1,854,715 1,723,860
Justice and Public Protection..................... 2,232,421 2,167,402 2,035,739 1,870,507 1,761,521 1,588,026 1,403,177 1,202,815 1,060,778 970,653
Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources.............ccc............ 340,574 354,180 330,069 315,522 299,607 286,987 273,138 247,324 223,304 226,284
Transportation.................cccceeeceeeesceneann. 1,756,201 1,680,736 1,497,553 1,494,130 1,465,258 1,319,120 1,461,012 1,426,207 1,293,349 1,372,885
General Government...............ccc.cccccueeann... 468,791 575,576 661,011 625,275 528,592 371,996 355,154 347,443 335,470 336,046
Community and Economic Development.... 541,166 452,516 398,905 391,893 344,950 323,277 335,159 337,760 284,061 301,392
Intergovernmental @ 3,361,184 3,257,632 2,898,094 2,735,799 2,570,501 2,467,137 2,312,160 2,211,669 1,983,308 2,077,469
Capital Outlay O e, 411,817 629,753 1,256,271 1,248,346 1,138,286 884,456 872,236 893,279 739,463 724,823
Debt SEIVICe ..o 1,137,537 1,053,995 1,024,125 1,022,418 1,033,948 909,134 801,994 1,064,523 681,207 764,294
Total Expenditures by Function................. $31,401,248 $29,347,340 $27,993,625 $26,933,275 $25,710,014 $24,095,572 $23,577,037 $22,407,949 $20,096,012 $19,196,333
Notes:

(a) This table includes expenditures for the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

(b) For comparative purposes, the expenditure data for fiscal year 2000 have been restated for the reclassification of the School Facilities Commission discretely presented component unit
from the Special Revenue Fund.

(c) For comparative purposes, the expenditure data for fiscal year 1992 have been restated for changes in the State of Ohio’s reporting entity that resulted from the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, for fiscal year 1993.

(d) For comparative purposes, the expenditure data for fiscal year 2000 have been restated for the reclassification of capital outlay expenditures to the higher education support function, the
intergovernmental expenditure character, and operating transfers to component units.

(e) For fiscal years 1995 through 2001, expenditures reported under the public assistance and Medicaid function include the effects of recognizing the distribution of food stamp benefits as
expenditures, in accordance with the reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. Public
assistance and Medicaid expenditure data for fiscal years 1992 through 1994, however, have not been restated for the effect of this change in accounting principle.



STATE OF OHIO

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES FOR THE GENERAL FUND
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(dollars in thousands)

Table 3

2001® 2000 1999 1998™ 1997® 1996 1995® 1994 1993®™ 1992
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES....cveveeeeiiiiaeeeeesiiaae e $7,446,990 $7,243,856 $6,389,926 $6,107,084 $5,257,395 $5,268,111 $4,879,232 $4,486,225 $4,270,124 $ 3,880,594
Sales Taxes.......ccceeeeeecvvenaeaeessrennnn. 5,922,333 5,919,129 5,539,780 5,277,997 4,995,691 4,750,430 4,522,230 4,246,093 3,810,631 3,539,700
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes...... 1,604,402 1,604,604 1,718,482 1,862,497 1,794,592 1,731,956 1,708,674 1,497,948 1,419,293 1,304,142
Other TaXeS........cocccevveeeeeeaesiirirenaann, 872,706 861,597 869,556 844,815 828,290 802,912 812,957 843,548 712,400 631,830
Licenses, Permits and Fees .......................... 101,352 96,954 94,789 96,411 87,511 89,249 81,772 81,761 80,629 76,210
Sales, Services and Charges.............ccc......... 40,895 45,738 43,586 38,947 42,031 64,693 65,015 35,556 32,082 24,200
Federal Government................. .... 4,508,747 3,993,184 3,658,824 3,385,998 3,563,004 3,672,610 3,451,126 3,533,853 3,276,727 3,083,886
Investment Income @ . 234,590 287,937 399,520 381,574 277,337 — — — — —
(@1 1= S 197,029 189,241 183,221 161,077 168,587 302,772 268,114 227,857 189,935 286,191
TOTAL REVENUES..............ccocovvevean. 20,929,044 20,242,240 18,897,684 18,156,400 17,014,438 16,682,733 15,789,120 14,952,841 13,791,821 12,826,753
EXPENDITURES:
CUIMTENE ...t 17,657,987 16,222,066 15,146,494 14,362,166 13,678,474 13,170,207 12,416,565 11,983,625 11,369,030 12,010,762
Intergovernmental.... . 1,189,845 1,081,828 1,033,066 982,955 942,690 898,190 814,803 782,014 741,099 703,853
Capital Outlay.......... — 24,862 15,607 38,806 123,217 1,969 5,597 5,552 5,524 17,087
Debt SeIViCe...........cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaan, 2,276 2,320 1,794 1,831 528 1,428 9,740 — 2 —
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ................cc.cc....... 18,850,108 17,331,076 16,196,961 15,385,758 14,744,909 14,071,794 13,246,705 12,771,191 12,115,655 12,731,702
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES............. 2,078,936 2,911,164 2,700,723 2,770,642 2,269,529 2,610,939 2,542,415 2,181,650 1,676,166 95,051
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond ProCeeds...........cccccvveeeeeeeeeeciiieeaaeeann, — — — — — 10,159 — — — —
Capital Leases............ccccueaecreeeiieaaiiaan . — 2,668 1,575 4,737 1,107 335 — — — —
Operating Transfers-in.... 207,488 142,267 201,151 180,176 142,605 93,457 144,114 88,284 89,228 92,392
Operating Transfers-out....................cc.cc.c.... (1,061,119)  (1,302,412) (1,308,827) (1,142,014) (847,794) (807,457) (660,799) (626,006) (554,393) (493,947)
Operating Transfers to Component Units....... (1,864,717) (1,671,985) (1,564,910) (1,520,432) (1,410,667) (1,359,487) (1,276,925) (1,175,190) (1,113,491) —
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)........cccovevieiiacs (2,718,348)  (2,829,462) (2,671,011) (2,477,533) (2,114,749) (2,062,993) (1,793,610) (1,712,912) (1,578,656) (401,555)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES............... (639,412) 81,702 29,712 293,109 154,780 547,946 748,805 468,738 97,510 (306,504)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1.........cccceeeaann. 2,521,051 2,640,072 2,611,195 2,319,058 2,167,739 1,656,135 908,212 426,200 327,261 696,642
Increase (Decrease)
for Changes in Inventories ......................... (741) 511 (835) (972) (2,252) (889) (882) 1,265 1,429 185
Residual EquityTransfers-out................c........ — — — — — (22,986) — — — —
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30..................... $1,880,898 $2,722,285 $2,640,072 $2,611,195 $ 2,320,267 $2,180,206 $ 1,656,135 $ 896,203 $ 426,200 $ 390,323

(a) For fiscal years 1992 through 1996, investment income had been included in “Other” revenue.

(b) The July 1 fund balance has been restated for fiscal years 1993, 1995, 1997, 1998, and 2001; however, financial activities reported for the respective prior year have not been restated.



Table 4

STATE OF OHIO

PERCENT OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
FOR GENERAL AND SPECIAL BONDED DEBT(a)

TO TOTAL ALL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL(b) REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(dollars in thousands)

For the Total Governmental Governmental
Year Ended Debt Service Fund Fund
June 30, Expenditures Revenues Percent Expenditures Percent
2001(©) $ 1,105,541 $31,719,989 3.49% $31,401,248 3.52%
2000(©) () 1,023,246 30,303,960 3.38% 29,347,340 3.49%
1999(¢) 993,260 28,112,239 3.53% 27,993,625 3.55%
1998(¢) 1,004,273 27,211,312 3.69% 26,933,275 3.73%
1997(©) 1,014,767 25,726,002 3.95% 25,710,014 3.95%
1996(©) 888,693 24,902,363 3.57% 24,095,572 3.69%
1995(¢) 780,482 24,127,993 3.23% 23,577,037 3.31%
1994 1,033,745 22,317,703 4.63% 22,407,949 4.61%
1993 658,945 19,880,907 3.31% 20,096,012 3.28%
1992(¢) 743,468 18,563,584 4.00% 19,196,333 3.87%
Notes:

208

(a) Includes general and special obligation bonds for which debt service payments have been made from the following
combining funds in the Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund:

Debt Service Fund Parks and Recreation Facilities Special Obligations
Coal Research/Development General Obligations State Projects General Obligations

Improvements General Obligations School Building Program Special Obligations

Highway Improvements General Obligations Highway Capital Improvements General Obligations
Development General Obligations Higher Education Capital Facilities General Obligations
Highway General Obligations Common Schools Capital Facilities General Obligations
Public Improvements General Obligations Ohio Building Authority Special Obligations

Vietnam Conflict Compensation General Obligations

Local Infrastructure Improvements General Obligations  Capital Projects Fund

Higher Education Facilities Special Obligations Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities Improvements
Mental Health Facilities Special Obligations Parks and Recreation Improvements

(b) This table includes revenues and expenditures for the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital project
funds.

(c) Revenue and expenditures for fiscal years 1995 through 2001 include the effects of recognizing the distribution of
food stamp benefits as revenues and expenditures, in accordance with the reporting requirements of GASB
Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance. Revenue
and expenditure data presented for fiscal years 1992 through 1994, however, have not been restated for the effect of
this change in accounting principle.

(d) For comparative purposes, the revenue and expenditure data for fiscal year 2000 have been restated for the
reclassification of the School Facilities Commission discretely presented component unit from the Special Revenue
Fund.

(e) For comparative purposes, the revenue and expenditure data for fiscal year 1992 have been restated for changes in
the State of Ohio’s reporting entity that resulted from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, for fiscal year 1993.



Table 5

STATE OF OHIO

NET GENERAL AND SPECIAL BONDED DEBT(a) PER CAPITA
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General and Special Obligation Bonds

Less Amount Net
For the Total Reserved for Bonded Net
Year Ended Population Outstanding Debt Service Debt Bonded Debt
June 30, (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Per Capita
2001 11,353() $7,778,092 $108,591 $7,669,501 $676
2000 11,353 7,435,330 112,300 7,323,030 645
1999 11,256 7,024,746 118,549 6,906,197 614
1998 11,210 6,399,741 141,230 6,258,511 559
1997 11,186 6,263,433 254,751 6,008,682 537
1996 11,173 5,753,400 386,059 5,367,341 480
1995 11,150 5,538,663 425,553 5,113,110 459
1994 11,102 5,169,302 440,399 4,728,903 426
1993 11,091 4,658,431 552,339 4,106,092 370
1992 11,016 4,261,059 560,936 3,700,123 336

Source: Population figures were obtained from the Survey of Current Business, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysis

Notes:

(a) Includes general and special obligation bonds for which debt service payments have been made from the following
combining funds in the Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund:

Debt Service Fund

Coal Research/Development General Obligations

Improvements General Obligations
Highway Improvements General Obligations
Development General Obligations

Highway General Obligations

Public Improvements General Obligations

Vietnam Conflict Compensation General Obligations

Parks and Recreation Facilities Special Obligations
State Projects General Obligations

School Building Program Special Obligations

Highway Capital Improvements General Obligations
Higher Education Capital Facilities General Obligations
Common Schools Capital Facilities General Obligations
Ohio Building Authority Special Obligations

Local Infrastructure Improvements General Obligations  Capital Projects Fund

Higher Education Facilities Special Obligations

Mental Health Facilities Special Obligations

Mental Health/Mental Retardation Facilities Improvements
Parks and Recreation Improvements

(b) An estimate for fiscal year 2001 was not available; therefore, population data from the prior year was used.
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Table 6
STATE OF OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(dollars in thousands)

Treasurer of State/Office of Business Development (Liquor Bonds)

Debt Service Requirements

Net Revenue

Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year Revenue® Expenses® Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2001 $ 454,268 $ 327,083 $ 127,185 $ 4,740 $11,392 $16,132 7.88
2000 428,085 310,620 117,465 4,450 11,685 16,135 7.28
1999 397,018 289,853 107,165 4,175 11,952 16,127 6.65
1998 380,791 276,085 104,706 3,790 12,189 15,979 6.55
1997 366,636 270,525 96,111 9,330 6,738 16,068 5.98
1996 350,744 265,820 84,924 14,410 3,851 18,261 4.65
1995 346,979 267,545 79,434 13,500 4,761 18,261 4.35
1994 341,674 267,368 74,306 12,645 5,608 18,253 4.07
1993 350,914 273,967 76,947 11,800 6,392 18,192 4.23
1992 355,201 281,236 73,965 11,015 7,113 18,128 4.08

Treasurer of State/Office of Business Development (Ohio Enterprise Bonds)

Debt Service Requirements

Net Revenue

Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year Revenue® Expenses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2001 $ 2,112 $ — $ 2,112 $ 1,320 $ 64 $ 1,384 1.53
2000 42,106 — 42,106 1,205 186 1,391 30.27
1999 34,249 — 34,249 1,095 298 1,393 24.59
1998 41,690 — 41,690 1,000 400 1,400 29.78
1997 29,673 — 29,673 910 492 1,402 21.16
1996 26,298 — 26,298 830 577 1,407 18.69
1995 27,733 — 27,733 755 654 1,409 19.68
1994 22,436 — 22,436 690 734 1,424 15.76
1993 21,184 — 21,184 630 788 1,418 14.94
1992 25,892 — 25,892 570 846 1,416 18.29

Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds

Debt Service Requirements

Net Revenue

Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year Revenue@ Expenses Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2001 $ 11,454 $ — $ 11,454 $ 7,825 $ 3,606 $ 11,431 1.00
2000 10,140 — 10,140 6,320 3,816 10,136 1.00
1999 10,931 — 10,931 6,775 4,001 10,776 1.01

Notes:
(a) Includes only the revenues reported in the Liquor Control Enterprise Fund.

(b) Includes only the expenses, exclusive of depreciation, reported in the Liquor Control Enterprise Fund.

(c) Includes only the revenues reported in the Enterprise Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund and operating transfers to
the debt service fund from the Community and Economic Development Special Revenue Fund.

(d) Includes only the revenues reported in the Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund and transfers of
federal revenues from the Highway Operating Special Revenue Fund.
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Ohio Building Authority Internal Service Fund

Debt Service Requirements

Net Revenue

Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year Revenue® Expenses® Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2001 $ 31,106 $ 30,598 $ 508 $ 3,194 $1,728 $ 4,922 0.10
2000 30,999 33,862 (2,863) 3,039 1,882 4,921 N/A
1999 29,797 29,097 700 2,893 2,029 4,922 0.14
1998 31,018 25,270 5,748 2,736 2,264 5,000 1.15
1997 27,929 26,913 1,016 3,480 1,801 5,281 0.19
1996 28,251 22,473 5,778 2,602 3,279 5,881 0.99
1995 30,638 22,046 8,592 1,878 4,275 6,153 1.40
1994 33,700 25,763 7,937 2,349 3,881 6,230 1.27
1993 26,924 20,895 6,029 2,222 3,043 5,265 1.15
1992 35,924 22,345 13,579 1,982 4,200 6,182 2.20

Ohio Building Authority/Bureau of Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund

Debt Service Requirements

Net Revenue

Calendar/ Direct Available
Fiscal Gross Operating For Debt
Year(® Revenue® Expenses® Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2001 $2,549,227 $4,460,581 $(1,911,354) $ 8,000 $ 8,915 $16,915 N/A
2000 4,361,511 3,128,723 1,232,788 7,000 9,209 16,209 76.06
1999 3,625,174 2,462,056 1,163,118 6,000 9,455 15,455 75.26
1998 5,115,778 5,891,409 (775,631) 5,000 9,655 14,655 N/A
1997 4,348,344 2,696,867 1,651,477 4,000 9,807 13,807 119.61
1995 3,365,892 2,264,097 1,101,795 2,000 9,947 11,947 92.23
1994 3,161,387 665,854 2,495,533 2,000 9,947 11,947 208.88
1993 3,158,992 2,375,518 783,474 — — — —

Notes:

(e) Includes only the revenues reported in the Ohio Building Authority Internal Service Fund.

(f) Includes only the expenses, exclusive of depreciation, reported in the Ohio Building Authority Internal Service Fund.

(g) Beginning in fiscal year 1997, the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation changed its accounting from calendar year to fiscal year.
(h) Includes only the revenues reported in the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund.

(i) Includes only the expenses, exclusive of depreciation, reported in the Workers” Compensation Enterprise Fund.
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Table 7
STATE OF OHIO

PERSONAL INCOME
OHIO COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Ohio’s
Total Per Capita Personal Income
Personal
Calendar Income Percent United
Year (in millions) Change Ohio States
2000 $322,432 5.5% $28,400 $29,676
1999 305,643 8.0% 27,152 28,542
1998 282,920 4.5% 25,238 26,482
1997 270,741 3.3% 24,203 25,298
1996 262,077 4.4% 23,457 24,426
1995 251,037 8.3% 22,514 23,208
1994 231,843 6.5% 20,883 21,699
1993 217,693 4.4% 19,627 20,781
1992 208,560 5.9% 18,923 20,131
1991 196,927 3.3% 18,001 19,199

Per Capita Personal Income

$35,000

$30,000

$25,000

$20,000 Oohio
B United States

$15,000 T

$10,000 T

$5,000 T

$0 T T T T T T T T T
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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STATE OF OHIO

POPULATION BY AGE GROUP

OHIO COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES

(in thousands)

Table 8

OHIO
Age Group 1990 Percent 2000 Percent
Under5years ....cccoceeeeeeeeeeccnnnnnn, 797 7.3% 755 6.6%
5 through 19 years .........cccceeenee. 2,356 21.7 2,461 21.7
20 through 44 years .........cccc......... 4,204 38.8 4,054 35.7
45 through 64 years.........cccccce....... 2,088 19.3 2,575 22.7
65 years and over .........ccceeeeeeennnn. 1,402 12.9 1,508 13.3
10,847 100.0% 11,353 100.0%
UNITED STATES
Age Group 1990 Percent 2000 Percent
Under5years ....cccoceveeeeeeeeeccnnnnen, 18,763 7.5% 19,176 6.8%
5 through 19 years ........cccceeenee. 52,995 21.3 61,297 21.8
20 through 44 years .........cccc......... 99,750 40.1 104,004 37.0
45 through 64 years............ccccee.e 46,175 18.6 61,953 22.0
65 years and over .........cccceeeeeennnn. 31,082 12.5 34,992 12.4
248,765 100.0% 281,422 100.0%
OHIO’S TOTAL POPULATION AS A PERCENTAGE OF
U.S. TOTAL POPULATION
1990 2000
Ohio U.S. Percent Ohio U.S. Percent
10,847 248,765 4.4% 11,353 281,422 4.0%

Source: Current Population Reports — U.S. Bureau of Census
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AVERAGE MONTHLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

STATE OF OHIO

OHIO COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Table 9

Calendar
Year Ohio United States
2000 4.1% 4.0%
1999 4.3% 4.2%
1998 4.3% 4.5%
1997 4.6% 4.9%
1996 4.9% 5.4%
1995 4.8% 5.6%
1994 5.5% 6.1%
1993 6.5% 6.8%
1992 7.2% 7.4%
1991 6.4% 6.7%

8.0%
7.0%

6.0% 1
5.0% 1
4.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.0% 1

0.0%

Average Monthly Unemployment Rates

1991

1992

1993

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999

2000

Oohio
B ynited States

Source: Ohio Department of Job and Family Services
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Table 10

STATE OF OHIO

LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS WITH HEADQUARTERS IN OHIO

AK Steel Holding (Middletown)
American Electric Power (Columbus)
American Financial Group (Cincinnati)
Cardinal Health (Dublin)

Cinergy (Cincinnati)

Consolidated Stores (Columbus)
Cooper Tire and Rubber (Findlay)
Dana Corporation (Toledo)

Eaton Corporation (Cleveland)
Federated Department Stores (Cincinnati)
Fifth Third Bancorp (Cincinnati)
Firstenergy (Akron)

Goodyear Tire & Rubber (Akron)
KeyCorp (Cleveland)

Kroger (Cincinnati)

LTV Corporation (Cleveland)

Limited (Columbus)

Mead Corporation (Dayton)

NCR (Dayton)

National City Corporation (Cleveland)
Nationwide Insurance Enterprise (Columbus)
OfficeMax (Shaker Heights)
Owens-Corning Corporation (Toledo)
Owens-Illinois Incorporated (Toledo)
Parker-Hannifin Corporation (Cleveland)
Procter & Gamble Company (Cincinnati)
Progressive (Maytield Village)
Sherwin-Williams Company (Cleveland)

TRW Incorporated (Cleveland)

Source: The Fortune 500 Listing, Fortune Magazine, April 16, 2001
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Table 11

STATE OF OHIO

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING ACTIVITY
FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Residential Building

Activity
Construction

Calendar Contracts _ Valuation
Year (in millions) Permits (in thousands)
2000 $17,100® 49,745 $6,153,624
1999 17,100 55,880 6,400,599
1998 15,127 48,034 5,410,012
1997 14,617 46,487 4,795,483
1996 14,021 49,280 5,000,781
1995 12,364 44,812 4,375,036
1994 11,935 47,152 4,799,052
1993 11,037 44,235 4,318,976
1992 10,757 42,610 3,926,554
1991 9,442 35,810 3,146,887

Sources: Construction Contracts - F. W. Dodge, McGraw-Hill, Inc., New York, NY
Residential Activity - Current Construction Reports, U.S. Bureau of Census

Notes:

(a) Data for 2000 was not available; therefore, construction contracts data from the prior year was used.
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ASSESSED AND MARKET VALUE OF TAXABLE REAL PROPERTY

STATE OF OHIO

FOR THE LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS

Calendar
Year

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994
1993
1992
1991

Source: Ohio Department of Taxation

(dollars in thousands)

Assessed
Value®

$167,857,658

156,600,957
142,864,247
137,544,846
129,853,309
121,046,340
116,576,831
110,319,626
102,548,627

99,937,534

Market Value

$479,593,309

447,431,306
408,183,563
392,985,274
371,009,454
345,846,686
333,076,660
315,198,931
292,996,077
285,535,811

Table 12

Notes:

(a) Assessed value is 35 percent of market value.
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Table 13

STATE OF OHIO

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS AND DATA

STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

Form of State Government Executive, Legislative, Judicial
Number of Counties 88
Number of Incorporated Cities and Villages 943
Number of State Agencies, Boards, Commissions, and Elected Offices 111@)
Number of State Employees 63,693
Number of State Representatives 99
Number of State Senators 33

PARKS AND RECREATION:

Number of State Parks 73
Area of State Parks, Natural and Wildlife Lands 301,680.95 acres
Area of State Forest Lands 184,383.25 acres
EDUCATION:

Number of State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 38
2000-2001 Student Enrollment at State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions 428,880
Number of Public School Districts 612
Number of Joint Vocational School Districts 49

MISCELLANEOUS:

State Capital Columbus
Date of Statehood March 1, 1803
State Motto With God, All Things are Possible
Total Land Acreage 26.4 million acres
Total Farm Acreage 14.9 million acres
Ohio’s Three Largest Metropolitan Areas Cleveland, Cincinnati, Columbus
Largest Source of Federal Financial Support U.S. Department of Health

and Human Services

Sources: Ohio Department of Natural Resources
State of Ohio Official Statement

Notes:

(a) Limited to those entities that have financial activity recorded on the State of Ohio’s Central Accounting System.
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